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1+ Letter to Shareholders

2023 was a year that marked a significant milestone for Inpag Technology. Based on our breakthrough in
technology and differentiation strategy, Inpag Technology achieved record-high monthly revenue and robust profit
growth. In 2023, Inpaq Technology’s revenue increased by 5%, while operating net profit surged by 49% to NT$ 765
million. Despite facing significant economic and geopolitical challenges globally, Inpag Technology still achieved
excellent results with the joint efforts of all employees.

In the past three years, the COVID-19 pandemic, regional lockdowns, conflicts such as the Russia-Ukraine crisis,
and geopolitical tensions have severely disrupted global supply chains, leading to significant increases in international
raw material and energy prices, sparking inflationary pressures. By 2023, as the pandemic gradually subsided and
inflation stabilized, the market began to recover, with all four major product lines of Inpag Technology continuing to
grow positively. Among them, the significant growth in gross profit of the power inductors, driven by the completion of
new capacity installations and breakthroughs in process technology, has significantly boosted Inpaq Technology's
profitability.

In 2023, generative Al emerged as a dominant force, leading the world to focus on the development of the Al field.
With Al applications expanding widely to servers, PCs, and smartphones, it ushered in a new wave of replacement
demand. Inpag Technology ‘s main products, antennas and passive components, are both peripheral components, thus
the resurgence in demand for PCs and smartphones, along with the gradually reaping benefits from the long-cultivated
automotive market, is expected to bring new growth momentum to Inpag Technology 's revenue.

Inpag Technology is a professional electronic component manufacturer with four main product lines: antennas,
high-frequency inductors, power inductors, and protection components. Among them, the company is the main supplier
for GPS positioning ceramic antennas in the world. With the trend of global electronic industries towards 5G, 10T,
smart homes, industrial automation, and automotive electronics, Inpaq Technology will continue to expand into the
automotive electronics, high-end 5G/6G communication, Al applications, low-earth orbit (LEO) satellite, and ultra wide
brand (UWB) modules markets. Below is the company's annual report for 2023:

A. 2023 Business Report

1. Implementation results of the business plan
The implementation results of the parent company's business plan for 2023 are as follows:
Unit: NT$ thousands

Item 2023 2022 Growth
Net consolidated operating revenue 6,604,062 6,287,071 5%
Consolidated realized gross profit 1,845,954 1,553,345 19%
Consolidated operating expenses 1,081,117 1,039,643 4%
Consolidated net operating profit 764,837 513,072 49%
Consolidated net non-operating income and expenses 74,403 203,799 -63%
Consolidated profit before income tax 839,240 717,501 17%
2. Budget implementation: Not applicable.
3. Parent company's financial revenue and expenditure and analysis of profitability
Item 2023 2022
Liabilities to Assets Ratio (%) 37.58 39.63
Long-term funds to fixed assets ratio (%) 349.13 347.61
Return on assets (%) 7.18 6.58
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 11.29 10.44
Net profit ratio (%) 18.18 17.62
Earnings per share (NT$) 5.01 4.22




Research and Development Status:

Inpag Technology's core technologies include material development, component design, and process integration.
The company focuses on researching and developing key components such as system protection components, high-
frequency antennas, power inductors, and RF components based on customer applications and future component
development directions. Inpag Technology is dedicated to technological innovation and patent construction, and it has
grown to become a world-class leader in the field of protective components and antenna modules.

Thick film printing technology, material layer stacking technology, ceramic iron powder integrated molding
technology, thin film fine circuit technology, low-temperature co-fired ceramic (LTCC) technology, and polymer low-
loss dielectric material 3D molding technology are all part of Inpag Technology's established technology platform. The
company's electronic components are used in a wide range of 3C electronics, communication, and automotive
applications, including mobile phones, computers, displays, broadband network equipment, electric vehicles (EVs) and
autonomous vehicles (AVs), satellite communication, digital wearables, and so on.

Research and Development Technical Focus:

(1) Application of thin-film packaging technology

(2) Miniaturization of high-current and industrial/automotive integrated molded power inductors

(3) 5G high-frequency precision inductors

(4) Low-temperature co-fired ceramic packaging manufacturing technology

(5) High-frequency signal application ultra-low capacitance-surge protection components

(6) Application of ultra-small CSP thin-film packaging technology

(7) Application of ultra-high surge protection varistors technology

(8) Design and manufacturing of RFID/NFC antennas, wireless charging modules, and antennas for 3C, automotive,
and networking applications.

(9) Design and manufacturing of low-earth orbit (LEO) satellite (Ku/Ka band) low-temperature co-fired ceramic (LTCC)
array antenna unit modules.

(10) Design and manufacturing of 5G millimeter-wave communication high-frequency low-temperature co-fired

ceramic (LTCC) bandpass filters.

(11) High-precision, dual-frequency, lightweight GPS antenna modules.

(12) Design and manufacturing of millimeter-wave radar modules and antennas.

(13) Ultra wide brand (UWB) modules and ceramic antennas.

(14) 5G FWA Outdoor/Indoor antenna modules.

B. Summary of the Business Plan for 2024, Future Company Development Strategy, and Future Impact from
External Competitive, Regulatory, and Macroeconomic Environments

The clear trend in the global electronics industry towards projects such as 5G, 10T, smart homes, industrial
automation, and automotive electronics aligns closely with Inpaq Technology's product market positioning and business
direction. We will continue to focus on selecting the right products, maintaining excellent product quality, and
enhancing organizational effectiveness. In 2024, we will continue to strengthen the following initiatives:

(1) Focus on Featured Products to Increase Competitiveness:
Continue to improve product design, materials, and processes to increase competitiveness, strengthen the core value
of advantageous products, convert them into high-margin revenue and high market share market strategy.

(2) Continuously Adjust Company Structure:
(a) Proactively cultivate and recruit exceptional talent, Strengthen employee skills and reserve excellent human
resources.
(b) Integrate multiple departments and external resources, and manage professionally.
(c) Actively control costs and strengthen management capabilities.
(d) Invest in automated processes to enhance productivity and quality.
(e) Strengthen the application of "KPI performance management system" to improve the company's core
competitiveness and ensure steady operation.



(3) Enter New Market Applications:

(a) Continuously develop corresponding products and technologies for new market applications such as 10T, mobile
payments, smart wearable devices, wireless charging positioning systems, AR/VR, antenna modules, automotive
electronics, 5G/6G communication products, Al applications, and low-earth orbit satellites.

(b) Enhance the ODM model for key customer groups and establish strategic alliance relationships with well-known
international manufacturers.

(c) Focus on the development and production of magnetic components, antenna modules, and sensing radars in the
fields of power, electromechanical, and signal, in response to the rise of emerging industries such as electric
vehicles, wind power charging piles, and energy storage equipment in the new energy industry.

(4) Build an Internationally Renowned Brand:
(a) Recruit and train international talents of various languages.
(b) Strengthen product network promation.
(c) Establish overseas branches and professional FAE technical service teams.
(d) Continuously cooperate with major IC manufacturers and enter 1C reference circuit design.

Outlook:

Inpag Technology s management team will adopt the following principles of management as the direction for
sustainable development:

Looking forward, Inpag Technology will fully leverage teamwork and adaptability, continuously optimize resource
utilization to adjust production pace, develop excellent technologies to meet customer demands, enhance product
quality and cost competitiveness, strengthen partnerships with customers, and thereby enhance profitability and create
value to expand shareholder benefits and maintain the company's competitive edge. Additionally, as the company
steadily grows and expands its operations, Inpag Technology will actively cultivate outstanding talents, recruit an
internationalized team, foster a positive and ethical work culture, and continuously improve working conditions and
employee benefits to attract talent.

While pursuing profitability and growth, Inpaq Technology continues to enhance corporate governance to
safeguard shareholder interests and implement corporate social responsibility and sustainable business principles. In
recent years, Inpag Technology has established an ESG Implementation Committee, actively promoting greenhouse gas
inventories, setting energy-saving and carbon-reduction targets, developing green products, caring for employee well-
being and safety, and actively participating in public welfare activities, fulfilling its responsibility to environmental
conservation and achieving the goal of sustainable business operations.

Finally, thank you to all of our customers, suppliers, shareholders, and the public for their long-term support and
trust in Inpag Technology, as well as to all of our employees for their wholehearted dedication to the company's
operations. Let us continue to work together to create greater value.

Wishing everyone good health and all the best!

Chairman Pei-Cheng Chen
President Chih-Mou Hung
Accounting Manager Kuo-Shu Huang



2 ~ Company Profile

1. Establishment date

Establishment date: June 23, 1998

2. Company history

(1) In the early stages of the Company's establishment, its core technology was the assembly of integrated SMD
components, and it established a company that designs, manufactures, and sells high-density integrated products. The
Company provides miniaturized integrated assembly technology and product services for product areas such as
overvoltage, overcurrent, noise protection components, and microwave communication antenna components. Using
its innovative technological advantages, it produces and sells key components for consumer products,
communication, computers, and their peripherals in Taiwan and around the world. The important events of the

Company are as follows:

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

« The Company was established, and the registered capital was NT$240 million, with a paid-in
capital of NT$60 million.

« The Company issued 12 million new shares with a paid-in capital of NT$180 million.

« The Company was authorized to establish a factory in Miaoli and obtained a factory registration
certificate.

« The Company obtained an approval letter for "Important Technology Enterprise™ in accordance
with the Act for Upgrading Industries.

« The Company obtained certification for ISO-9001 & QS-9000.

- The Company changed its registered capital to NT$500 million and issued 12.5 million new
shares.

« The Company successfully developed and mass-produced the thick-film array capacitor
(CN41).

« The Company obtained approval for "Leading New Plan for the Development of Microwave
Compound Micro Antenna Products™ from the Industrial Development Bureau, MOEA.

+ The Company issued 9.5 million new shares with a paid-in capital of NT$400 million.

«+ The Company successfully developed the Multilayer Varistor (MLV Series).

« The Company successfully developed and mass-produced the GPS Patch Antenna (PA Series)

« The Company obtained approval for the "Static Discharge Protection Material and Substrate
Integration Technology™ plan from the Department of Industrial Technology, MOEA

« The Company issued 7,845,748 new shares through retained earnings and capital reserve, with a
paid-in capital of NT$478,457,480.

« The Company successfully developed and mass-produced the Multilayer Chip Capacitor Array
(CA41 Series).

« The Company indirectly invested in and established Inpaq Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
through a third-party country.

« The Hsinchu Science Park Bureau, NSTC gave the Company permission to relocate to the
Science Park and change its business address to No. 23, Gongye E. 4th Rd., East Dist., Hsinchu
City

« The WLAN Chip Antenna and GPS AAF were officially mass-produced.

- The Company's overseas production base, Inpaq Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., officially
started production.

- The Company was listed on the Taipei Exchange, stock code R243.



2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2018

« The Company obtained a license to establish a branch office in Zhunan.

« The Company obtained an approval letter for "Successful Product Development with
Marketability" from the Industrial Bureau of the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

+ The SMD PPTC (Polymer Positive Temperature Coefficient) and EGA (ESD Guard) were
officially mass-produced.

+ The Company obtained 1SO14000 certification.

+ Approved by the Taiwan Stock Exchange and Futures Exchange to become an OTC-listed
company.

« Merged with Etronic Team Co., Ltd.

« Developed LC Filter, officially mass-produced Multilayer Type Common mode filters.

- Increased capital by issuing 4.1 million new shares and issuing NT$150 million of the first
domestic unsecured convertible corporate bond in Taiwan.

« Increased capital by issuing 4,671,073 new shares through earnings and reserves, increasing
paid-in capital to NT$652,578,210.

« Indirectly invested in establishing Inpaq Trading (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. through a third-party
country.

+ Amended the Company's Articles of Incorporation to increase the authorized capital to NT$1
billion.

+ Completed private placement by issuing 20 million new shares and raising NT$973,000,000.

« Increased capital by issuing 5,277,063 shares through earnings and reserves, increasing paid-in
capital to NT$732,280,840.

« Amended the Company's Articles of Incorporation to increase the authorized capital to NT$1.5
billion.

« Indirectly invested in establishing Inpaq Technology (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. through a third-party
country.

« Investments in Inpaq Korea Co., Ltd. are re-invested businesses with 33% equity ownership.

- Signed a subsidy contract for "Multilayer Power Inductors for High-Density Micro Power
Modules Produced by Low-Temperature Co-fired Ceramic" with the Industrial Development
Bureau, MOEA.

« Increased capital by issuing 7,374,907 new shares through earnings and reserves, increasing
paid-in capital to NT$982,590,250.

- Indirectly invested in establishing Inpag Technology (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

« Increased capital by issuing 4,730,702 new shares through earnings and reserves, increasing
paid-in capital to NT$1,029,897,270.

- Established a factory in Wuxi, China.

+ Changed the address of the head office to No. 11, Keyi St., Zhunan Township, Miaoli County.

« Developed thin-film common-mode filters and established a mass production process.

- Established dry process capabilities for the base layer.

+ Reduced the number of treasury shares by 3,645,000, and the paid-in capital was changed to
NT$993,447,270.

« Established a branch in Taichung, and relocated the Taichung factory to the Taichung Science
Park.

+ Conducted a second domestic convertible corporate bond offering of NT$300 million.

« Increased capital by issuing 3,094,879 new shares through the conversion of convertible bonds,
increasing paid-in capital to NT$1,024,396,060.

- Listed in the Directory of Excellent Taiwan Exporters and Importers in 2013.

« Increased capital by issuing 118,648 new shares through the conversion of convertible bonds,
increasing paid-in capital to NT$1,025,582,540.

- Subsidiary Inpaq Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. received the first "Zifeng Award" for Taiwan-
funded enterprises in Jiangsu.

- Repayed the second domestic guaranteed convertible corporate bond.

- Conducted private cash capital increase and issued 45,000,000 new shares, increasing paid-in
capital to NT$1,475,582,540.

+ Acquired the antenna business unit of Walsin Technology Corp.



2019 + Conducted cash capital reduction of 7,377,913 shares, reducing paid-in capital to
NT$1,408,003,410.
- Established Inpaq Europe to accelerate the development of the European market.
2020 + To meet market demand, the Company increased its production capacity by constructing a
second factory in Zhunan.
« Subsidiary Inpaq Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. received the second prize for tax contribution
in Xiangcheng District, Jiangsu.
2021 + Acquired Hunan Hongdian Electronic Co., Ltd. to increase the product portfolio of inductors
and expand market visibility and share.
« Invested in Joyin Co., Ltd. to expand the product lines of varistors, thermistors, and sensors.
2022 + Sold the equity of Joyin Co., Ltd. to Prosperity Dielectric Co., Ltd.
« Acquired 72.9% shares of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. through the acquisition of Joyin Co.,
Ltd., becoming a subsidiary of the Company from July.
+ The new factory in Zhunan was completed and put into operation.
2023 « Increased capital by issuing 88,000,000 new shares, increasing paid-in capital to
NT$1,489,803,410
« Conducted a third unsecured convertible corporate bond offering of NT$700 million.
+ The completion and inauguration of the global headquarters and research center building.

(2) Any major quantity of shares belonging to directors, supervisors, or shareholders holding greater than a 10
percent stake in the Company is transferred or otherwise changes hands: None



Corporate Governance Report

3

1. Organization Structure

Shareholder

BOD of Inpaq

Chief Corporate

govemance

office

Audit Office

1. Organization Chart

Chairmen

office

President

RF Unit

Chip Unit

Coil Unit

Marketing Unit

Production and Logistics Center

Facility Management Center

Supply Chain Management Center

Quality Assurance Center

Legal Center

Administration Center

Information Center

Finance and Accounting Center




2. Major Corporate Functions

Department Functions Note
CEOQ, 1. Assumes responsibility for the success or failure of company operations.
President 2. Sets company operation objectives and strategies.
3. Shapes the organizational structure and culture.
4. Establishes external relationships and develops talent.
5. Assigns management representatives.
President's | 1. Plans and supervises the execution performance of business groups.
Room 2. Prepare and present plans, execution status, and recommendations to the President and

relevant management levels for decision-making.

3. Assists in coordinating the needs and tasks of various departments.
4. Executes and manages projects.
Finance and | 1. Prepares and analyzes financial statements.
Accounting | 2. Plans and integrates funding and risk management.
Center 3. Communicates and maintains shareholder equity.
4. Plans and integrates taxation.
5. Manages fixed assets.
Information | 1. Establishes and implements information management systems.
Center 2. Sets up and manages software and hardware equipment, networks, enterprise

information systems, and application systems.

Legal Center

1. Drafts, reviews, and manages contracts; provides legal advice and resolves litigation
and mediation cases.

2. Collects laws and regulations and conducts special studies; manages and protects
intellectual property.

3. Promotes legal education and training.

Administrati | 1. Plans, executes, and manages related operations such as personnel, administration, and
on Center general affairs.
2. Plans and manages labor safety and health-related businesses.
3. Plans and manages environmental safety-related businesses (wastewater, exhaust gas,
waste, noise, toxic substances, drinking water, etc.).
4. Contact, declaration and approval of business related to the competent authority.
5. Manages environmental safety risk assessment.
Quality 1. Plans and maintains quality systems.
Assurance | 2. Calibrates and manages inspection, measuring instruments, and testing equipment.
Center 3. Controls product quality operations.
4. Controls document operations.
5. Verifies product reliability.
6. Applies for and manages safety regulations.
7. Manages customer quality complaints.
8. Promotes the Company's quality image.
9. Measures and manages the laboratory.
Production | 1. Plans and executes procurement strategies and supply chain management.
and Logistics | 2.  Plans and executes outsourcing.
Center 3. Manages import and export and overseas business support.
Audit Office | Evaluates the deficiencies of the Company's internal control system and measures

operational efficiency, submits audit reports, provides timely improvement suggestions, and
ensures that the internal control system is continuously and effectively implemented, and
assists management in fulfilling their responsibilities.




Departments Functions Note
RF Unit 1.  Formulating and achieving production quality/cost/lead time goals.
2. Capacity planning and execution.
Chip Unit 3. Developing and promoting corrective and preventive measures and continuous
improvement plans.
Coil Unit Developing and managing production technology and equipment.

Marketing Unit

Production and
Logistics Center

Supply Chain
Management
Center

Facility
Management
Center

4
5 Planning and managing the operational environment.

6.  Establishing, maintaining, and improving factory facilities.

7 Coordinating and managing production, sales, and inventory.

8 Planning and supervising inventory management.

9.  Developing new products and providing technical support.

10. Implementing research and development project system

11. Verifying and approving new materials.

12. Developing and revising material, product, and packaging specifications.

13. Managing intellectual property rights.

14.  Assisting the marketing department in promoting products and company image
to external parties.




‘dion

(s)10s1A18dns 10 ‘(S)J0308.1p ‘(S)4891440 JaY10

Aq pray Ajuaing sareys

3UON SUON 3UON 3UON SUON - - - - 9L've 859'28.'1S €T've 059'8Y8'Ly ¥2'8'810C SIBBA € | 9T°9°€20C -|  ABojouyoay | uemier J018ug
uIsiep\
*dJ0D "eMyIT UIS[EAA
40 10308.1Q ‘uorresodio)
]81-0juj Jo uosiadireyd * p1]
09 91198131g AJadsold Jo
uosiadireyd “p17 ainoenueln
spueld [eqo| 40 030 o8
pue uosiadireyd “*p1 sbuipjoH diod BusL-n
Jeuoijeulaiu| preog JeisuueH |  ABojouyds ) uis|eAn ‘Uewreyd pjo sresk .m>_§cwwuum>
3UON BUON 8UON 40 03D pue uossadireyd “oul 891/ :90uBLIRdXT HIOM | - - - - 100 000°02 - - ¥2'8'810C SIedA € | 9T'9'€20C 0.~19|" " .Eom uemie |
‘BurissulBu3 pasueApY UOJBAA van Ausianiun aes 8J_IN o
. ABojouysa | 1018110
40 030 puk uossadiieyd | uapjo9 :SuoIIEIHENQ JIWSPEIY
uIs|epy
‘uonresodio) ABojouyda | o
Yoa|IS Jo uosiadireyd —
“di0D ABojouyda | uisjepn
10 uosiadireyd “pri “0d
("94IN) ABojouyda ] 1981e)
10 OSD pue uosiadireyd adA
‘dion
SUON SUON SUON SUON BUON - - - - 9L'vE 859'28L'TS €TvE 059'878'Ly ¥2'8'810C SIeA € | 9T'9°€20C -| ABojouyoay | uemrer
uIs|ep\
P11 00 911309]3 ONsIe
1010308410 P17 0D 21110813 usyn
eAeweyy Jo 10128110 U] ‘YSN Buayd-tad
p|o SIesk
au0 U0, au0 ABojouyos beduj jo 1010a1Q VAN Ausianiun uolburysepn R R } } . . . . . sieo . :aAIleluasalday vemie
N N N “pr] (spueys] uewken)| 81089 ‘suorzeslfend) aiwapeay 100 65C°L6 €00 000Gt ¥2'8'810C A€ | 9T'9°€20C woME:Hm di0g el
beduj o Jo1au@ “p11 (IAQ) fewad ABojouyds | uosiadireyd
beduj Jo 1010811Q ‘aouel|Y uIsfepA
wasAS aAIssed JO OSD
‘di0D
aUON SUON 3UON auoN auoN - - - - 9.v€ 859'78L'TS eTve | 0s9'8v8‘LY ¥2'8'8102 SIBBA € | 9T'9'€20C - ABojouyosy | uemel
uIs|ep\
. . . saleys wiay
diys-uonejay aweN 9L % | Seseysjo oN % saleys Jo ‘oN % saleys Jo ‘oN % . u
Auedwoa Jaylo JO'ON W8] Jus.1IN2 0}
910 Aue ur Jo/pue Auedwo) a suoiealyijenb olwspese SI1J 4O ¢ QMO jswnurodde 3y awe onesstbay 3N
"ON [ 3a16ap pucas auy uiym aanefal 10 asnods 1 1o/p 0 3t pue doualadxa yiom [edioutld saauILIou ybnou uaipiyd woI98|a 10 aull 151 40 1Ep Jjowal sl JELIED) N J0 d2e|d / L
ur AJ3us1induod pjay suoIIsod I ybnoiyx . 1393]3 J n JUBWIBOUBIWOD Juonos|a
30 diysuoizeas e sey uosiad ay3 Yarym ynm Joulw pue asnods pI3Y AJ3ua1ind sateys 0 'ON Aeuonen
sbuipjoysaeys 83 18 p|ay saJeys Jo ‘ON 0 8leg i

saleys :un

20z ‘9T |1dy

(1) slo10a41Q UO UoIRWLIOW] T

UOITRWLIOLU| 18211 SayourIg pue sjuswileda ‘Sa1eI100SSY ‘quspIsald 82IA ‘1UapIsald ‘siosiniadng ‘si010a11q




3UON

QUoN

3UON

‘P17 0D ABojouyda ] welsds|3y
40 uosiadireyd ‘panwi (MH)
211399]3 eARWEY JO J0198IIQ
‘uofelodiod so1U01198|3
OXNSUN 40 J0)aud “pug

ups (IN) 14393]5 eAewey|

10 10308110 U] ‘eAewey
401030811 “P¥] 0D 9L103|3
eAewey| Jo aneluasalday “pi
09 21u04398|3 (noyzbueno)
SaSIBNQ Ued J0 1018110
‘panwi ABojouyda L wbLg
aul4 40 1038410 “p¥] "0
$91u01398]3 ABojouyds | uIsfepn
noyzns Jo 1030811 ‘panwI]
("M"H) wauodwo) anissed
uIs|ep 40 1030au1Q ‘panwi]
(MH) uorresodio) ABojouyds |
uIs|ep 40 J01ald ‘'V'S'N
uonelodio) ABojouyda |
UIs[e/n J0 J0joaaIg P 0D
sjuawisanu] (*1'A’g) Seasisno
ued 401030211 @ ‘panw (MH)
JuswiaBeue| [euoijeulaiu]
UIS|eAA JO 10303110

uoiesodiod ABojouyds |
UIS[e/ JO JuapIsald

‘P11 00 ABojouyds |

OVdV ‘annreiussalday

1039811 8¥e10d10D) Py 0D
ulAor ‘annjejussaiday 10198110
alesodiod 'p17 09 ABojouyds L
bedu| ‘009D :89usnadx3 3Iop
Ausianiun uemie |

JeuoieN ‘Buriaauibu3 [eaiwayd
“Q'yd su

T00

Sv6'6

900

668'68

o

059'58S

¥¢'8'810¢

SIBOA €

9T'9'€20C

p|o SIesk
09~19
d_N

Buas |

ues] -Buin
:anIeIuasaIday
‘dion
ABojouysa |
uIsfepy

uemie |

310N

diys-uone|ay

aweN

9L

93163p pu0as 8y} UIYNM dAITe|a] J0 asnods
30 diysuorzeas e sey uosiad ay3 Yarym ynm
(s)10s1A18dns 10 ‘(S)J0308.1p ‘(S)4891440 JaYI0

Auedwod Jayio
Aue ur 10/pue Auedwo) ay}
I A]3U81Jndu0d pjay suoisod

suoiealyifenb olapese
pue aoualiadxa yi1om fedioutid

% | sareysjo-oN

%

SaIeys Jo "'ON

%

SaIeys J0 'ON

%

saleys
40 "ON

saaujwou ybnoyy
sBuipjoysaseys

usIp|Iyd

Jouiw pue asnods
Aq pray Ajuaing sareys

pI3Y Aj3ua1ind sateys Jo ‘oN

U01399]3 JO By
3y} Je play saJeys Jo "ON

wusy
1511 0 31ep
Juswiaduswwo)

20140
Jjowsl

wiay
Ua11N3 0}
yuswyurodde
Juonose
Joaleq

oby
J18pUsD

aleN

u
onensifay
Jo3%e|d /
Aureuonen

11

ELN




3UON

aUON

auON

UOI7RID0SSY
10398311 uapuadapu] 1adre] jo
J1030811Q ‘ABojouya ] [erisnpul
uo uoresadoo) ueder

-UBMIE] JO 1093110 ‘UOIRINPT
90UAIOS UOIepPUN0 837 "L
uenA 0 1033a11q ‘uote|sifa
91wou093 Bunowoid

10 Awapedy 4o J03ang

‘P17 0D uoIsIdald Buaysng

0 1019811 Juspuadapu]
‘UOINBID0SSY BINJUSA

M3N 141 Uemie | JO JuapIsald

i

00 ulkor ‘1032811 Juapuadapu]
‘UOITeID0SSY BINJUBA

M8N [4.L] uemie] ‘uosiadireyd
Buipuno ‘uonesodiod O3 LI

10 18punoy-09 :8ouaLadx3 YoM
Ausianiun

uemIe] [euoneN ‘Ansiwayd

10 Jojaydeg ‘Asjaxiag ‘elulojifed
40 Ausianiun ‘Ansiway) ui
‘ayd su

€1'9'800¢

SIBOA €

91'9'€20C

plo sieak
0L~T9
3leiN

0e9 nZ-r

uemie |

10108113
Juapuadapu]

3UON

aUON

3UON

‘oul wopbury M Jo
uosiadireyd “ouj ABojouyoa )
uoIsiA 33S-| 4o uosiadireyd
‘uorresodio) ABojouyos |
1eagApea)s Jo alreIuasalday
uosiadireyD arelodiod

*p1] 0D douabifjau|
29)Uea JO aAITeIUBSaIday
Josinadng aresodio)

“p17 09 ABojouyda |

29)UAS 40 1032810 “p1T “0D
Juawisanu] diysinausaidaiug
Burx 1yz a3 1og

10 anneIUasalday uosiadireyd
ajesodiod “pr7 0D Bunnsuod
JuswaBeuey uoleAouu]
Buoo Buay) o 101aanq

“p¥ 0D (18qnH) ABojouyoa L
OV dV 40 anleiussalday

“pi1 0D (1xnan) ABojouyoa L
OV dV 40 anneiussalday

“pr1 0D (noyzns)
ABojouysa] beduj yo 1010810
“p17 0D Wwawabeuey
Je1oueul Buepa eip uip

10 10328110 ‘uoliesodioD yew|
10 aAIeIUasalday Josiniadng
ayelodioD ‘ouj‘ABojouyda |
»indoig 4o Jopana

P17 0D 11 JUBWISeAU]
diysinauaidaijug uoryenouu]
X1U30yd 40 aAllejussalday
J030811Q 8resodio) ‘pr7 0D
|ende ainjus uolleAouu|
XI1U30Ud J0 anljejuasaiday
10398311 81e10d10D “p¥T 0D
ABojouysa] OVdV 40 J010aaQg
|ealuyoa ] pue uossadiieyd

Alojeloge] [eanwsyd

pue [eLBIRIAl [HLI ‘MOj|e4
yoJeasay :90uslIadx3 SI0M
Ausianiun Buny Busyd
|eUOIIEN ‘32UBIDS [eLIslelN
@'yd :suoljealfifend) dlwapedy

S0°0

29r'TL

880 909'vTE'T

L0T

909'96%'T

ST'9'866T

SIBOA €

91'9'€c0c

p|o sJeak
0L~T9
3N

Buayd
uay-ung

uemie

12

1030941Q

310N

diys-uone|ay

aweN

9L

93163p pu0as 8y} UIYNM dAITe|a] J0 asnods
30 diysuorzeas e sey uosiad ay3 Yarym ynm
(s)10s1A18dns 10 ‘(S)J0308.1p ‘(S)4891440 JaYI0

Auedwod Jayio
Aue ur 10/pue Auedwo) ay}
I A]3U81Jndu0d pjay suoisod

suoiealyifenb olapese
pue aoualiadxa yi1om fedioutid

% | sareysjo-oN

%

SaIeys Jo "'ON

% SaIeys J0 'ON

%

saleys
40 "ON

saaujwou ybnoyy
sBuipjoysaseys

usIp|Iyd

Jouiw pue asnods
Aq pray Ajuaing sareys

pI3Y Aj3ua1ind sateys Jo ‘oN

U01399]3 JO By

33 1e |3y saJeys Jo 'ON

wusy
1511 0 31ep
Juswiaduswwo)

20140
Jjowsl

wiay
Ua11N3 0}
yuswyurodde
Juonose
Joaleq

oby
J18pUsD

aleN

u
onensifay
Jo3%e|d /
Aureuonen

ELN




3UON

aUON

3UON

“uolepuno4 uolyeanp3
Bueixuapn Jo uosiadireyd
‘P17 0D Juswabeue
19SSV 179H J0 uosiadiieyd

P17 0D uonannsuo) nliay pue
“p17 “0Q 8oueINSU| 8417 UBMIB L
“p11 0D Wawdojansq JaIusd
JeIouBUI4 pue apel | [euoijeulaiu]
uswierX “py 0D 8duBINSU| 8y
Buo-unyd eulyd Jo Jo1ang
@l 0 [euoiteusslu|

uoqBuoT Jo uosiadireyd

‘aL1 00 LNINIDVNVIN
13SSV A®H 40 Wapisald
:90UB1IadXT Y0

aouelnsu| ur aaibsp

sJa1seN ‘Ansianiun eiyd Bus4
VaINT [00Y0S

ssauisng [euoljeusaiu| adoing
BUIYD :SUOIEII[EN]) JIWSPedY

91'9°'€c0c

SIBOA €

91'9°'€c0c

p|o SIesk
05~Tv
aeIN

YD 19M-0d

uemie

13

Jopauq
Juapuadapu|

3UON

aUON

3UON

aUON

uenA

aA1e|sIBaT YIXIS pue yYId By} Jo
Joejsiba] ‘Ausieniun 1yabusyd
JeuolieN ‘8ouslos [eall|od

10 Juswpedaq ‘10ss8j0.1d
‘1adie | Jo ANsisnlun ‘sireydy
21|qnd Pue 1908 J0 Juswiedsq
$105$8)01d :89usLIadXT IO
ANSIBAIUN UIBISSMUHON

"@’Yd :suoijedlyIfend) J1Wapesy

S1'9'0¢0¢

SIBOA €

91'9°'¢c0c

plo SJeak
0L~T9
BTN

BuenH n3-ya L

uemie

10308110
Juapuadapu

310N

diys-uone|ay

aweN

9L

93163p pu0as 8y} UIYNM dAITe|a] J0 asnods
30 diysuorzeas e sey uosiad ay3 Yarym ynm
(s)10s1A18dns 10 ‘(S)J0308.1p ‘(S)4891440 JaYI0

Auedwod Jayio
Aue ur 10/pue Auedwo) ay}
I A]3U81Jndu0d pjay suoisod

suoiealyifenb olapese
pue aoualiadxa yi1om fedioutid

% | sareysjo-oN

%

SaIeys Jo "'ON

%

SaIeys J0 'ON

saJeys

% JO 'ON

saaujwou ybnoyy
sBuipjoysaseys

usIp|Iyd

Jouiw pue asnods
Aq pray Ajuaing sareys

pI3Y Aj3ua1ind sateys Jo ‘oN

U01399]3 JO By
3y} Je play saJeys Jo "ON

wusy
1511 0 31ep
Juswiaduswwo)

20140
Jjowsl

wiay
Ua11N3 0}
yuswyurodde
Juonose
Joaleq

oby
J18pUsD

aleN

u
onensifay
Jo3%e|d /
Aureuonen

ELN




Table 1: Directors and Supervisors who are representatives of corporate shareholders, should identify the name of the
corporate shareholder and the names of the top ten shareholders of that corporation, as well as their respective

shareholding ratios.

April 15, 2024

Name of corporate

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

shareholder ratio
Walsin Lihwa. Corp. 18.30%
HannStar Board International Holdings Ltd. 7.88%
Global Brands Manufacture Ltd. 3.53%
Walton Advanced Engineering, Inc. 2.75%
Yu-Heng Chiao 2.65%
Walsin Technology Corp. Citigroup (Taiwan) Commfarcial Bank en'_[r_usted with the

custody of Maybank Kim Eng Securities Sdn Bhd 2.33%
investment account

Giga Investment Co. 1.37%
Chin-Xin Investment Co., Ltd 1.28%
TSAI YI CORPORATION 1.11%
Winbond Electronics Corporation 1.09%

Table 2: For each of the top ten shareholders that are corporate shareholders listed in Table 1, the name of the corporate
shareholder and the shareholder's ownership percentage of that corporation should be disclosed, as well as the names
and ownership percentages of the top ten shareholders

March 19, 2024

Name of corporate

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

shareholder ratio

Chin-Xin Investment Co., Ltd 6.15%
Winbond Electronics Corporation 6.14%
Teco Electric & Machinery co., Ltd. 5.22%
The Business Department of Standard Chartered
International Commercial Bank is entrusted with the custody 4.54%
of the special investment account of Royal Bank of DA
Singapore (Singapore) Limited.

Walsin Lihwa. Corp Rong Jiang Co., Ltd. 4.27%
China Trust Commercial Bank is entrusted with the custody
of Yuanta Taiwan High Dividend Securities Investment 3.31%
Trust Fund Special Account
Patricia Chiao 2.71%
Huali Investment Corp. 2.65%
Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 1.89%
Yu-Heng Chiao 1.62%
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April 20, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

ratio
Walsin Technology Corp. 20.32%
Walsin Lihwa. Corp. 12.06%
Career Technology (MFG) Co., Ltd. 5.44%
Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted
with the custody of Fuhua Taiwan Technology Premium|{  4.54%
ETF Securities Investment Trust Fund Special Account
Hua Nan Bank is entrusted with the custody of Yuanta
HannStar Board International| Taiwan Value High Interest ETF Securities Investment|  4.09%
Holdings Ltd. Trust Fund Special Account
Chin-Xin Investment Co. Ltd. 3.55%
Chiao, Yu-Heng 2.19%
Hong, Pai-Yung 1.91%
Taiwan Bank is entrusted with the custody of the Yuanta
Taiwan High Dividend Low Volatility ETF Securities| 1.68%
Investment Trust Fund Special Account
Xing Xing Investment C. Ltd. 1.64%
April 20, 2024
Name of corporate shareholder Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder Sharrezg?gdmg
HannStar Board Co., Ltd. 40.65%
Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted
with the custody of Fuhua Taiwan Technology Premium|  4.58%
ETF Securities Investment Trust Fund Special Account
Hua Nan Bank is entrusted with the custody of Yuanta
Taiwan Value High Interest ETF Securities Investment|  3.40%
Trust Fund Special Account
The Bank of Taiwan is entrusted with the custody of the
Yuanta Taiwan High Dividend Low Volatility ETF| 1.54%
Etlgbal Brands  Manufacture|secyrities Investment Trust Fund Special Account
' Yu-Heng Chiao 1.15%
HSBC hosts Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley securities
- 0.88%
trading account
Min-Hui Liao 0.82%
Jicheng Investment Co., Ltd. 0.71%
Ji-Fu Qiu 0.68%
Chase Managed Vangard Emerging Markets Stock Index 0.66%

Fund Special Account
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April 8, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

ratio

Walsin Lihwa Corporation 21.17%

Winbond Electronics Corp. 9.67%

Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. 6.16%

Walsin Technology Corporation 6.16%

HannStar Board Co., Ltd. 2.85%
Walton Advanced Engineering, | Yu-Heng Chiao 1.97%
Inc. JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch under the 0.98%

Custody of JP Morgan Securities Co. Ltd. '

UBS Europe SE Investment Account under the custody

- . 0.94%

of Citibank Taiwan

Yu-Lon Chiao 0.94%

ACWI Fund Investment Account under the Custody of

Standard Chartered International Commercial Bank| 0.68%

Business Department

March 31, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding
ratio

Giga Investment Co.

GIGABYTE Technology

100.00%

March 11, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder Shar;e;}[(i)cl)ding
Winbond Electronics Corporation 37.69%
Walsin Lihwa Corporation 36.99%
Huali Investment Corp. 4.43%
Yu-Cheng Chiao 3.14%
o Yu-Lon Chiao 3.14%
Chin-Xin Investment Co., Ltd
Yu-Heng Chiao 3.14%
Yu-Chi Chiao 3.14%
Walsin Technology Corporation 1.86%
HannStar Board Co., Ltd. 1.34%
Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. 0.72%
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April 15, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

ratio
WALSIN LIHWA CORPORATION 33.97%
Walsin Technology Corporation 26.62%
Jin Shin Investment Corporation 8.23%
GLOBAL BRANDS MANUFACTURE LTD 6.83%
Ching An Investment Corporation 3.95%
TSAI YI CORPORATION -
Jung Yang Investment Corporation 3.85%
PROSPERITY DIELECTRICS CO., LTD. 3.36%
WALTON ADVANCED ENGINEERING, INC. 3.35%
HANNSTAR BOARD CORPORATION 2.91%
HannStar Display Corporation 2.00%

March 11, 2024

Name of corporate shareholder

Major shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Shareholding

ratio

Walsin Lihwa Corporation 21.99%

Chin-Xin Investment Co., Ltd 6.22%

The Business Department of Standard Chartered

International Commercial Bank Custody of LGT Royal| 1.85%

Bank (Singapore) Co., Ltd. Investment Account

Labor Pension Fund 1.68%

Yu-Cheng Chiao 1.64%
Winbond Electronics Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 1.29%
Corporation Citibank Taiwan in custody for Norges Bank 1.04%

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in Custody

for Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund, a| 1.01%

series of Vanguard Star Funds

Pai-Yung Hong 0.98%

JPMorgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch is entrusted with

the custody of the Vangard Emerging Market Stock 0.94%

Index Fund investment account of the manager of the

Vangard Group Company.
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3. Names and Distributions of Employee Profit-Sharing Compensation to Managerial Officers

April 29, 2024; Unit: NT$ thousands

Total amount to net

Managerial
officers

Chi-Lung Chang,
Jen-Chieh Hsu

Vice President
Vice President
Chief Financial and
Accounting Officer

0 2,800 2,800

Guo-Shu Huang

Title Name Stock Cash Total profit after-tax ratio
(%)
CEO Dun-Ren Cheng
President Ming-Tsan Tseng

0.47

4. Compare and explain the total remuneration paid to Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice Presidents of the
Company and all companies included in the consolidated financial statements in the past two fiscal years as a
percentage of the tax-after net income of the individual or separate financial reports, and analyze and explain the
policies, standards, and composition of remuneration, the process of setting remuneration, and the relationship with

operating performance and future risks:

Total amount to net profit after-tax (%)
2023 2022
Item _ _
Companies in the Companies in the
The Company consolidated The Company consolidated
financial report financial report

Directors 3.81 3.94 4.90 5.22
President and Vice President 2.75 2.89 3.67 3.99

(1) Policy, Standards, and Composition of Remuneration, and Procedures for Determining Remuneration:

Item

Description

Directors

The director's remuneration consists primarily of director's fees and transportation costs. The
director's fees are paid in cash and are based on Article 27 of the Company's articles of
association, which states that no more than 3% of the annual profit can be allocated for
director remuneration. The factors taken into account include the practical implementation of
the Company's core values and operational management capabilities, financial and business
performance indicators, comprehensive management indicators, continuous learning, and
participation in sustainable management. Special contributions and significant negative
events are also considered. The transportation expenses for attending board meetings are paid
regardless of profit or loss, and a fixed amount of transportation allowance is given for each
board meeting attended.

President and Vice
President

In accordance with industry standards and company regulations, the Company pays fixed
salaries for managerial compensation, as well as performance bonuses based on performance
evaluations. The bonus is based on the manager's performance evaluation items, which
include financial indicators (such as the Company's revenue achievement rate, pre-tax net
profit, and after-tax net profit) and non-financial indicators (such as serving as a mentor or
evaluator for innovative incubation programs, significant deficiencies in compliance with
laws and regulations, or operational risks in the subordinate department). The authorized
person that the board of directors appoints or the board of directors themselves determine the
value of their participation in and contribution to the Company's operations.

(2) Correlation between risks and business performance:

Regarding the payment of remuneration, the remuneration committee considers the actual business performance and
evaluates future risks to propose a resolution each year. The board of directors then endorses and puts the resolution

into action.
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4. Corporate Governance Status
1. Implementation Status of the Board of Directors:

In 2023, the Board of Directors held eight (A) meetings(Three meetings are held before the election, and five
meetings are held after the election), and the attendance of directors was as follows:

No. of No. of In-person
. meetings meetings with | attendance rate (%)
Title Name attendeclg in entrfsted [B/A] Note
person (B) attendees
Walsin Technology Corp.
Chairman Corporate Representative: Pei- 8 0 100%
Cheng Chen
Walsin Technology Corp.
Director Corporate Representative: 4 4 50%
Yu-Heng Chiao
Walsin Technology Corp.
Director Corporate Representative: 8 0 100%
Ming-Tsan Tseng
Director Dun-Ren Cheng 7 1 88%
Independent Ji-Zu Gao 8 0 100%
Director
Independent . .
. Min-Hsiung Hong 3 0 100% Note 1
Director
Independent Teh-Fu Huang 8 0 100%
Director
Independent Po-Wei Chu 4 1 80% Note 1
Director

Note 1 : Independent Director Min-Hsiung Hong's term ended, and he was dismissed on June 16, 2023. Po-Wei Chu was
newly appointed as Independent Director on June 16, 2023.

Attendance of independent directors at each board meeting is as follows:
o: Attended in person A: Attended with entrusted attendance X: Absent

. 20th Session 21st Session 22nd Session

9th Board of Directors | )73 119y | (2023.0223) | (2023.05.04)
Ji-Zu Gao o o
Min-Hsiung Hong o o
Teh-Fu Huang o o

10th Board of Directors

1st Session

2nd Session

3rd Session

4th Session

5th Session

(2024.06.16) (2024.06.30) (2024.07.18) (2024.08.10) (2024.10.31)
Ji-Zu Gao o o o o o
Teh-Fu Huang o o o o o
Po-Wei Chu o o o A o
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Other mentionable items:

1. If any of the following circumstances occur, the dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, all
independent directors’ opinions and the Company’s response should be specified:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: The Company has established an
Audit Committee, which does not apply to Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act. For relevant
information, please refer to "Audit Committee Implementation Status" in this annual report.

(2) Other matters involving objections or reserved opinions recorded or stated in writing by Independent
Directors that require a resolution by the board of directors: None.

2 ~  Specify the date of the board meeting, the meeting session number, the content of the motion, the outcome of the
board's resolution, and the actions taken by the Company based on the supervisor's stance if he or she recused from
a board meeting due to a conflict of interest:

Reasons of
Date and Sessi.on of Agenda Names of Directors recusal‘ due to Pe%rticip.ation
Board Meeting conflicts of in voting
interest
Di i the 2022 .
January 17,2023, 20th 1sc95510n on the . Conflict of
. . Semi-Annual President . . . . Recused from
Meeting of the Ninth Director Ming-Tsan Tseng interest with S
. Bonus and Year-End . participation
Board of Directors Directors
Manager Bonus Proposal
February 23, 2023, 21st | Donation to the related party Conlflict of Recused from
Meeting of the Ninth " PSA Charitable Foundation Director Yu-Heng Chiao interest with S
; " . participation
Board of Directors Directors
Chairman Pei-Cheng Chen
. Director Yu-Heng Chi
Discussion on the Allocation . rector u eng -1iao .
.. . Director Ming-Tsan Tseng Conlflict of
of Individual Director . . . Recused from
. . Director Dun-Ren Cheng interest with S
Remuneration for the Fiscal . . . participation
Independent Director Ji-Zu Gao Directors
Year 2022 . . .
Independent Director Min-Hsiung Hong
Independent Director Teh-Fu Huang
May 4, 2023, 22nd Discussion on the .
. . . . Conflict of
Meeting of the Ninth Disbursement of Managerial . . . . Recused from
. . Director Ming-Tsan Tseng interest with S
Board of Directors Staff Remuneration for the Directors participation
Fiscal Year 2022
Chairman Pei-Cheng Chen
Proposal and Review of the Director Yu-Heng Chiao Conflict of
. . . . onflict o
List of Director and Director Ming-Tsan Tseng . . Recused from
) . interest with ..
Independent Director Director Dun-Ren Cheng Directors participation
Candidates Independent Director Ji-Zu Gao
Independent Director Teh-Fu Huang
Proposal for the Appointment
of Mr. Chih-Mou Hung as
June 30, 2023, 2nd the President of the Company Conflict of
. . . . . . Recused from
Meeting of the Tenth due to the reassignment of Director Ming-Tsan Tseng interest with articination
Board of Directors Mr. Ming-Tsan Tseng, the Directors p p
current President, within the
group.
Di i th .
August 10, 2023, 4th iseussion on the Conflict of
. Disbursement of the . . . . Recused from
Meeting of the Tenth . \ Director Ming-Tsan Tseng interest with .
Board of Directors President's Bonus for the Directors participation
First Half of 2023.
Di i the N
October 31,2023, 5th SCUSSIon o The New Conflict of
. Retirement Benefits for . . . Recused from
Meeting of the Tenth Director Dun-Ren Cheng interest with S
. Former CEO Mr. Dun-Ren . participation
Board of Directors Cheng Directors
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Implementation Status of Board Evaluations:
The Company established the "Rules for Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors" in
January 2020 and planned to conduct a self-evaluation once a year starting this year. The evaluation

result for 2023 was reported to the board on February 22, 2024.

Evaluation Evaluation Scope of Evaluation Evaluation items
cycle period evaluation method
The Board of | January 1, Performance | The evaluation is The Board of Directors' and Functional Committee's
Directors  of | 2023 to evaluation of | conducted using performance evaluation indicators will at least include
the Company | December 31, Board of an internal aspects listed below:
conducts an | 2023 Directors and | questionnaire, 1. Level of participation in company operations
annual internal Functional which includes the | 2. The quality of the Board of Directors and
performance Committees organization and Functional Committee's decisions
evaluation of operation of the 3. Board and Functional Committee's composition
the Board of board of directors, and structure
Directors and the participation 4.  Appointment of directors and their continued
Functional of directors, their development
Committees. understanding and | 5.  Internal control
awareness of the The board members' performance evaluation
Company's indicators include aspects listed below:
responsibilities, 1.  Grasp of company targets and missions
and their 2. Understanding of roles and responsibilities
continuous 3. Level of participation in company operations
education, etc. 4. Internal  relationship =~ management  and
communication
5. Director's specialty and continued development
6. Internal control
4~ Evaluations of the current and previous years' objectives for strengthening the board of directors'

functions (such as establishing an Audit Committee, enhancing information transparency, etc.) and
their status of implementation:

° The Company has revised and implemented its board of directors' rules of procedure in
accordance with regulations and has established three independent directors. Since 2011, the
Company has set up a Remuneration Committee in accordance with regulatory requirements.
The Audit Committee has been established since 2020.

° After each board of directors' meeting, the legal and regulatory requirements for the disclosure
of resolutions must be announced in a timely manner, enhancing information transparency.

° The Company has also established and revised various related codes and procedures in
accordance with regulations and through board of directors' resolutions, focusing on
shareholder rights and making operations more transparent. These include the "Procedure for
Meetings of Board of Directors,” "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors"
"Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information and the Prevention of Insider Trading,"
"Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles," "Procedures for Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct," "Codes of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers," "Sustainable
Development Best Practice Principles," among others.

2.  Implementation Status of the Audit Committee or Participation of Supervisors in Board Operations:

(1)

Audit Committee Implementation Status:

(1) The Audit Committee's deliberations mainly include:

> Establishing or amending the internal control system in accordance with Article 14-1 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

> Assessment of the effectiveness of the Internal Control System.

A\

Establishing or amending the procedures for significant financial transactions such as the Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets, engaging in derivative trading, loaning of funds, endorsements or guarantees in accordance
with Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

Matters related to directors' conflicts of interest.

Significant asset or derivative transactions.

Significant lending of funds, endorsements, or guarantees.

Issuance, offering, or private placement of equity securities.

Appointment, removal, or remuneration of the signing accountant.
Appointment and removal of financial, accounting, or internal audit executives.

V VYV VYV
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>
>

Annual and semi-annual financial reports.
Other significant matters required by the Company or regulatory authorities.

(2) The Audit Committee's annual work priorities include:

>
>

>

Arranging meetings (Audit Committee and communication meetings).

Handling meeting-related matters of the Audit Committee in accordance with the law (meeting notices
and minutes).

Tracking and executing improvement items requested by the Audit Committee.

Providing the independent directors with the necessary company information to assist them in fully exercising
their duties.

>  Establishing and revising organizational regulations and related operating procedures.

> Identifying related party transactions and potential conflicts of interest involving all employees, managers,
and directors.

> Reviewing financial reports.

> Supervising the effective implementation of the Company's internal control.

»  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

(2) 1In 2023, the Audit Committee held 7 (A) meetings(Three meetings are held before the election, and four meetings
are held after the election), and the attendance was as follows:
No. of meetings | No. of meetings In-person .
Title Name attended in with entrusted attendance rate (%) Note
Person (B) attendance [B/A]
Independent Session of 2nd
acp Ji-Zu Gao 7 0 100% IAudit Committee
Director i
reappointment
Independent Min-Hsiun Session of st
acp & 3 0 100% Audit Committee
Director Hong - L
expired dismissal
Independent Session of 2nd
acp Teh-Fu Huang 7 0 100% IAudit Committee
Director A
reappointment
Independent Session of 2nd
cep Po-Wei Chu 3 1 75% Audit Committee
Director .
INew Appointment
(3) Professional Qualifications and Experience of the Audit Committee Members
Identity Name Professional Qualifications and Experience
The main educational and work experience and concurrent positions in this
Convener, company and other companies can be found in section 2, 1. Information on
Independent | Ji-Zu Gao | Directors (1). The relevant experience covers various fields of electronic
Director components and has experience in corporate management, serving as a specific
management target.
. The main educational and work experience and concurrent positions in this
Min- . . . .
Independent . company and other companies can be found in section 2, 1. Information on
. Hsiung . DT . . .
Director Hon Directors (1). The individual have long-term experience in academia and
& corporate management, serving as a specific management target.
The main educational and work experience and concurrent positions in this
Independent Teh-Fu company and other companies can be found in section 2, 1. Information on
Director Huang Directors (1). The individual have long-term experience in academia and
abilities in corporate management.
The main educational and work experience and concurrent positions in this
. company and other companies can be found in section 2, 1. Information on
Independent Po-Wei . . . .
Director Chu Directors (1). The relevant experience covers various fields of financial
insurance and has experience in corporate management, serving as a specific
management target.
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(4) Other mentionable items:

(1) The dates of meetings, sessions, the contents of motions, independent directors' objections, reservations, or

major proposals, the Audit Committee's resolutions, and the Company's response to the Audit Committee's opinion

must be specified if any of the following events occur.

(2) Matters referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Date and Independent The Company's
. Directors' Audit Committee response to the
Session of Agenda . . Resoluti Audit C ‘ttee"
Meeting opinions or esolution udit Committee's
major proposals opinion
January 17, Discussion on the Proposal for the Company None Independent directors | All directors present
2023 e .

to Loan Funds to Subsidiaries voted unanimously to at the board
17th Session Discussion on the Revision of the approve the meeting agreed and
of Ist Audit Company's "Procedures for Handling resolution. passed the
Committee |y 1. terial Inside Information and Prevention resolution.

of Insider Trading"

February 23, | piscussion on the Company's 2022 Annual None Independent directors | All directors present
2023 . . . .

Business Report and Financial Statements voted unanimously to at the board
18th Session Discussion on the Company's 2022 approve the meeting agreed and
of 1st Audit ) .

] "Assessment of the Effectiveness of the resolution. passed the
Committee )

Internal Control System" and "Internal resolution.

Control System Statement"

Proposal for Donation to the Related Party "

PSA Charitable Foundation "

Discussion on Lifting the Non-Compete

Restrictions for Newly Appointed Directors
May 4,2023 | piscussion and Evaluation of the None Independent directors | All directors present
19th Session | pdependence and Professional Service Fees voted unanimously to at the board
of IstAudit | ,p¢he Certifying Accountants for 2023 approve the meeting agreed and
Commitice Discussion on Establishing General resolution. passed the

Principles for the Company's Pre-Approval resolution.

Policy for Non-Assurance Services

Discussion on the Company's Q1 2023

Financial Report

Discussion on the Proposal for the Company
to Provide Endorsements and Guarantees for

Subsidiaries

Discussion on the Proposal for the Company

to Loan Funds to Subsidiaries

Discussion on the Proposal for the
Distribution of the Company's 2022

Earnings

Discussion on the Proposal for the Company

to Invest in a Japanese Subsidiary

Discussion on the Proposal to Amend
Certain Provisions of the Company's

Articles of Incorporation
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Independent

The Company's

;2::;% Agenda Di.re.ctors' Audit Com.m tee res.ponse to'the
Meeting o.plmons or Resolution Audit C(-)n.lmlttee's
major proposals opinion

June 30, Discussion on the Proposal for a Capital None Independent directors | All directors present
2023 Increase by Issuing Common Shares and the voted unanimously to at the board

st Sessiorf of Issuance of the Third Domestic Unsecured approve the meeting agreed and
2nd Al'ldlt Convertible Bonds in 2023 resolution. passed the
Committee resolution.

July 18,2023 Discussion on the Proposal for the Company None Independent directors | All directors present
2nd Session | o Loan Funds to Subsidiaries voted unanimously to at the board

of 2nd Audit approve the meeting agreed and
Committee resolution. passed the
resolution.

August 10, Discussion on the Company's Q2 2023 None Independent directors | All directors present
2023 Financial Report voted unanimously to at the board

3rd Sessi01.1 approve the meeting agreed and
of 2nd ’.AUdlt resolution. passed the
Committee resolution.

October 31, | piscussion on the Company's Q3 2023 None Independent directors | All directors present
2023 Financial Report voted unanimously to at the board

4th SeSSiOI.I Discussion on the Proposal for the Company approve the meeting agreed and
of 2nd 1.§ud1t to Loan Funds to Subsidiaries resolution. passed the
Commitice Discussion on the Company's 2024 Audit resolution.

Plan

Discussion on Establishing the Company's
"Financial and Business Operations

Regulations Between Related Parties"

(3) Other matters which were not approved by the Audit Committee but were approved by two-thirds or more
of all directors: None.

(4) Ifthere are independent directors’ recusals due to conflicts of interest, the directors’ names, contents of motions,
causes for avoidance and voting should be specified: None.

31




‘uonddfqo “$70Z 183K oy 107 ueyd JIpNe 9y UO UOISSNOSI(] T UoISSaS

1oyIA possed "€70T 30 1011enb pary) Ui “Oonuwo)
ay 103 ueyd yipne 9y Jo smeys uoneuswLlduw oY) uo 10day | 1pny 1sg 1€°01°€202

‘uondalqo uoISSag

moyjM passed *€70T JO 1o11enb puodas € QaMIuIo))
oy 10y uerd ypne oy Jo smeys uoneuwdwa(dwr oy uo joday npny 1sg 01'S'€202

‘uonddfqo UoISSaS

moyjim passed “€707 Jo 1911enb 1s11] 61 DMIuWo))
oy 103 uerd ypne oy jo smeys uoneiuowa[dwr oy uo poday npny Is| V'S €702

“WAISAS [01UOD [BUIAUL oY) JO JUSWIDIB)S PUB SWAJSKS [0HUO0D

uono9[qo | [euIuUI JO AOBILS [[BIOAO JO UOHBN[BAD JY} UO UOISSNOSI( ‘T uoISSag

moym passed “7202 30 101xenb oy W[ Qamuwo)
ay 103 ueyd jipne 9y Jo smeys uoneuswLlduw oY) uo 10day | npny Is| €TTET0T

$3[NSaI pue suonso3sns

stopomp. Juspuodopu] UOHROIUNWIIO) JO Juajuo)) |  Supoow jo axmeN | Sunesw jo e

s10s1AI0dNG JIPNY [BUIOIU] PUE SI0}0ATL(T Juopuadopu] Usom)dg SUONEIIUNTIO)  «

‘suorurdo jo o3ueyoxy -
‘suone[n3al 1saje[ ay) uo ajepdn) g
"SJUQWIANE]S [RIOURUL)

<

€20T 91 0} poje[al sI1opew ypne Jofew Jo UONEIIUNWWO)) g UoISSog
uorurdo ou ssardxa "€707 JO 191renb paryy oy 10§ [l ‘0opmuo))
S10J0211p  Juopuadopu] | S)USWIIE)S [BIOUBUIJ OU} JO S)NSOI POMOIAdI o) Uo 31oday 'T 1pny pug 1€01°€20C

sj[nsa1 pue suonso33ns
,S1030011p  Juopuadopuf

UOTJEOTUNIUTIOD JO JUSIUOD)

Suneaw Jo armeN

Sunoow jo ajeq

32

SIUBIUNODOY PUB S1030011(] Juopuadopu] usomladg SUONBIIUNWIWO) <

‘(-030 ‘suonyerado 10 eoueury 0ye10dioo
JO SHpNE JO SINSAI PUE SPOYIOU ‘SWA)! [BLIDEW AU} “5°0) SYJD Pue JOJIPNE [eusdjur JAIyd s Aueduwio)) ayy s1030011p Judpuadopur a1 Uaamdq suonesunuwmwo) (G )



Jopisut Suniqryoid suone[n3ar JueAd[a1 Yym douerjdwod axmbar yomym ‘0z0g
ur ,SI95BUBIA PUB SI0JOII(] I0] JONPUO)) [BIIYIF JO SOPO)),, PUE ,3onpuo))

I0J SQUI[SPIND) Puk JUSWAFBURIA [BOIY} IO SAINPad0Ld,, oY passed s10)0a11p
Jo pieoq s,Auedwo)) oy ‘uonIppe Uy ‘awr} Aue je Jnsuod o} soakodwo [[e pue
s1o3euew 10} 93sqom s Auedwo)) oy uo paoe[d s1 pue s1030a11p s Auedwo))
9} 03 Juds uaaq sey aInpadoid Funerodo uoLIM SIY [, "PAMO[[0] 2q 0}
,SuIpel], I9pISU] JO UOIIUARIJ S} PUB UONBULIOJU] IPISU] [BLIJR]A SUI[puey
J10J S2INPad0id,, Y} paysijqeIsa sey Auedwo)) oy ‘Surpes; Jopisur Juordld

0] pue ‘uoljBULIOJUI [BUINXD s Auedwio)) 9y} JO AoBINOOE pUB AOUISISUOD

{UOTIRWLIOJUL
Ppasojosipun yiim 3uipes) s19pisul jsurege

oY} 2INSUS pue UONBULIOJUI JO dInso[dsIp Jodoidur jusaaxd 03 19pIo U (1) A So[nuI [ewrojul ysijqelso Auedwo)) ayp sa0( (¥)
"SWISTUBYOOW [0J3U0 AIessaodu juswdjduur
0} suorje[ngal pue SMe[ JUBAS[OI PUE ‘ WIAISAS JIpNY [BUIAU], ¢, WAISAS (2IMyons dyeIowo[3uod
[onuo) [eurdiu], ¢, uonerodQ juoweSeuey uonoesuel], Alred pore[oy,, SJT UIY)IM WSISAS [[eMall) pue juowaSeuet
oy} smojpjoj Auedwo)) oy} ‘soruedwod JUSWISOAUT 03 PAJe[dI SIdyew Surjpuey A YSLI & 9Jn09X0 pue ysijqelsd Auedwo)) ayp soo(q (§)
10, "seIeys oy} Jo 9,0¢ ueyy asow yym Auedwo) ayy Aq proy Apoarpur
10 A[30211p SaLIeIpISqNS [[& a1 soruedwod pajerige s Auedwo)) ay 7, () (Saxeys
‘Jouuew Afown e ur [duuosiad jueasjar oy syodor pue sareys 9SOV} JO SIUMO 2JRW[N A} SB [[oM SB SIOP[OYIRYS
s,Auedwo)) ay) Jo 9,01 uey} 210w SUIP[OY SISP[OYIRYS JO[eW pUB ‘SOAIINIIXD A Jofew sy1 Jo 3811 oy ssassod Auedwo)) ayp sao( (7)
‘S103091Ip JO Snjels SuIp[oyareys ay} s1ojiuow A[9Anddyge Auedwo)) ay [, (7)
‘'suonsa33ns 1o sarnbur 1091]09 03 110dax [enuue Juonesniy
soruedwo)) PUE 9)1SqQIM S}I UO XOq[Iewl JOP[OYOYe)S PUE UOIBULIOJUT JOBIUOD JUBAD[QT pue ‘soyndsip ‘suonsanb ‘suor}so3Ins 19pjoyareys
PaIsIT X4dI/ASM.L 10¥ sop1aoad os[e Auedwo)) ay ], ‘papaau se sayndsip pue ‘syqnop ‘siesodord Surppuey 103 aipadoid Sunerodo [eurojul
sordiouriq 901081 J-150g Jopjoyareys ajpuey o} [ouuosiod ugisse Aew uosiodsaxods oy ‘sysarojur pue A ue juowo[dur pue dojeaop Auedwo)) ayy seo (1)
00uBUIOAOL) 9Je10d100) | SIYSLI SIOP[OYDIRYS INSUS O} JOPIO U] "SUONEB[NSAI YIIm 0OUBPIOIDE Ul SId)e sySL1 S1I9p[oyaIeys
oy yam pardwo) paje[al o[puey 0) walsAs uosrodsayods e paysiqeise sey Auedwo)) ayJ, (1) 29 aImonns Surpjoyareys s,Auedwo) ayJ, ‘g
(IPAELIVY6YL8SSSLTTYIT00T0T/F1H/PEO[dN/MI WO bedurmmA,/7:dny)
'$s909¢€ o1[qnd 10J 9J1sqaMm Te1olJO s Auedwio)) oy} Se [[om St WIISAS
soruedwo)) 1504 UOIBAIISqQ) 1NIBIA 93UBYOXH 001§ UeMIR] Y 0} papeoldn uddq os[e
PAISIT XAdI/ASM.L 10§ sey oul[opmng sry [, ,'soruedwor) paisr Xgd 1/ASM L 10J sofdroutig aonoeid (e Souedwo) pAIsIT xgdI/dSML
sordrouriq 90130814-159g -159g 9ouruIdA0L) dje1odio)), oy yam douerjdwos 10§ oz ul ,sordrourig 10y sordrourd 2011081J-1S9g 99UBUIIAOK) 9)e10d10)),,
JouBUIOAOL) dje10dIo) 90110R1{ 1S9g 9oURUIAA0L) dje1odIio)),, sit paaoidde s1030011p JO pIeoq uo paseq sa[dIourrd 991081 J-159¢ 99UBUIIAOL) dje10d10))
oy yum parjdwo) | s Auedwo) oY) ‘WwoIsAs 20UBUIOA0T 91210d100 DAY UR [SI[(RIS? 0} JOPIO U] A 9y} 9SO[ISIp pue YsIqe)ss Auedwo)) ay} sao( ‘|
SUOSBYY
pue _soruedwo)
PaIsI'T Xdd L/HSM.L 10} uonensnyyJ joensqy ON | SeA

sordiourrg oonoeid-isog
Q0UBUIOAOL) 9)e10d10)
oy, WoJj suoneIrsq

sne1s uonejuswarduy

UId)] uonen[eAy

SUOSBY

pue,_saruedwo)) paistT Xgd L/ASM.L 10 so[diourig 9o10e1g-1sog 90UBUIdA0L) 9je10dIo)) o, WOl SUoneIAd( pue snjel§ uoneyuswa[dw] 9oueUIoA0L) dje10dio)

33


http://www.inpaq.com.tw/upload/file/202001141827555874944673.pdf

20T ‘7T A1BNnIqa] UO SI103991IP JO PIeOq

oy} 03 pajtodal usdq 9ABY UOHEN[BAD 9OUBWLIOJIOd POUONUIW-0A0qE JU}

Jo sresap oy, "(syurod g Jo 1no) sjutod G68 ' Sem uonen[eAd 9ouewIopod
€707 9y} Jo ATeuIns UOHEN[BAD-J]9S AU} JO 100S 9FBIOAE [[BIOAO JU ],
SMO[[0] SE dJe

SI0JO2IIP JO pIe0q Y} JO SINSAI uonen[ead dsouewiojrad (£70g) 1s9re] YL,
'g7 93ed uo 0) parrojaI

9q UBD YOIYM ‘POUIoWI UOHEN[BAD S}I PUR ,,SI0J02II(] JO PIeOg JO UONEBN[BAY
Q0UBULIOJIOJ JOJ SN, AU} PAYSI[QIS U ‘00T ‘€ IsnSny uo pue

‘$1030911P JO PIROQ A} JO SSAUIANIYID A} SMITAJI A[1e[n3ar Auedwo) ayL (g) {UO113[921 1O} SUOTJRUILIOU
"2InINJ 9y} Ul SOAPIWWOD PUE SI0}OIIP [ENPIAIPUI JO UOHBIUNUIAL
[euonoUNJ IO YSI[QRISA 0} PAJU Y} 9JBN[BAD [[IM PUE ‘00)IUIIO)) oy} SUIUTULIDNOP USYM PIJUISJI PUR SI0J0AIIJ
JIpNY Ue Pue 99RIWIOY) UOHRIdUNWY € paysi[qeisd sey Auedwo) oy, (2) JO pIeog oyj 03} PORIWIQNS $)[NSAI UOTJBN[BAD
‘1 9JON UI pue dj1sqam s,Auedwo)) oouewiojtad are pue ‘A[[enuue 31 juota[duur
oy} uo srequiaw oy} Jo uonisodwod ayy SUIAJISISAIP Jo Aorjod oy pue ,,S10J0911(J JO pIeod JO UOHEN[BAT 9OUBWIONIJ
osojosIp souraping sonoerd soueurdao3 ojerodiod s Auedwo)) ay 1, J10dax A 10J so[my,, ysiqeise Auedwo)) oy sao( (§)
[enuue s,JedA SIY} JO UONOIS ,SIOSIAIIANG pUE S1030911(] UO UOIBULIOU],,
oU) Ul PIsO[oSIp Os[e e ($1030011p Juspuadopul 9oy Furpnjour) {PaIuwo))
$103031Ip U2AJS s Auedwo)) ay Jo suonisod JUALINIUOI JO AJSIIAIP pue 1PNy oY) PuB 9APIWWO)) UOHRIQUNIIY
‘oouonrodxo ‘uoneonpa Ay [, "sennp Joy) wiojrad 0} A1eSS909U senifenb pue o) 0} UONIPPE Ul SOIPIWOD [BUOLIOUN]
‘SIIIYs ‘o3pamouy| ‘suonedyifenb 1oy} uo paseq pajen[eAd oIk PUB WISAS A 19130 ysI[qelsa Ajueunjoa Auedwo)) ay3 sa0( (7)
UONEBUILIOU J)BPIPUED B SN0} PAJBUILIOU TB SI0}0IIp Juopuadopu]
‘uone1odioou] Jo S9[o1Iy 3y} Jo suoisiroid ayj moqjoy Auedwo)) ay)
JO $1019011D JO PIOQ JU[} JO SIOqUIW Y} JO UONII[IS PUL UONHBUILIOU ],
sotuedwo)) | “Aorjod paljISIoAIp & paje[nuiio} pue ,so[dIouLld 9913081 ] SO 9OUBUIOAOL)
PaISIT XAd1/ASML 9e10d10)),, 31 Jo ¢ 103dey)) Ul S1030011p JO pIeoq dY) JO suonouny Ay}
Joj soydrourig oonoeid pauayySuans sey Auedwo)) oy, “Surjesw SIOP[OYSILYS O} JO SUOHN[OSAI (sIoquiowr
-1S9g 90UBUIOAOLD) 1o ‘uonyerodioouf Jo so[onIy ‘suorye[ngal oY) Yim 9oueplodde ul sromod s31 J0 uonisoduwoos oy 10y Ao170d PaLJISIOAID
ojerodio) oy S} SOSI010Xd SI0JOAIIP JO PIeoq ay) Jey) SULINSUD “W)SAS 90UBUIOAOT A e juowd[dur pue dojoadp pieog ays soo( (1)
UM UOIBIASD Jofewr ON 91e10d109 91 JO syuswoSueLie pue suonerodo snoLreA o) 10§ Surdow $10399311(]
,SIopoyaIeys Y 01 dqIsuodsar st Auedwio)) 9y} Jo $10301Ip JO preoq oyl (1) Jo pieog oy Jo saniiqisuodsay pue uonisodwo)) ‘¢
"ow Aue Je 3nsuod
03 [ouuos1ad JUBAS[AI 10] 9)1Sqam S,Auedwio)) oY) UO S[qB[IBAR OS[€ dIE PUB Oy
93ueyoxXH pue SANLINOOS pue suonengal [eurojul s,Auedwo)) oy Jopun Surpen
SUOSBYY
pue _somuedwo))
PaIsI'T Xdd.L/dSM.L 103 uonensnyi oensqy ON | S°A

sordiourig oonoeig-1sog
9ourUIAAOD) djeI0dI0))
o3, WOoIJ SUONBIAI(

snye1s uonejuawaduy

W] uoren[eAy

34



soruedwo))

PISIT Xdd 1L/dSM.L
10 sordrourlg 9omoe1d
-1S0¢ 9OUBUIIAOL)
orerodio) ayy

ur oJep 3ureaw Yy 03 Jorid uonensi3ar uredur rpjoydreys djpuey  (9)
‘ooueInsul
Aniqery s1oSeuew pue ,s103011p derdordde aseyoind pue ajenfeag  (g)
‘suonerado [eroueury s,Auedwo)) oy} pueisiopun 0} SJUBIUNOII.
o1qnd Pay1ISd pue SI0DAIIP Judpuddopur YIIM uoreoIUNUIIOd B3y ()
"7 9JON 0}
Iojo1 asea[d ‘€Z( Ul SnJels uoneonpa ayj 10, ‘suejd uoneonpd Sununuod
11y3 Sunordwod ur wayj JSISSB puB SISINO0D UONBONPS FUINUNUO0D
U0 UOIBULIOJUI (1M SIOJOAIIP [BISUST puk s101011p Judpuadopur opiaord  (g)
"SI0)SOAUI JOJ UONBWIOJUI O} SS9I08
[enba aInsuo 03 uoEULIOJUL AU} JO AOBINOJE Uk A)I[e39] oY) SULINSUD
‘s3uUn)ooW SIOP[OYAILYS PUL SI0}0IIJ JO PIeog Oy} JO SUONN]OSAL
Jolew Surpre3ar uonewioyur juelroduw Jo 9INSO[ISIP Ay 10y d[qIsuodsay  (2)
‘Sunoowr oy
Ioye sAep (g uryiim Sunoow oy Jo seynuiw Ay 939[dwos pue ‘sjeriorew
Sunoow opraoid ‘Sunoowr 9y} SUSAUOD ‘QOUBAPE UI SAEDP UOAIS SI0JOIIP
oy} AJ130U pue Junedw s1030911(] JO pieog oy 1oj epudde oy yeiq (1)
:SMOJJOJ Se SI £7(¢ Jedk oy 1o} snye)s uoneuawdwr ssaursnqg oy J,
‘uoneonpy
Sumurnuo)) s,JoSeuey Y1 JO (7)8 ‘¢ uonoag 03 19Ja1 asead[d ‘gz ur smess
uonEedINPa UMUIIUOI S IAJ1JO JOUBUIIA0T 9)e10dI00 9} 10, ‘suone[n3al pue
sme] s SulA[dwod ur way) ISISSe pue ‘sannp Jdy) 3o A11ed 03 siosiazadns
PUE SI0}02IIp J0J UOIBWLIOUI AIeSS900u apraoid ‘uoneonps Surnurjuod pue
juounurodde ur s10s1A19dNS pUE SI03OIIP ISISSE ‘SANUIW SUOIW JIP[OYDILYS
pue pieoq oredoid ‘me[ oy Y3Im 90UBPIOOIE UT SSUNOOW JOP[OYDIRYS
pue pIeog 03 Poje[al sI19)eW d[puey 0} dIe JOOIJO d0ULBUIdA0S oJe10dioo
o Jo soniiqisuodsar urew oy I, ‘Auedwioo popen Ajoriqnd e ur 9AN00x9d
[e1oUBUI} € SE 90uaLIodXo JO SIB9A 091y} UeY) o10W sey Sueny J030a1l(] UOISIAI(J
‘pIeog ay3 Jo suonouny Y3 uoyiSuons pue syySLl Jopjoyareys pren3ojes o}
IOOIJJO 90URUIOA0S 9Je10d100 oY) Sk Sueny nyS-ony 103011 UOISIAL( jurtodde

((s3unoswr s1oployareys
pue s3unesw preoq jo sanurw Suronpoid pue ‘s3unosw
,SIOp[OYaIeyS 9y} PUB SI0JOIIP JO PIeoq Ay} Jo sSuroou
0} pojefar ytom Surpuey ‘eduerjdwos yym siosialodns
pue siojoxp Supsisse  ‘suonourny Iy wiojrod
0} s1os1A1odns pue $1030911p 103 uonewIojur Surpraoid o}
PalWI] jou ng SUIPN[OUT) SIdPBW JOUBUIOA0S 0)e10dI00
10} o[qisuodsar 1osiazadns e pue jouuosiod jusodwod

UM UOIIBIASD Jofewr ON 0} paAjosal Auedwo)) oy} JO S1030211(J JO pIeod Y} ‘0Z0T ‘T JqUOAON UQ A | Jo qunu o[qeyns e jutodde Auedwo) oy seod ‘§
-oouapuadopur
SJUBIUNOJDY OI[qnd PAYNID)) dY) JO UOHBN[BAT “{] ‘SNJBIS JOUBUIIAOLD)
oje10d10)) *§ 03 IOJAI 9SBI[J 'SISeq [eNUUE U UO JUB)UN0IOE SUIUSIS {HUBIUNOJIY O1[qnd Pal1Ia)) Jo douspuadapur
o} Jo doudpuadopur Ay} SAJBNTRAD SIOIAIP JO pIeoq sAuedwo) ayL ({) A oy dren[eAd Apremnsar Auedwo)) ay3 sao( (¥)
SuoseY
pue _somuedwo))
PaIsI'T Xdd.L/dSM.L 103 uonensnyi oensqy ON | S°A

sordiourig oonoeig-1sog
9ourUIAAOD) djeI0dI0))
o3, WOoIJ SUONBIAI(

snye1s uonejuawaduy

W] uoren[eAy

35



soruedwo))

PaIsI'T Xdd.L/dSM.L 10}
so[diourid 013081d-159g
90UBUIIAOL) 9)810d10)

"SI9)eW PAjeal JOYJ0 pue siiejje Sunoow
JI9p[OYRIeyS d[puRY 0} Py ©0)) SANLINOAS eiuenA jo juowredoq Louddy

({SITe}Je JOP[OYaIRYS YIM [BIP 0} AoUdZe IOIAIOS

oy} yym pardwio) | 30018 Aoudge sa91AI0S Jop[oyareys [euorssajord e pajurodde sey Auedwo)) oy, A | 19pJoyareys euorssajoid e yurodde Auedwo)) ayi sao( "9
‘SIopoyaye)s
0} UI30U09 Jo sanssI oy} 03 A[ojerrdordde puodsar 03 syurod 30e)U00 JURAS[OI
oAey su0dal [enuue pue s9}ISqOM [BUIIXD pue [euldul s Auedwo)) oy ],
‘sysa1dur s Auedwo)) ay 03 paje[al saned Iay30 10 ‘sonLoyIne A10)e[n3al
‘sonrunwod ‘s1orddns ‘sookodwd ‘syueq ‘SIOPIOYAIRYS ‘SIOWOISND
Suipnjour ‘SIOPOYAYE)S M S[QUUEBYD UOHBIIUNUILIOD [}OO0WS UTBjurewt
0 9JISAM SI1 UO ,BAIR S JOP[OYANLIS,, B PAYsI[qelsd sey Auedwo) oyl  (g)
"SIOJSOAUI [}IM [QUUEBYD UOHBIIUNUILIOD B
UsI[qesa 03 suonsanb pajejar 03 Surpuodsas pue uoneuriojur ay) Sunepdn
10} o1qisuodsar o1e [ouuosiod pajesIpa ‘WISAS 1504 UOIBAIISqO)
soruedwo)) JONIRIA 9SUBYOXH J00)S UBMIE], O} PUB 9JISqOM S}I UO PASO[OSIP (sonnqisuodsax
PaISIT XAd1/ASML st Auedwo)) ay) Jo uoneWIOJUI PAJR[AI-AINbo pue [eroueUlf JUBAJ[RI IV (2) [e100s 9)e10d100 JO SWLIS) UI JOJ 918D A9} SONSSI oy [[e
Joj soydrourrg oonoeid "WAISAS 1504 UONBAIISQ) 193N 9SuBYOXH 001§ UBMIB], O} o[puey se [[om se ‘(s1orjddns pue ‘s1owoisno ‘sookojdwo
-1S9g 90UBUIOAOLD) uo suonen3ar yim soueldwiod ur paso[osIp Uedq Sey uoneuriojur Jofew ‘SIOP[OYQIEYS 0} PAIIWI] JOU Jnq SUIPN[our) SIOP[OYINels
01e10dI0) Y} | JUBAQ[OY 'SIOP[OYONEIS I JROTUNUILIOD 0} SUOIR[NTal )M 90UBPIOII. 10J 931SqoM S)I UO UOI309S PAJeuSISap € ping pue [ouueyo
UM UoneIAdp Jofew oN [ ur uosiadsaxods Axoid pue uosiodsoxods € paysiqelsa sey Auedwo) oyl (1) A uonedIuNUIWO © Yysiqeisd Auedwo)) a3 soo ¢
"SUOII9[Q 1030211p 10 uonerodioour
Jo soponIe s Auedwo)) 9y} 03 SJUSWIPUSWIE J0J SIOJBW UOIRLSIFol
J[puey pue ‘OUI[peIp A10JNJE)S AY) UIYIM SPI0d2I SUNIW pue
‘syjooqpuey Sunedw ‘soonou sundaw aredaid ‘mef oy} YIm 90UBPIOIOE
SuoseY
pue _somuedwo))
PaIsI'T Xdd.L/dSM.L 103 uonensnyi oensqy ON | S°A

sordiourig oonoeig-1sog
9ourUIAAOD) djeI0dI0))
o3, WOoIJ SUONBIAI(

snye1s uonejuawaduy

W] uoren[eAy

36



saruedwo))

PaIsI'T XHd L/dSM L
10y sordrourg aonoe1d
-1S9g 90UBUIOAOLD)
arerodio) ayy

Anpiqer aseyoand 03 uonnjosal e paydope Auedwo) oy, :siosiarodns
pue siopoxp JIoy odouemnsul Aypiqer] jo aseyoind s Auedwo) oy (g)
‘syyord Auedwos 918210 01 JOPIO Ul SIOWOoISNO yim sdiysuone[ar
pooS pue d[qes sureyurewr Aueduro)) ay ], :saro1jod 1owoISNd Jo UONNIIXH (1)
"UOTJEN[BAD PUE JUSWSBUBW JSLI SNOLIBA 1O} ME[ Y}
UIIM 9OUBPIOJOR UI PIYSI[GRIS UADQ 9ARY SI[NI [BUIIUI SNOLIBA SPIEPUE)S
juowssasse NS Jo uopejudwd[dwr pue sororod juowaSeuewr STy (g)
‘uonoaIp Juawdo[oAap o se s[opowr [euorjerado oruou0dsd
pue uonerddood wid)-SuO] UlRUTEW 0) UONBUIWIASSIP UONBULIOJUI
pue S[oUUBYO UOHEOIUNWIWIO) 9ANI9JJO soplaoid 3] "SIOp[OyaYeIs IoY30
pue ‘siorjddns ‘siojsoaur ym sdiysuone(or 9ane1ddoos oAanoRIOUI WLIO)
-3uo[ pue poo3 paurejurew sey Auedwo)) ayp Aradsord-09 jo 3doouods ayp
uo paseq :SYS1I 1op[oyayess pue ‘sdiysuonerar rddns ‘suone[ar 103s9AUI(Z)
‘s1opew
orejjom 2oKojdwo snorrea Suljpuey 0} PAJEIIPIP APIWWO)) IBJ[IAN B SBY
Auedwo) ay) ‘uonIppe U] "uoneZIuesIo A} SPIeMO) UOISAYOd pue Ajehko]
ookodwd 9oueyUS 01 pue YorqPadY J0A0[dwW ‘UOTIBUIIASSIP UOTIRULIOJUL
Auedwoo 10J 9ysqom Jeurojur ue dn jos osje sey Auedwo) oy, ‘woy
paso[osip A[o1jqnd pue sme| Joqe] JUBAS[AI Y3 9duel[dwoo ur S[nI JIom

((s10s1A10dNS pue S1019911p 10§ doueinsul Jurseyoind
pue ‘sarorjod suone[ar 10woisnd Jo uoneyudwadur

o) ‘SQINSBaW UONEN[BAD YSLI pue sa1o1jod judwogeueu
YSLI Jo uonejudwoldur oy ‘sp1ooax Sururen; siosiaradns
pue  SI0}01Ip ‘SIOP[OYeIs Jo SIS ‘suonear ro1ryddns
‘SUOIR[QI J0JSOAUI ‘Ssau[om dKo1dwd sy aaKo1duwrd
01 paywaI] jou Inq urpnpout “3-0) saorjoerd dourUIdA0S
ore10d109 s, Auedwo)) oy Jo Jurpuesiopun 19339q €

)M uoneIAop Jofew oN | poysiqeiso sey Auedwo) oyJ :o1eo ookojdwo pue syjoudq ddKojdwd(T) A oJeIoR) 0} uolewIojuI Jueliodwl Joyjo Aue a10y) ST °§
"0IMINJ 9} Ul POPadU st uonejuawadull 10] PIJBN[BAD 9q 03 JOA
oAey porrad yoes 103 syrodar [eroueury Jo Suniodal pue SUSWOOUNOUUE (i own paquosard oy 21059q ‘synsax uonerddo
AJJed “ToAIMOY ‘QUIPeIp AloJnie)s J} JO peaye 931sqam 9je1odioo A[qjuow se [[om Se ‘sjuduidje)s [eroueuly ¢0) pue
oy} pue WISAS 1504 UOIBAIISqQ) IIBIA 93ULYOXH Y00)S UeMIe] O} 20 ‘10 1odal pue oounouue pue Jedk [BISI) YIB? JO
UO PasO[ISIp A[[1g uaaq daey synsar unerdado Appuowr s Auedwo) oyl (g) PUD 9y} J9)JB SYIUOW OM] UIYIIM SJUIWIIE]S [RIOURUL)
‘UONBULIOJUT [BIIUSPIFUOD [eIoUBUL) Pue ssauisng dooy A [enuue j1r0da1 pue sounouue Auedwo)) ay; sao( (€)
01 saakordwo pue judwodeuew SuLnbar  Suipel] IOPISU] JO UOIIUIAIL] ({(S90UI9JU09 103SAAUT FUT)SLOGIM “UIISAS
oy} pue UONBWLIOJU] SPISU] [BLIOJR]A Sul[puel J10J saInpasold,, ue uewsayods & SuneaId ‘OInsoosIp pue uoIdI[0d
soruedwo)) | sey os[e Auedwo)) oy ], "SIOP[OYadeLIS YIm SUIedIunwuuod 10y ajqrsuodsal uonjeurtojur o[puey o3 ojdoad pajeusdisop Sunurodde
PAISIT XddI/ASM.L suostodsayods unoe pue suosiodsayods yim ‘sarinbur pajejox ‘931sqam ysI[Suy ue Surping ‘3-9) s[oUULBYD INSO[ISIP
Iog sardiourld 901981 01 Surpuodsal pue UOHBUWLIOJUI 9OUBUIIA0S Je10dI0d pUR [RIOUBULY A uoneWLIOJUI IU30 dARY Aueduwio)) 3y} s20( (7)
-159g 2oueuidaon) | Supepdn Arendal 1oy o[qisuodsal [ouuosiod pjedrpap sey Auedwo) ayy,  (g) ({PouBUIdA0S 9)e10d100
oerodio) oy ‘mywod bedurmmm :931sqom Jo smyejs oy} pue SSUIPUERIS [RIDURULJ O ISO[OSIP
UM UOIIBIASD Jo[ew ON s Auedwo)) oy, "pasO[ISIP ST UOHIBULIOJUI PAJR[QI-90UBUIIA0S d1e10d109 A 03 asqam ojerodiod e aaey Auedwo)) ayp sao( (1)
PUE [BIOURULJ dIOUM 9)ISqOM 91e10dI10d B PIysI[qeIsd sey Auedwo) oy, (1) 9INSO[oSI(] UOTJBULIOJU] */
SuoseY
pue _somuedwo))
PaIsI'T Xdd.L/dSM.L 103 uonensnyi oensqy ON | S°A

sordiourig oonoeig-1sog
9ourUIAAOD) djeI0dI0))
o3, WOoIJ SUONBIAI(

snye1s uonejuawaduy

W] uoren[eAy

37



paAdIY

%t JOAO SI SIOJOQIIP S[eWIS) JO onel 3051} oy,

paAdIYOY

S[IS
pue o3pojmouy Jeuolssajord ul AJISISAIP JUSDINS

paAdI|OY

S9ANooX0 Auedwod
Se  OAIOS A[JUOLINOUOD OyMm SI0)0dIp Kq POy
9q pInoys sjeas pIeoq Ay} JO PIIYI-0UO UL} IOW ON

paAIYOY

"SIOqUISW PIBOq JO JoqUINU [B30} 9} JO PIIY}-dU0
SPa90X2 SIoquiawl preoq Judpuadopur Jo Jaquunu Ay,

Juowysiidwodoy

Jo smeg

S9AND[qO JusWoFeurN

:SMO[[0] St aIe uonIsodwod p1eoq pILJISIOAIP 10f Ao1]0d 31 JO SJUSWOASIYOE pue S[eoT Juswddeuew d1j10ads oy ],
9487 {1 Jo onel e Sunuasaidal J03021Ip d[ewd} QU0 JUIPN]OUl ‘SIOQUISW PJBO] UIAIS 91 1A} ‘A[JUALINY) "SI0} S[BW %] JOAO JO
1981€) B Y)IM ‘SI0JOIIP JO pIeoq ay} Jo uonisodwoos oy} ur Aipenbo 1opuad sanfea osfe Auedwo) oy} ‘UonIppe U] JudWASeULW pUL ‘doueul} ‘AS0[0Uydd) ‘SaLISNpul ul 3s1Iadxd
pue 9ouaL1ddxa Yo ssassod oym s1030211p JudpuUIdIpUI 991y} puB SIOIIAIP INOJ SUIPN]OUT ‘SIIQUIAW UIAS JO pasoduwiod st Auedwo)) oy JO SI0I0AIIP JO PILOQq JUALIND I,

"SIOqUIOW PIE0q SUT)OI[IS USYM

UOIIRIOPISUOD OJUI U B} Ie YOIyMm JO [[e ‘ssassod prnoys smoquow preoq jey) sanijiqeded [[e12A0 Jy31o paysijqelsd sey Auedwo)) oy pue ‘sonnp iroy) wojad o3 Aressooou
sanijenb pue ‘s[[ns ‘o3pajmouy] oy} ssossod A[[eIoud3d pinoys s1dquIOW pieogq ‘ANSISAIP JO SUOISUSWIP SNOLIBA 9JBN[BAD P[NOYS PUB ‘SPUAI) 2ININJ PUeB ‘UONIAIP JUdWdo[oAdp
ssoursng ‘ormonns [euonerado sAuedwo)) o) Se Yons SpooU SNOLIBA JUNOJOE OJUI 9B} P[NOYS SI0OIIP JO pleoq oy} Jo uonisodwos oy ‘sojdiourrd 9onoeld 1sog 90UBUISAOD)
9je10dio) sAuedwo) Yy YIm 90UBPIOOdE Ul QImony)s pue uonisoduiod $103001p Jo pieoq ay) Jo juowdo[oadp punos ay) ojoword pue 90ueuIdA0S 0je10dioo udyISuans of,

Kyisioar pieog jo uonejuowd[dwi] pue £o1j0d :] 9ION

“Jun pejespep e yim Auedwoo e dn 30s pue 2Imjonss 90ULUIdA0S oY
uoyISusI)s ‘UONBWLIOJUI 90UBUIOA0S 9)e10dI00 JO 9SBO[91 A[T8d dY) SUIPN[OUT ‘UOIBULIOJUl 90URUIOA0S 9)e10d100 JO 21nS0[osIp oy uayISuang('paro[dwos oq 0} padul JoU S0P WL
SIY3 “Teak JUQ091 USALS o) 10} pojen[eAd saruedwoo ayy Suowe papnjout Jou sem Auedwo)) oy J) ‘sernseowr Judwosueyud Aurorid oy apraoxd pue O3ueyoxXy J00IS UBMIB], IOJU))
20UBUIAAOD) 91810d10)) 3 Aq Pasea[al WIAISAS UOHEBN[BAY 9JUBUIIAOL) 21e10d1I00) 9y} JO SINSAI Y} YIIM 2JUBPIOIIR Ul IPBUI U2 dARY YoIym sjudwdsoldur oy urejdxs asedd "6

€707 1Bk
oy} 10J 39S sem UOI[[IW G§S) JO ] 9FBIGA0D B pUR ‘GO0 ‘4] dunf uo

Py Sunoow Jopjoyareys & Ul SI0sIAldNS pue $10)001Ip S} 10} QoUBINSUL

Suoseay
pue _somuedwo))
PaISIT Xdd L/HSM.L 103
sordiourig oonoeig-1sog
9ourUIAAOD) djeI0dI0))
o3, WOoIJ SUONBIAI(

uonensn[[| Joensqy

ON

SOx

snye1s uonejuawaduy

W] uoren[eAy

38



S

uemie],

g PM-0d

SEN

UBMIE],

Sueny nj-yaL,

BN

UBMIE],

e nZ-if

SEN

UBMIE],

Suoy) uoy-unq

e

UBMIEB],

Suos], ues] -Surjy
danejudsaIdoy
dio)
ASojouyda,
uIs[ep

BN

ueMIE],

oery) SuUSH-nA
:aAnejuasadoy
“di0p
ASojouyoay,
uIs[ep\

orewo ]

ueMIE],

Uy Suay)-1og
:aAnejuasadoy
“di0p
ASojouyoay,
uIsfesy

Supyew
-UoISI(]

diysiopea]

siySisuy
JOHBIN
1eqO[D

o8pajmouny
fensnpuy

JuowdSeuRA
SISUD

JuowaSeuew
ssoursng

sisAeue

[eroueuy pue
Sununoooy

Ay
Judwdpng
[euoneradp

Sunose

Sununodoy

Qoueu|

ASojouyoa,

Ansnpuy

s1K

AQ

SIBOX
6¢

s1eak ¢
10pun

080}[L [ 0LOM9 [ 099} S

0S¥

10

JO I3} SI0)IP
Juopuadopuy

a3y

Kueduwo)

aypJjo
2okojdurg

Jopuan)

AueuoneN

smelg Koudjedwio)

douduedxg pue suonesyiene) [BUoISsaJo1]

amyonns pue uonisoditiod preog

siopanQ
JO saureN

:Korjod Auston

:Ans1oA1(g paeog jo uonejuowd[dwy pue Ao1j0d

39



¢ Juowdoraaa(g yodul] 10y (' dewpeoy doueulq pue Sunjueg Jo AWAPLIY UeMIE], 67/11/£20T
¢ Ansnpuj ooueInsu] 2y} 10J AJLINJISIAQAD U SPUI], 2Imn,] pue sagus[[ey) 2)MIISU] 2dOUBINSU] UeMIB], LT/11/€20C
Sl uonenyi§ [8qo[D MaN oyp 0} Sundepy mnisy] saimn,j pue SaiLNdag 90/11/€20¢ ny) M -0d Joyoa11( yuapuadopuy
Sl A3ojouyoa], [ dDrey) jo seniumioddQ sseursng pue juswdooasq YL Qmsu] saIMn,{ pue SANLINIAS 90/11/€20T
sapuedwo) pajsi] MSU] $2ININ] PUL SANLINID
€ JO SIATINOSXH PUE SI0J0AII( 10J JYSISIOAQ A101B[NTaY JuaLINy) SUIpueIsIopu ) RS ndp BHnods 90/11/€20c
S'1 uonenyis [eqo[H MaN ay 0} Sundepy MNSU] saImn,{ pue SaNLINd3S 90/11/€20C
ST A3ojouyda], [dnreyD jo sanmunuoddQ ssoursng pue juawrdo[oAd Y[, QIMISU] SaIMN,{ PUL SANLINIS 90/11/€20T
di
£ SDCHION P QININSU] SOININ{ PUE SONLINOAS 90/11/€20C 1030011(] Juapuadapuy
JO SOANNOAXH pue $1030211(J J10J JYSISIOAQ A103e[n3oy Juern)) Surpue)siopun Sueny ng-yoL,
€ UONBULIOJSURI], [EISI(] 9Y) UI JUSWSLURIA] PUB SYSTY 10109G apel], UOIIRIOOSSY QOUBUIIAOL) d)eI0dIo)) UemIE], 97/60/£20T
0°€ 20uBUA0D djei0dio] opun UOIJBIJ0SSY 9OURUIDAOL) 2)e10dI0)) UBMIE
3 soguojrey) Juswaseue]A 0) sasuodsay souerduio)) pue s10)03I1( JO [0y YL HEI0SSY D2 8 fel 0/80/€20c
KIOJUSAU] SBD) 9SNOYUIAIL) 0} UOIONponuU] e —,
€ pue juswdo[aAd(] d[qeurelsng o3 yred a3 ur saptunuodd pue saduayrey) et nd p HHNoeS pl/el/ecoe
¢ sue[J UONJY 9[qeure)snS pue sIojedrpu] uonenjeAsq S — S0/21/€202 oo -1 101311(] yuspuadapu
90UBUIDAO0D) 97e10dI0)) Jopun preog ay) Jo sanI[IqIsuodsay pue sagus[rey) : B ' ’
9 QOURUIDAOL) JqeuleISNG pea] 01 pIeod oy} Suromodwyg IMNISU] SUOTIR[OY I0ISIAU] UBMIB], LT/60/£20T
9 JUSWFBURIA] ST Jopun SaI39JeNS 9IUBUIIAOD) J[qeule)sng Sulje[nuwiio MISU] SaINN,{ PUL SANLINIS 60/11/€20T
Suoy) uoy-ung 1030211
€ €70 ul sanss] A10Je[nTaY SONLINIAS pue Xe] A9 MNSU] SAININ] PuL SANLINOAG 60/11/£20T
€ ssauaAniedwo)) souequy 03 sa1391eng ANjiqeureisng HSH Jurysiqeisy IINSuJ saInInj pue SANLINIAG 92/21/€20C oaneyuosoidoy
BuosL UBSL-SUN 103311 91e10d10)
€ juowdo[oas( 9[qeureisng pue sonyg resodio) uonepuno, judwdo[aAd( pue o1easay Sununoddy S1/21/€20T :
Sl uonenIs [qo[H MmoN oy 0} Sundepy Amisy] saimn,j pue saiLNdag 90/11/€20T
. aanejuasarday
ST A3ojouyd9], LdnreyD jo sanmunuoddp ssoursng pue juawdo[oAd Y, MISU] SaINN,{ PUL SANLINIS 90/11/€20T oeIy) SuoH-nx Hoﬁome awesodion)
souedwio parst MSU] S2ININJ PUL SONLINID .
€ JO SOANINDAXY puE $1039211(J 10J WSISIOAQ AI0JR[N3Y ULy SuIpueIsiopun RS ndp HHnods 90/TT/€T0T
Sl uonenyis [eqo[H MaN ay 0} Sundepy AMHSU] saimn,j pue SaiLNdSg 90/11/€20¢
oAneuasaIdoy
S’ K3ojouyoa], 1.dD1ey) Jo sentuniioddQ sseuisng pue juswdororsq Ay, AIMIISu] saInn,j pue SANLINIOS 90/11/€20T uoy) Suay)-19d SSQ.ED sresodio))
souedwio porst MISU] SAININJ PUL SONLINGD .
€ JO SOANINDAXY puE $1039211(J 10J WSISIOAQ AI0JR[N3Y ULy SurpueIsiopun et ndp BHnods 90/TT/€T0T
sanoy
dweN 3sano) JZIUE3I0 ApmS Jo poLidg dweN AL
3sano)

€70 ul S10)0211( 10} Sululel] pue uoreonpyg

UImunuo)) :Z 9Jo0N

40



4.

Composition, Responsibilities and Operations of the Remuneration Committee:

1)

Information on Remuneration Committee Members

Qualification
Number of
Other Public
Companies in
Which the
Identit; Professional Qualifications and Experience . Individual is Remarks
(Note ly) (Note 2) P Independence Analysis (Note 3) Concurrently
Serving as a
Remuneration
Committee
Member
Name
As an independent director, the independence criteria are met
1. Including but not limited to the individual, their spouse,
or relatives up to the second degree of kinship who have
Please refer to section 2, 1. Information on not served as directors, supervisors, or employees of the
Directors (1) for the main educational and Company or its affiliated enterprises: None;
professional experience of the director. The | 2. The individual, their spouse, or relatives up to the second
Independent ) director _has experience in various areas of degree of kin_ship d(_) not hold any shares (or shares _held_
Director Ji-Zu Gao glectromc components and ha§ experience through nominees) in the Company and the proportion is 3
in corporate management, which serves as 0%;
specific management objectives. There are | 3. Has the individual served as a director, supervisor, or
no violations of any provisions of Article 30 employee of the Company or its affiliates: None.
of the Company Act. 4. Whether the person received any compensation for
providing business, legal, financial, accounting, or any
other services to the Company or its affiliates in the past
2 years: None.
As an independent director, the independence criteria are met
1. Including but not limited to the individual, their spouse,
or relatives up to the second degree of kinship have not
Please refer to section 2, 1. Information on served as directors, supervisors, or employees of the
Directors (1) for the main educational and Company or its affiliated enterprises: None;
professional experience of the director. The | 2. Does the individual, their spouse, or relatives up to the
Convener, . . . O
Independent Teh-Fu dlrector_has long-term experience in second degre_e of klpshlp hold any shares (or shares held 0
- Huang academia and corporate management through nominees) in the Company: None;
Director e Lo s . .
capabilities. There are no violations of any | 3. Has the individual served as a director, supervisor, or
provisions of Article 30 of the Company employee of the Company or its affiliates: None.
Act. 4. Whether the individual received any compensation for
providing business, legal, financial, accounting, or any
other services to the Company or its affiliates in the past
2 years: None.
As an independent director, the independence criteria are met
1. Including but not limited to the individual, their spouse,
or relatives up to the second degree of kinship have not
Please refer to section 2, 1. Information on served as directors, supervisors, or employees of the
Directors (1) for the main educational and Company or its affiliated enterprises: None;
professional experience of the director. The | 2. Does the individual, their spouse, or relatives up to the
Independent Po-Wei Chu director has long-term experience in second degree of kinship hold any shares (or shares held 0
Director academia and corporate management through nominees) in the Company: None;
capabilities. There are no violations of any | 3. Has the individual served as a director, supervisor, or
provisions of Article 30 of the Company employee of the Company or its affiliates: None.
Act. 4. Whether the individual received any compensation for
providing business, legal, financial, accounting, or any
other services to the Company or its affiliates in the past 2
years: None.

Note 1: Please specify in the table the relevant work experience, professional qualifications, and independence
status of each member of the remuneration committee. If it is an independent director, please note that the
information can be referred to section 2, 1. Information on Directors (1) . Please indicate whether the identity
is an independent director or others (if the convener, please annotate).

Note 2: Professional qualifications and experience: Specify the professional qualifications and experience of
individual members of the remuneration committee.

Note 3: Independent criteria: stating that the members of the compensation committee meet the independence
criteria, including but not limited to whether the member, spouse, or second-degree relative holds a position
as a director, supervisor, or employee of the Company or its affiliated enterprises; whether the member,
spouse, or second-degree relative (or by using someone else's name) holds shares of the Company and their
proportion; whether the member holds a position as a director, supervisor, or employee of a company with a
specific relationship to the Company (referring to the provisions of Article 6, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 5
to 8 of the Regulations Governing the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee
of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange) or has
provided commercial, legal, financial, accounting or other services to the Company or its affiliated
enterprises in the past two years and received remuneration for it.
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)

Implementation Status of the Remuneration Committee

(1) The Company's Remuneration Committee consists of three members.

(2) In 2023, the Remuneration Committee held 7 (A) meetings(Three meetings are held before the
election, and four meetings are held after the election), and the attendance was as follows
covering the terms of the fourth committee (June 15, 2020, to June 14, 2023) and the fifth
committee (June 16, 2023, to June 15, 2026).

No. of No. of meetings | In-person attendance rate (%)
Title Name meetings with entrusted [B/A] Remarks
attended in
Person (B) attendance (Note)
Session of 4th
. . Remuneration
Convener Min-Hsiung 3 0 100 Committee
Hong .
expired
dismissal
Session of 5th
Member Ji-Zu Gao 7 0 100 Remunpra‘uon
Committee
reappointment
Session of 5th
Convener Teh-Fu 7 0 100 Remuqeration
Huang Committee
reappointment
Session of 5th
Remuneration
Member Po-Wei Chu 3 1 75 Committee
New
Appointment

Discussion and Resolutions of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Agenda

Resolution

The Company's response to the
Remuneration Committee's

opinion

January 17,2023
14th Meeting of the 4th
Remuneration

Committee

[Case 1]

Proposal for the Disbursement of the
President's Bonus for the Second Half of
2022 and the Year-End Bonuses for
Managers.

[Case 2]

Discussion on the Distribution Ratios of

Employee and Director Remuneration for the
Fiscal Year 2022.

Members voted unanimously to
approve the resolution.

All directors present at the
board meeting agreed and
passed the resolution.

February 23,2023
15th Meeting of the 4th

Remuneration

[Case 1]
Discussion on the Disbursement of GK
Bonuses for Managers for the Second Half

Members voted unanimously to
approve the resolution.

All directors present at the
board meeting agreed and
passed the resolution.

Proposal for the Adjustment of Managerial
Salaries for 2022, Submitted for Review.

Committee of 2022.
[Case 1]

May 4, 2023 B?scussi(];n on the Allloclz:tior}l1 oillndi;fi;iual i )

. irector Remuneration for the Fiscal Year irectors present at the
16th Meeting of the 4th Members voted unanimously to . P

. 2022. . board meeting agreed and
Remuneration approve the resolution. .

. [Case2] passed the resolution.

Committee

June 30, 2023
1st Meeting of the 5th
Remuneration

Committee

[Case 1]
Proposal for the Dismissal of Mr. Ming-Tsan
Tseng from the Position of President,

Submitted for Review.

The proposal for the dismissal
of a managerial officer should
not be reviewed by the
Compensation Committee and
is recommended to be
submitted for resolution by the
Board of Directors.

All directors present at the
board meeting agreed and

passed the resolution.
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[Case 2]
Proposal for the Appointment of Mr. Chih-
Mou Hung as the President of the Company,
Submitted for Review.

The proposal regarding the
appointment of a managerial
officer should not be reviewed
by the Compensation
Committee and is
recommended to be submitted
for resolution by the Board of
Directors. There are no
objections to the fixed monthly
salary for Mr. Chih-Mou Hung
as discussed in this proposal,
and it is approved as proposed.
Besides the fixed monthly
salary reviewed in this
proposal, Mr. Chih-Mou Hung
will not receive any additional
overseas salary. The company
will provide a dedicated office,
company car, mobile phone,
and computer equipment
necessary for his work. Any
other compensation and
rewards outside the fixed salary
will be handled according to
the company's salary and

compensation regulations.

July 18, 2023
2nd Meeting of the Sth
Remuneration

Committee

[Case 1]
To establish the "Managerial Compensation
and Performance Evaluation Management
Regulations" and to amend the "Director
Compensation Regulations," a proposal has
been submitted by Human Resources.
[Case 2]
Proposal for Salary and Compensation

Adjustment for the CEO of the Company.

Members voted unanimously to
approve the resolution.

Members voted unanimously to
approve the resolution. In the
event that Mr. Dun-Ren Cheng
disagrees with this
compensation, the Chairman is
authorized to make the final
decision.

All directors present at the
board meeting agreed and
passed the resolution.

August 10, 2023
3rd Meeting of the 5th
Remuneration

Committee

[Case 1]
Discussion on the Disbursement of the
President's Bonus for the First Half of 2023.
[Case 2]
Proposal for Managerial Subscription to
New Shares Issued in the Company's 2023
Cash Capital Increase.

Members voted unanimously to
approve the resolution.

All directors present at the
board meeting agreed and
passed the resolution.

October 31, 2023

4th Meeting of the S5th
Remuneration
Committee

[Case 1]
Discussion on the New Retirement Benefits
for Former CEO Mr. Dun-Ren Cheng.

Upon consultation with all
committee members, and in
accordance with the decision,
the payment will not be made.

The proposal is for the Board
of Directors, with all attending
directors' agreement, to
approve the resolution
following the decision of the
Compensation Committee as

proposed.

Other mentionable items:
1. If the board of directors declines to adopt or modify a recommendation of the remuneration committee, it
should specify the date of the meeting, session, content of the motion, the resolution by the board of directors,
and the company’s response to the remuneration committee’s opinion (e.g., the remuneration passed by the
Board of Directors exceeds the recommendation of the remuneration committee, the circumstances and cause
for the difference shall be specified): None.

2. Resolutions of the remuneration committee objected to by members or expressed reservations and recorded or
declared in writing, the date of the meeting, session, content of the motion, all members’ opinions and the
response to members’ opinion should be specified: None.
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9.  Implementation Status of Internal Control System:

(1) Statement of the Internal Control System) :

INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Internal Control System Statement

Date: February 22, 2024

The internal control system of the Company for the fiscal year 2023 has been evaluated based on self-

assessment, and hereby declare the following:

1. The Company recognizes that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of the internal
control system are the responsibility of the board of directors and management. The Company has
already established this system in order to achieve the goals of enhancing the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and safeguarding of assets), providing
reliable and timely reporting, ensuring compliance with relevant regulations and laws, and
maintaining transparency.

2. The internal control system has its inherent limitations. No matter how perfect the design is, an effective
internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the above three
objectives; moreover, due to changes in the environment and circumstances, the effectiveness of the
internal control system may vary. However, the Company's internal control system has a self-
supervision mechanism, and any deficiencies identified will be promptly corrected.

3. The Company has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control system based on the "Regulations
Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies" (hereinafter referred to
as "The Regulations"). The regulations divide the internal control system into five components: 1.
Control of Environment, 2. Risk assessment, 3. Control activities, 4. Information and Communication,
5. Monitoring activities. Each constituent element consists of multiple items. Regarding the
aforementioned items, please refer to “The Regulations.”

4. The Company has adopted the above-mentioned internal control system to evaluate the effectiveness of
the design and implementation of the internal control system, as well as to evaluate the quality of
projects.

5. On the basis of the evaluation results described in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that
its internal control system (including the supervision and management of subsidiaries) will be
effective as of December 31, 2023, in terms of understanding the effectiveness of operations and the
degree of achievement of efficiency goals, the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reports, and
compliance with relevant norms and relevant laws and regulations, as well as the design and
implementation of relevant internal controls.

6. This declaration will comprise the majority of the company's annual report and prospectus, and it will be
made public. In accordance with Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the
above-mentioned disclosed content is subject to legal liability if it contains falsehoods, concealment,
or other illegal conduct.

7. On February 22, 2024, the Company's board of directors approved this statement. None of the seven

present directors objected to the content of this statement, and all are in agreement with it, as declared

here.
INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.

Chairman Pei-Cheng Chen

CEO Chih-Mou Hung

(2) If CPAs are engaged to review the internal control system, their report shall be disclosed: None
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10.

If there has been any legal penalty against the Company and its internal personnel, or any disciplinary penalty by

the Company against its internal personnel for violation of the internal control system, during the most recent
fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report, where the result of such
penalty could have a material effect on shareholder interests or securities prices, the annual report shall disclose
the penalty, the main shortcomings, and condition of improvement: None.

11.
durin

Major Resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting and the Board of Directors during the most recent fiscal year or

the current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report:

Item

Date of Meeting

Major Resolutions

Board of Directors

2023.01.17

(1) Approved the discussion on the disbursement of the President's bonus for the second half of 2022 and year-end
bonuses for managers for the fiscal year 2022.

(2) Approved the discussion on the distribution ratios of employee and director remuneration for the fiscal year 2022.

(3) Approved the discussion on the proposal for the company to loan funds to subsidiaries.

(4) Approved the discussion on the company's application to banks for credit line facilities.

(5) Approved the discussion on the company's utilization of undistributed profits from the fiscal year 2021 for substantive
investments.

(6) Approved the discussion on the amendment of the company's "Corporate Governance Best Practice Guidelines."

(7) Approved the discussion on the amendment of the company's "Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information
and Prevention of Insider Trading."

Board of Directors

2023.02.23

(1) Approved the discussion on the fiscal year 2022 operating report and financial statements of the Company.
(2) Approved the discussion on the fiscal year 2022 assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
internal control system statement of the Company.
(3) Approved the discussion on the allocation of employee and director remuneration for the fiscal year 2022 of the
Company.
(4) Approved the discussion on the operational plan for the fiscal year 2023 of the Company.
(5) Approved the discussion on donations to the related party, "PSA Charitable Foundation".
(6) Approved the discussion on the purchase of machinery and equipment by the Company's subsidiary, Inpaq
Technology (China) Co., Ltd., from the related party, " rosperity Frontier Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.".
(7) Approved the discussion on the comprehensive re-election of directors of the Company.
(8) Approved the discussion on the lifting of non-compete restrictions for newly appointed directors of the Company.
(9) Approved the discussion on matters related to convening the annual shareholders' meeting of the Company for the
year 2023.
(10) Approved the discussion on matters related to the acceptance of shareholder proposals and nominations of director
candidates for the Company's 2023 annual shareholders' meeting.
(11) Approved the discussion on the disbursement of achievement bonuses for managers for the second half of the fiscal
year 2021.

Board of Directors

2023.05.04

(1) Approved the discussion on the professional service fees for the certified public accountant for the fiscal year 2023
and the independence assessment.

(2) Approved the discussion on establishing general principles for the company's pre-approval policy for non-assurance
services.

(3) Approved the discussion on the first-quarter financial report for the fiscal year 2023 of the Company.

(4) Approved the discussion on the company's application to banks for credit line facilities.

(5) Approved the discussion on the company's endorsement and guarantee for subsidiaries.

(6) Approved the discussion on the proposal for the company to loan funds to subsidiaries.

(7) Approved the discussion on the distribution of earnings for the fiscal year 2022 of the Company.

(8) Approved the discussion on the allocation of individual director remuneration for the fiscal year 2022 of the
Company.

(9) Approved the discussion on the disbursement of managerial staff remuneration for the fiscal year 2022 of the
Company.

(10) Approved the proposal and review of the list of director and independent director candidates for the Company.

(11) Approved the discussion on the company's investment in a Japanese subsidiary.

(12) Approved the discussion on the amendment of certain provisions of the company's Articles of Incorporation.

(13) Approved the discussion on adding items to the reasons for convening the annual shareholders' meeting of the

Company for the year 2023.

Board of Directors

2023.06.16

(1) Proposal for the Election of the Chairman of the 10th Board of Directors.
(2) Discussion on the Appointment of Members of the Compensation Committee.

Board of Directors

2023.06.30

(1) Proposal for the Dismissal of Mr. Ming-Tsan Tseng from the Position of President Due to a Group Job Rotation, and
Proposal for the Appointment of Mr. Chih-Mou Hung as the President of the Company.

(2) Proposal for Conducting Cash Capital Increase and Issuance of Common Shares, as well as the Third Domestic
Unsecured Convertible Bonds Issuance for the Fiscal Year 2023.

Board of Directors

2023.07.18

(1) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Apply for Credit Line Facilities from Banks.

(2) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Apply for Credit Line Facilities from Banks.

(3) Proposal for the Establishment of the *Managerial Compensation and Performance Evaluation Management
Regulations" and Amendments to the "Director Compensation Regulations" by Human Resources.

(4) Reappointment of the CEO of the Company and Salary Adjustment Proposal.

Board of Directors

2023.08.10

(1) Discussion on the Second Quarter Financial Report for the Year 2023 of the Company.

(2) Discussion on the Disbursement of the President's Bonus for the First Half of the Year 2022.

(3) Discussion on the Disbursement of Achievement Bonuses for Managers for the First Half of the Year 2022.

(4) Discussion on the Proposal for Managers' Subscription to New Shares Issued in the Company's Cash Capital Increase
for the Year 2022.

(5) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Apply for Credit Line Facilities from Banks.

Board of Directors

2023.10.31

(1) Discussion on the Proposal for the New Retirement Benefits for CEO Mr. Dun-Ren Cheng.
(2) Discussion on the Third Quarter Financial Report for the Year 2023 of the Company.

(3) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Apply for Credit Line Facilities from Banks.
(4) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Loan Funds to Subsidiaries.

(5) Discussion on the Audit Plan for the Fiscal Year 2024 of the Company.
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Item

Date of Meeting

Major Resolutions

(6) Discussion on the Proposal to Rehire Managers for the Zhunan and Taichung Branches of the Company.
(7) Proposal for the Establishment of the "Financial and Business Related Operations Regulations among Related Parties"
of the Company.

Board of Directors

2024.01.26

(1) Discussion on the Disbursement of the President's Bonus and the Year-end Bonuses for Managers for the Second Half
of the Year 2023.

(2) Discussion on the Allocation of Employee and Director Remuneration for the Year 2023 of the Company.

(3) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Loan Funds to Subsidiaries.

(4) Discussion on the Proposal for the Company to Utilize Undistributed Profits from the Year 2022 for Substantial
Investments.

(5) Discussion on the Operating Plan for the Fiscal Year 2024 of the Company.

(6) Discussion on Donations to Related Parties, namely the "PSA Charitable Foundation™ and the "Career Foundation".

Board of Directors

2024.02.22

(1) Discussion on the Business Report and Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the Company.

(2) Discussion on the Change of the Auditing Firm Due to Internal Rotation and the Professional Service Fees for the
Auditing Accountant for the Fiscal Year 2024, and Independence Assessment.

(3) Discussion on the Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Internal Control Systems and the Internal Control System
Declaration for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the Company.

(4) Discussion on the Allocation of Employee and Director Remuneration for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the Company.

(5) Discussion on the Disbursement of Achievement Bonuses for Managers for the Second Half of the Year 2023.

(6) Proposal to Convene Matters Related to the Annual Shareholders' Meeting for the Fiscal Year 2024 of the Company.

(7) Discussion on the Shareholders' Right to Propose Matters for the Annual Shareholders' Meeting for the Fiscal Year
2024 of the Company.

Board of Directors

2024.03.27

(1) Discussion on the Application for Credit Line Authorization from Banking Institutions for the Company.

(2) Discussion on the Proposal for the Distribution of Profits for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the Company.

(3) Discussion on the Allocation of Remuneration for Individual Directors for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the Company.

(4) Discussion on the Disbursement of Remuneration for Employees and Managers for the Fiscal Year 2023 of the
Company.

Board of Directors

2024.04.29

(1) Discussion on the Financial Report for the First Quarter of the Fiscal Year 2024 of the Company.

(2) Proposal for the Amendment of the "Board Meeting Regulations" of the Company.

(3) Proposal for the Amendment of the "Audit Committee Organization Regulations" of the Company.

(4) Discussion on the Application for Credit Line Authorization from Banking Institutions for the Company.
(5) Discussion on the Proposal for Providing Loans to Subsidiary Companies by the Company.

(6) Proposal for the Removal of Restrictions on Managerial Competition by the Company.

(7) Proposal for the Removal of Restrictions on Directorial Competition by the Company.

Shareholders
meeting

2023.06.16

1. Matters for Ratification:
(1) Approval of the 2022 business report and financial statements.
(2) Distribution of earnings for 2022.
2. Matters for Discussion(1):
Amendment of part of the Articles of Incorporation
3. Elections:
The 10th term director election
4. Matters for Discussion(2):
Proposal of release the prohibition on directors from participation in competitive business.

Review of the Implementation Status of the Resolution of the Shareholders' Meeting in 2023:
(1) Approval of the operating report and financial statements for the year 2023.
Implementation status: Resolution passed.

(2)

Approval of profit distribution for the year 2023.

Implementation status: Resolution passed.

(3)

Discussion on the amendment of certain articles of the Company's Articles of Incorporation.

Implementation status: Resolution passed and executed in accordance with the shareholders' meeting
resolution.

(4)

The 10th term director election.

Implementation status: The elected list is as follows:

Director :
Director :
Director :
Director :

Walsin Technology Corp. Representative Yu-Heng Chiao
Walsin Technology Corp. Representative Pei-Cheng Chen
Walsin Technology Corp. Representative Ming-Tsan Tseng
Dun-Ren Cheng

Independent Director * Ji-Zu Gao
Independent Director - Teh-Fu Huang
Independent Director : Po-Wei Chu

(5)

Discussion of the removal of restrictions on competition for directors and their representatives.

Implementation status: Resolution passed and executed in accordance with the shareholders' meeting
resolution.

12.

If any directors or supervisors expressed disagreement with important resolutions passed by the Board of

Directors during the most recent fiscal year and up to the date of printing of the annual reports and made any
records or written statements regarding their disagreement, the following are the main contents of such records or
statements: None.
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13.

14,

Resignation or Dismissal of the Company’s Key Individuals, Including the Chairman, President, and Managers of
Accounting, Finance, Internal Audit, Corporate Governance, and R&D:

Summary Table of Resignations and Dismissals of Company Personnel
April 16, 2024

Position Name Appointment Date Termination Date Reason

CEO Dun-Ren Cheng 2015/03/17 2023/07/06 Retirement
President Chih-Mou Hung 2023/07/01 Change in position
President Ming-Tsan Tseng 2015/03/17 2023/06/30 Change in position

Auditor's Independence Evaluation:

The Audit Committee annually evaluates the independence and suitability of the Company's appointed
accountants. In addition to requesting that the accountants provide a "Statement of Independence" and "Audit
Quality Indicators (AQIs)", the evaluation is based on the criteria outlined in Note 1 and 13 AQIs. It has been
confirmed that the accountants and their firms have no financial interests or business relationships other than the
fees for auditing and taxation services provided to the Company. The independence requirements are also not
violated by the accountants' family members. Furthermore, based on the information from AQI indicators, it has
been verified that the accountants and their firms have superior auditing experience and training hours compared
to the industry average. Additionally, in the past three years, they have continuously adopted digital audit tools to
enhance audit quality. The most recent annual evaluation results were discussed and approved by the Audit
Committee on February 22, 2024, and subsequently submitted to the Board of Directors for resolution on the
same date. This process included an assessment of the independence and suitability of the auditors.

INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Certified Public Accountant's Independence Evaluation
2023

Evaluation of the Certified Public Accountant: Accountants Hai-Ning Huang, Wan-Yuan You of KPMG Taiwan

Evaluation items are developed in accordance with Article 47 of the **Certified Public Accountant Act' and Article 10 of the "'Code of
Ethics for Certified Public Accountants,” " Integrity, Objectivity, Independence, and Professional Behavior."

. No Yes
Independence Evaluation Item (Normal) |(Abnormal) Note
1. Currently employed by the Company for regular work, receiving a fixed salary, or serving as a v
director or supervisor.
2. Previously served as a director, supervisor, executive, or held a position with significant influence on v
audit matters in the Company, and have not been separated from such position for less than two years.
3. Have a relationship of spouse, direct blood relation, direct in-law relation, or second-degree blood v
relation with the Company's responsible person or executive.
4. Have an investment or financial interest sharing relationship with the Company, either personally or v
through their spouse or minor children.
5. Have a financial borrowing or lending relationship with the Company, either personally or through
their spouse or minor children.
6. Engage in management consulting or other non-audit activities that may affect independence. V
7. Violate regulations that prohibit accounting firms from rotating, handling accounting matters on behalf
of others, or engaging in other activities that may affect independence as stipulated by the competent \%
authority for business events.

Conclusion: After evaluating the independence assessment criteria, it is determined that both accountants Hai-Ning Huang, Wan-Yuan
You from KPMG Taiwan meet the Company's independence assessment standards and are suitable to serve as the auditors for the
Company's financial statements.

(The attachment is provided separately for the above table.)

5. Accountant Fees for Certified Public Accountants:

Unit: NT$ thousands

. . Period Covered by . Non-audit
Accounting Firm Name of CPA CPA’s Audit Audit Fee Fee Total Note
KPMG Taiwan Hai-Ning Huang/ 2023.01.01~2023.12.31 3,630 879 4,509
Wan-Yuan Yu
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1. If the audit fees paid for the current year after changing the accounting firm and changing the annual audit fees
are less than the previous year, the before-and-after audit fees and the reasons for the change should be disclosed:
None.

2. If the audit fees have decreased by more than 10% compared to the previous year, the amount, proportion, and
reasons for the decrease in audit fees should be disclosed: None.

3. The non-audit fees mainly consist of a business tax certification fee of NT$570 thousand, and other fees
amounting to NT$309 thousand.

6. Change of Accountants : None

7. The Employment of the Company’s Chairman, President, Financial or Accounting Manager with the Firm of
the Auditing CPA or its Affiliated Businesses in the Past Year, shall disclose the job title, name, and the
accounting firm of the CPA or its affiliated companies: None.

8. Particulars about Changes in Shareholding and Equity Pledge of Directors, Supervisors, Managers and
Shareholders Holding More Than 10% of the Company's Shares in the Past Year and as of the Date of
Publication of the Annual Report:

1. Shareholding Changes of Directors, Managers and Major Shareholders

Unit: thousand shares

2023 As of April 16, 2024
. Pledged . Pledged
Title Name Shareholding Share Shareholdin Share
Increase g Increase
(Decrease) Increase (Decrease) Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Chairman Walsin Technology Corp. 3,934 - - -
Corporate Dlrector Pei-Cheng Chen 98 - - -
Representative
Director Walsin Technology Corp. 3,934 - - -
Corporate Dlrector Yu-Heng Chiao 2 i ) )
Representative
Director Walsin Technology Corp. 3,934 - - -
Corporate Director .
Representative Ming-Tsan Tseng (440) 9
Director (Note 5) Dun-Ren Cheng (17) - (165) -
Independent Director | Ji-Zu Gao - - - -
Independent Director . .
(Note 1) Min-Hsiung Hong
Independent Director .
(Note 2) Po-Wei Chu
Independent Director | Teh-Fu Huang - - - -
Major Shareholder Walsin Technology Corp. 3,934 - - -
President (Note 3) Ming-Tsan Tseng (440) )
President (Note 4) Chih-Mou Hung 30 - - -
Vice President Chi-Lung Chang 31 - - -
Vice President Jen-Chieh Hsu 28 - - -
Head of Financial and i
Accounting Center Kuo-Shu Huang 10 i

Note 1: Mr. Min-Hsiung Hong's was term expired on June 16, 2023, and he was relieved of his duties.
Note 2: Mr. Po-Wei Chu assumed office on June 16, 2023.

Note 3: Mr. Ming-Tsan Tsengs was relieved of his duties on June 30, 2023.

Note 4: Mr. Chih-Mou Hung assumed office on July 1, 2023.

Note 5: Mr. Dun-Ren Cheng, Director and CEO, resigned from his position on July 6, 2023.

2. Shares Trading with Related Parties: None

3. Shares Pledge with Related Parties: None
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9. Relationships Among the Top 10 Shareholders:

April 16, 2024; Unit: Shares

The shareholding ratio
accounts for the top ten

Shareholdings of Shares held shareholders, and they are
Current Shareholding the spouse and through relatives or spouses,
Name minor children nominees information on the Note
relationship within the
second degree of relatives
Shares % Shares % Shares % Name Relitigm_
Walsin Technology 51,782,658 | 34.76 - - - |- None None
Corp.
Walsin Technology
Corp. Representative: 20,000 0.01 - - - - None None
Yu-Heng Chiao
Tai Feng Shi Co., Ltd. 7,800,759 5.24 - - - - None None
Tai Feng Shi Co.,
Ltd.Representative: - - - - - - None None
Cheng-Han Tao
Jia Yuan Investment
Co.. Ltd. 2,673,000 1.79 - - - - None None
Jia Yuan Investment
Co., Ltd. . - - - - - - None None
Representatives:
Su-Chiu Wu
Dun-Ren Cheng 1314606 | 088 | 72462 | 0.05 . |- | ChaoKai Father-
Cheng Son
Kuan-Chou Lai 1,196,000 0.80 - - - - None None
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank
Taipei Branch, entrusted
to custody by Central 1,108,000 0.74 - - - - None None
Short-term Investment
Co., Ltd.
Wei-Fu Wang 890,000 0.60 - - - - None None
Citibank (Taiwan)
entrusted to custody by ) ) ) )
UBS Europe SE 843,634 0.57 None None
Investment Portfolio
Hung-Sheng Chen 814,000 0.55 - - - - None None
Fubon Investment
Management 812,661 0.55 - - - - None None
Consulting Co., Ltd.
Fubon Investment
Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 1,000 | 0.00 - - - |- | DunRen Father-
. Cheng Son
Representative:
Chao-Kai Cheng
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10. The Company, its directors, supervisors, managers, and businesses controlled directly or indirectly by the
Company must disclose their respective shareholdings in the Re-invested businesses and calculate the total

shareholding percentage through consolidation.
March 31, 2024; Unit: shares

Direct or Indirect
. . . Ownership by .
Affiliated Enterprises Ownership by the Company Directors/Supervisors/M Total Ownership
(Note) anagers
Shares % Shares % Shares %

Inpaq(BVI)Ltd. 39,908,842 100.00% - - 39,908,842 100.00%
Inpaq Korea Co.,Ltd. 76,828 44.77% - - 76,828 44.77%
Inpaq USA 5,000,000 100.00% - - 5,000,000 100.00%
Inpaq Europe GmbH 38,000 19.00% - - 38,000 19.00%
Canfield Ltd. 600,000 100.00% - - 600,000 100.00%
Yangtze Energy 311,097 19.89% - - 311,097 19.89%
Technologies, Inc.

Eleceram Technology 8.747.750 72.90% _ _ 8,747,750 72.90%
Co., Ltd.

Note: It is a long-term investment of the Company.
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4. Capital Overview
1. Capital and Shares

1. Source of Capital
April 16, 2024 Unit: shares; NT$

Par Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remarks
Month/ lel %acelet:sled by
Year (NT Shares Amount Shares Amount Sources of Capital Assets Other Others
$) than Cash
06/1998 10 24,000,000 240,000,000 6,000,000 60,000,000 Capital Establishment None
09/1998 10 24,000,000 240,000,000 18,000,000 180,000,000 | Capital Increase None September 28, 1998, No. (87)
Certificate No. 130354
10/1999 10 50,000,000 500,000,000 30,500,000 305,000,000 | Capital Increase None October 2, 1999, No. (87)
Certificate No. 135831
09/2000 10 50,000,000 500,000,000 40,000,000 400,000,000 Capital Increase None July 18, 2000, No.:(89) Tai-Cai-
Certificate(1) No.60064

04/2001 10 70,000,000 700,000,000 47,845,748 478,457,480 | Increase in capital through retained None May 22, 2001, No.:(90) Tai-Cai-
earnings and capital surplus Certificate(1) No.131764

08/2004 10 70,000,000 700,000,000 53,586,748 535,867,480 Capital Increase None April 30, 2004, No.: (93)Tai-Cai-

Certificate(1) No0.0930116127

10/2005 10 70,000,000 700,000,000 56,486,748 564,867,480 Consolidated capital increase None September 19, 2005, No.: Jin-Guan-

Certificate-1 N0.0940139268
02/2006 10 70,000,000 700,000,000 60,586,748 605,867,480 | Capital Increase None December 07, 2005, No.: Jin-Guan-
Certificate-1 N0.0940005753

09/2006 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 65,257,821 652,578,210 Increase in capital through retained None June 30, 2006, No.: Jin-Guan-
earnings and capital surplus Certificate-1 N0.0950127708

11/2006 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 67,164,021 671,640,210 Issuance of new shares via None November 17, 2006, Yuan-Shang-
employee stock options and Certificate No. 0950030361
unsecured convertible corporate
bonds.

04/2007 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 67,951,021 679,510,210 Issuance of employee stock option None April 23, 2007, Yuan-Shang-
for common stock Certificate No. 0960009696

10/2007 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 73,549,084 735,490,840 | Capital increase via retained None October 12, 2007, Yuan-Shang-
earnings and capital surplus, Certificate No. 0960026923
issuance of new shares through
employee stock option conversions.

10/2007 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 74,850,147 748,501,470 Issuance of new shares through the None November 29, 2007, Yuan-Shang-
conversion of employee stock Certificate No. 0960031817
options and unsecured convertible
corporate bonds.

01/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 94,850,147 948,501,470 Private placement of new shares None January 3, 2008, Yuan-Shang-

Certificate No. 0960035261

03/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 95,063,118 950,631,180 Issuance of new shares through the None March 17, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
conversion of employee stock Certificate No. 0970006561
options and unsecured convertible
corporate bonds.

05/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 95,152,118 951,521,180 Issuance of employee stock option None May 22, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
for common stock Certificate No. 0970013217

07/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 95,280,118 952,801,180 | Issuance of employee stock option None July 25, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
for common stock Certificate No. 0970020159

08/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 94,177,118 941,771,180 Reverse stock split via treasury None August 27, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
stock retirement Certificate No. 0970024055

10/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 | 101,552,025 1,015,520,250 | Increase in capital through retained None October 8, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
earnings and capital surplus Certificate No. 0970027894

11/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 98,246,025 982,460,250 | Reverse stock split via treasury None November 18, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
stock retirement Certificate No. 0970031196

12/2008 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 98,259,025 982,590,250 Issuance of employee stock option None December 9, 2008, Yuan-Shang-
for common stock Certificate No. 0970034263

10/2009 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 | 102,989,727 1,029,897,270 | Capital increase through capital None October 13, 2009, Commercial
surplus via new share issuance Affairs Bureau Document No.

09801236190

06/2011 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 99,344,727 993,447,270 Reverse stock split via treasury None June 1, 2011, Commercial Affairs

stock retirement Bureau Document No.
10001113170

04/2014 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 | 100,003,922 1,000,039,220 | Conversion of convertible corporate None April 3, 2014, Commercial Affairs

bonds into new share issuance Bureau Document No.
10301056180

08/2014 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 | 101,493,678 1,014,936,780 | Conversion of convertible corporate None August 27, 2014, Commercial

bonds into new share issuance Affairs Bureau Document No.
10301173380

11/2014 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 102,439,606 1,024,396,060 | Conversion of convertible corporate None November 21, 2014, Commercial

bonds into new share issuance Affairs Bureau Document No.
10301243050

04/2015 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 | 102,482,450 1,024,824,500 | Conversion of convertible corporate None April 13, 2015, Commercial Affairs

bonds into new share issuance Bureau Document No.
10401061370

08/2015 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 102,558,254 1,025,582,540 | Conversion of convertible corporate None August 20, 2015, Commercial

bonds into new share issuance Affairs Bureau Document No.
10401176110
06/2018 10 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 147,558,254 1,475,582,540 Private placement cash capital None June 28, 2018, Commercial Affairs
increase Bureau Document No.

10701071240

10/2019 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 140,180,341 1,401,803,410 | Cash capital decrease None October 9, 2019, Commercial
Affairs Bureau Document No.
10801136820

10/2023 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 148,980,341 1,489,803,410 | Cash capital increase None October 23, 2023, Commercial
Affairs Bureau Document No.
11230190370
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Share Type Auth'orlzed Capital Remarks
Issued Shares Un-issued Shares Total
Nominal
Common 148,980,341 151,019,659 300,000,000
Stock
Information for Shelf Registration: None.
2. Status of Shareholders
April 16, 2024 Unit: shares
Status of
Shareholders Domestic Foreign
Government Financial Other Juridical Institutions &
. o Natural Total
Agencies Institutions Persons P Natural
ersons
Persons
Item
Number of
Shareholders 3 233 34,701 78 35,015
Shareholding 850,000 66,270,809 75,450,144 6,409,388 148,980,341
Shareholding 0.57 44.48 4.30 50.65 100.00
percentage (%)

3. Shareholding Distribution Status

April 16, 2024 Unit: Shares

Shareholding Tiers No. of Shareholders Shareholding Shareholding Ratio (%)
lto 999 19,742 911,241 0.61
1,000 to 5,000 12,832 23,254,968 15.61
5,001 to 10,000 1,293 10,114,557 6.79
10,001 to 15,000 371 4,682,142 3.14
15,001 to 20,000 222 4,032,169 2.71
20,001 to 30,000 212 5,364,269 3.60
30,001 to 40,000 84 3,021,477 2.03
40,001 to 50,000 63 2,910,848 1.95
50,001 to 100,000 107 7,557,645 5.07
100,001 to 200,000 46 6,496,541 4.36
200,001 to 400,000 25 7,320,889 4.91
400,001 to 600,000 7 3,379,219 2.27
600,001 to 800,000 1 699,058 0.47
800,001 to 1,000,000 4 3,360,295 2.26
1,000,001 or over 6 65,875,023 44.22
Total 35,015 148,980,341 100.00
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4. List of Major Shareholders

List all shareholders with a stake of 5% or greater, and if those are fewer than 10 shareholders, also list all shareholders
who rank in the top 10 in shareholding percentage, and specify the number of shares and stake held by each shareholder

on the list:

April 16, 2024 Unit: shares

Shares Shareholdings Shareholding Ratio
Name of Major Shareholders (%)
Walsin Technology Corp. 51,782,658 34.76%
Tai Feng Shi Co., Ltd. 7,800,759 5.24%
Jia-Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. 2,673,000 1.79%
Dun-Ren Cheng 1,314,606 0.88%
Guan-Zhou Lai 1,196,000 0.80%
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., Taipei Branch, has
been appointed as the custodian for the investment
account of Central Short-Term Investment 1,108,000 0.74%
Corporation.
Nong-Fu Wang 890,000 0.60%
Citibank Taiwan Ltd. has been appointed as the
custodian for the investment account of UBS Europe 843,634 0.57%
SE.
Hong-Sheng Chen 814,000 0.55%
Fu Kai Investment and Consultation Co., Ltd. 812,661 0.55%

5. Market price, net worth, earnings, and dividends per share in the last two years

Unit: shares; NT$

Year As of May 3, 2024
Item 2022 2023 (Note 6)
Market Highest 76.60 91.90 90.80
Price per Lowest 38.60 45.40 72.10
Share Average 52.04 61.13 81.40
Net worth | Before Distribution 41.54 45.93 48.53
per share —
(Note 1) After Distribution 39.84 44.23 (Note 7) —
Weighted Average (thousand) 140,136 142,828 _
Shares
Earnings Diluted Earnings _
per share Stpgk Per Share 4.22 5.01
Dividends =14 e d Diluted
(Note 2) Earnings Per Share 4.22 5.01 B
Cash Dividends (NT$) 1.7 2 (Note 7) —
Stock Dividends
Appropriated from - — -
Dividends | Stock Retained Earnings
per Share | Dividends | Stock Dividends
Appropriated from — - —
Capital Reserve
Accumulated Undistributed _ _ _
Dividends
Price / Earnings Ratio (Note 3) 12.55 12.20 —
IRew”‘ ON I brice / Dividend Ratio (Note 4) 31.14 30.57 (Note 7) _
nvestment
Cash Dividend Yield Rate (Note 5) 3.21% 3.27% (Note 7) —

Note 1: Fill in based on year-end issued shares and next year's shareholder-approved distribution.
Note 2: If retrospective adjustments are required because of issuance of stock dividends, the earnings per share should be
disclosed in the amounts before and after the retrospective adjustments.

Note 3: Price / Earnings Ratio = Average Market Price / Earnings per Share
Note 4: Price / Dividend Ratio = Average Market Price / Cash Dividends per Share
Note 5: Cash Dividend Yield Rate = Cash Dividends per Share / Average Market Price
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Note 6: Net worth per share and earnings per share are based on audited (auditor-reviewed) data as at the latest quarter before
the publication date of the annual report. For all other fields, calculations are based on the data for the current year as
of the date of publication of the annual report.

Note 7: The proposed dividend for 2023 is intended to distribute cash of NT$2 per share from retained earnings. The
shareholders meeting has not yet approved these proposals.

6. Dividend Policy and Implementation Status:

Item

Description

Dividend Policy of the
Company

If the Company has a surplus in its annual financial statements, it should first
pay taxes and offset accumulated losses. Then, it should set aside 10% of the
surplus as legal reserve until the legal reserve reaches the paid-up capital of the
Company. Any remaining surplus should be allocated according to relevant laws
and regulations or converted into a special surplus reserve. If there is still a
balance, the board of directors will propose a surplus distribution plan to the
shareholders' meeting for approval of shareholder dividends.

Given the Company's presence in an industry characterized by constant changes,
being capital and technology-intensive, and being at a stage of stable growth in its
business lifecycle, it is necessary to retain earnings to meet the funding
requirements for operational growth and investments. Therefore, the Company
currently adopts a residual dividend policy. Cash dividends distributed to
shareholders shall not be less than 10% of the total distribution amount mentioned
in the previous paragraph.

Proposed Dividend Distribution
for Shareholders' Meeting

As approved by the Board of Directors on March 27, 2024, the following proposal
will be submitted to the shareholders' meeting:

It is proposed to distribute a cash dividend of NT$297,960,682 from 2023's
undistributed earnings, with each share receiving NT$2 in cash.

When there are significant
changes expected in the
dividend policy, it should be
explained.

No significant changes.

7. The impact of the bonus shares proposed at this shareholders' meeting on the Company's operating performance and

earnings per share: None.

8. Bonuses of Employees, Directors and Supervisors:

Item

Description

(1) Percentage or range of
employee compensation and
director remuneration specified
in the Articles of Incorporation:

If the Company earns profits in a fiscal year, it should allocate no less than 5% for
employee remuneration. The board of directors will decide whether to make the
distribution in the form of stock or cash. The recipients of such distributions may
include employees of subsidiary companies who meet certain conditions. The
Company should allocate no more than 3% of the aforementioned profit amount
for director remuneration, as determined by the board of directors. However, if the
Company has accumulated losses, an amount should be reserved in advance for
offsetting those losses, and the remaining amount should be allocated according to
the aforementioned proportions.

The distribution of employee remuneration and director remuneration should be
subject to a special resolution by the board of directors and presented to the
shareholders' meeting for approval.

(2) Accounting treatment of
differences between the
estimated amount of employee
and director remuneration for
the current period, the
calculation basis for employee
compensation paid in stocks,
and the actual amount of
distribution:

In 2023, the Company generated a pre-tax profit of NT$790,618,200. After
deducting the reserved amount for offsetting accumulated losses, the decision was
made to allocate 5% for employee remuneration, amounting to NT$40,753,515,
and to allocate 2% for director remuneration, amounting to NT$16,301,406.

The calculation basis for distributing shares is determined based on the closing
price of the trading day preceding the shareholders' meeting, taking into account
the impact of ex-dividend and ex-rights dates. However, the Board of Directors
decided not to distribute shares in the current period on February 22, 2024. If there
are differences between the actual distribution amount and the estimated amount, it
will be considered a change in accounting estimate and included in the income
statement of the following fiscal year.
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Item

Description

(3) Board resolution on the
distribution of remuneration:

1. The amount of employee
compensation and director
remuneration distributed in cash
or stocks (if there is a difference
between the estimated amount
of recognized expenses and the
actual amount of distribution,
the difference, reasons and
treatment shall be disclosed):

On February 22, 2024, the Board of Directors passed a resolution to allocate 5%
for employee remuneration, amounting to NT$40,753,515, and to allocate 2% for
director remuneration, amounting to NT$16,301,406. The actual distribution
amounts for both employee and director remuneration are consistent with the
estimated amounts. All the aforementioned employee and director remuneration
were disbursed in cash.

2. Ratio of employee
compensation paid in stocks to
the post-tax net income and
total employee compensation in
the current individual financial
report:

None.

(4) The previous year's actual
distribution of employee,
director, and supervisor
remuneration (including the
number of shares allocated,
amount, and stock price), as
well as any variances from the
recognition of employee,
director, and supervisor
remuneration, should be
described. Any differences in
the deviation, causes, and
handling procedures must be
specified.

On February 23, 2023, as per the resolution of the Board of Directors, the
Company distributed employee remuneration in cash amounting to NT$37,004,455
and director remuneration in cash amounting to NT$14,801,782. The actual
distribution amounts are consistent with the proposed distribution that the Board of
Directors approved.

9. Buyback of Treasury Stock: None.

2. Corporate Bond:

(1) Corporate Bonds

Corporate Bond Type 3rd Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Issue date December 14, 2023
Denomination NT$100,000
Issuing and transaction location R.0.C
Issue price Issue by denomination
Total price NT$700,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Tenor 3 years

Maturity:December 14, 2026

Guarantee agency N/A

Consignee

Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd

Underwriting institution

Taishin Securities Co.,Ltd.

Certified lawyer

Handsome Attorneys-at-Law Chiu, Ya-Wen

CPA

Hai Ning Huang Wan Yuan Yu.

Repayment method

Except for bondholders who convert to the Company's
common stock in accordance with Article 10 of the
conversion plan, or bonds redeemed early by the Company in
accordance with Article 18 of the conversion plan, or bonds
repurchased early by bondholders in accordance with Article
19 of the conversion plan, or bonds repurchased and
cancelled by the Company from the securities firm's business
premises, the Company will repay the principal amount of
the convertible bonds in cash in a lump sum upon the
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maturity of the bonds.

Outstanding principal NT$700,000,000

Please refer to the conversion method of our company’s 3rd
unsecured corporate bond with Article 18

Restrictive clause N/A

Name of credit rating agency, rating date,|N/A

rating of corporate bonds

Terms of redemption or advance repayment

As of the printing date of this As of the printing date of the annual report, no conversion
annual report, converted amount |has been made

Other of (_exchanged or subscribed)

rights ordlngr.y shares, GDRs or other

attached securities - - -
Issuance and conversion Please refer to the issue and conversion method of our
(exchange or subscription) company’s 3rd unsecured corporate bond
method

Issuance and conversion, exchange or No significant impact

subscription method, issuing condition
dilution, and impact on existing
shareholders’ equity

Transfer agent N/A

(2 ) Convertible Bonds

Corporate bond type 3rd Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Year As of the printing date of
Item 2023 this annual report
(May 8, 2024)
Market Highest 119.50 124.00
price of the ™0 est 11455 110.20-
convertible
bond Average 116.41 117.41
Convertible Price 92

Issue date and conversion Issue Date: December 14, 2023
price at issuance Conversion price at issuance : NT$92
Conversion methods Issuing of new stocks

3. Preferred Shares: None.

4. Overseas Depositary Receipts: None.

5. Employee Stock Options: None.

6. Issuance of restricted share for employees: None.

7. Issuance of New Shares for Merger, Acquisition or Exchange of Other Companies’ Shares: None.

8. Financing Plans and Implementation:

(1) Contents of Plan :

1. Fundraising Plan : In December 2023, the Company conducted its third domestic issuance of unsecured
convertible bonds, raising NT$700 million, with each bond having a face value of NT$100,000. The
bonds have a three-year term and a 0% interest rate. This issuance was approved by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China (Taiwan) via letter No. 11203495421 dated August 4,
2023. Additionally, the issuance was approved for extension by the Financial Supervisory Commission
via letter No. 1120359125 dated October 26, 2023, and the fundraising was completed on December 14,
2023.
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2. Planned project and progress of funds

Unit : NT$ thousands

Planned Schedule for Fund

Loans

- Total Amount of Funds Utilization
Item Scheduled Finish date Required 2023
Fourth Quarter
Repayment of Bank| 4,3 £orth Quarter 700,000 700,000
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5. Operations Profile

1. Business Scope

1. Main areas of business operations

(L

Main Business Scope

The main areas of the business:

CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing

Research, development, production, manufacturing, and sales of the following products:

(1) Protection Components and Magnetic Components: Electromagnetic shielding components,

overvoltage protection components, overcurrent protection components, high-frequency inductors,
power inductors.

(2)Microwave Composite Micro Antennas and Modules: Multi-band Miniaturized Automotive

(2)
1)
)

(3)

(4
@)
)
@)
(4)
®)
(6)
()
(®)
9)

Antennas, GPS Satellite Antennas and Modules, Bluetooth Antennas, WiFi/WiFi 6E Antennas,
2G/3G/4G/5G Antennas, DMB Antennas, DVB Antennas, UWB Antennas, SDARS/XM Antennas,
NFC Antennas, FR1/FR2 Antennas, Chip Antennas, External Antennas, Customized Antennas,
Tuner Antennas, Wireless Charging and its application modules.

Current product (service) of the Company:
High Frequency Component
Protection Components and Magnetic Components:

Operating ratio (consolidated):

Year
Product Type 2023
High Frequency Component 54.45%
Protection Component 45.55%

New products (services) planned to be developed:
High-precision Multi-band Positioning Antenna

5G Array Antenna Module

5G FR1-CPE Antenna Module

Inductive Smart Adjustable Antenna
Diplexer/Triplexer Antenna

5G IDU/ODU Antenna

ESD GuardTM

Next-Generation Ultra-Compact Alloy Power Inductor
Miniaturized Multilayer Electromagnetic Components

(10) WPC QI 1.3 Version TX Module

2. Industry overview

(L

Industry Status and Development

The Company's primary business is the research, development, and manufacture of protective components
such as electromagnetic protection (EMI), overvoltage protection (OVP), and overcurrent protection (OCP),
as well as power inductors, common-mode filters, and high-frequency components. The products primarily
apply to mobile phones, laptops, tablets, GPS, wearable devices, WLAN, wireless charging, and Bluetooth
modules in the consumer electronics, information and communication industries, and niche automotive
electronics industries. Current industry status, industry characteristics, and future growth trends are analyzed

below:

76



(1) High Frequency Component

Antennas are conductors that act as an intermediate conductor between wireless radio waves propagating
over space and electric currents flowing through metallic conductors. They convert voltage and current,
transmit and receive electromagnetic energy, and change the dispersion of electromagnetic waves in space.

In contrast to traditional antennas, which are more concerned with hardware performance, the antenna
business has increasingly entered an era in which performance is boosted through software and algorithm
frameworks. It primarily evolves in response to technological and product improvements. In recent years,
various testing requirements prior to the commercialization of 5G networks, widespread adoption of Internet
of Things (loT) and artificial intelligence (Al) applications, and the rise of highly automated vehicles have
increased emphasis on high-frequency and smart antennas that can improve signal transmission speed,
capacity, and coverage. These applications are regarded as critical components of commercialization. As a
result, the future of the antenna industry will continue to focus on developing intelligent products, with major
demand coming from fields such as 10T, automotive electronics, and 5G mobile communications:

— 10T (Internet of Things): According to an article on "RF Technology for 1oT" published by the
Taiwan Electromagnetic Industry-Academia Alliance, antenna technologies such as RFID (Radio Frequency
Identification), NFC (Near Field Communication), sensors, and sensor networks, which are required for 10T,
have become increasingly mature. Combined with the maturity and ongoing development of mobile
communication and internet services towards cloud-based and optimized services, 10T has become one of the
hot topics in antenna applications. Its application scope includes: industrial applications (Industrial 10T),
consumer electronic products, remote healthcare, smart homes, etc. The market demand for related wireless
communication devices and modules is steadily growing.

— Automotive Electronics and connected cars: The global automotive industry has entered an era of
information-based competition. Vehicle bodies and in-vehicle electronics, which previously relied on
industrial technology and mechanical structures, have now shifted towards intelligent applications. In this
trend, the market for automotive electronics related to autonomous vehicles and connected cars is rapidly
expanding, driving opportunities in the antenna market. Taoglas Limited, an antenna technology supplier
based in Ireland, has pointed out that the number of antennas in automobiles is exponentially increasing.
With the advent of the 5G network era, next-generation vehicles will require at least 18 antennas to possess
safe and reliable autonomous driving capabilities.

In addition to smart vehicles equipped with the latest automotive electronics, the "systems" and
"platforms" behind the vehicles have become major focal points. The utilization of 10T technology in the
transportation sector, the integration of vehicle information and mobile networks, and the provision of
intelligent management services such as traffic safety, city management, logistics, and smart tolling through
backend platforms have become key development focuses of the concept of "connected cars." Due to the
booming development of connected cars, the proportion of new vehicles on the market with connectivity
capabilities continues to increase. Furthermore, with the finalization of the 5G Release 16 standard's third
phase, more comprehensive support for various industries is being planned for the future. Autonomous
driving is one of the objectives, indicating that the applications of connected cars will expand further.
According to research by the international research and advisory firm Gartner, connected cars will not only
be one of the top ten wireless technology trends in the future but are also predicted to become the largest
market for 5G by 2023, reaching a 94% share by 2028. This trend has prompted industry players to
accelerate their investments in connected car devices and the development of new products that integrate
navigation, safety, entertainment, and other integrated in-vehicle communication systems. The demand for
automotive antennas is expected to grow alongside these developments.

— 5G Mobile Communications: 5G Mobile Communications: Since the advent of smartphones, the
number of smartphone users has grown significantly, driving rapid growth in mobile network traffic.
According to Ericsson's "Mobility Report” in November 2021, mobile network traffic has grown nearly 300
times in the past decade. With the introduction of 5G, it is estimated that by 2027, the number of 5G users

77



worldwide will surpass that of 4G users, reaching 4.4 billion. Various distance applications, cloud gaming,
the virtual worlds of the metaverse, and other innovative services will further drive a fourfold increase in
global monthly data traffic.

The 5G network is set to become the fastest-deployed mobile communication technology in global
history. With the high demand for 5G infrastructure construction in mainland China and North America
surpassing expectations and the rapid decline in prices of 5G terminal devices, Ericsson's report indicates
that by the end of 2021, the global coverage of 5G networks will reach over 2 billion people, and the number
of global 5G users will reach 660 million.

The report also suggests that by 2027, 5G is expected to dominate global mobile network technology. At
that time, the number of 5G users will reach 4.4 billion, surpassing the number of 4G users and accounting
for approximately 50% of global mobile users. It is projected to cover around 75% of the global population
and carry 62% of global smartphone traffic.

Mobile manufacturers and telecommunications operators worldwide have been launching 5G services
one after another. Considering the strong demand from users for faster transmission speeds and better
connectivity quality, as well as the increased reliance on data, global 5G usage is expected to increase
significantly. The popularity of 5G also drives the accelerated growth of connected devices in loT
applications, with a compound annual growth rate of 28%. According to estimates by the Global Mobile
Communications System Association, the introduction of 5G technology is projected to contribute US$2.2
trillion to the global economy over the next 15 years.

(2) Protection Components and Magnetic Components

With the advancement of technology and the flourishing development of the information industry,
electronic products have become essential tools in modern life. The main directions of evolution in electronic
products include faster information processing speeds, increased storage capacity, and larger screen sizes. In
terms of product size and appearance, lightweight, thin, short, and small designs that demand
multifunctionality with low power consumption have become the mainstream in today's electronic products.
To meet these development requirements, various components inside electronic products also face the
challenge of miniaturization. Special components such as electromagnetic radiation suppression, current
protection, overvoltage protection, temperature sensing, miniaturized high-Q high-frequency inductors, and
low-loss miniaturized high-current power inductors have gradually gained attention to maintain the reliability
and energy efficiency of electronic products. Protective and magnetic components primarily belong to the
passive components in electronic devices and are widely used in various sectors such as information,
communication, consumer electronics, appliances, automotive electronics, and aerospace. Depending on the
size and complexity of electronic products, the number of components used inside can range from a dozen to
dozens. There will be a lot of integrated circuits (ICs) used, and passive components will act as peripheral
components to active components as a result of trends in continuous intelligence and wireless technology.
Due to the high demand for ICs, the demand for passive components is expected to increase significantly.

As major mobile phone brands continue to improve product specifications, including multi-camera
designs, 3D sensing, wireless charging, voice assistants, and other features, the number of ICs and passive
components required per smartphone continues to increase. Smartphones are also continuously moving
towards lighter and thinner designs, leading to a trend of miniaturization for passive components.
Additionally, with the increasing market share of 5G mobile communications, the demand for passive
components is also growing. The Company has positioned itself in the market for automotive electronics,
high-end 5G communication, and smartphones, aiming to enter the niche market of high-unit-priced passive
components in line with global trends.
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(2) Relationship with Upstream, Middlestream, and Downstream Companies:

The main business of the Company is the research, development, and manufacturing of protective
components and high-frequency antenna modules. Here is the analysis of the upstream, midstream, and
downstream industry relationships of the Company:

Upstream

Major raw materials

Conductive Adhesive
Dielectric Material
Resistive Adhesive
Ceramic Powder
Screen

Glass Cement

Nickel Foil

Polymer Material
Adhesive

Dispersant
Electroplating Solution
PCB Board

Nickel Ball

Solder Ball

Coating

Tape

Middlestream

A 4

- Anti-electromagnetic
Radiation Components

- Overvoltage Protection
Components

Downstream

Information Industry

Laptop
Desktop
Tablet
Monitor
Motherboard
Scanner

CD Drive
Network card

Consumer electronics
industry

\ 4

High Frequency
Communication
Components
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A 4

Smart Energy-saving
Home Appliances

TV set

Game Console
CD Drive
Digital Camera
Walkman

LCD Monitor
AP Router
STBox

Communication Industry

\ 4

Mobile Telephone
Wearable Device
Fax Machine
Modem
Telephone set
WLAN

Bluetooth




(3) Product Development Trend
(1)  Protection Components and Magnetic Components
A. Production Equipment Automation
B. Development towards High Frequency and Thin Film
C. Chip Integration, Miniaturization, and Functional Integration
D. Product Endurance for High Voltage and High Current
(2) High Frequency Components
A. Integration of GPS and other Multiple Antennas and Components
B. Towards Chip Antenna Design
C. FR1/FR2 Array Antenna Design
D. IDU/ODU Antenna Design
E. Designing Compact, Integrated, and Functionally Composite Antenna Modules
F. Combining Antennas with Casings to Reduce Required Space for Antennas
(4) Status of Competition

The company's products mainly focus on noise suppression components, overvoltage protection
components, overcurrent protection components, and high-frequency communication components, which
make its product line highly comprehensive compared to competitors. In terms of protective components, the
main domestic competitors include Chilisin, Thinking Electronic, King Core, Yageo, Tai-Tech, and Amazing
Microelectronic, among others. As for international competitors, Panasonic, TDK, Murata, Amotech,
Littelfuse, CET, Semtech, Raychem, and Bourns are the major companies. In the field of high-frequency
components, the main domestic competitors are Cirocomm, Wha Yu, Yageo, and Advanced-Connectek,

while foreign manufacturers primarily include Toko, Moteco, and Anpheno.
3. Research and Development Overview

(1) R&D expenses during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the

publication date of the annual report:

Unit: NT$ thousands

Item

2022 2023 As of March 31,
2024

Development Cost 383,339 385,814 90,210

(2) Successful technology or product development:

No.

Item

Overvoltage/Overcurrent Combination Components

Resettable Overcurrent Protection Components

Low Resistance Current Sensing Components

AW N -

High-Precision Global Positioning System (GPS) Receivers and
Modules

Application in Automotive and Consumer 3C 2G/3G/4G/5G

WiFi/WLAN/FM/DAB/DVB/FM Antennas

Miniature Chip Antennas

WiFi 6e Array-Type CPE Antenna Modules

O 0 N On

UWB Indoor Positioning Built-in Antennas

Chip Inductors/Magnetic Bead Components with Compact,
High Q, and High Frequency

11

Multilayer Type Common mode filter, Thin Film Common-
Mode Filters

12

0402 /0201 SMD Type TVS

13

Miniature High Current Power Inductors
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14 Multi-Layer Spiral Structure Common Mode Filters

15 Plastic Enclosure Antenna Plating Technology

16 Wire-Wound Power Inductors

17 Next-Generation 1412 Miniature High Current Power Inductors
18 Closed-Loop Chip-Type Wire-Wound Power Inductors

19 High-Efficiency Wearable Wireless Transmitter Charging
Docks

20 QI Certified EPP Subsystem Wireless Transmitter Modules
21 Ultra-Low Capacitance ESD Protection Components

22 Automotive 155°C High-Temperature High-Power Density
Integrated Forming Power Inductors

23 5G Array Antenna Modules

24 High-Precision Multi-Band Positioning Antennas

25 Low-Temperature Sintered Surge Protection Varistors

4.  Long and Short-Term Business Development Plans

(1) Short-Term Development Plans
The Company is the global marketing center of INPAQ Technology in Taiwan, with marketing units
established in China, the United States, Japan, South Korea, Europe, and India. With the establishment of an
international marketing system and the integration of a complete product line, the Company can fully
leverage its advantages in market marketing and provide customer service in close proximity.
The product line of the Company includes protective components as well as high-frequency communication
components that can be combined with information and communication technology and consumer
electronics devices. Customers will appreciate the ease of one-stop shopping.
The Company's short-term development plans are as follows:
(1) Establishing thin-film mass production technology and continuously developing high-speed protection
components required for future products. Establishing cooperative partnerships with customers to jointly
develop components needed for future system products.
(2) Continuously striving for orders from important domestic and international manufacturers in the notebook,
tablet, motherboard, mobile phone, automotive, and 3C industries. Seeking OEM opportunities with
international manufacturers to enhance overall market share. Actively supporting the marketing capabilities
of distributors and agents to expand domestic and international markets through their channels.
(3) Developing next-generation high-frequency electrostatic discharge protection components and conducting
research on miniaturization to increase the breadth of the Company's voltage protection component product
line. Using existing GPS planar antennas, GSM antennas, Bluetooth antennas, and FM chip antennas as a
foundation to develop WiFi, UWB, WiMAX, DVB, and composite single, dual, and multi-band antennas.
(4) Establishing competitive production capabilities to meet market and customer demands.

(2) Medium to long-term development plans:
(1) Aligning with international sales strategies, actively recruiting and cultivating professional sales talents to
enhance overseas marketing capabilities.
(2) Actively researching and developing multi-functional components for electromagnetic interference and
electrostatic protection to improve product performance and simplify designs, in line with the future trend of
continuously increasing data transmission speed and capacity.
(3) Strengthening research and development capabilities to quickly develop antennas and components
required for customer products, and establishing long-term cooperative partnerships with customers.
(4) Continuously investing to meet the sustained growth of various end applications and expand into markets
such as automotive electronics, the Internet of Things (I0T), connected cars, and smart homes.
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2. Market and Sales Overview:
1. Market Analysis

(1) Main Sales Region (Consolidated)
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year 2022 2023
Region Amount % Amount %
Domestic sales 620,623 9.87 534,322 8.09
Export 5,666,448 90.13 6,069,739 91.91
Total 6,287,071 100.00 6,604,061 100.00

(2) Market Share

The Company's revenue primarily comes from protection components and high-frequency components.
Currently, among the listed and OTC companies in Taiwan, there is no company that produces identical
products to the Company. However, Thinking Electronic, Yageo, Amazing Microelectronic, Wha Yu,
Chilisin, Cirocomm, and Tai-Tech, among others, produce products with similar functionalities. Therefore, it
is difficult to estimate the market share.

(3) Future supply and demand situations and growth of the market

(1) Protection Components

The market for anti-noise protection components is expanding as varied frequency currents and
electromagnetic wave applications become more common in modern times. With the rising electronization of
products ranging from compact smartphones to large-scale systems in the automotive and aerospace
industries, the market for protective components that minimize circuit noise is growing in relevance and size.
The need to reduce malfunction concerns and increase system performance efficiency is what drives this.

Not only do international electronic technology associations like UL, VDE, JIS, and the FCC have strict
regulations on surge and radiation protection for electronic instruments, but major international information,
communication, and consumer product manufacturers are also putting more emphasis on addressing
technical issues like electromagnetic waves and electrostatic interference. Protection components have
evolved into the best solution for dealing with electromagnetic waves, electrostatic interference, and current
overload. To satisfy new criteria, protection components must be created and supplied with the latest
protective functionalities as electronic goods become more complicated and undergo faster generational
changes. The demand for components has been expanding as a result of the constant upgrading of
requirements in smart devices. Furthermore, the brisk development of automotive electronics, networking,
industrial control, and Internet of Things (loT) applications has become a driving force for component
market demand. Given the steady expansion in overall market demand, large manufacturers have kept capital
investment under strict control and have not greatly expanded production. With Japanese manufacturers
gradually quitting the production of high-specification components, market supply and demand are steadily
rebalancing.

In summary, the user's company attaches great importance to the research and development of protection
components. In the field of protection components in Taiwan, they have consistently ranked among the top
performers. As the demand for protection components in information, communication, and consumer
electronics products continues to grow, it is believed that the Company's future development prospects are
promising.
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(2) High-Frequency Components

The Company's high-frequency communication components are primarily used in various fields such as
the Global Positioning System (GPS), mobile phones, laptops, wireless LANs, and Bluetooth modules.
Among them, the main focus of their development in high-frequency communication components is GPS
antennas and modules. Furthermore, the Company has created high-frequency components for Near Field
Communication (NFC) technology, which is utilized in mobile payments. As NFC's application scope
expands, it will be easier to integrate NFC communication technology into more smartphones and other
smart platform devices.

Looking ahead, with the development of 10T, connected vehicles, and 5G mobile communications,
considering security and convenience, and as GPS technology matures, we have not only developed GPS
antennas but also compact chip antennas, NFC, WiFi/WiFi 6E, FR1/FR2, and other related communication
antennas, making them a major product group of our company's antennas.

(4) Competitive Niche

(1) Strong management team and a solid financial structure.

(2) Strong research and development capabilities, leading to highly competitive products.
(3) Clear positioning and differentiated products.

(4) Superior manufacturing processes with high product quality standards.

(5) Well-established sales and international division systems.

(6) Expanding the group's component business cluster.

(5) Favorable and Unfavorable Factors and Countermeasures in the Long Term

(1) Favorable Factors
A. Strong research and development team.
B. Robust growth in the 3C industry, leading to continuous demand for protection components.
C. Increasing emphasis on protection components with electrostatic discharge (ESD) and electromagnetic
interference (EMI) suppression functionality, along with stricter regulatory requirements.
D. Promising market prospects for 10T, connected vehicles, 5G mobile communications, wireless charging,
etc. indicate a rapidly growing product line.

(2) Unfavorable Factors and Countermeasures:
A. Rising raw material prices

Countermeasures:

In addition to maintaining good relationships and close cooperation with suppliers to ensure a consistent
supply of existing materials, the Company actively collaborates with academic institutions to develop new
material formulations and alternative raw materials in order to reduce reliance on expensive raw materials.
B. Development of domestic and foreign competitors

Countermeasures:

Strengthen research and development capabilities and production capacity, develop differentiated products,
expand the complete product line, establish partner relationships with customers, increase market share,
and enhance competitiveness to create a distance from competitors.

C. Increasing labor costs and difficulty in recruitment at mainland production sites

Countermeasures:

Increase automation equipment to reduce labor demand and improve efficiency. Establish production lines
in other regions, utilize international division of labor to lower production costs, and enable timely supply
and proximity to customers.
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2. Main uses and production processes of main products

(1) Main Products and Important Applications:
(1) Protection Components
A. Used for ESD and EMI protection in various electrical products, effectively filtering out electromagnetic
waves.
B. Used in personal portable electronic devices (such as smartphones, tablets, wearables, laptops/desktops)
to prevent damage caused by static electricity, voltage surges, and electromagnetic waves.
C. Overcurrent protection for 3C products (smartphones, tablets, wearables, laptops/desktops).
D. High-efficiency miniaturized power inductors required for power circuits in portable electronic devices
like smartphones.
(2) High-Frequency Components
A. Used for receiving signals in global satellite systems for position determination.
B. Used as communication components for receiving GSM, Bluetooth, WiFi, and other system signals in
smartphones and tablets.
C. Used for receiving/transmitting RF signals such as FM, XM, etc.

(2) Manufacturing Process:
(1) Protection Components
Substrate Printing — Granulation — Terminal Electrode Coating — Electroplating — Intermediate
Inspection — Electrical Testing — Tape Packaging — Finished Product Quality Control — Warehousing
(2) High-Frequency Components
Ceramic Powder Formulation — Molding — Sintering — Electrode Printing — Baking — Sintering — PIN
Foot Installation — Testing — Packaging

3. Supply Status of Major Raw Materials

Major Raw Materials Supplier Supply Status
Substrate, Chip Taiwan, China Good
Joint wire China Good
Glue Japan Good
Powder Taiwan Good

4. Provide the names of customers who accounted for more than 10% of the total sales in either of the past
two years, along with their corresponding sales amounts and proportions, and explain the reasons for any
changes in their levels of contribution:

(1) Major supplier information in the past two fiscal years:

There were no suppliers who contributed more than 10% of the net total purchase in the past two years.

(2) Major customer information in the past two fiscal years:

There were no customers who contributed more than 10% of the total sales revenue in the past two years.

5. Production volume in the Last Two Years (Consolidated): Unit: thousand pieces/NT$ thousand
2022 2023
Capacity Quantity [ Output Value| Capacity Quantity Output Value
product
Protection 20,000,000 | 15,026,892 | 2,151,148 | 26,000,000 | 16,911,237 701,487

Components

High-Frequency 850,000 561,353 | 3,172,839 | 850,000 632,036 2,857,562
Components

Total Note 15,588,245 5,323,986 Note 17,543,273 3,559,049

Note: Each product has unique production requirements and cannot be consolidated with other
production capacities. Therefore, they are not suitable for capacity consolidation.
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6. Sales volume in the Last Two Years (Consolidated):

Unit: thousand pieces/NT$ thousand

2022 2023
Domestic Sales Export Domestic Sales Export

product Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value

Protection 1,282,849 295863 11,346,025 2449551 2,007,532|  319,917| 13793.220] 2,687,953
Components

High-Frequency 20,896| 324760  476,056| 3,216,897 16,966 229745 530,053 3,366,446
Components

Total 1,303745|  620,623| 11,822,081 5666449] 2114498| 549,662 14,323273| 6,054,399

3. Employee information for the last two years and up to the date of printing of the annual report, including
the number of employees, average years of service, average age, and distribution of educational
gualifications (consolidated)

Year 2022 2023 As of March 31, 2024
No. of Direct Labor 1,912 1,825 1,752
-9 Iindirect Labor 841 781 72
Employees
Total 2,753 2,606 2,524
Average age 34.85 35.24 35.47
Average years of service 5.29 5.42 5.41
Ph.D. 1% 0% 0%
ducati Master’s degree 4% 4% 4%
Education = 0 e 26% 27% 28%
distribution  Tiiah school 5 5 5
percentage Serluor |g_ sch_ocr)] 17% 19% 19%
(%) Below senior hig 5204 50% 49%
school
Total 100% 100% 100%

4. Environmental Expenditure Information

1. Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication
date due to environmental pollution incidents (including any compensation paid and any violations of
environmental protection laws or regulations found in environmental inspection, specifying the disposition
dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content of the dispositions): None

2. Future response measures and possible expenses: Not applicable.

5. Labor Relations

1. Employee Welfare Measures, Training, Retirement System, and Implementation Status
Important Current Labor-Management Agreements and Implementation Status:

(L

Employee Welfare Measures:

To improve employee welfare and promote labor-management harmony in various aspects of work, life, and
health, our company implements a variety of welfare measures based on the philosophy "Revere Heaven

Love Man."

(1) Employees receive annual year-end bonuses, and salary adjustments are made on a timely and appropriate

basis.
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(2) Regular health check-ups for employees.

(3) Employees enjoy labor insurance, national health insurance, and group insurance. These benefits not only
cover employees themselves but also extend to their spouses and children, ensuring comprehensive
protection for employees and their families.

(4) Subsidies for employee marriages, bereavements, celebrations, and birthday gatherings.

(5) The company has a cafeteria where subsidized buffet meals are served. Employees can enjoy a diverse
and plentiful selection of meals for a small fee.

(6) To provide accommodation solutions for employees from other counties, the Company provides
comfortable dormitories for their convenient stay.

(7) Regular employee trips, family day activities, and year-end party events are organized to foster emotional
connections among employees, enhance their loyalty to the Company and boost morale.

(8) Employee ownership of company stock and participation in profit sharing. Individual and team
performance, as well as the operational performance of the company, determine the distribution of
performance bonuses. Employees are motivated to perform well by receiving a bonus equal to or greater than
5% of annual profits.

(2) Measures to Protect Employee Rights and Interests:
(1) Establishment of the "Code of Ethics and Social Responsibility" to protect employees' labor environment,
working conditions, workplace health and safety, and fair compensation. This code is strictly followed.
(2) To prevent occupational hazards and ensure the health and safety of employees, the company has set up
an "Environment/Safety and Health Committee” to implement safety and health management and conduct
regular inspections.
(3) The Company holds labor-management meetings every three months to facilitate labor-management
relations, promote labor-management cooperation, and increase work productivity.

(3) Implementation of the Retirement Pension System:

(1) The retirement system of our company fully complies with the regulations of the Labor Standards Act.
Employees who have completed 15 years of service and are over 55 years of age or have completed 25 years
of service can apply for retirement. The retirement benefits are provided based on the employee's years of
service, with two times the base salary for each completed year. For service exceeding 15 years, one time the
base salary is provided for each completed year, for a maximum total of 45 times the base salary. The
Company has established a supervisory committee and a dedicated account. As of December 31, 2023, the
balance in the Taiwan Bank Labor Retirement Reserve Account was NT$41,477 thousand.

(2)Since July 1, 2005, the Company has been contributing retirement benefits to the Labor Retirement
Reserve Account according to the provisions of the Enforcement Rules of the Labor Pension Act. The
monthly contribution is not less than 6% of the monthly salary, and the funds are stored in the Labor
Retirement Reserve Account. As of 2023, the retirement pension expenses amounted to NT$27,254 thousand,
which has been allocated to the Bureau of Labor Insurance, MOL.

(4) Employee Training Status:
In order to enhance the quality of human resources and promote development advantages, the Company has
established an education and training policy. The education and training program is divided into internal
training and external training. In 2023, the following training activities were conducted:

- No. of Trainin
Training Category Trainees Hoursg
New Employees 2,412 5,692
Safety and Health 4914 24,916
Professional Skills 11,510 20,852
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(5) Work Environment and Employee Personal Safety Measures:

Item

Content

Access Control Security

Contracted with a security company to maintain the
security of the premises, with a strict access control
surveillance system in place day and night.

Maintenance and Inspection of
Equipment

1. Conduct public safety inspections every 2 years
in accordance with building safety regulations.

2. Outsource annual fire safety inspections in
accordance with fire regulations.

3. Regular inspections and maintenance of high-
and low-voltage electrical equipment, elevators, air
conditioning systems, water dispensers, company
vehicles, and firefighting equipment.

Physical Hygiene

Physical Examinations: New employees should
undergo a physical examination, and existing
employees should undergo periodic health checks.

Insurance and Medical Support

Legally insured for labor insurance (including
occupational accident insurance) and health
insurance. Additional insurance coverage includes
accident insurance and accident medical insurance.

Workplace Safety

Employees must undergo comprehensive training
before operating machinery and equipment to prevent
injuries.

2. Disclosure of losses incurred due to labor disputes in the current and previous fiscal years until the
printing date of this annual report (including violations of labor laws resulting from labor inspections, and
should state the date of punishment, punishment number, the content of the violation, the content of the
violation of the law, and the punishment content). The estimated amount of potential future losses and

corresponding measures should also be disclosed: None.

6. Cyber Security Management

1. This section outlines the cyber security risk management framework, cyber security policies, specific

management plans, and resources invested in cyber security management.

(1) Management Structure

In February 2022, the company established the "Cyber Security Committee" to improve cyber security
management. The committee is in charge of reviewing the company's and its subsidiaries' cyber security
governance policies, supervising the operation of cyber security management, and holding "ISMS
Management Review Meetings" on a regular basis to examine cyber security governance-related issues
and continuous improvement in order to establish information and communication security policy
formulation and applicability. The General Manager serves as the Chairman of the Cyber Security
Committee, and the convener is the highest information executive, who is responsible for cyber security
governance, planning, supervision, and implementation in order to build comprehensive cyber security
defense capabilities and raise employee awareness of cyber security. The committee holds regular

meetings to review the implementation status and reports to the Board of Directors annually.
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(2) Cyber Security Policy

The cyber security strategy focuses on three aspects: security governance, legal compliance, and
technological application. It aims to comprehensively enhance security protection capabilities, from
systems to technology, from personnel to organizations. Considering current emerging security trends
such as DDoS (Distributed Denial of Service) attacks, ransomware, social engineering attacks, and
phishing websites, the Company regularly addresses security issues and plans response measures.
Different security scenarios are practiced to strengthen the response capabilities of personnel, aiming to
detect and block threats in real-time. In addition, regular security audits, such as vulnerability scanning or
penetration testing, are conducted to ensure that information systems and network environments meet
security implementation standards.

(3) Specific Management Plans:
Complete security-related regulations, conduct regular security assessments, and obtain international
security certifications. In the future, we will continue to strengthen security protection and establish
collaborative defense mechanisms. Particularly, we aim to keep up with the training of high-quality
security personnel. The Company annually announces and promotes cyber security policies and arranges
relevant education and training. To address the challenges of cyber security, such as advanced persistent
threats (APT), DDoS attacks, ransomware, social engineering attacks, and data breaches, the following
strategies are planned:
(1) Conduct annual security testing, cyber security health checkups, social security checks, and cyber
security incident drills.
(2) Strengthen the awareness of cyber security crises among colleagues and the ability of cyber security
personnel to respond effectively in the first place, to effectively detect and prevent dissemination.
(3) The Company publicly announces its cyber security policy every year and trains colleagues with
cyber security certificates.
(4) Provide cyber security education and training for all employees, with a minimum of two hours per
person per year.
(5) Report to the board of directors at least once a year, summarizing the annual implementation of
cyber security risks.

(4) Resources allocated to cyber security management include:
The Information Department currently has 19 employees in Taiwan and 5 employees in China, totaling 24
people, responsible for cyber security risk management and determining organizational structure, job
responsibilities, policy vision, and goals.
(1) A thorough inventory of existing assets, including hardware and software systems such as hosts,
networks, system permissions, and databases, has been completed. This inventory will serve as a starting
point for continuous improvement in 2024.
(2) To prevent unauthorized disclosure of confidential documents, upgrades, integration, and access
control measures have all been implemented. A mechanism for backup and off-site file storage has also
been established.
(3) Complete off-site backup of important information systems (such as ERP, BPM electronic sign-off...)
to improve the timeliness and executability of disaster recovery.
(4) Upgrades, backups, management, and controls have been implemented for the email system to
prevent attacks, forgery, and fraud. The security of the email system is ensured.

2. List of losses, potential impacts, and response measures suffered due to significant cyber security
incidents up until the date of publication of the latest annual report. If unable to estimate reasonably, it
should be explained that such estimation is not possible: None.
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7. Important Contracts

Cg_r;;zct Counterparty Contract Period Major Contents Restrictions
Total credit line 5-year term, 3-year
of NT$500 race period, monthl

Financing E.SUN . 2020/03/16- miIIioi and gqual ipnstallment ’

Commercial Bank | 2025/03/15 .
promissory note repayment upon
guarantee maturity
Total credit line 5-year term, 3-year
of NT$450 race period, monthl

Financing | CTBC Bank 2021/12/24- miIIiof and gqual ?nstallment ’

2026/12/15 .
promissory note repayment upon
guarantee maturity
Total credit line 7-year term, 3-year
of NT$583.2 race period, monthl

Financing | Chang Hwa Bank 2020/08/24- million gqual ?nstallment ’

2027/08/15
repayment upon
maturity
Total credit line 10-year term, 3-year
of NT$384 race period, monthl
Financing | Chang Hwa Bank 2021/05/03- million gqual ?nstallment ’
2031/04/15
repayment upon
maturity
Total credit line 5-year term, 2-year
of NT$500 race period, monthl
Financing | Chang Hwa Bank 2021/02/20- miIIioﬁ gqual ipnstallment ’
2026/07/31
repayment upon
maturity
Mega T;)tal (;re(()j(i)t line 5-year termc,j 2—yearhI
. of NT$5 race period, mont
Financing Internatlorlal 2021/03/24- million and gqual ipnstallment ’
Commercial Bank | 2026/09/23 .
promissory note repayment upon
guarantee maturity
Total credit line 2-year term, repayment
Cathay United of NT$300 within 180 days
Financing Banky 2023/05/26- miIIiof and ’
2025/05/26 .
promissory note
guarantee
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8. Codes of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers

Codes of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers

Article 1 Purpose and Scope of Application

This code of conduct is intended to ensure that the directors and managers of the Company (including the
general manager and equivalent positions, deputy general manager and equivalent positions, assistant
manager and equivalent positions, head of the finance department, head of the accounting department, and
other individuals with management responsibilities and signing authority for the Company) conduct
themselves ethically when conducting business on behalf of the Company. This code of conduct is
established to prevent unethical behavior and actions that may harm the Company and shareholders' interests.
Directors who also serve as executives of the Company shall apply the relevant provisions of this code of
conduct to the Company's employees. The term "directors" in this code of conduct refers to all directors of
the Company (including independent directors).

Article 2 Obligations to be Followed

(1) Prevention of Conflicts of Interest

Directors and managers should avoid personal interests that may conflict with or have the potential to
conflict with the Company's overall interests. This includes situations in which these individuals are
unable to manage company affairs objectively and efficiently, or in which they or their spouse, parents,
children, or second-degree relatives may receive improper benefits as a result of their positions with the
Company. Any financial loans or significant asset transactions between the Company and the
aforementioned individuals or their affiliated entities must be reviewed and approved in advance by the
superintendent and the board of directors in order to prevent conflicts of interest. When a director has a
personal interest that could jeopardize the Company's interests, he or she must comply with the director's
recusal system outlined in the Company's board meeting rules, refrain from participating in discussions
and voting, and not exercise the voting rights of other directors. Sales and purchases should be conducted
with the best interests of the Company in mind.

(2) Avoidance of Opportunities for Personal Gain
The company should prevent directors or managers from engaging in the following activities:
1. Using company assets, information, or taking advantage of one's position to seek personal gain;
2. Using company assets, information, or taking advantage of one's position to obtain personal
benefits;
3. Competing with the Company.
When the Company has opportunities for profit, its directors or managers are obligated to increase the
Company's legitimate and legal benefits.

(3) Duty of Confidentiality:

Unless authorized or required by law to disclose such information, directors or managers have a duty to
maintain the confidentiality of information regarding the Company itself or its sales and purchases with
customers. Confidential information consists of all non-public information that could be utilized or
disclosed by competitors to the detriment of the Company or its customers.

(4) Fair Trades:

Directors or managers must regard the Company's sales and purchasing customers, rivals, and employees
with fairness. They should not gain undue advantages through manipulation, concealment, abuse of
information obtained through their positions, making fraudulent statements about crucial matters, or
engaging in other unfair transaction practices.
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(5) Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets:

Directors or managers are responsible for protecting company assets and ensuring their effective and
legal use for business purposes, avoiding theft, negligence, or waste that could have a negative impact on
the profitability of the business.

(6) Compliance with Laws and Regulations:

Compliance with securities and other laws and regulations should be strengthened by the Company.
Directors and administrators must adhere to a variety of laws and regulations, as well as the organization's
internal rules and regulations.

(7) Encouragement to Report Unethical or lllegal Conduct:

The Company should promote ethical awareness internally, establish a specific reporting system, and
encourage employees to report any actions that violate laws, regulations, or ethical standards to their
supervisor, immediate manager, HR supervisor, or internal audit supervisor. Additionally, the Company
provides a complaint mechanism to assure confidentiality, as well as a fair and impartial investigation and
resolution.

(8) Disciplinary Measures:

Directors and managers who violate the Codes of Ethical Conduct are subject to criminal and civil
liabilities as well as compensation in accordance with applicable laws and regulations upon confirmation.
Managers must adhere to the rules of the employee code of conduct and the system of rewards and
punishments. The Company must promptly disclose the date of the violation, the reasons for the violation,
the applicable provisions, and the disposition of the violating personnel on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Market Observation Post System. The Company should also establish a complaint system to provide
those who violate the code of conduct with a channel for corrective action.

Acrticle 3 Procedures for Exemption

When circumstances in the Company's established code of conduct warrant an exemption for directors or
managers, the exemption must be approved by the board of directors and promptly disclosed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Market Observation Post System website, including the date of approval for the
exemption, any opposition or reservations from independent directors, the duration of exemption, the
reasons for the exemption, and the provisions under which the exemption is granted, in or with respect to
the exemption.

Article 4 Disclosure Methods

This code of conduct must be disclosed on the company's website, annual reports, prospectuses, and the
website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Market Observation Post System website, as well as any
amendments.

Article 5 Other Provisions
In the event that the Company in the future establishes an Audit Committee, the provisions governing
supervisors shall also apply to the Audit Committee.

Article 6 Implementation

This code of conduct will be implemented after approval by the board of directors and presentation to the
shareholders' meeting. The same applies to amendments.

The board of directors approved this code of conduct on January 20, 2020.
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6. Financial Profile

1. Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income for the past five fiscal years

1. Condensed balance sheet and comprehensive income statement:
(1) Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial analysis for the past five years (Note 1) !:lnanma!
information as of
ltemn 2019 | 2020 (After | 2021 2022 2023 |March 31, 2024
restatement) (Note 2)
Current assets 3.831,640| 4699501 4828642 5644219 6642229 5.977.805
Property, plant and 1,757,768 2,247,368 3,096,334 3,885,619 4,146,655 4,188,207
equipment
Intangible assets 205558  194.811]  188.917|  183260] 179,440 175121
Other assets 693251  821.024| 1263453  826879] 1070316 2,074,935
Total assets 6.488.226] 7.962,794| 9377.346] 10539,977| 12,038,640 12,416,068
Before 1,208,438 1692523 2058456 2,086,884 2,742,122 2,935,439
Current distribution
liabilities \After 1368378 1,832,658 2226618 2,325191 ; ;
distribution
Non-current liabilities 475288  783402| 1.816372| 2.583.266| 2,409482 2,250,004
Before 1773,726| 2475925 3874.828| 4,670150| 5,151,604 5,185,533
Total distribution
liabilities \After 1,843,666 2,616,060 4,042,990 4,908,457 ; ;
distribution
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the 4714500 5122195| 5502,518] 5.820,552| 6,842,257 7.187,398
parent
Capital stock 1.401,803] 1401803] 1401803 1,401,803| 1,489,803 1,489,803
Capital reserve 3,016,375 3,045,890 2,906,644| 2,838,983| 3,244,157 3,244,157
_ Before 460,990  730375| 1.314402| 1827412 2,348,677 2,607,936
Retained distribution
eamings |After 391,050 | 1230321 1,589,105 - -
distribution
Other equity interest (164,668) (54,455)|  (118,913) (246,228)|  (240,380) (154,498)
Treasury stock - (1,418) (1,418) (1,418) - -
Pre-ex_lst_mg equity i 364,674 i i i i
under joint control
Non-controlling ; - - 49,275 44,779 43,137
equity
Total Before
. etore 4714500 5486869 5502518 5.869,827| 6.887,036 7,230,535
equity distribution
After 4644560 5346734| 5334356| 5631520 ; ;
distribution

* If the Company prepares individual financial statements, it should also prepare condensed balance sheets and
comprehensive income statements for the most recent five years.

* If the financial data has been adopted under IFRS for fewer than five years, it should be prepared separately.

Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.

Note 2: Reviewed by a certified public accountant.
Note 3: The shareholders' meeting has not yet approved the distribution of the surplus of 2023; therefore, the
distribution amount is not shown.
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(2) Concise Individual Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial analysis for the past five years (Note 1) Fmanma!
Information as
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 |of March 31,
Item (After 2024 (Note 1)
restatement)
Current assets 1813.466|  2.247.825|  2.647.776]  3.329304|  3.787.073
Property, plant and 956,990  1,258475|  1926986|  2,406,829| 2,641,427
equipment
Intangible assets 22,554 18,619 26,964 25574 28,351 ]
Other assets 2.878.764]  3360462| 3720084  3.879.164] 4508291 ]
Total assets 5671774  6.894381] 8321810  9.640871] 10,965 142 /
Before 513,506 647,207| 1036426 1274613  1,745320
Current distribution
liabilities \After 583 446 787342 1204588 1,512,920 -
distribution
Non-current liabilities 443,768 760,305|  1,782.866] 2545706  2.377.565 ]
Before 957.274| 1407512  2819292| 3820319 4,122,885 /
Total distribution
liabilities \After 1027214] 1547647 2987454  4,058626 Not
distribution applicable
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the 4714500  5122.195| 5502518 5820552 6,842,257
parent
Capital stock 1401803] 1401803 1,401,803  1401,803|  1489,803 /
Capital reserve 3016375  3.045890| 2006644  2.838983| 3244157 ]
_ Before 460,990 730375|  1.314402|  1827.412| 2,348,677
Retained distribution
earnings - JAfter 391,050 730,375| 1,230,321 1,589,105 -
distribution
Other equity interest (164,668) (54,455) (118,913) (246,228) (240,380) /
Treasury stock - (1,418) (1,418) (1,418) /
Pre-ex_lst_mg equity i 364,674 i i i
under joint control
Total Before
. etore 4714500  5486869| 5502518 5820552 6,842,257
equity distribution
After 4644560  5346734| 5334356 5582245 -
distribution

Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.
Note 2: The shareholders' meeting has not yet approved the distribution of the surplus of 2023; therefore, the

distribution amount is not shown
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2. Comprehensive income statement:
(1)  Concise Statement of Comprehensive Income (Consolidated)
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year . . . . Financial
Financial analysis for the past five years (Note 1) . .
information as

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 of March 31,
Item (After 2024 (Note 2)

restatement)

Operating revenue 4,230,464 5,562,953 6,756,544 6,287,071 6,604,061 1,738,569

Operating margin 982,188 1,425,464 1,684,968 1,553,345 1,845,954 508,923

Operating income 237,389 535,501 670,697 513,702 1,081,117 246,393

Non-operating income

23,838 (51,487) 2,415 203,799 74,403 164,746
and expenses

Income before income

tax 261,227 484,014 673,112 717,501 839,240 411,139

Net income of continuing

. . 195,102 359,958 559,529 590,580 710,503 257,617
business units

Loss of suspended
business unit

Net income (loss) 195,102 359,958 559,529 590,580 710,503 257,617

Other comprehensive
income (Net income after (33,330) 88,859 5,092 (116,492) 50,421 85,882
tax)

Total comprehensive

. 161,772 448,817 564,621 474,088 760,924 343,499
Income

Net income attributable
to shareholders of the 195,102 361,449 566,412 590,929 714,999 259,259
parent

Pre-existing equity under

joint control - (1,491) (6,883) - ] )

Net income attributable
to non-controlling - - - (349) (4,496) (1,642)
interests

Total comprehensive
income attributable to
stockholders of the
parent

161,772 449,538 570,689 474,437 765,420 345,141

Total comprehensive
income attributable to - (721) (6,068) - - -
pre-existing interests

Total comprehensive
income attributable to - - - (349) (4,496) (1,642)
non-controlling interests

Earnings per share 1.34 2.59 4.04 4.22 5.01 1.74

* If the Company prepares individual financial statements, it should also prepare condensed balance sheets and
comprehensive income statements for the most recent five years.
* |If the financial data has been adopted under IFRS for fewer than five years, it should be prepared separately.

Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.
Note 2: Reviewed by a certified public accountant.
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(2)  Concise Statement of Comprehensive Income (Individual)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year . . . . Financial
Financial analysis for the past five years (Note 1) information as
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023  |of March 31,
Item (After 2024
restatement)
Operating revenue 1,724,138 2,369,844  3,200,113| 3,354,478 3,932,614
Operating margin 238,273 570,981 776,756 644,332 717,825
Operating income (46,071) 87,279 286,016 125,968 20,627
Non-operating income 256767|  348,840|  336,769|  540,112| 712,937
and expenses
Income (loss) before 210696|  436,119|  622,785| 666,080 733,564 /
income tax
Net income of continuing 105102|  359,958|  550,529|  590,929| 714,999
business units
Loss of suspended i i i i i
business unit
Net income (loss) 195,102 359,958 559,529 590,929 714,999 /
Other comprehensive Not
income (Net income after (33,330) 88,859 5,092 (116,492) 50,421 .
applicable
tax)
Total comprehensive 161,772|  448817| 564,621  474437| 765420 /
income
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the 195,102 361,449 566,412 590,929 714,999
parent
Pro-oxish -
. r.e existing equity under i (1.491) (6.883) i i
joint control
Total comprehensive
income attributable to 161,772|  449538| 570,689  474,437] 765420
stockholders of the
parent
Total comprehensive
income attributable to - (721) (6,068) - -
pre-existing interests
Earnings per share 1.34 2.59 4.04 4.22 5.01
Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.
(3)  Auditors’ Name and Audit Opinions for the past five fiscal years
Year Accounting Firm Name of Accountant Audit opinion
. Wan-Yuan Yu i -
2019 KPMG Taiwan Chien-Hui Lu Unqualified opinion
. Wan-Yuan Yu i -
2020 KPMG Taiwan Chien-Hui Lu Unqualified opinion
: Hai-Ning Huang - -
2021 KPMG Taiwan Wan-Yuan Yu Unqualified opinion
: Hai-Ning Huang - -
2022 KPMG Taiwan Wan-Yuan Yu Unqualified opinion
: Hai-Ning Huang - -
2023 KPMG Taiwan Wan-Yuan Yu Unqualified opinion
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2. Financial Analysis for The Past Five Fiscal Years

(1) Consolidated financial ratio analysis

Year

Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years (Note 1)

As of March 31,
2024 (Note 2)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Item (After
restatement)
. . Debt to asset ratio 27.34 31.09 41.32 44.31 42.79 41.76
Financial Long term capital to property
structure (%) ) . ' 295.25 279.01 236.37 217.55 224.19 226.36
plant and equipment ratio
Current ratio 295.10 277.67 234.58 270.46 242.23 203.64
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 258.14 235.70 180.46 221.25 208.94 169.24
Interest coverage ratio 19.64 81.75 60.44 28.58 17.45 36.57
A'ccounts receivable turnover 277 301 3.03 285 587 279
(times)
Average cash recovery day 131.76 121.26 120.46 128.07 127.17 130.82
Inventory turnover (times) 5.43 5.91 5.02 4.08 4.38 4.46
Operating A_ccounts receivable turnover 438 4.48 458 475 4.98 4.40
performance |(times)
Days sales outstanding 67.21 61.76 72.70 89.46 83.33 81.84
Property, plant and equipment 2.39 2.78 253 1.80 1.64 1.67
turnover rate (times)
Total assets turnover (times) 0.63 0.77 0.78 0.63 0.58 0.57
Return on total assets (%) 3.09 5.05 6.56 6.14 6.69 8.78
o E:J?tr; (‘;/‘:)St“kh(’lders 413 7.06 10.18 10.44 11.29 14.74
Profitability Pre-tax income to paid-in
capital ratio (%) 18.64 34.53 48.02 51.18 56.33 27.60
Net profit margin (%) 461 6.47 8.28 9.39 10.76 1491
Earnings per share (NT$) 1.34 2.59 4.04 422 5.01 1.74
Cash Cash flow ratio (%) 44,50 17.88 27.01 48.06 43.91 41.02
flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 123.90 85.46 54.34 61.43 77.24 77.24
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 6.42 2.65 4.13 7.20 7.52 7.44
Leverage Operating leverage 10.20 5.28 4.57 6.49 4.83 3.58
Financial leverage 1.06 1.01 1.02 1.05 1.07 1.05

Please explain the causes of changes in the financial ratios in the most recent two fiscal years. (Analysis is not required if the
increase or decrease is less than 20%.)
1. Interest coverage ratio decreased: mainly due to the increase in interest expenses in 2023 compared to 2022.
2. Cash flow adequacy ratio increased: due to the increase in net cash flow from operating activities in the past five years,
particularly in 2023.

3. Operating leverage increased: mainly due to the increase in operating income in 2023.

% If the Company prepares individual financial statements, it should also prepare condensed balance sheets and
comprehensive income statements for the most recent five years.
%* If the financial data has been adopted under IFRS for less than five years, it should be prepared separately.
Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.

Note 2: Reviewed by a certified public accountant.
Note 3: The following formulas for the calculation of the financial ratios shall be listed below this table in the annual

report:

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt to assets ratio = total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net property,
plant and equipment.

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventory - prepaid expenses) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = earnings before tax and interest expenses / current interest expenses.
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3. Operating performance
(1) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable arising from business activities)
turnover = net sales / average accounts receivable balance (including accounts receivable and notes receivable
arising from business activities).
(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivable turnover.
(3) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory.
(4) Accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from business activities) turnover = cost
of goods sold / average accounts payable balance (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from
business activities).
(5) Days sales outstanding = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales / average net property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total asset turnover = net sales / average total assets.
4. Profitability
(1) Return on total assets = (net income + interest expenses * (1 — effective tax rate)) / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = net income after tax / average total equity.
(3) Net profit ratio = net income after tax / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (income attributable to owners of parent — preferred stock dividends) / weighted average
number of shares outstanding. (Note 4)
5. Cash Flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = 5-year sum of net cash flow from operating activities / 5-year sum of (capital
expenditures + increases in inventory + cash dividends).
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (cash from operating activities - cash dividends) / (gross property, plant and equipment
+ long-term investments + other non-current assets + working capital). (Note 5)
6. Leverage
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue — variable operating costs and expenses) / operating income (Note
6).
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expenses).
Note 4: Special attention should be paid to the following when calculating earnings per share by the above equation:
1. The weighted average quantity of outstanding common shares shall be taken as the standard, not the quantity of
outstanding shares at the end of the year.
2. If there is any cash capital increase or treasury stock transaction, take the circulation periods into account when
calculating the weighted average quantity of outstanding shares.
3. If there is any capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus, the annual and semi-annual earnings per share of
past years shall be retrospectively adjusted pro rata to the size of the capital increase, without considering the issuance
period of the capital increase.
4. If the preferred shares are non-convertible cumulative preferred shares, the dividend for the fiscal year (whether it has
been distributed or not) shall be deducted from the net income after tax or added to the net loss after tax. If the preferred
shares are non-cumulative, the dividend shall be deducted from the net income after tax if there is net income after tax,
and no adjustment is required if there is a loss.
Note 5: Special attention shall be paid to the following when making the calculations for the cash flow analysis:
1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow
statement.
2. Capital expenditures refer to the annual cash outflow used for capital investment.
3. An increase in inventory is counted only when the balance at the end of the period is greater than the balance at the
beginning of the period. If the inventory has decreased at the end of the year, it is counted as zero.
4. Cash dividends include the cash dividends of common stock and preferred stock.
5. Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the total property, plant and equipment without deduction for
accumulated depreciation.
Note 6: The issuer shall categorize the operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variable ones in
accordance with their properties. If the categorization is subject to estimation or subjective judgment, attention shall be
paid to ensuring that it is done rationally and consistently.
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(2) Individual financial ratio analysis

Year ) ] ] ) As of March 31,
Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years (Note 1) 2023 (Note 2)
Item
2020
2019 (After 2021 2022 2023
restatement)
Debt to asset ratio 16.88 20.42 33.88 39.63 37.60 |
Financial [Long term capital to
structure (%) |property, plant and 539.01 496.41 378.07 347.61 349.05
equipment ratio
Current ratio 353.15 347.31 255.47 261.20 216.98 |
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 315.77 307.43 207.41 230.01 195.80 |
Interest coverage ratio 39.56 80.28 71.60 29.38 18.05 |
Accounts receivable 3.28 3.39 331 3.06 3.28
turnover (times)
@;erage cash recovery 111.28 107.67 110.27 119.28 111.28 /
Inventory turnover 6.06 6.56 5.77 5.52 7.36 /
(times)
Operating [Accounts receivable
performance [turnover (times) 7.38 6.78 5.88 6.04 6.47
Days sales outstanding 60.23 55.64 63.26 66.12 49,59 |
Property, plant and Not
equipment turnover 1.77 2.14 2.01 1.55 1.56 -
rate (times) Applicable
Total assets turnover
(times) 0.30 0.38 0.42 0.37 0.38 /
Return on total assets 3.49 5.80 745 6.79 797
(%)
Return on
stockholders’ equity 4.13 7.06 10.18 10.44 11.29
o (%)
Profitability Pre-tax income to
paid-in capital ratio 15.03 31.11 44.43 47.52 49.24
(%)
Net profit margin (%) 11.32 15.19 17.48 17.62 18.18 |
Earnings per share /
(NTS) 1.34 2.59 4.04 4.22 5.01
Cash flow ratio (%) 12.08 5.42 20.22 45.83 23.49 /
Cash
Cash flow adequacy
flow ratio (%) 28.73 15.59 14.16 28.85 37.45 /
Cash reinvestment
ratio (%) (0.85) (0.45) 0.78 4.10 1.55 /
Operating leverage (17.94) 14.12 5.19 13.02 82.38 /
Leverage
Financial leverage 0.89 1.07 1.03 1.23 (0.92) /

Please explain the causes of changes in the financial ratios in the most recent two fiscal years. (Analysis is not required if the

increase or decrease is less than 20%.)
1. Interest coverage ratio decreased: mainly due to the increase in interest expenses in 2023 compared to 2022.

3.

. Cash re-investment ratio decreased : mainly due to the decrease in net cash flow from operating activities from operating

ctivities in 2023.
. Operating leverage increased: mainly due to the decrease in operating income in 2023.

8.  Financial leverage decreased :mainly due to the fact that the operating profit in 2023 is less than the interest expense.

2 Inventory turnover increased: mainly due to the increase in cost of goods sold in 2023 compared to 2022.
Days sales outstanding decreased: mainly due to the increase in inventory turnover rate(times) in 2023 compared to 2022.

4.  Cash flow ratio decreased : mainly due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities in 2023.

5. Cash flow adequacy ratio increased: due to the increase in net cash flow from operating activities in the past five years,

particularly in 2023

6

a

7

% If the Company prepares individual financial statements, it should also prepare condensed balance sheets and

comprehensive income statements for the most recent five years.

% If the financial data has been adopted under IFRS for less than five years, it should be prepared separately.
Note 1: Certified by a certified public accountant.
Note 2: Reviewed by a certified public accountant.
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Note 3: The following formulas for the calculation of the financial ratios shall be listed below this table in the annual
report:

1. Financial structure

(1) Debt to assets ratio = total liabilities / total assets.

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net property,
plant and equipment.

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventory - prepaid expenses) / current liabilities.

(3) Times interest earned = earnings before tax and interest expenses / current interest expenses.

3. Operating performance

(1) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable arising from business activities) turnover =
net sales / average accounts receivable balance (including accounts receivable and notes receivable arising from
business activities).

(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivable turnover.

(3) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory.

(4) Accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from business activities) turnover = cost of
goods sold / average accounts payable balance (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from business
activities).

(5) Days sales outstanding = 365 / inventory turnover.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales / average net property, plant and equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover = net sales / average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1) Return on total assets = (net income + interest expenses * (1 - effective tax rate)) / average total assets.

(2) Return on equity = net income after tax / average total equity.

(3) Net profit ratio = net income after tax / net sales.

(4) Earnings per share = (income attributable to owners of parent - preferred stock dividends) / weighted average
number of shares outstanding. (Note 4)

5. Cash Flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.

(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = 5-year sum of net cash flow from operating activities / 5-year sum of (capital
expenditures + increases in inventory + cash dividends).

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (cash from operating activities - cash dividends) / (gross property, plant and equipment +
long-term investments + other non-current assets + working capital). (Note 5)

6. Leverage:

(1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue — variable operating costs and expenses) / operating income (Note 6).
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expenses).

Note 4: Special attention should be paid to the following when calculating earnings per share using the above equation:
1. The weighted average quantity of outstanding common shares shall be taken as the standard, not the quantity of
outstanding shares at the end of the year.

2. If there is any cash capital increase or treasury stock transaction, take the circulation periods into account when
calculating the weighted average quantity of outstanding shares.

3. If there is any capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus, the annual and semi-annual earnings per share of
past years shall be retrospectively adjusted pro rata to the size of the capital increase, without considering the issuance
period of the capital increase.

4. If the preferred shares are non-convertible cumulative preferred shares, the dividend for the fiscal year (whether it has
been distributed or not) shall be deducted from the net income after tax or added to the net loss after tax. If the preferred
shares are non-cumulative, the dividend shall be deducted from the net income after tax if there is net income after tax,
and no adjustment is required if there is a loss.

Note 5: Special attention shall be paid to the following when making the calculations for the cash flow analysis:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow
statement.

2. Capital expenditures refer to the annual cash outflow used for capital investment.

3. An increase in inventory is counted only when the balance at the end of the period is greater than the balance at the
beginning of the period. If the inventory has decreased at the end of the year, it is counted as zero.

4. Cash dividends include the cash dividends of common stock and preferred stock.

5. Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the total property, plant and equipment without deduction for
accumulated depreciation.

Note 6: The issuer shall categorize the operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variable ones in
accordance with their properties. If the categorization is subject to estimation or subjective judgment, attention shall be
paid to ensuring that it is done rationally and consistently.

Note 7: Negative net cash flow from operating activities is excluded from the calculation.
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3. Audit Committee’s Report for the Most Recent Fiscal Year's Financial Statement (an attachment file is provided)

Inpaqg Technology Co., Ltd.
Audit Committee Review Report

The 2023 annual business report, consolidated financial statements, individual financial statements, and dividend
distribution proposal have been submitted to the Company by the Board of Directors. CPAs Hai-Ning Huang and Wan-
Yuan Yu of KPMG Taiwan audited the consolidated financial statements and individual financial statements and issued
audit reports. After reviewing the aforementioned documents submitted by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee
has discovered no inconsistencies. Therefore, in accordance with Section 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and
Section 219 of the Company Act, we are disclosing the above and requesting your review and approval.

Sincerely,

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. 2024 Shareholders Meeting

Audit Committee Convener: Ji-Zu Gao

March 27, 2024
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Most recent annual financial report: Please refer to Appendix 1 of this annual report.
Most recent individual financial report: Please refer to Appendix 2 of this annual report.

If there were any financial difficulties during the most recent fiscal year or up until the date of printing of this
annual report for the Company and its affiliated businesses, please describe their impact on the Company's

financial standing: None.
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7. Review and Analysis of Financial Status and Business Results and Risk Issues

1. Analysis of Financial Status (Consolidated)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Difference

Item 2023 2022 Amount %
Current assets 6,642,229 5,644,219 998,010 17.68
E&ﬂ?sr?éhflam and 4,146,655 3,885,619 261,036 6.72
Other assets 1,249,756 1,010,139 239,617 23.72
Total assets 12,038,640 10,539,977 1,498,663 14.22
Current liabilities 2,742,122 2,086,884 655,238 31.40
Non-current liabilities 2,409,482 2,583,266 (173,784) (6.73)
Total liabilities 5,151,604 4,670,150 481,454 1031
Capital stock 1,489,803 1,401,803 88,000 6.28
Capital reserve 3,244,157 2,838,983 405,174 14.27
Retained earnings 2,348,677 1,827,412 521,265 28.52
Other interests 240,380 (247,646) 7,266 (2.93)
!\r']i’e”rgig‘tm”i”g 44,779 49.275 (4,496) 9.12)
Total Stockholders’ 6,887,036 5,869,827 1,017,209 17.33
Equity

Explanation of Significant Changes in Ratio Analysis (for changes of 20% or more and a change in

amount of NT$10 million or more between the current and prior periods):

1. Other assets: mainly due to the increase in non-current financial assets measured at amortized

cost in 2023.

2. Current liabilities: mainly due to the increase in short-term borrowings and long-term

borrowings due within one year in 2023.
3. Retained earnings: mainly due to the profit earned in 2023.
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2. Financial Performance

Analysis of the Financial Performance of the Last Two Years (Consolidated)
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year 2023 2022 Amount Percentage
Item Amount Amount change change (%)
Net Operating Revenue 6,604,061 6,287,071 316,990 5.04
Operating costs 4,758,107 4,733,726 24,381 0.52
Operating margin 1,845,954 1,553,345 292,609 18.84
Operating expenses 1,081,117 1,039,643 41,474 3.99
8855‘“”9 income 764,837 513,702 251,135 48.89
Non-operating income 74,403 203,799  (129,396) (63.49)
and expenses
:Q)fome before income 839,240 717,501 121,739 16.97
Decrease: Total income
tax expense (128,737) (126,921) (1,816) 1.43
Net income 710,503 590,580 119,923 20.31

Analysis of Changes in Increase/Decrease Ratios:

Explanation of Significant Changes in Ratio Analysis (for changes of 20% or more and a
change in amount of NT$10 million or more between the current and prior periods):

1. Operating profit and net income: mainly due to the increase in operating revenue and gross
profit margin in the current period, leading to a increase in operating profit and net income.

2. Non-operating income and expenses: mainly due to the appreciation of the local currency
during the period, resulting in an decrease in foreign exchange gains.

3. Cash Flow

1. Analysis of cash flow changes during the year:

Cash and Cash Leverage of Cash Deficit
. Net Cash Flow
Equivalents, . Cash Cash surplus
. from Operating .. . i
Beginning of L Outflow (deficiency) Investment | Financing
Activities of the
Year (©) (A)+(B)-(C) plans plans
Year (B)
(A)
1,837,820 1,204,164 519,163 2,522,821 — —

Analysis of cash flow changes during the year:

(1) Cash inflows from operating activities: mainly due to continuous profitability.

(2) Cash outflows from investing activities: mainly due to the construction of factories and the
purchase of machinery and equipment.

(3) Cash inflows from financing activities: mainly due to an increase in Cash capital increase and
issuance of corporate bonds.
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2. Improvement plan for insufficient liquidity: Not applicable.

3. Analysis of cash flow liquidity for the next year:
Unit: NT$ thousands

Cash and Cash Leverage of Cash Deficit
. Net Cash Flow
Equivalents, . Cash Cash surplus
.. from Operating . i i
Beginning of L Outflow (deficiency) Investment | Financing
Activities of the
Year (©) (A)+(B)-(C) plans plans
Year (B)
(A)
2,522,821 1,186,516 1,852,362 1,856,975 — —

Analysis of cash flow liquidity for the next year:

(1) Cash inflows from operating activities: primarily due to the projected increase in revenue, leading
to an increase in profitability.

(2) Cash outflows from investing activities: mainly due to the purchase of machinery and investment in
financial products.

(3) Cash outflows from financing activities: primarily due to the repayment of long-term borrowings
and the distribution of cash dividends.

4. Impact of Major Capital Expenditure in the Past Year on the Financial Status
1. The status of major capital expenditures and sources of capital:

In 2023 and 2022, the company and its subsidiaries invested a total of NT$628,275 thousand
and NT$869,979 thousand, respectively, in the construction of factories and the purchase of
machinery and equipment. Internal resources and bank loans helped fund these investments.

2. Possible benefits:

In response to the current market demand, the firm prioritizes the development of new
products and the expansion of production capacity. It continues to invest in the construction
of factories and the acquisition of apparatus and equipment in order to increase its
competitive niche, revenue, and profitability.

5. Re-investment Policy in the Past Year, the Main Reason for Its Profit or Loss,the
Improvement Plan and Investment Plan in the Next Year
1. Investment Policy:
By staying abreast of customer and industry developments and aligning investment strategies,
the Company optimizes high-performance production and services to meet customer needs
and expand domestic and international markets. All the Company's investment activities are
carried out by the relevant executing departments following procedures such as "Regulations
Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets."

2. The main reinvestment companies are as follows:
December 31, 2023

Description Investment . . . Improvement| Other investment plans
Item Policy |Major reasons for profit or loss .
amount plans in the future
The net profit for 2023 was None Necessary increase in
INPAQ BVI LTD. NT$1,258,296 | Holding |NT$665,786 thousanq, rr?a_lnly investment to r_natch the
thousand | company |due to the stable profitability scale of operations
of the investment activities. assessment
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6. Risk matters shall be analyzed and evaluated for the following matters during the most recent
fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report:

1. Impact of interest rates, exchange rate fluctuations, and inflation on the Company's
income and future response measures
(1) The effect of currency fluctuations on the Company's operating profit and the
Company's specific measures in reaction to currency fluctuations
The Company's export amount as a percentage of total revenue in the past two fiscal years
was 91.91% and 90.13%, respectively, indicating that exchange rate fluctuations have a
certain impact on revenue. However, the Company also adopts the US dollar as the pricing
currency for transactions with major suppliers and the purchase of machinery and equipment
from overseas, resulting in offsetting effects and providing a certain degree of hedging
against exchange rate fluctuations. Therefore, overall, the impact on profitability is not
significant. The Company has actively explored foreign exchange hedging tools and will
engage in hedging operations at appropriate times to reduce the impact of foreign exchange
risks on Company profitability. The recent annual exchange profit or loss is as follows:

Unit: NT$ thousands

As of March 31,
Year/ltem 2022 2023 2024
Foreign exchange (loss) gain 189,898 16,539 128,025
Forelg_n exchange pro_flt (loss) to 3.02% 0.25% 7 36%
operating revenue ratio

The specific measures taken by the Company in response to exchange rate changes are
as follows:

1) During the product pricing process, the sales personnel consider the risks arising
from exchange rate fluctuations and adjust the selling prices accordingly to safeguard
the expected profits.

2) The Company establishes foreign currency deposit accounts and maintains close
communication with key partner banks to gather timely information on exchange rate
movements. This enables the Company to fully grasp exchange rate trends and
determine the optimal timing for foreign currency purchases and conversions.

3) A reasonable amount of foreign currency deposits is retained as a natural hedge
against foreign currency payment liabilities. The Company actively seeks an
understanding of foreign exchange hedging tools and engages in hedging operations at
appropriate times to mitigate the impact of foreign exchange risks on profitability.

(2) Regarding interest rates, net interest income (interest income less Financial costs) in
2023 was approximately NT$57,964 thousand, accounting for merely 0.88% of the
Company's net operating revenues. The proportion of interest income and expenses to
net revenue is not high, so the impact of interest rate fluctuations on the Company is still
limited. However, the Company actively pursues other business expansion opportunities
while striving to enhance deposit income in order to improve overall operational
efficiency.

(3) Recent two-year inflationary conditions' impact on the Company: The company
constantly monitors market price fluctuations and maintains good interactive
relationships with suppliers and customers.
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2. Policies related to high-risk, high-leverage investments, lending funds to others,
endorsement guarantees, and derivative trading, as well as the main reasons for profit or
loss and future response measures.
(1) The Company is currently not engaged in high-risk, high-leverage investments.
(2) Endorsements and guarantees:
March 31, 2024
Unit: NT$ thousands
No. | Endorsement Guaranteed party Endorsement Maximum Endorsement Actual Endorsement | Ratio of cumulative Maximum
guarantee | Company Relationship guarantee limit endorsement guarantee disbursement | guarantee |endorsement guarantee| limit for
company Name forasingle |guarantee balance for| balance at the amount amount  |amount to the net value| endorsement
company the current period [end of the period secured by | of the recent financial | guarantees
assets statements
0 [The Company [Inpaq IThe Company's
[Technology [subsidiary 1,437,480 207,935 207,935 2.89% 2,874,959
(China)
0 [The Company [Taiwan [The Company's
Inpaq subsidiary 1,437,480 900,0000] 900,000 12.52 % 2,874,959
Electronic
0 [The Company :g:gzian Iﬁ;sz?arpﬁa”yls 1,437,480 127,960 127,960 1.78% 2,874,959

(3) The Company's endorsement and guarantee policy: The Company's endorsement
guarantees shall not exceed 40% of the net value of its most recent audited financial
statements as certified by the accountant. Any single entity's endorsement guarantee
cannot exceed 20% of the Company's most recent audited financial statements' net value,
as certified by the accountant. For endorsement guarantees related to business
transactions with the Company, the individual endorsement guarantee amount shall not
exceed the amount of the business transactions between the parties. "Business
transactions™ means the greater of the two parties' purchase or sales amounts.

(4)

Company loan policy: Company loans cannot exceed 40% of net value. Short-term

working capital loans for companies in which the company owns 50% or more cannot
exceed 25% of the company's net value. The board of directors may approve loans up to
10% of the company's net value for other companies. Foreign companies in which the
Company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares may borrow up to 40%
of the lending company's net value for working capital. Loan details:

u

March 31, 2024
nit: NT$ thousands

3]

Lending
company

Borrower

Transaction
item

Whether
itisa
related
party

Maximum
amount for
the period

Ending
balance

Actual
disbursement
amount

Interest
rate range

Nature
of the
loan

Amount of
business
transactions

Reasons for
short-term
capital needs

Provision
for bad
debt

Coll

ateral Loan limit for

Name

individual

Value borrowers

[Total loan
limit

40

IThe

[Taiwan

IAccounts

0 [The

ICompany |Inpaq

INPAQ

ICompany [USA

receivable
[from related
parties
IAccounts
receivable
ifrom related
parties

Y

750,000

31,990

750,000

31,990

650,000

31,990

1.73%~
1.75%

3%~4%

Operating
turnover

Operating
turnover

Promissory
Note

Promissory
Note

700,000 1,796,850

31,990 1,796,850

2,874,959

2,874,959

3. Future research and development plans and expected R&D expenses
The Company is committed to independent technological development and is constantly
improving precision electronic manufacturing techniques. The focus in the field of protective
components is on developing products with miniaturization, high reliability, high capacitance,
high voltage resistance, and high temperature stability. To meet the demands of the 5G
communication era, resources are continuously invested in antenna development as well as
integrating technologies related to the Internet of Things, wireless charging, and connected
vehicles. These technologies have already resulted in the development of antenna products.
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Because high-frequency communication components and protective components are both
important areas for future development, an estimated R&D expense of NT$200,000 thousand
is expected in the coming year. Future research and development plans and the projected
R&D expenses are as follows:

Future R&D Project Estimated Key Factors for Successful Research and
Completion | Development
Time
High-Precision Multi- 2023~2024 1. Integration and application of antenna
Band Positioning Circuit technology and materials
Module 2. Circuit design capabilities
Low Earth Orbit 2023~2025 1. Integration and application of antenna
Satellite Antenna technology and materials
Module 2. Circuit design capabilities
Miniature UWB 2023~2024 1. Integration and application of antenna
Antenna technology and materials
Next-generation ultra- | 2023~2025 1.  Existing integrated molding inductor
miniature alloy power technology along with thin-film microcircuit
inductors capabilities.
2. Acquisition of composite material capabilities
and development of high-precision
equipment.
Automotive ultra-low 2023~2024 1. Development of high-stability composite
capacitance protection materials.
components 2. Design of automotive packaging structures.
Development of ultra- 2023~2024 1.  Ceramic material development
high surge protection 2. Special component structure design
varistor components
Ultra-compact CSP 2023~2025 1.  Chip design
transient voltage 2. High-precision  miniaturized  packaging
suppressor technology
3. Composite material development
Automotive 180-degree | 2023~2026 1.  Formulation design
high-temperature and 2. Introduction of special processes
high-voltage integrated 3. Special winding structure
molded power inductor
Miniaturized 2023~2024 | 1.  Circuit simulation capability
multilayer common 2. Acquisition of miniaturized materials and
mode filter high-precision equipment development
3. Material co-firing matching degree
mmWave sensing radar | 2024~2025 1. Circuit design for 10GHz, 24GHz, and 60GHz
2. Antenna design for 10GHz, 24GHz, and
60GHz
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WiFi 7 high-efficiency 2024~2025 1.  Antenna-circuit integration capability
reconfigurable planar 2. Novel antenna design framework
antenna

4. The impact of important domestic and foreign policies and legal changes on the
Company's financial business and response measures:

Regarding inbound and outbound investments, the Company's operations adhere to the
applicable current laws and regulations of both domestic and foreign nations. The involved
personnel also closely monitor changes in regulations, serving as a resource for management.
Therefore, the Company is able to quickly comprehend and effectively respond to significant
domestic and international policy and legal changes.

5. The impact of technological changes (including cybersecurity risks) and industry
changes on the Company's financial business and response measures

In February 2022, the Company established the "Cyber Security Committee” to improve
cyber security management. The committee is in charge of reviewing the company's and its
subsidiaries’ information security governance policies, supervising the operation of
information security management, and holding "ISMS Management Review Meetings" on a
regular basis to examine information security governance-related issues and continuous
improvement in order to establish information and communication security policy
formulation and applicability. The cyber security strategy focuses on three aspects: security
governance, legal compliance, and technological application. It aims to comprehensively
enhance security protection capabilities, from systems to technology, from personnel to
organizations.

The Company is one of the leaders in its industry, with technological innovation and
research serving as its primary competitive advantages. Thus, technological advances have a
proactive and positive effect on the Company's financial operations. The Company will
continue to invest in R&D and strive to improve its technological capabilities in order to
enhance product quality and develop new products that meet market demands.

6. The impact of changes in corporate image on crisis management and response measures:
The Company has a positive corporate image and is a leading manufacturer of protection
components and antennas in the listed market. The Company has absorbed more talented
individuals and technological expertise through mergers with industry peers, strengthened its
management team, and delivered the results of its operations to shareholders and the public.
The Company is dedicated to meeting its social responsibilities and has had no incidents that
have jeopardized its corporate image. In the future, while pursuing shareholder value
maximization, the Company will also fulfill its corporate social responsibilities, enhancing
its corporate image.

7. Expected Benefits from, Risks Relating to, and Response to Merger and Acquisition
Plans: The Company has made no mergers or acquisitions in this period.

8. Expected benefits, possible risks, and response measures for expanding factories:

The Company's current capital expenditures are market-driven and involve moderate
production line expansion and facility construction. After conducting feasibility assessments
and financial analyses to identify potential risks, the relevant technical teams make these
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decisions. In addition to improving operational efficiency, the primary objective is to meet
customers' medium- to long-term needs and incorporate research and development
achievements. This expansion is intended to increase market share and diversify operational
risks. The Company will continue to monitor market conditions and make timely
adjustments to its plans in order to mitigate the potential negative effects of potential risks.

9. The impact of concentration of purchase or sales and counter measures: Nil.
(1)  The company purchased goods in 2011, and the suppliers are less than 10%. The
purchases are still scattered, so there should be no risk of centralized purchases. -

(2) The company's 111 years of sales, customers are less than 10%, the company's
main customers are long-term cooperation with international manufacturers, the source
of customers is still scattered, there should be no risk of concentration of sales. -

10. The impact of mass share transfer of or change of Directors, Supervisors or
shareholders holding more than 10% of the Company's shares, the risks and counter
measures: None.

11. The impact of the change of management on the Company, the risks and counter
measures: None.

12. Litigation or non-litigation : None.

13. Other important risks and counter measures: None.

7. Other important matters: None.
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8. Special notes

1. Information about the Company’s Affiliates
Operations Profile of Affiliated Companies:

(1) Affiliated Organization Chart(2023.12.31)

INPAQ TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD

Long-term investment structure diagram (equity method)

YANGTZE ENERGY
Paid-in capital :
NT$15,644

thousand

19.89%

TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

shareholding ratio :

ELECERAM
TECHNOLOGY CO.,
LTD.

Paid-in capital :
NT$120,000
thousand

shareholding ratio :

72.9%

Canfield Ltd. Inpaq BVI Ltd. Inpaq Korea Co., | |INPAQTECHNOLOGY | [inpaq Europe GmbH
Ltd. USA,INC.
Paid-in capital : Paid-in capital : Paid-in capital : Paid-in capital :
NT$18,960 NT$1,258,296 NT$29,136 Paid-in capital : NT$6,698 thousand
thousand thousand thousand NT$15,315 thousand shareholding ratio : 19%
shareholdmg shareholding shareholding ratio shareholding ratio :
ratio : 100% ratio : 100% 44.77% 100%
\
Inpaq (Cayman
INPAGIHKICD., o) e
Paid-in capital : Paid-in capital :
NT$277,988 thousand NT$1,002,550 thousan
shareholding ratio :
shareholding ratio : 100%
100%
INPAQ INPAQ
TECHNOLOGY TECHNOLOGY
(CHINA) CO., LTD (SUZHOU) CO.,LTD
Paid-in capital : Paid-in capital :

NT$894,480 thousand
shareholding ratio :

NT$360,643 thousand
shareholding ratio :
100% 100%

INPAQ
TRADING(SUZHOU)
CO; LTD

Paid-in capital :
NT$9,463 thousand
shareholding ratio :
100%

HOLYPAQ(HK) CO.,
LIMITED

Paid-in capital :
NTS$122,240 thousand
shareholding ratio :
100%

Hunan Hongdian
Electronic Co.,Ltd.
Paid-in capital :
NT$456,560 thousan
shareholding ratio :
100%
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Taiwan Inpaq
electronic Co., Ltd.
Paid-in capital :
NT$122,240 thousand
shareholding ratio :
100%




(2) Information of Affiliated Companies:

December 31, 2023
Unit: NT$ thousands

Company name | Establishment Address Paid-in capital | Main business
date activities
OMC Chambers, Wickhams Cay 1, Road .
Inpag (BVI) Ltd. [2000.11.24 Town,Tortola, British Virgin Islands 1,258,296|Holding company
P.0.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,Hibiscus
Inpag Cayman  |2000.12.14 Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand 1,002,550|Holding company
Cayman, KY1-1205,Cayman Islands
2055 JUNCTION AVE SUITE 100,SAN
Inpag USA 2019.7.23 JOSE, CA 95131 15,315|Sales
Vistra Corporate Services Centre,Ground
Canfield Ltd. 2002.11.18 Floor NPF Building,Beach 18,960|Sales
Road,Apia,Samoa.
Eleceram No. 231, Longshou St., Longshan Vil., Production and
Technology Co., |1999.12.14 Taoyuan Dist., Taoyuan City 120,000(sales of electronic
Ltd. components
Inpag Hon RM 2702-03
Kgnq 9 |o008.116  |cCWUBLDG 277,988|Holding company
g 302-8 HENNESSY RD WANCHAI HK
No.5, Chungiu Road, Panyang Industrial Production and
Inpagq Suzhou  [2002.1.16 Park, Huangdai Town, Xiangcheng Zone, 360,643|sales of electronic
Suzhou City, 215143 Jiangsu Province components
Antai No 1 road 81, AnZheng town, .
Xishan Economic Development Zone Production and
Inpag China 2007.3.13 Wuxi City, 214105 JiangSu Province. 894,480|sales of electronic
. components
China
Rm 1989, 19th Floor, Xiandai Logistics sales of electronic
Inpag Trading |2011.11.16 Building, No. 88 Xiandai Avenue, 9,463
; . . components
Suzhou Industrial Park, Jiangsu Province
Hanan Erontier No0.136, Taoyuan West Road Phoenix Production and
. 2008.1.16 Development Park, Lengshuitan District, 456,560(sales of electronic
Electronics :
Yongzhou City Hunan components
Inpaq -
. Rm 2702-03, C.c. Wu Building, 320-8, .
Elgr(]:;ronlcs Hong|2012.3.23 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong 122,240{Holding company
Inpag . . Production and
Electronics 2018.10.29 lF." N.O' 38, Keyi St., Zhunan Township, 122,240|sales of electronic
. Miaoli County
Taiwan components

(3) In accordance with Paragraph 2 of Article 369-2 of the Company Act, subsidiaries
controlled directly or indirectly by the Company in terms of personnel, finances, or
business operations include the following: None.

(4) Information on directors, supervisors, and general managers of each related company:
December 31, 2023

Company Name Title Name or Representative Shareholding | Shareholding
(thousand ratio
share)

Inpag (BVI) Ltd. Director Pei-Cheng Chen 39,908 100%

Inpag Cayman Director Pei-Cheng Chen 32,150 100%
Chairman Ming-Tsan Tseng

Inpag USA Director Pei-Cheng Chen 5,000 100%
Director Wan-Fen Yang

Canfield Ltd. Director Ming-Tsan Tseng 600 100%

Inpaq Hong ) .

Kong Director Ming-Tsan Tseng 66,858 100%
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Company Name Title Name or Representative Shareholding | Shareholding
(thousand ratio
share)
Eleceram Chairman INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Technology Representative:
Ming-Tsan Tseng
Director INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Representative:
Chi-Lung Chang 8,748 72.9%
Director INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Representative:
Chih-Wen Hsieh
Supervisor Kuo-Shu Huang
Inpag Suzhou Chairman Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Chih-Mou Hung
Director Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Wei-Chi Yeh
Director Inpag (Cayman IsIgnds)Ltd. i 100%
Representative
Zhi-Wei Chen
Supervisor Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Kuo-Shu Huang
General Zhi-Wei Chen
Manager
Inpag China Chairman Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Chih Mou Hung
Director Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Cong-Jie Li
Director Inpag (Cayman IsI_ands)Ltd. i 100%
Representative
Kai-Ming Hsu
Supervisor Inpag (Cayman Islands)Ltd.
Representative
Kuo-Shu Huang
General Wei-Chi Yeh
Manager
Inpaq Trading Chairman Inpaq Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Chi-Lung Chang
Director Inpag Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Wei-Chi Yeh
Director Inpag Technology (Suz_ho'u) i 100%
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Chih-Mou Hung
Supervisor Inpag Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Kuo-Shu Huang
General Chi-Lung Chang
Manager
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Chih-Mou Hung

Company Name Title Name or Representative Shareholding | Shareholding
(thousand ratio
share)
Chairman Inpaq Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Chih-Mou Hung
Director Inpag Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Wei-Chih Lee
. Director Inpaq Technology (Suzhou)
Hunan Hongdian Co., Ltd. Representative: ) 100%
Jun-Hong Chen
Supervisor Inpaq Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. Representative:
Kuo-Shu Huang
General Chih-Mou Hung
Manager
Inpagq Electronics Director Chi-Lung Chang 4,000 100%
Hong Kong
. Director Holypaq(HK) CO., Ltd.
Taiwan I_npaq Representative: - 100%
Electronics

(5) Information about the Directors, supervisors and general managers of the affiliates:

None.
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2. Operations Profile

Unit: NT$ thousands

Operatin Operatin Eamings
Company Name Capital Total assets | Total liabilities| Net worth Rivenueg i?u:omeg Net income | per share
(NT$)
Inpag (BVI) Ltd. 1,258,296 3,811,466 100,116 3,711,350 ) (92) 665,786 app'l\:é’;ble
Inpag Cayman 1,002,550 3,123,116 1,921 3,121,195 ) (305) 648,793 app'l\:g;ble
Inpag USA 15,315 8,875 21,840 (12,965) i (13,021) (13,322) app’ﬁ;ﬁb,e
Canfield 18,960 38,240 7,637 30,603 ) (33) 1,837 app’l\:g;ble
Eleceram
[tegh”"'ogy Co., 120,000 135,039 46,389 88,650 44,318 (10,479) (13,234)| (1.10)
Inpaq Hong Kong 277,988 2,560 - 2,560 ) (115) (6,701) app’l\:g;ble
Inpag Suzhou 360,643 3,229,095 1,034,493 2,194,602 3,800,234 681,386 632,485 app'l\:g;ble
Inpag China 804,480 1,353,738 453,001 900,737| 1221456 15,597 15,238 app'l\:g’;ble
Inpagq Trading 9,463 33,828 2716 31,112 78,148 592 2,155 app'l\:g;ble
Hanan Frontier Not
Electronics 456,560 409,346 72,712 336,634 286,763 (1,486) 1984 . licable
Inpagq Electronics Not
Hong Kong 122,240 (226,114) ) (226,114) ) ) 15,267 applicable
Inpaq Electronics Not
Taiwan 122,240 607,285 833,399 (226,114) 504,850 30,967 15267 . licable

3. Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises: Please refer to Appendix One

of this annual report.

4. Related Party Disclosure: Please refer to Appendix Three of this annual report.
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2. Private Securities in the Past Year and as of the Date of Publication of the Annual Report:
None.

3. Holdings or disposals of the Company's shares by subsidiaries in the current fiscal year
should be disclosed: None.

4. Other Necessary Supplementary Notes:
1. Depreciation Method and Useful Life of Property, Plant, and Equipment:

After deducting the residual value from the asset cost, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method based on the estimated useful life. The significant components of the assets are evaluated
separately, and if a component has a different useful life from the rest of the asset, it is depreciated
separately. Depreciation is recognized as an expense in the income statement.

Land is not subject to depreciation.

The estimated useful lives for the current period and comparative periods are as follows:

(1) Buildings and structures: 4-51 years

(2) Machinery and equipment: 1-15 years

(3) Other equipment: 2-20 years

(4) Leasehold improvements: 1-10 years

(5) The significant components of buildings and structures include main buildings, mechanical and
electrical equipment, and engineering works. They are depreciated separately based on their respective
useful lives of 50 years and 20 years.

The depreciation method, useful life, and residual value are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
Changes in the remaining useful life, depreciation method, and residual value are accounted for according
to accounting estimation guidelines.

2. The use of hedge accounting and its objectives and methods by the Company:

The Company does not adopt hedge accounting; therefore, it is not applicable.

5. Matters in the Past Year and as of the Date of Publication of the Annual Report Which
Have a Substantial Impact on Owner’s Equity or Share Price as Stipulated in Item 2,

Paragraph 2 of Article 36 of the Securities Exchange Law:

During the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report,
any significant events that had a significant impact on shareholders' equity or security prices have been disclosed in
accordance with regulations on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Market Observation Post System. The website for the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Market Observation Post System is: http://newmops.tse.com.tw/

Date Item

The Company was invited to attend the corporate briefing hosted by Cathay Securities

2023/03/16 ;
Corporation.

Announcement of the Board of Directors' approval of the organization's consolidated financial

2023/05/04 report for the first quarter of 2023.

2023/05/04 | Statement of nomination for the three-term-serving independent directors of the Company.

2023/05/04 Board of Directors Resolution on Dividend Distribution

Announcement: The Board of Directors of the company has resolved to convene the

2023/05/04 shareholders' meeting for 2023, (including additional agenda).

This announcement is made in accordance with the provisions of Article 25, Paragraph 1,
2023/05/04 | Subparagraph 3 and 4 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of
Endorsements/Guarantees by Public Companies."

2023/06/16 | Announcement of important resolutions of the Company's 2023 annual general meeting.

Announcement of the list of elected directors following the comprehensive re-election of the
2023/06/16 | Board at the Company's 2023 annual general meeting.
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Date Item

Announcement of the Company's 2023 annual general meeting's resolution to lift the
2023/06/16 prohibition on competition for newly appointed directors.

Announcement of the Board's decision to nominate Ms.Pei-Cheng Chen as the Chairperson of
2023/06/16 | the Board.

Announcement of the Board's decision to appoint members to the fifth term of the
2023/06/16 Compensation Committee.
2023/06/16 | Announcement of changes in the membership of the Audit Committee as terms expire.
2023/06/30 | Announcement of changes in the position of the General Manager.

Announcement of the Board's decision to issue the third domestic unsecured convertible
2023/06/30 corporate bonds.
2023/06/30 | Announcement of the Board's decision to conduct a cash capital increase by issuing new shares.
2023/07/11 | Announcement of the ex-dividend date.
2023/07/26 | Announcement of the retirement of the CEO.

Announcement of matters related to the cash capital increase and the subscription reference date
2023/08/04 | for new shares.

Announcement of the Board's approval of the consolidated financial report for the second
2023/08/10 quarter of 2023.

Announcement regarding the subscription reference date and other related matters for the

Company's cash capital increase by issuing new shares. (Supplementary announcement
2023/08/14 regarding the issuance price and the designated bank for collecting and storing the subscription

price)
2023/09/07 | Notice of the deadline for payment of the Company's 2023 cash capital increase.

Announcement of the completion of the payment of funds for the Company's 2023 cash capital
2023/09/13 | increase and the capital increase reference date.

Announcement of the expiration of the payment period for the Company's 2023 cash capital
2023/10/11 | increase.

Announcement of the Company's application to extend the period for the third domestic
2023/10/27 | ynsecured convertible corporate bonds issuance, approved by the FSC.

Announcement of the Board's approval of the consolidated financial report for the third quarter
2023/10/31 | o 2023.

Announcement of the Board's decision to provide loans to and increase shareholdings in a
2023/10/31 | Subsidiary by an amount exceeding NT$10 million and representing over 2% of the subsidiary's

latest financial statement net worth.

Announcement of the Company's participation in a corporate briefing organized by Taishin
202311713 Securities.

Announcement of changes in the legal representative of a key subsidiary, Inpag Technology
2023/11/21 | (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Announcement of changes in the legal representative of a key subsidiary, Inpagq Technology
2023/11/21 | (China) Co., Ltd.

Announcement of changes in the Chairman and General Manager of a key subsidiary, Inpaq
2023/11/21 Technology(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Announcement of changes in the Chairman and General Manager of a key subsidiary, Inpaq
2023/11/21 Technology(China) Co., Ltd.
2023/11/24 | Clarification of media reports.

Announcement of the conversion price and premium rate of the third domestic unsecured
2023/11/24 | convertible corporate bonds.

Correction regarding changes in the Chairman of a key subsidiary, Inpag Technology(Suzhou)
2023/11/27

Co., Ltd.

116




Date Item

Correction regarding changes in the Chairman of a key subsidiary, Inpaq Technology(China)
2023/11727 | co., Ltd.

Announcement of the designated bank for the collection of payments and storage of funds for
2023/12/05 | the third domestic unsecured convertible corporate bonds.

Announcement of the completion of debt payment for the third domestic unsecured convertible
2023/12/14 corporate bonds.
2024/01/26 | INPAQ BOD resolution to make donation to the related party.

New loan extended to subsidiary over NTD$10 million and exceeding 2% of the Company's net
2024/01/26 | \vorth on the latest financial statements.

New loan extended to subsidiary over NTD$10 million and exceeding 2% of the Company's net
2024/01/29 | \worth on the latest financial statements.

Announce the approval of the FY 2023 consolidated financial report by the company’s board of
202402122 | girectors.
2024/02/22 | BOD resolved to convene the 2024 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting etc.

Announcement of the resolution by the board of directors to distribute dividends, on behalf of
2024/02/27 subsidiary Inpag Technology(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Announcement of the resolution by the board of directors to distribute dividends, on behalf of
2024/03/01 | sybsidiary INPAQ (CAYMAN ISLANDS)LTD.
2024/03/27 | The BOD resolved to propose dividends from year 2023.
2024/04/21 | Announcement for the Board meeting date of the First Quarter of 2024 Financial Report.

Announce the approval of the FY 2024Q1 consolidated financial report by the company’s board
202404129 | of directors.

The BOD resolved to permit the engage managerial officer from the non-competition
2024/04/29

restrictions.
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Appendix 1

Stock Code:6284

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

With Independent Auditors’ Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the
same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards No. 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements” endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the
combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Inpaq
Technology Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Pei-Cheng, Chen
Date: February 22, 2024,
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Independent Auditors’  Report

To the Board of Directors of Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. ( “the Company” ) and
its subsidiaries ( “the Group” ), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and

2022, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ), International Accounting Standards ( “IASs” ), Interpretations developed by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ( “IFRIC” ) or the former Standing
Interpretations Committee ( “SIC” ) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission
of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Revenue recognition from customer with contracts

Please refer to note 4(15) and note 6(22) for accounting policy and detailed disclosure of revenue,
respectively.
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Description of key audit matter:

The Group’ s major revenue is derived from the sales of goods to its customers. Revenue is recognized

when the control over a product has been transferred to the customer as specified in each individual
contract with customers. The Group recognizes revenue depending on the various sales terms in each
individual contract with customers to ensure its performance obligation has been satisfied by transferring its
control over a product to its customer. Therefore, revenue recognition is one of our key audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

In relation to the key audit matter above, our principal audit procedures included understanding and testing
the Group’ s internal controls surrounding the sales process and cash collection transaction process;
selecting samples of sales transactions to assess the adequacy of the Group’ s timing on revenue
recognition; and evaluating the rationale for any identified significant sales fluctuations, incurred within a
certain period before or after the balance sheet date, to recognize when the performance obligation has been
satisfied by transferring control over the goods to a customer in order to determine whether they have been
recorded in a proper period.

2. Valuation of Inventories

Please refer to note 4(8), note 5, and note 6(4) for accounting policies, accounting assumptions and
estimation uncertainty, as well as related disclosure information for inventory, respectively.

Description of key audit matter:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. With the rapid development of technology,
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which may lead to
product obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value.
Consequently, the valuation of inventories has been identified as our key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit;

In relation to the key audit matter above, our key audit procedures include selecting samples to examine
their net realizable values to verify the accuracy of inventory aging; evaluating the reasonableness of the
Group’ s inventory valuation policy and the management’ s assumption used when measuring the
allowance for inventory valuation and obsolescence losses; performing a retrospective review of the
Group’ s historical accuracy of judgments with reference to inventory valuation and compare them with

the current year’ s calculation to evaluate the appropriateness of the estimation and assumption used for
inventory valuation; and evaluating the adequacy of the Group’ s disclosure for inventories.

Other Matter

The Company has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the
IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group” s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’ s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’ s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’  report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’  report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’  report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’  report are Hai-Ning Huang and
Wan-Yuan Yu.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 22, 2024

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022 December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Assets Amount % Amount % Liabilities and Equity Amount % Amount %
Current assets: Current liabilities:
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(1)) $ 2,522,821 21 1,837,820 17 2100 Short-term borrowings (note 6(13)) $ 419,329 3 100,000 1
1110 Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 6(2)) 5599 - - - 2170 Notes and accounts payable 1,036,232 9 806,326 8
1136 Current financial assets at amortised cost, net (notes 6(1) and (5)) 574,381 5 475,460 5 2180 Accounts payable to related parties (note 7) 27,863 - 39,808 -
1150 Notes receivable, net (note 6(3)) 300,240 2 166,027 2 2201 Salary and bonus payable 273,137 2 254,916 2
1170 Accounts receivable, net (note 6(3)) 1,950,984 16 1,750,826 17 2213 Payable on machinery and equipment 126,701 1 121,767 1
1180 Accounts receivable due from related parties (notes 6(3) and 7) 204,590 2 206,184 2 2220 Other payables to related parties (note 7) 12,194 - 10,212 -
1210 Other receivables due from related parties, net (note 7) 939 - 2,225 - 2280 Lease liability-current (notes 6(16) and 7) 13,536 - 10,250 -
1310 Inventories (note 6(4)) 912,826 8 1,027,091 10 2322 Long-term borrowings, current portion (note 6(13)) 429,676 4 361,100 4
1479 Other current assets (note 6(2)) 169,849 1 178,586 1 2399 Other current liabilities 403,454 3 382,505 4
6,642,229 _ 55 5,644,219 _ 54 2,742,122 22 2,086,884 _ 20
Non-current assets: Non-current liabilities:
1510 Non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2500 Non-current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(note 6(2)) 41,941 - - - (note 6(14)) 2,374 - - -
1517 Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 2531 Bonds payable (note 6(14)) 662,742 6 - -
income (note 6(2)) 486,905 4 454,314 4 2540 Long-term borrowings (note 6(13)) 1,436,018 12 2,260,615 21
1535 Non-current financial assets at amortised cost, net (note 6(5)) 218,574 2 - - 2570 Deferred tax liabilities (note 6(19) 220,008 2 223,223 2
1550 Investments accounted for using the equity method (note 6(6)) 14,566 - 11,816 - 2580 Lease liabilities—non-current (notes 6(16) and 7) 26,040 - 31,390 -
1600 Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(8) and 7) 4,146,655 34 3,885,619 37 2630 Long-term deferred revenue (notes 6(13) and (15)) 31,020 - 31,099 -
1755 Right-of-use assets (notes 6(9), (16) and 7) 51,784 1 54,490 1 2640 Net defined benefit liability, non-current (note 6(18) 16,726 - 22,385 -
1760 Investment property, net (notes 6(9) and (10)) 8,343 - 9,221 - 2645 Guarantee deposits received 6,122 - 6,122 -
1780 Intangible assets (note 6(11)) 179,440 1 183,260 2 2600 Other non-current liabilities 8,432 - 8,432 -
1840 Deferred tax assets (note 6(19)) 132,210 1 124,981 1 2,409,482 20 2,583,266 23
1920 Refundable deposits (notes 7, 8 and 9) 42,000 1 46,935 - Total liabilities 5,151,604 42 4,670,150 43
1990 Other non-current assets (note 6(12)) 73,993 1 125,122 1 Equity (note 6(20)):
5,396,411 _ 45 4,895,758 _ 46 3100 Ordinary share capital 1,489,803 12 1,401,803 13
3200 Capital surplus 3,244,157 27 2,838,983 27
3300 Retained earnings 2,348,677 20 1,827,412 18
3400 Other equity (240,380) (2) (246,228) (2)
3500 Treasury shares - - (1,418) _ -
Total equity attributable to owners of parent: 6,842,257 _ 57 5,820,552 _ 56
36XX Non-controlling interests 44,779 1 49,275 1
Total equity 6,887,036 _ 58 5,869,827 _ 57
Total assets 12,038,640 _100 10,539,977 _100 Total liabilities and equity $ 12,038,640 _100 10,539,977 _100

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 124



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

Inpag Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

4000 Net operating revenue (notes 6(22) and 7)
5000 Operating costs (notes 6(4), (16), (18), (23) and 7)
5900 Gross profit
6000 Operating expenses (notes 6(16), (18), (23) and 7):
6100 Selling expenses
6200 General and administrative expenses
6300 Research and development expenses
6450 Expected credit loss (note 6(3))

Total operating expenses
6900 Net operating income
7000 Non-operating income and expenses:
7100 Interest income (note 6(24))
7020 Other gains and losses (notes 6(24) and 7)
7050 Finance costs (notes 6(13), (14), (16), (24) and 7)
7230 Foreign exchange income (note 6(25))

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method

7770 (note 6(6))

Total non-operating income and expenses
7900 Profit before income tax
7950 Less: income tax expenses (note 6(19))

Net income

8300 Other comprehensive income:
8310 Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311 Gains on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(18))
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income

8326 Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss

Total items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

8360 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in debt instruments measured at fair value

8367 through other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to

8371 profit or loss
Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8399 (note 6(19))
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8300 Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Net profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (New Taiwan Dollars) (note 6(21))
9750 Basic earnings per share

9850 Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
Amount % Amount %

$ 6,604,061 100 6,287,071 100
4,758,107 72 4,733,726 75
1,845,954 28 1,553,345 25
364,809 6 364,669 6
330,494 5 291,336 5
385,814 6 383,339 6

- - 299 -
1,081,117 17 1,039,643 17
764,837 11 513,702 8
108,983 2 31,523 1

(3,135) - 25,411 -

(51,019) 1) (26,017) -
16,539 - 189,898 3

3,035 - (17,016) -
74,403 1 203,799 4
839,240 12 717,501 12
128,737 2 126,921 2
710,503 10 590,580 10

2,078 - 5,414 -
84,109 1 (112,736) 2)

- - (338) -
86,187 1 (107,660) (2)
(48,602) Q) 54,393 1
3,344 - (56,035) 1)

(285) - 3,770 -

(9,777) - 10,960 -

(35,766) 1 (8,832) -
50,421 - (116,492) (2)

$ 760924 _ 10 474088 _ 8

$ 714,999
(4,496)

10 590,929
- (349)

10

$ 710503 10 _ 590,580 ___10

$ 765,420
(4,496)

10 474,437
- (349)

$ 760924 _ 10 474088 _ 8

5.01

4.22

4.98

4.19




Balance at January 1, 2022
Net income (loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Appropriation legal reserve
Appropriation of special reserve
Cash dividends distributed to shareholders
Due to donated assets received
Cash dividends from capital surplus
Disposal of subsidiaries or investments accounted for
using equity method (note 6(6))
Difference between consideration and carrying amount
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Change in non-controlling interests
Balance at December 31, 2022
Net income (loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Appropriation legal reserve
Appropriation of special reserve
Cash dividends of ordinary share
Capital increase by cash
Convertible bonds payable

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Compensation cost arising from capital increase
Treasury shares transferred to employees
Balance at December 31, 2023

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Total other equity interest

Unrealized
gains (losses) on
financial assets

Exchange measured at
differences on fair value
Retained earnings translation of through Total equity
Unappropriated foreign other attributable to
Ordinary Capital Legal Special retained financial comprehensive owners of Non-controlling
shares surplus reserve reserve earnings Total statements income Total Treasury shares parent interests Total equity

3 1,401,803 2,906,644 172,581 54,455 1,087,366 1,314,402 (191,285) 72,372 (118,913) (1,418) 5,502,518 - 5,502,518
- - - - 590,929 590,929 - - - - 590,929 (349) 590,580
- - - - 5,414 5414 47,203 (169,109) (121,906) - (116,492) - (116,492)
- - - - 596,343 596,343 47,203 (169,109) (121,906) - 474,437 (349) 474,088

- - 58,402 - (58,402) - - - - - - - -

- - - 64,458 (64,458) - - - - - - - -
- - - - (84,081) (84,081) - - - - (84,081) - (84,081)
- () - - - - - - - - @ - @
- (84,081) - - - - - - - - (84,081) - (84,081)
- 16,419 - - (117) (117) (5,141) 597 (4,544) - 11,758 - 11,758
- 3 - - - - - - - - 3 - 3

- - - - 865 865 - (865) (865) - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - 49,624 49,624
1,401,803 2,838,983 230,983 118,913 1,477,516 1,827,412 (149,223) (97,005) (246,228) (1,418) 5,820,552 49,275 5,869,827
- - - - 714,999 714,999 - - - - 714,999 (4,496) 710,503
- - - - 2,078 2,078 (39,110) 87,453 48,343 - 50,421 - 50,421
- - - - 717,077 717,077 (39,110) 87,453 48,343 - 765,420 (4,496) 760,924

- - 59,710 - (59,710) - - - - - - - -

- - - 127,315 (127,315) - - - - - - - -
- - - - (238,307) (238,307) - - - - (238,307) - (238,307)
88,000 305,015 - - - - - - - - 393,015 - 393,015
- 94,718 - - - - - - - - 94,718 - 94,718

. - - - 42,495 42,495 - (42,495) (42,495) - - - -
- 4,378 - - - - - - - - 4,378 - 4,378
- 1,063 - - - - - - - 1,418 2,481 - 2,481
$ 1,489,803 3,244,157 290,693 246,228 1,811,756 2,348,677 (188,333) (52,047) (240,380) - 6,842,257 44,779 6,887,036

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2023 2022
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before income tax $ 839,240 717,501
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense 426,606 409,841
Amortization expense 19,408 21,729
Expected credit loss - 299
Net loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss 2,023 -
Finance costs 51,019 26,017
Interest income (108,983) (31,523)
Dividend income (1,626) (18,057)
Share of loss (gain) of associates accounted for using the equity method (3,035) 17,016
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,131 8,188
Provision for inventory devaluation loss 86,122 26,855
Share-based payment transactions 5,444 -
Others (4,008) (2,306)
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 477,101 458,059
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Notes receivable (134,213) (40,510)
Accounts receivable (200,158) 183,938
Accounts receivable due from related parties 1,594 14,783
Other receivable due from related parties 1,286 238
Inventories 28,143 76,739
Other current assets (5,753) 32,431
Notes and accounts payable 229,906 (278,184)
Accounts payable to related parties (11,945) (40,549)
Other payable to related parties 1,982 (8,777)
Salary and bonus payable 18,221 18,166
Other current liabilities 32,893 (43,300)
Total adjustments 439,057 373,034
Cash inflow generated from operations 1,278,297 1,090,535
Interest received 101,027 31,814
Dividends received 1,626 18,057
Interest paid (49,667) (26,463)
Income taxes paid (127,119) (110,893)
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,204,164 1,003,050

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Acquisition of equity-method investee
Acquisition of financial assets measured at amortized cost
Disposal of financial assets measured at amortized cost
Acquisition of subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds
Increase in long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Capital increase by cash
Treasury shares transferred to employees
Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
(218,236) (43,607)
275,342 2,488
(47,406) -
- (40,076)
(4,115,949) (1,234,592)
3,816,173 974,216
] (187,784)
- 317,092
(628,275) (869,979)
14,125 19,819
(4,888) (18,365)
(15,559) (11,072)
(21,290) (100,180)
(945,963) (1,192,040)
3,319,617 1,188,315
(3,000,000) (1,241,802)
758,169 -
400,000 1,180,870
(1,156,100) -
(19,068) (27,359)
(238,307) (168,162)
393,015 -
1,419 -
458,745 931,862
(31,945) 7,066
685,001 749,938
1,837,820 1,087,882
2,522,821 1,837,820




(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Company history:

Inpag Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” ) was established with the
approval of the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 23, 1998, and its registered address is 11 Keyi Street,
Zhunan Town, Miaoli County. The Company’ s shares have been listed for trading at the Taipei Exchange
in R.O.C. since June 29, 2004.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” ) mainly engaged in the research,
development, manufacturing and sales of integrated protection components, microwave composite
miniature antennas and modules, and multilayer microwave communication components and their modules.

Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 22,
2024.

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(1) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (the "FSC") which have already been adopted.

The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2023:

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
@ Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The Group has initially adopted the new amendment, which do not have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements, from May 23, 2023:

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform—~Pillar Two Model Rules”
(2) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual period
beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements:

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
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©)

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@ Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Finance Arrangements”
@ Amendments to IFRS 16  “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”

The impact of IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB” ) but not
yet endorsed by the FSC

The Group does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be endorsed
by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements:

@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28  “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and Its Associate or Joint Venture”

@ IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17  “Insurance Contracts”

@ Amendments to IFRS 17  “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information”

@ Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of Exchangeability”

4.  Summary of material accounting policies:

The material accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized below.
Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently
throughout the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

@)

)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred toas  “the

Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting

Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C..

Basis of preparation
A. Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis:

(@) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured
at fair value; and

(b) The net defined benefit liabilities are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

B. Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
New Taiwan Dollars (TWD), which is the Company’ s functional currency. Unless otherwise
noted, all financial information presented in TWD has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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Basis of consolidation

A. Principles of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are entities controlled by the Group. The Group  ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Group
attributes the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of
the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Changes in the Group’ s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control

are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received will
be recognized directly in equity, and the Group will attribute it to the owners of the parent.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements
The list of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Shareholding

Name of Name of December December
Investor subsidiary Principal activity 31,2023 31,2022 Note
The Company Inpaq (BVI) Ltd. General investing 100% 100%
(Inpag BVI)
The Company Canfield Limited Sales of electronic components, 100% 100%
(Canfield) computer products and peripheral input

and output equipment, communication
products and components, antenna
wholesale, commission agency and
after-sales service

The Company Inpaq Technology  Sales of electronic components, 100% 100%

USA, Inc. (Inpaq computer products and peripheral input

USA) and output equipment, communication
products and components, antenna
wholesale, commission agency and
after-sales service

Inpaq BVI Inpaqg (Cayman General investing 100% 100%

Islands) Ltd. (Inpaq
Cayman)
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Shareholding

Name of Name of December December
Investor subsidiary Principal activity 31,2023 31,2022 Note
Inpaq BVI Inpaq (HK) Co., General investing 100% 100%
Limited
Inpaq Cayman Holypaq Tech Manufacture and sales of new 100% 100%
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd. high-frequency electronic components,
power electronic components,
optoelectronic devices, sensor
components and supporting products
Inpag Cayman Inpaq technology Development and production of new 100% 100%
(China) Co., Ltd. electronic components, chip
components, sensitive components and
sensors, power electronic components,
new electromechanical components
and sales
Inpag (HK) Inpag Trading Sales of electronic components, -% 100%  Note 2
Co., Limited  (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.  computer products and peripheral input
and output equipment, communication
products and components, antenna
wholesale, commission agency and
after-sales service
Holypaq Tech Holypaq (HK) Co., General investing 100% 100%
(Suzhou) Co., Limited
Ltd.
Holypaq Tech Inpaq Trading Sales of electronic components, 100% 100%
(Suzhou) Co., (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.  computer products and peripheral input
Ltd. and output equipment, communication
products and components, antenna
wholesale, commission agency and
after-sales service
Holypaq Tech Hunan Frontier Manufacturing and selling of 100% 100%
(Suzhou) Co., Electronics Co., transformer, coils and magnetic
Ltd. Ltd. components
Holypaq (HK) Taiwan Inpaq Electronic components manufacturing, 100% 100%
Co., Limited  Electronic Co., Ltd. wholesale and retail
The Company Eleceram Manufacturing and selling of electronic 72.9% 72.9% Note 1l
Technology Co., components
Ltd.
Note 1: The Group obtained control of Eleceram on July 1, 2022, and included it in the
consolidated financial statements from that date, please refer to Note 6(7).
Note 2: The liquidation of Inpaq Trading has been completed in 2023.

C. Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidated financial statements: None.
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Foreign currency

A.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

(@) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

(b) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; or

(c) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to TWD using the exchange rates at
the reporting date with the exception of shareholders’ equity, which is translated at historical
cost rates, and income and expenses, which are translated to TWD at the average rate for the
period. Exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

A.

B
C.
D

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

A
B.

It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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C. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

D. The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and checking deposits. Cash equivalents are
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above
definition and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes are classified as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Accounts receivable and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is an account
receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at
fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Accounts
receivable without a significant financing component are initially measured at the transaction price.

A. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost; fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL); fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt
investment; or FVOCI — equity investment. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets, in which case, all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.

(@) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL.:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’ s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses, and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’ s right to
receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other
financial assets and refundable deposits), debt investments measured at FVOCI and
contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL.:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default

occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivable are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group” s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of investment grade which is considered to
be BBB- or higher per Standard & Poor’ s, Baa3 or higher per Moody’ s or twA or higher

per Taiwan Ratings.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 60 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more than
90 days past due and the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off either partially or in full to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The Group individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’ s procedures for recovery of

amounts due.
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(@)

(b)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.
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Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital surplus or retained
earnings (if the capital surplus is not sufficient to be written down).

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible bonds
denominated in TWD that can be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder,
when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair
value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is initially recognized at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion at
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit
or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations has been
discharged or cancelled, or has expired. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized
at fair value.
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On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

(g) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

C. Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted-average method and includes expenditure and other costs incurred in bringing them
to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’ s share of the profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases. The Group recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the
investee within capital surplus when an associate’ s equity changes due to reasons other than profit

and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual proportionate share.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated Group’ s interests in the associate.

When the Group’ s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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On June 17, 2022, the Group sold its entire shares in Joyin to a related party, Prosperity Dielectrics
Co., Ltd., through a resolution approved by the board of directors. In accordance with the
"Accounting for the transfer of shares of associate by subsidiaries within the group”, the book value
method should be analogously applied to the “Accounting for Business Combinations of Entities
Under Common Control” . In addition, the Group chose not to retrospectively treat Joyin’ s shares

as held by Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. from the beginning and not to restate the comparative
financial statements in accordance with the "Accounting for retrospective restatement of comparative
financial statements under common control".

(10) Property, plant and equipment
A. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less, accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

C. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods
are as follows:

(@) Buildings: 4 to 51 years
(b) Machinery and equipment: 1 to 15 years
(c) Other equipment: 1 to 20 years

Buildings and construction constitute mainly buildings, mechanical and electrical power
equipment, laboratory engineering, related engineering, etc. Each constituent is depreciated
based on its useful life between 50 years and 20 years.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(11) Leases

A.

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus,
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the

Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
(@) fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments);

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
(d) payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

(@) thereis a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

(b) there is a change in the Group’ s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or

(c) thereis a change in the assessment regarding the purchase option; or

(d) there is a change in the assessment on whether the Group will exercise an extension or a
termination option; or

(e) thereis any lease modifications
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When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(12) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition, and subsequently at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual
value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.

(13) Intangible assets
A. Recognition and measurement
Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are
probable and the Group intends to, and has sufficient resources to, complete development and to
use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost, less, accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets, including computer software, customer relationships, patents and
trademarks and others that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
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B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

C. Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other
than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
(@) Computer software: 1~10 years

(b) Customer relationships: 6 years

(c) Trademarks and patents: 6 years

(d) Others: 3 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’ s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (CGUSs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’ s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Group” s main types of revenue are explained below:

A. Sale of goods

The Group involves in research, develop, design, manufacture and sales of integrated protection
components, microwave composite miniature antennas and modules. The Group recognizes
revenue when control of the products has been transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’ s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Group often offers volume discounts to its customer’ s. Revenue from these sales is
recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the expected value method, and
revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales of goods are made, which is consistent with the market practice.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

B. Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.
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(16) Government grants and government assistance

The Group recognizes an unconditional government grant related to the long-term borrowing in
profit or loss as other income when the grant becomes receivable. Other government grants related to
assets are initially recognized as deferred income at fair value if there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they
are then recognized in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses or losses incurred are recognized in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses or losses are recognized.

(17) Employee benefits
A. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution plans are expensed as the related
service is provided.

B. Defined benefit plans

The Group’ s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated separately for

each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in
retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plans are recognized in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in
profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

C. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method. The goodwill arising
from an acquisition is measured as the excess of the consideration transferred (which is generally
measured at fair value) and the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, both over the
identifiable net assets acquired at the acquisition date. If the amount calculated above is a deficit
balance, the Group recognized that amount as a gain on a bargain purchase in profit or loss
immediately after reassessing whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabilities assumed.

All acquisition related transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of debt or
equity instruments.

For each business combination, the Group measures any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’ s proportionate share of the acquiree’ s
identifiable net assets, if the non-controlling interests are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’ s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair values, unless
another measurement basis is required by the IFRS Accounting Standards endorsed by the FSC.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete are reported in the Group’ s financial statements. During the measurement period, the
provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date are retrospectively adjusted, or additional
assets or liabilities are recognized to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period will not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to employees
is generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and their respective tax bases.

Deferred taxes are recognized except for the following:

A. Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits (losses) and (ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences ;

B. Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

C. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

A. The Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

B. The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(@) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Group’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
such as the convertible bonds and employee remuneration through the issuance of shares.
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(22) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’ s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. It recognizes any changes
in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting estimates in the
following period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as
follows:

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group uses judgments and estimates to
determine the net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the
reporting period. It also writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net realizable value
of the inventory is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific time
horizon. However, due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net
realizable value of inventories. Please refer to note 6(4) for further description of the valuation of
inventories.

The Group® s finance department conducts independent verification on fair value by using data sources
that are independent, reliable, and representative of exercise prices. The Group’ s financial department
also periodically adjusts valuation models, renews input data for valuation models, and makes all other
necessary fair value adjustments to assure the rationality of fair value. The Group strives to use market
observable inputs when measuring assets and liabilities. Different levels of the fair value hierarchy to be
used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data.

For any transfer within the fair value hierarchy, the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporting
date. Please refer to Note 6(25) for assumptions used in measuring fair value.
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Explanation of significant accounts:

@)

)

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Cash on hand and demand deposits $ 1,060,058 1,536,423
Time deposits 1,462,763 301,397
$ 2,522,821 1,837,820

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the bank certificate of deposit with original maturity over 3
months amounting to $539,573 and $464,276, which were reclassified to other financial asset.
Please refer to note 6(5).

Please refer to note 6(25) for the exchange rate risk of the financial assets and liabilities of the
Group.

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — current:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Foreign funds —Morgan Stanley $ 5,599 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —

non-current:
Foreign funds— GLG Japan Corealpha $ 21,058 -
Foreign stocks —Marubeni Corp. 10,303 -
Foreign stocks —Mitsui & Co., Ltd 10,580 .

$ 41,941 -

For the information of fair value of financial instruments, please refer to note 6(24).

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income — non-current:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income:
Corporate bonds — Microsoft Corporation $ 21,818 20,831
Corporate bonds — Apple Inc. 77,276 75,139
Corporate bonds — Amazon.com, Inc. 41,391 39,763
Corporate bonds — Saudi Arabian Oil Co. 43,225 42,053
Corporate bonds — Bank of America 45,061 45,158
Corporate bonds — Commonwealth Bank of Australia 215,497 -

444,268 222,944
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Stocks in listed domestic companies - 198,934
Stocks in unlisted domestic companies 42,637 32,436
42,637 231,370
$ 486,905 454,314

A. Debt investment at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group has assessed that the following securities were held within a business model whose
objective was achieved by both collecting the contractual cash flows and by selling securities.
Therefore, they have been classified as debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

In February 2023, the Group purchased corporate bonds issued by Commonwealth Bank of
Australia , with a face value of US$7,000 thousand. The fair values at the time of acquisition
was $215,736, with the interest rate of 5.079% and maturing on January 10, 2025.

B. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that the
Group intends to hold for strategic purposes.

The Group sold the shares of King Polytechnic Engineering Co., Ltd. on September 13, 2022.
The fair value at the time of disposal was $2,488, and the accumulated disposal benefits
amounted to $865. Other interests are transferred to retained earnings.

The Group sold the shares of APAQ Technology Co., Ltd. on second quarter of 2023. The fair
value at the time of disposal was $275,342, and the accumulated disposal benefits amounted to
$42,495. Other interests are transferred to retained earnings.

The Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities as at fair value through
other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that the
Group intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes. These investments were classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Please refer to note 6(24) for the dividends income received from the equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022,

(3) Notes and accounts receivables (included related parties)

A. Notes receivable

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Notes receivable from operating activities $ 300,240 166,027
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B. Accounts receivables, net

Accounts receivable
Less: Loss allowance

Accounts receivable due from related parties:

Accounts receivable due from related parties

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
1,960,854 1,760,848
(9.870) (10,022)
1,950,984 1,750,826

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

204,590

206,184

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
notes and accounts receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, as well as the incorporated forward-looking information, including
macroeconomic and relevant industry information. The loss allowance provisions in Taiwan
were determined as follows:

December 31, 2023
Weighted-aver

Gross carrying Loss allowance

amount age loss rate provision
Current $ 2,408,848 - -
1 to 90 days past due 53,654 12.47% 6,688
91 to 180 days past due 596 100% 596
More than 181 days past due 2,586 100% 2,586
$ 2,465,684 9,870

December 31, 2022

Gross carrying

Weighted-aver

Loss allowance

amount age loss rate provision
Current $ 2,083,410 - -
1 to 90 days past due 48,366 18.07% 8,739
91 to 180 days past due 459 100% 459
More than 181 days past due 824 100% 824
$ 2,133,059 10,022
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The movements in the allowance for notes and accounts receivables were as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at January 1 $ 10,022 14,585
Impairment loss recognized - 299
Amounts written off - (4,989)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and others (152) 127
Balance at December 31 $ 9,870 10,022
Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Raw materials $ 303,829 371,738
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 173,310 170,940
Finished goods and merchandise 435,687 484,413
$ 912,826 1,027,091
The details of operating costs were as follows:
2023 2022
Cost of goods sold $ 4,716,321 4,732,169
Provision for inventory obsolescence and devaluation loss 86,122 26,855
Revenue from sales of scrap (44,336) (25,298)
$ 4,758,107 4,733,726

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’ s inventories were not pledged.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Current:
Time deposit (over three-month) $ 539,573 464,276
Others 34,808 11,184
$ 574,381 475,460
Non-current:
Foreign corporate bonds — Union Bank of Switzerland $ 123,823 -
Foreign corporate bonds — Unitedhealth Group Inc. 94,751 -
$ 218,574 -

The Group has assessed that these financial assets are held-to-maturity to collect contractual cash
flows which consist solely of payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.
Therefore, these investments were classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.
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In 2023, the Group purchased corporate bonds issued by Union Bank of Switzerland, with a face
value of US$4,000 thousand. The fair value at the time of acquisition was $127,660, with the interest
rate of 5.65% and the effective interest rate of 5.25%~5.83%, and maturing on September 11, 2028.
Besides, the Group purchased corporate bonds issued by Unitedhealth Group Inc., with a face value
of US$3,000 thousand. The fair value at the time of acquisition was $97,131, with the interest rate of
5.25% and the effective interest rate of 4.52%, and maturing on February 15, 2028.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group did not provide any financial assets measured at
amortized cost as collateral for its loans.

Investments accounted for using the equity method

A summary of the Group’ s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity
method at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Associates $ 14,566 11,816

On January 3, 2022, the Group increased its investment and acquired a total of 2,672 thousand shares
of Joyin Co., Ltd., and the total transaction price is $40,076. The holding right is reduced to 22.46%.

The Group holds 22.46% of the voting shares of Joyin Co., Ltd., becoming its the single largest
shareholder. Although the remaining 77.54% of the shares held by Joyin Co., Ltd. are not
concentrated among specific shareholders, the Group still cannot obtain a majority of Joyin Co., Ltd.
director seats, and has not obtained more than half of the voting rights of the shareholders present at
the shareholders’ meeting. Therefore, the Group concluded that the Group has only significant

influence on Joyin Co., Ltd.

On June 17, 2022, the Group disposed its entire 17,519 thousand shares in Joyin Co., Ltd. to
Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Walsin). This was deemed as organizational
restructure in accordance with the IFRS Q&A issued by Accounting Research and Development
Foundation in Taiwan - "Accounting treatment for the transfer of shares of associate by subsidiaries
within the Group" and "Accounting treatment for business combination under common control”. The
difference between the disposal price of $317,092, and the book value of investments accounted for
using the equity method of $16,419, was recognized as an addition of the capital surplus.

Associates:

The Group’ s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity method as
follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Total assets $ 125,652 93,324
Total liabilities $ 79.844 52,821
2023 2022
Revenue $ 91,978 649,527
Net income (loss) $ 6,158 (49,852)
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In 2023 and 2022, the Group’ s share of the net income of associates was as follows:

2023 2022
Profit (loss) from continuing operations $ 3,035 (17,016)

Business combination

The Group acquired 72.9% of the shares of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. from Joyin Co., Ltd. on
July 1, 2022, and the Group has taken control of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. since July 1, 2022,
and incorporated the financial statements of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. into the Group on that
date.

Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd., which specializes mainly in manufacturing and selling of electronic
components, is expected to expand the market share of the Group in the related fields.

A. The following table summarizes the acquisition date fair value of major class of consideration
transferred.

Account
Cash $ 209,946

B. The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

Account
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,162
Notes receivable 1,453
Accounts receivable 9,444
Inventories 16,679
Other current financial assets 7,006
Other current assets 8,816
Property, plant and equipment 223,246
Other non-current assets 1,070
Notes payable (5,369)
Accounts payable (12,495)
Current tax liabilities (1,019)
Accrued expense (6,349)
Other current liabilities (1,398)
Other non-current liabilities (8,432)
Total identifiable net assets acquired $ 254,814
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C. Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as follows:

Account
Consideration transferred $ 209,946
Add: Fair value of the non-controlling interests 49,624
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets (254,814)
Goodwill $ 4,756

(8) Property, plant and equipment

Construction

Buildings Machinery in progress
and and Other and testing
Land construction equipment facilities equipment Total
Cost:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 423,424 1,255,649 3,577,902 1,075,666 884,634 7,217,275
Additions - 149,450 214,364 37,618 231,776 633,208
Disposal and obsolescence - (653) (94,198) (83,476) (7,293) (185,620)
Reclassification - 714,461 174,311 16,610 (831,790) 73,592
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - (13,335) (19,499) (6,833) (2,591) (42,258)
Balance on December 31, 2023  $ 423,424 2,105,572 3,852,880 1,039,585 274,736 7,696,197
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 236,552 1,114,141 3,144,038 944,640 591,809 6,031,180
Additions 6 51,144 165,858 84,311 553,746 855,065
Disposal and obsolescence - (2,539) (42,649) (19,431) (13,062) (77,681)
Reclassification to investment

property - (15,703) - - - (15,703)
Reclassification - 79,988 240,122 33,788 (245,366) 108,532
Acquisition through business

combinations (note6(7)) 186,866 4,972 54,256 26,437 - 272,531
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - 23,646 16,277 5,921 (2,493) 43,351

Balance on December 31,2022 $ 423,424 1,255,649 3,577,902 1,075,666 884,634 7,217,275
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ - 463,808 2,207,494 660,354 - 3,331,656
Depreciation for the year - 62,985 242,660 100,608 - 406,253
Disposal and obsolescence - (531) (89,676) (77,157) - (167,364)
Reclassification - 640 534 - - 1,174
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - (5,255) (12,513) (4,409) - (22,177)

Balance on December 31,2023 ¢ - 521647 2348499 679396 - 3,549,542

155



)

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Construction

Buildings Machinery in progress
and and Other and testing
Land construction equipment facilities equipment Total
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ - 413,690 1,955,470 565,686 - 2,934,846
Depreciation for the year - 47,023 240,177 93,865 - 381,065
Disposal and obsolescence - (1,311) (37,637) (10,726) - (49,674)
Reclassification to investment
property - (5,939) - - - (5,939)
Reclassification - - - 310 - 310
Acquisition through business
combinations (note 6(7)) - 4,589 37,360 7,336 - 49,285
Effect of movements in exchange
rates - 5,756 12,124 3,883 - 21,763
Balance on December 31,2022 §$ - 463,808 2,207,494 660,354 - 3,331,656

Carrying amounts:
Balance on December 31,2023 $ 423424 1583925 1504381 360,189 274,736 4,146,655

Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 236,552 700,451 1,188,568 378,954 591,809 3,096,334
Balance on December 31,2022 §$ 423,424 791,841 1,370,408 415,312 884,634 3,885,619

Please refer to note 7 for the Group’ s transaction of property, plant and equipment with related
parties.

On April 1, 2022, part of the office with a fair value of $9,764 was transferred to investment property,
because it was no longer used by the Group and it was decided to lease the office to third party.

Right-of-use assets

The Group leased several assets including land and buildings. Information about leases for which the
Group as a lessee was presented below:

Land Buildings Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 28,523 79,975 108,498
Additions - 36,727 36,727
Disposals - (74,708) (74,708)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (264) - (264)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 28,259 41,994 70,253
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 28,310 143,262 171,572
Additions - 4,829 4,829
Disposals - (68,116) (68,116)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 213 - 213
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 28,523 79.975 108,498
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Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2023
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at January 1, 2022
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2022
Carrying amount:
Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at January 1, 2022
Balance at December 31, 2022

Please refer to note 7 for the Group’ s transaction of right-of-use assets with related parties.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’ s right-of-use assets were not pledged.

(10) Investment property

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2023
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance as of December 31, 2023
Balance as of January 1, 2022
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance as of December 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses:

Balance as of January 1, 2023
Depreciation for the year

Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance as of December 31, 2023
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Land Buildings Total
$ 4,673 49,335 54,008
1,722 17,903 19,625
- (55,143) (55,143)
(21) - (21)
$ 6,374 12,095 18,469
$ 2,922 37,097 40,019
1,706 26,519 28,225
- (14,281) (14,281)
45 - 45
$ 4,673 49,335 54,008
$ 21,885 29,899 51,784
$ 25,388 106,165 131,553
$ 23,850 30,640 54,490
Buildings

$ 15,709
(277)
$ 15,432

$ -
15,703
6
$ 15,709
$ 6,488
728
(127)
$ 7,089
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Buildings

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ -

Depreciation for the year 551

Transfer from property, plant and equipment 5,939

Effect of movements in exchange rates (2)

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 6,488
Carrying amounts:

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 8,343

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 9,221
Fair value:

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 11,259

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 11,541

Investment property comprises commercial real estate owned by the Group leased to third parties by
operating lease. The leases of investment properties contain an initial non-cancellable lease term of 3
years. The lessee have the option to extend the lease term pursuant to the lease contract. For the
additions of the investment properties of the group for the year ended December 31, 2022, please
refer to note 6(9). Please refer to note 6(17) for the details of the related rental income.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’ s investment properties were not pledged.
Intangible assets

The cost and amortization of the intangible assets of the Group for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, were as follows:

Patent and
client Development
Goodwill relationships costs Total
Costs:

Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 124,829 53,117 177,601 355,547
Additions - - 15,559 15,559
Effect of movement in exchange rates - (121) (261) (382)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 124,829 52,996 192,899 370,724
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 120,073 53,019 166,096 339,188
Additions - - 11,072 11,072
Acquisition through business

combinations (refer to Note 6(7)) 4,756 - - 4,756
Effect of movement in exchange rates - 98 433 531
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 124,829 53,117 177,601 355,547
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Patent and
client Development
Goodwill relationships costs Total

Accumulated amortization:

Balance at January 1, 2023 $ - 31,395 140,892 172,287

Amortization for the year - 8,688 10,720 19,408

Effect of movement in exchange rates - (90) (321) (411)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ - 39,993 151,291 191,284

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ - 22,666 127,605 150,271

Amortization for the year - 8,698 13,031 21,729

Effect of movement in exchange rates - 31 256 287

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - 31,395 140,892 172,287
Carrying value:

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 124,829 13,003 41,608 179,440

Balance at January 1, 2022 3 120,073 30,353 38,491 188,917

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 124,829 21,722 36,709 183,260

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group® s intangible assets were not pledged.

Impairment test of goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and other intangible assets arising from the
Group’ s acquisition are allocated to the following cash-generating units (or group of cash
generating units), that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
High-frequency component department $ 120,073 120,073
Passive component department 4,756 4,756
$ 124,829 124,829

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment at least annually. The key
assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Discount rate 15.66% 14.08%

The discount rate is estimated based on the industry weighted-average cost of capital and the risk
premium is adjusted to reflect the increasing risk of general investment in equity and the specific
systemic risk of cash-generating units. Cash flow projections are based on five-year financial budgets
approved by management and extrapolated to subsequent years at a flat growth rate. The growth rate
estimated by extrapolated cash flow is 0% sustainable growth.
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The values of the aforementioned key assumptions represent management’ s assessment of the

future trends of related industries and consider historical information from internal and external
sources. According to the impairment test assessment in the year of 2023 and 2022, the recoverable
amount was greater than its carrying amount and no impairment loss was recognized.

(12) Other current assets and other non-current assets

The other current assets others and other non-current assets of the Group were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Prepayments for business facilities $ 70,293 120,079
Prepaid expenses 30,025 35,481
Net input VAT 49,495 39,426
Tax receivables and prepaid income tax 70,493 74,783
Unamortized expenses 17,214 22,176
Prepayments to suppliers 1,346 7,349
Others 4,976 4,414
$ 243,842 303,708
Other current assets $ 169,849 178,586
Other non-current assets 73,993 125,122
$ 243,842 303,708
(13) Short-term and long-term borrowings
A. Short-term borrowings
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Secured bank loans $ 35,000 -
Unsecured bank loans 384,329 100,000
$ 419,329 100,000
Unused credit lines $ 4,527,828 3,559,043
Range of interest rate 0.009%%~2.99% 1.63%

Please refer to note 6(25) for the liquidity risk and foreign currency risk of the borrowings of the
Group.

For assets pledged as collateral for borrowings, please refer to note 8.
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B. Long-term borrowings:

Financial December 31, December 31,

Institution Objective Maturity date 2023 2022

Chang Hwa Working capital August, 2027 $ 524,745 573,321

Bank

CTBC Bank Purchase of additional equipment December, 2026 388,044 388,028

Chang Hwa Purchase of additional building April, 2031 347,951 347,928

Bank

E. Sun Bank Purchase of additional equipment  March, 2025 304,954 492,438

Chang Hwa Working capital July, 2028 300,000 -

Bank

Hua Nan Working capital December, 2025 - 300,000

Bank

Mega Bank Working capital September, 2026 - 300,000

Far Eastern  Working capital March, 2024 - 220,000

Bank

Less: Long-term borrowings, current portion (429,676) (361,100)
$ 1,436,018 2,260,615

Unused credit lines $ 600,000 900,000

Range of interest rate 1.650%~ 1.075%~

2.000% 1.875%

C. Government low-interest loan

According to “Loans for Returning Overseas Taiwanese Businesses” , starting from March
2020, the Group has successively obtained project loans from E. Sun Bank, Chang Hwa Bank
and CTBC Bank, respectively. The total loans amounted to $1,833,820. The market interest rates
of the loans were 1.65%, 1.70% and 2.00%, respectively, which were used to recognize and
measure the book value of the loans. The preferential interest rates of the loans were 1.15%,
1.20% and 1.50%, respectively. The difference between the market interest rate and preferential
interest rate was deemed as government subsidies. Please refer to note 6 (15) for details.

(14) Convertible bonds payable

The Group issued the third secured convertible bonds on December 14, 2023, and Taishin
International Bank Co., Ltd. served as the guarantor. Information about the convertible bonds
payable are as follows:

December 31,

2023

Convertible bonds payable $ 700,000
Unamortized discounts on convertible bonds payable (37,258)
Carrying amount $ 662,742
Embedded derivative — call and put options, included in financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss $ 2,374
Equity component — conversion options (recorded in capital surplus — share

options) $ 94,718
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2023
Embedded derivative instruments — call and put rights, included in financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $ (630)
Interest expenses $ 1,035

The following are the issuance conditions:

A

Issue amount: The total amount of the issue is $700,000 thousand, with a face value of $100
thousand. Issued at 108.68% of face value.

Tenor: The bonds were issued for a period of 3 years. The issue date is December 14, 2023, and
the maturity date is December 14, 2026.

Coupon rate: 0%
Conversion period: One month after the issue date and 10 days before the maturity date.
Conversion price and adjustments:

The Company used November 24, 2023 as the base date for setting the conversion price. The
base day (exclusive) is the business day before, the three business days before, and the five
business days before the company. Choose one of the simple arithmetic average of the closing
prices of common stocks as the base price, and then multiply the base price by 110% as the
calculation basis, which is the conversion price of the convertible bonds (calculated to TWD
cents, rounded off to the next cent). If there is ex-rights or ex-dividend before the pricing base
date, the closing price that is sampled and used to calculate the conversion price should first be
calculated as the post-ex-right or ex-dividend price; after the conversion price is determined and
before the actual issuance date, if there is ex-right or ex-dividend, it should be adjusted
according to the conversion price adjustment formula. The conversion price at the time of
issuance was TWD92.0 per share.

After the Company converts the bonds except for the exchange of various securities issued by
the Company (or private placement) with common stock conversion rights or stock options for
common shares or the issuance of new shares due to employee bonuses, in the event that if the
number of ordinary shares issued (or privately placed) increases, the Company shall adjust the
conversion price according to the formula stipulated in the conversion regulations.

The Company’ s right to redeem the above-mentioned converted corporate bonds:

(@) After 3 months of the issue date (March 15, 2024), if the closing price of the Company’ s
common shares on the stock exchange exceeds the current conversion price of the
convertible bonds by not less than 30% for thirty consecutive business days, the Company
may redeem the bonds forty days before the maturity date (November 4, 2026). The
Company may notify the bondholders within the next thirty business days, and the bond
will be redeemed from the bondholders in cash according to the face value of the bond.

(b) After 3 months of the issue date (March 15, 2024), if the balance of outstanding convertible
bonds is less than 10% of the original total issued amount, the Company may redeem the
bonds forty days before the maturity date (November 4, 2026). The Company may notify
the bondholders at any time and redeem the bonds from the bondholders in cash according
to the face value of the bond.
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G. Bondholder’ s put right:

The bondholders can sell back the bonds 2 years after the bonds issuance (December 14, 2025).
A written notice is required to be given to to the Company’ s stock agency before 40 days of
the sell back date to request to sell back the bonds with the face value of the bonds plus interest
compensation. The aforementioned interest compensation is calculated at 100% of the face value
of the bonds (the return of sell back is 0%). When the Company accepts the sell back request, it
should be redeemed in cash within five business days after the sell back base date.

Long-term deferred revenue

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Long-term deferred revenue —government subsidies $ 31,020 31,099

If the Group fails to meet the conditions of the note 6(13) mentioned project loan, and the National
Development Fund will cease to subsidize the Group, and the Group shall pay the interest
according to the original agreed interest rate, plus, the annual interest rate.

Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current $ 13,536 10,250
Non-current 26,040 31,390

$ 39,576 41,640

For maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(25).
The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2023 2022
Interest on lease liabilities $ 797 1,375
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 31,473 34,101

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash follow by the Group:

2023 2022
Total cash outflow for leases $ 51,338 62,835

A. Land and building leases

The Group leases land and buildings for its parking spaces, office space and factories. The leases
of land typically run for a period of 10 years, and of buildings for 2 to 5 years. Some leases
include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the end of
the contract term.
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Some leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group. These leases are negotiated and
monitored by local management, and accordingly, contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors.
In which lessee is not reasonably certain to use an optional extended lease term, payments
associated with the optional period are not included within lease liabilities.

B. Other leases

The Group leases dormitories and vehicles, with lease terms of 1 to 3 years. These leases are
short-term and/or leases of low-value items. The Group has elected not to recognize its
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

(17) Operating lease

The Group leases out its investment properties and offices. The Group has classified these leases as
operating leases, because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of the assets.

The maturity analysis of lease payments is based on the undiscounted total lease payments to be
received after the reporting date as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Less than one year $ 699 649
One to two years 238 710
Two to three years - 242
Total undiscounted lease payments $ 937 1,601

(18) Employee benefits
A. Defined benefit plans

Reconciliations of the defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value are

as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 58,471 62,862
Fair value of plan assets (41,745) (40,477)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 16,726 22,385

The Company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account with Bank
of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. Plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of
service and average monthly salary for the six months prior to retirement.
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Composition of plan assets

The Company allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds are
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of
the funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year
time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Company’ s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to
$41,745 as of December 31, 2023. For information on the utilization of the labor pension
fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website
of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations for the Company was as
follows:

2023 2022
Defined benefit obligations at January 1 $ 62,862 67,410
Current service costs and interest cost 857 348
Benefits paid from provision account (2,450) -
Benefits paid from plan assets (1,023) (2,447)
Remeasurements gain (1,775) (2,449)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31 $ 58,471 62,862

Movements of the defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Company were as
follows:

2023 2022
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 40,477 38,059
Contributions made 1,424 1,699
Interest income 564 202
Benefits paid from plan assets (1,023) (2,447)
Remeasurements gain 303 2,964
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 41,745 40,477
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(d) Expenses recognized in profit or loss
The expenses recognized in profit or loss for the Company were as follows:

2023 2022

Net interest of net liabilities for the defined benefit
obligations $ 293 146

(e) Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Discount rate 1.2504% 1.3636%
Future salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit plans
for the one-year period after the reporting date for 2023 is $1,699.

The weighted-average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 12 years.
(F)  Sensitivity analysis

The Company’ s remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as of years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $20,948 and $22,385, respectively. If the future
salary increase rate rises or falls by 0.25%, net defined benefit liability would have increase
by $1,661 and $1,775 or decrease by $1,607 and $1,715, respectively.

Defined contribution plansl

The Company allocates 6% of each employee” s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension
Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to the
Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance
amounted to $28,317 and $29,376 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Foreign subsidiaries within the Group have also set up defined contribution plans, as necessary,
in accordance with the regulations in respective countries. The pension costs incurred from the
foreign subsidiaries amounted to $41,796 and $42,357 for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.
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(19) Income taxes

A.

Income tax expenses

The components of income tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

2023 2022
Current tax expense
Current period $ 129,404 129,207
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (667) 4,768
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - (7,054)
(667) (2,286)
Income tax expense excluding tax on sale of discontinued
operation $ 128,737 126,921

The amounts of income tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements $ (9,777) 10,960

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 is as follows:

2023 2022

Profit before income tax $ 839,240 717,501
Income tax using the Company’ s domestic tax rate 167,848 143,500
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 88,042 34,756
Gain on investments accounted for equity method and

permanent differences (132,604) (81,154)
Tax incentives (9,506) -
Current-year losses for which no deferred tax asset was

recognized - 12,460
Change in provision in prior periods 14,957 17,359
Total $ 128,737 126,921

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The R.O.C. Income Tax Act allows net losses, as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset
taxable income over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes.
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As of December 31, 2023, the information of the Taiwan Inpaq Electronic Co., Ltd.” s unused
tax losses for which no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

Year of loss Unused tax loss Expiry date
2020 (assessed) $ 114,305 2030
2021 (filed) 112,694 2031
2022 (filed) 152,718 2032

$ 379,717

The tax authority decided to exclude a tax losses of $62,302 and $83,345 from the 2019 profit
seeking enterprise income tax return filed by the Company and Taiwan Inpaq Electronic Co,
Ltd.. However, the Company and Taiwan Inpag Electronic Co, Ltd. disagreed on this decision
and filed an appeal to the tax authority on September 14, 2022. Both of the appeals were rejected
by the Ministry of Finance on February 23, 2023 and March 23, 2023.As of December 31, 2023,
the Group had not recognized deferred income tax assets for the above tax losses.

(@) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. Also,
management considers it probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Hence, such temporary differences are not recognized under deferred
tax liabilities amounting $271,849 and $137,625, respectively.

(b) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognized in Recognized in
Recognized other Recognized other
Deferred Tax January 1, in profitor comprehensive December  in profitor comprehensive December
Assets 2022 loss income 31, 2022 loss income 31,2023

Inventory valuation

losses $ 16,484 (1,379) - 17,863 (2,281) - 20,144
Unrealized foreign

exchange loss 387 (533) - 920 (13,840) - 14,760
Loss carryforward 84,745 (7,054) - 91,799 15,856 - 75,943
Foreign currency

translation

differences for

foreign

operations 20,385 - 10,960 9,425 - 9,777) 19,202
Others 5,067 93 - 4,974 2,813 - 2,161

$ 127,068 (8,873) 10,960 124,981 2,548 (9,777) 132,210
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Recognized in Recognized in
Recognized other Recognized other
Deferred Tax January 1, in profitor comprehensive December  inprofitor comprehensive December
Liabilities 2022 loss income 31, 2022 loss income 31, 2023

Recognized directly

in equity $  (210,290) 5,888 - (216,178) (1,662) - (214,516)
Acquisition of

subsidiary-Proper

ty, plant and

equipment (276) 2,425 - (2,701) (2,488) - (213)
Acquisition of

subsidiary-Intang

ible asset (6.070) (1.726) - (4,344) 935 - (5,279)

$  (216,636) 6,587 - (223,223) (3,215) - (220,008)

C. The Company’ s tax returns have been assessed by the tax authorities through 2019.
(20) Capital and other equity
A. Ordinary shares

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the authorized ordinary shares of the Company amounted to
$3,000,000, included the shares reserved for exercising of employee share options of $150,000.
The issued ordinary share capital with a par value of $10 per share amounted to $1,489,803 and
$1,401,803 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

On June 30, 2023, the Company’ s Board of Directors approved the issuance of 8,800
thousands ordinary shares for cash, with par value of $10 per share, amounting to $88,000. The
price issued per share was $45, amounting to $396,000 (amount received after deducting the
related issuance cost of $2,985 is $393,015). The Company has received approval from the
Financial Supervisory Commission for this capital increase on August 4, 2023, with September
13, 2023 as the date of capital increase. The relevant statutory registration procedures have since
been completed.

Reconciliation of shares outstanding for 2023 and 2022 was as follows (in thousands of shares):

Ordinary shares

2023 2022
Balance on January 1 140,136 140,136
Add: Issued for cash 8,800 -
Add: Exercise of share options 45 -
Balance of December 31 148,981 140,136
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B. Capital surplus

The balances of capital surplus as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Premium of common stock $ 2,977,270 2,667,877
Treasury shares transferred to employees 136,808 135,745
Premium of corporate bonds converted to common stock 15,722 15,722
Stock options —fair value differences of associates under
equity method 16,570 16,570
Convertible bonds payable 94,718 -
Donation from shareholders 1,917 1,917
Effect of capital increase of associates 1,152 1,152
$ 3,244,157 2,838,983

According to the R.0.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed
10% of the total common stock outstanding.

C. Retained earnings

The Company’ s article of incorporation stipulate that Company’ s net earnings should first be
used to offset the prior years’ deficits, if any, before paying any income taxes. Of the

remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal reserve, and then any remaining profit
together with any undistributed retained earnings shall be distributed according to the
distribution plan proposed by the Board of Directors and submitted to the stockholders’

meeting for approval.
(@) Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’

meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and only
the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.
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(b) Special reserve

(©)

The Company chose to apply the exemption under IFRS 1 - “First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards™ at its initial adoption of IFRS Accounting
Standards. The cumulative translations adjustments originally reported under
shareholders”  equity were reclassified to retained earnings , amounting to $46,817. The
net increase in retained earnings due to the first adoption of IFRS 1 on the conversion date
was $9,173. The Company shall allocate the same amount in special reserve in accordance
with the requirements issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission. When there is any
subsequent use, disposal, or reclassification of the relevant assets, the Company may
reverse and proportionately appropriate the earnings distribution originally allocated to
special reserve. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the aforementioned special reserve
both amounted to $9,173.

In accordance with abovementioned ruling, a portion of current period earnings and
undistributed prior period earnings shall be reclassified as special earnings reserve during
earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified should equal the current period total net
reduction of other shareholders’ equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior period
earnings shall be reclassified as special earnings reserve (and does not qualify for earnings
distribution) to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders’  equity pertaining
to prior periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other
shareholders”  equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

Earnings distribution

Earnings distribution for 2022 and 2021 was decided by the resolution adopted, at the
general meeting of shareholders held on June 16, 2023 and June 14, 2022 as follows:

2022 2021
Amount per Total Amount per

Total amount share amount share
Appropriation legal reserve$ 59,710 58,402
Appropriation of special 127,315 64,458
reserve
Cash dividends 238,307 1.70 84,081 0.60

$ 425,332 206,941

In addition, on June 14, 2022, the Company passed the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting to distribute cash dividends of $84,081 to the capital surplus in excess of par value,
at a rate of $0.6 per share. The resolution was passed in accordance with Article 241,
paragraph 1, subparagraph 1 of the Company Act.

The appropriation of earnings distribution is consistent with the resolutions approved by the
Board of Directors.

The related information is available on the Market Observation Post System website.
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Other comprehensive income accumulated in reserves, net of tax

Exchange
differences on
translation of

foreign financial

Unrealized
gains (losses)
from financial
assets measured
at fair value
through other

comprehensive  Non-controlling

statements income interest Total

Balance at January 1, 2023 $ (149,223) (97,005) 49,275 (196,953)
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign financial statements (38,882) - - (38,882)
Share of other comprehensive income

of associates accounted for using

equity method (228) - - (228)
Unrealized gains (losses) from

financial assets measured at fair

value through other comprehensive

income - 87,453 - 87,453
Disposal of investments in equity

instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - (42,495) - (42,495)
Changes in non-controlling interest - - (4,496) (4,496)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ (188,333) (52,047) 44,779 (195,601)
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (191,285) 72,372 - (118,913)
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign financial statements 47,203 - - 47,203
Unrealized gains (losses) from

financial assets measured at fair

value through other comprehensive

income - (169,109) - (169,109)
Disposal of investments in equity

instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - (865) - (865)
Disposal of subsidiaries or investments

accounted for using equity method (5.141) 597 - (4,544)
Changes in non-controlling interest - - 49,275 49,275
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ (149,223) (97,005) 49,275 (196,953)
Treasury stock

The Company implements the treasury stock system, and the reasons for the repurchase were

listed as follows:

Unit: Thousand shares

2023

Outstanding at

Granted

Exercised

Outstanding at

Reason January 1 during the year during the year December 31
Transferred to
employee 45 - 45 -
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2022
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Outstanding at
Reason January 1 during the year during the year December 31
Transferred to
employee 45 - - 45

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares held by the
Group should not be pledged, and do not hold any shareholder rights before their transfer.

In February 2023, the Company transferred $1,419 treasury shares to employee. The Company
used Black-Scholes option pricing model in measuring the fair value of the share-based payment
at the grant date. The Company recognized compensation cost amounting to $1,066 for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

F. Cash capital increase reserved for employee subscription

On June 30, 2023, the Company’ s Board of Directors approved to reserve part of the cash

capital increase shares for employee subscription. The Company used Black-Scholes option
pricing model in measuring the fair value of the share-based payment at the grant date. The
compensation cost arising from cash capital increase is $4,378.

(21) Earnings per share

The details on the calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022
Basic earnings per share:

Net profit for the period attributable to the Company $ 714,999 590,929

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January (in thousands of

shares) 140,136 140,136

Add: Exercise of share options 40 -

Add: Issued for cash 2,652 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in

thousands of shares) $ 142,828 140,136
Basic earnings per share $ 5.01 4.22
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2023 2022
Diluted earnings per share:
Net profit $ 714,999 590,929
Add: Interest expense on convertible bonds, net of tax 828 -
Net profit for the period attributable to the
Company $ 715,827 590,929
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in
thousands of shares) (basic) 142,828 140,136
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Effect of employee share bonus 606 992
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds 375 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in
thousands of shares) (diluted) 143,809 141,128
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.98 4.19
(22) Revenue from contracts with customers
A. Major products lines and primary geographical markets
2023 2022
High High
frequency Passive frequency Passive
component  component component  component
department  department Total department department Total
China $ 2,375,916 1,734,715 4,110,631 2,286,667 1,397,963 3,684,630
Taiwan 229,193 305,129 534,322 324,760 295,863 620,623
Hong Kong 387,088 396,857 783,945 245,680 350,038 595,718
Others 603,649 571,514 1,175,163 684,550 701,550 1,386,100

$ 3,595,846 3,008,215 6,604,061 3,541,657 2,745,414 6,287,071

B. Contract balances
For details on notes and accounts receivables, and loss allowance, please refer to note 6(3).
(23) Employee compensation and directors’  remuneration

In accordance with the articles of incorporation the Company should contribute no less than 5% of
the profit as employee remuneration and less than 3% as directors’ remuneration when there is

profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved
to offset the deficit. The amount of remuneration of each director will have to be approved by the
Board of Directors. The recipients of shares and cash may include the employees of the Company’ s

affiliated companies who meet certain conditions.
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For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company estimated its employee
remuneration amounting to $40,754 and $37,004, and directors’ remuneration amounting to
$16,301 and $14,802, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated based on
the net profit before tax, excluding the remuneration employees and directors of each period,
multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees and directors as specified in the
Company’ s articles. These remunerations were expensed under operating costs or operating
expenses during 2023 and 2022. The numbers of shares to be distributed for 2023 and 2022 were
calculated based on the closing price of the Company’ s ordinary shares on the day before the date
of the board meeting. If there is any change on the actual amount incurred and estimated amount, this
shall be accounted for change in accounting estimates and recognized as profit or loss in the
following year.

The employee and directors’  remuneration for the year 2022 and 2021 were approved by the Board
of Directors on February 23, 2023 and February 22, 2022. For the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, the employee remuneration amounting to $37,004 and $34,982, and directors’
remuneration amounting to $14,802 and $13,993, respectively, both were paid in cash. The
appropriation of remunerations were in agreement with those amounts recognized in the 2022 and
2021 financial statements. The related information is available on the Market Observation Post
System website.

(24) Non-operating income and expenses

A. Interest income

Note: For related party transactions, please refer to note 7.

2023 2022
Interest income from bank deposits $ 87,515 23,861
Interest income from financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income 21,408 7,612
Others 60 50
$ 108,983 31,523
B. Other gains and losses
2023 2022
Dividend income (Note) $ 1,626 18,057
Sample mold revenue 2,965 4,296
Technical service revenue 4,114 12,105
Government grant 3,574 5,516
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (4,131) (8,188)
Valuation losses on financial assets and financial
liabilities (2,023) -
Others (9,260) (6,375)
(3,135) 25,411
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C. Finance costs

2023 2022
Interest expense on borrowings $ 49,187 24,642
Interest expenses on bonds 1,035 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note) 797 1,375
$ 51,019 26,017

Note: For related party transactions, please refer to note 7.

(25) Financial instruments

A. Credit risk

(@)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum
amount exposed to credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group has a large customer base located in diverse areas and does not significantly
concentrate on transactions with a single customer; therefore, there was no concentration of
credit risk. In order to reduce credit risk, the Group also regularly and continuously
evaluates the financial situation of its customers, but usually does not require customers to
provide any collateral.

Receivables and debt securities
For credit risk exposure of notes and accounts receivables, please refer to note 6(3).

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include time deposits with maturities of more
than three months and investments in bonds, please refer to note 6(5) for details of relevant
investments.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, please refer to note
6(2).

All of these financial assets are considered to have low credit risk, and thus, the impairment
provision recognized during the period was limited to 12-month expected credit losses.
Regarding how the financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk, please refer
to note4(6).
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Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated

interest payments.

December 31, 2023

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Short-term borrowings $

Long-term borrowings
(including current
portion)

Notes and accounts
payables (including
related parties)

Salary and bonus
payable

Payable on machinery

and equipment
Convertible bonds
payable
Lease liabilities
(current and
non-current)

Guarantee deposits
received

December 31, 2022

Non derivative financial
liabilities

Short-term borrowing $

Long-term borrowings
(including current
portion)

Notes and accounts
payables (including
related parties)

Salary and bonus
payable

Payable on machinery
and equipment

Lease liabilities
(current and
non-current)

Guarantee deposits
received

Carrying Contractual Within 6 6-12 Over 5
amount  cash flows  months months 1-2years 2-5years years
419,329 422,671 202,312 220,359 - - -
1,865,694 1,960,522 214,376 234,777 516,439 872,542 122,388
1,076,289 1,076,289 1,076,289 - - - -
273,137 273,137 273,137 - - - -
126,701 126,701 126,701 - - - -
662,742 700,000 - - - 700,000 -
39,576 41,288 7,383 6,647 5,192 12,366 9,700
6,122 6,122 - - 6,122 - -
$ 4,469,590 4,606,730 1,900,198 461,783 527,753 1,584,908 132,088
100,000 100,246 100,246 - - - -
2,621,715 2,741,894 127,458 262,526 876,554 1,299,468 175,888
856,346 856,346 856,346 - - - -
254,916 254,916 254,916 - - - -
121,767 121,767 121,767 - - - -
41,640 43,813 6,092 4,694 5,838 13,530 13,659
6,122 6,122 - - 6,122 - -
$ 4,002,506 4,125,104 1,466,825 267,220 888,514 1,312,998 189,547

Except for the early repayment of some long-term borrowings, the Group does not expect the
cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur significantly earlier or at significantly

different amounts.
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Foreign currency risk
(@) Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Group’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk were as follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD
Financial assets
Monetary items
usb $ 138,924 30.7350 4,269,829
JPY 509,316 0.2171 110,573
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
usb 29,377 30.7350 902,902
JPY 533,835 0.2171 115,896
December 31, 2022
Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD
Financial assets
Monetary items
usD $ 92,902 30.7100 2,853,020
JPY 19,611 0.2324 4,558
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
usD 4,758 30.7100 146,118
JPY 58,003 0.2324 13,480

(b) Sensitivity analysis

The Group® s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the foreign currency exchange
gains and losses resulted from the translation of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and
other receivables (including related parties), financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, short-term borrowings, and accounts payables (including related
parties) which are denominated in foreign currencies. A strengthening (weakening) of 1%
of the TWD against the USD and the JPY as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, would have
increased or decreased the net profit after tax by $26,893 thousand and $21,584 thousand,
respectively. The analysis assumed that all other variables remain constant, and is
performed on the same basis for both periods.
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(c) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items

Since the Group has different functional currencies, the information on foreign exchange
gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed in aggregate amount. For the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, foreign exchange gain (loss) (including realized and
unrealized portions) amounted to $16,539 and $189,898, respectively.

Other market price risk

The sensitivity analyses for the changes in securities price at the reporting date were performed
using the same basis for the profit and loss as illustrated below:

2023 2022
Other
Other comprehensive
Prices of securities at the comprehensive income after
reporting date income after tax ~ Net Income tax Net Income
Increasing 5% $ 19,476 1,902 18,173 -
Decreasing 5% $ (19,476) (1,902) (18,173) -

Fair value of financial instruments
(@) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured on a
recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’ s financial assets and
liabilities, including the information on fair value hierarchy were as follows; however,
except as described in the following paragraphs, for financial instruments not measured at
fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the fair value, and lease liabilities,
disclosure of fair value information is not required:

December 31, 2023

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Foreign funds $ 26,657 26,657 - - 26,657
Foreign stocks 20,883 20,883 - - 20,883
3 47,540 47,540 - - 47,540
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Corporate bonds $ 444,268 444,268 - - 444,268
Stocks in unlisted domestic
companies 42,637 - - 42,637 42,637
$ 486,905 444,268 - 42,637 486,905
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December 31, 2023

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,522,821 - - -
Notes and accounts receivables
(including related parties) 2,456,753 - - - -
Time deposits and others 574,381 - - - -
Foreign bonds 218,574 - - - -
Refundable deposits 42,000 - - - -
$ 5,814,529 -
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss $ 2,374 - 2,374 - 2,374
Financial liabilities at amortized
cost
Short-term borrowings $ 419,329 - - - -
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) 1,865,694 - - - -
Notes and accounts payables
(including related parties) 1,076,289 - - - -
Salary and bonus payable 273,137 - - - -
Payable on machinery and
equipment 126,701 - - - -
Convertible bonds payable 662,742 - 819,000 - 819,000
Lease liabilities (current and
non-current) 39,576 - - - -
Guarantee deposits received 6,122 - - - -
$ 4,469,590 - 819,000 - 819,000
December 31, 2022
Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Bond investments $ 222,944 222,944 - - 222,944
Stocks in listed domestic
companies 198,934 198,934 - - -
Stocks in unlisted domestic
companies 32,436 - - 32,436 32,436
$ 454314 421,878 - 32,436 454,314
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December 31, 2022

Fair Value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Book Value
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,837,820
Notes and accounts receivables
(including related parties) 2,125,262
Time deposits and others 475,460
Refundable deposits 46,935
$ 4485477
Financial liabilities at amortized
cost
Short-term borrowings $ 100,000
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) 2,621,715
Notes and accounts payables
(including related parties) 856,346
Salary and bonus payable 254,916
Payable on machinery and
equipment 121,767
Lease liabilities (current and
non-current) 41,640
Guarantee deposits received 6,122
$ 4,002,506

(b) Valuation techniques for financial instruments not measured at fair value

(©

The Group estimates its financial instruments not measured at fair value using the

following methods and assumptions:

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

If there is quoted price generated by transactions, the recent transaction price and quoted
price data is used as the basis for fair value measurement. However, if no quoted prices are

available, the discounted cash flows are used to estimate fair values.
Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

(i)  Non-derivative financial instruments

The Group held its foreign listed US dollar corporate bonds and domestic listed
company stocks, which are measured at fair value according to standard provisions and
conditions; the fair value is measured using the quoted prices in an active market.
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Except for the above-mentioned financial instruments traded in active markets, the fair
value of other financial instruments is based on the valuation techniques or refer to
quoted price from counterparties. The fair value using valuation techniques refers to
the current fair value of other financial instruments with similar conditions and
characteristics, or using a discounted cash flow method, or other valuation techniques
including a model using observable market data at the reporting date.

The categories and nature of the fair value for the Group’ s financial instruments
which without an active market, the fair value for equity instruments which do not
have public quoted price is measured based on net asset value of comparable
companies. The main assumptions are based on the market multiples and net value of
assets. The market multiples derived from the net value per share of investees and
quoted price of EV/EBIT’ s comparable listed companies. The net asset value method
reflects the overall value of the enterprise by evaluating the total value of individual
assets and individual liabilities covered by the evaluation target. The estimated amount
has adjusted the discounted effect due to the lack of liquidity in market for equity
security.

Derivative financial instruments

Measurements of fair value of derivative instruments is based on the valuation
techniques generally accepted by market participants such as embedded
derivatives - call rights and put rights are used to evaluate financial instruments using
the binary tree convertible bond evaluation model.

There was no transfer between levels for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Financial assets
at FVOClI—equity

investments
without an active
market
Opening balance, January 1, 2023 $ 32,436
Purchased 2,500
Recognized in other comprehensive income 7,701
Ending balance, December 31, 2023 $ 42637
Opening balance, January 1, 2022 $ 53,052
Recognized in other comprehensive income (20,616)
Ending balance, December 31, 2022 $ 32,436

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’ s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value through
other comprehensive income — equity investments.
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The Group classified those third level of investment in non-active market equity
instruments with multiple significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable
input values of equity instrument investment without an active market are independent of
each other, hence, there is no correlation.

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable
inputs and fair value

Items Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs measurement
Financial assets at fair Market Method « Price-book ratios (14.91 and + The higher the price-book
value through other 13.49 at Dec 31, 2023 and Dec ratio, the higher the fair
com_pre_henswe income 31, 2022, respectively.) value
\?\ﬂgt:to{lltna\fzmigts + Discount rate (22.42% and + The higher the discount

25.00% at Dec 31, 2023 and rate, the lower the fair
market i

Dec 2022, respectively.) value
Financial assets at fair Net Asset Value + Net asset value  The higher the net assets,
value through other Method - Discount rate (9% and 15% at  the higher the fair valuee
comprehensive income Dec 31,2023 and Dec 2022, + The higher the discount
equity investments res ectivel ) ’ rate, the lower the fair
without an active P Y- vaIL;e

market
(26) Financial risk management
A. Overview
The Group is exposed to the following risks from its financial instrument:
(@)  creditrisk
(b)  liquidity risk
()  market risk

The following likewise discusses the Group® s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing the abovementioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative effects of
these risks exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

B. Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework. The Group’ s establishment of the risk management policy is to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, through setting appropriate risk limits and
controls, and supervising the compliance of risks and risk limits. Risk management policies and
systems are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and operations of the
management of the Group.
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The Group’ s financial management department provides services for various business units
and to coordinate access to the domestic and international financial markets operation, and
supervises and manages the financial risks related to the operation of the Group by analyzing
internal risk reports based on risk level and breadth.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’ s exposure to credit risk for the
bank deposits, fixed income investments, and other financial instruments is measured and
monitored by the Group’ s finance department. The Group only deals with banks, financial
institutions and corporate organizations with good credit rating. The Group expects its
counterparties to meet their obligations; hence, there is no significant credit risk arising from
these counterparties.

The Group established a credit policy to obtain the necessary collateral to mitigate risks arising
from financial loss due to default risk. The Group will transact with corporations having credit
ratings equivalent to investment grade, and such ratings are provided by independent rating
agencies. When it is not possible to obtain such information, the Group will assess the ratings
based on other publicly available financial information and records of transactions with its major
customers. The Group continuously monitors the exposure to credit risk and counterparty credit
ratings, and establish sales limits based on the credit rating for each of its approved customer.
The credit limits for each counterparty are approved and reviewed annually by the management
of the Group.

The Group’ s policy stipulates that only fully owned subsidiaries can be provided with financial
guarantees. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 an, the Group only provided endorsement
guarantee to its subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’ s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’ s reputation.

The Group manages sufficient cash and cash equivalents so as to cope with its operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group’ s management supervises the
banking facilities and ensures compliance with the terms of loan agreements.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, and equity prices, that will affect the Group’ s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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(@) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’ s

entities, the currencies used in these transactions are the TWD, USD, RMB, EUR and JPY.

Loan interest is priced in the currency of the principal of the loan. Except for the US dollars,
the currency of the loan is the same as the currency of the cash flow generated by the
operation of the Group, which is mainly is the New Taiwan dollar. In this case, economic
hedging is provided without the need to sign derivatives, so hedging accounting is not
adopted.

Regarding other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, when
short-term imbalance occurs, the Group buys or sells foreign currencies at real-time
exchange rates to ensure that the net risk of risk remains at an acceptable level.

(b) Interest rate risk

The short-term and long-term borrowings of the Group are carried at floating interest rates.
Therefore, changes in market interest rates will cause the effective interest rates of
short-term and long-term borrowings to change accordingly, which will cause fluctuations
in future cash flows.

(c) Other market price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk due to the investments in equity securities. This is
a strategic investment and is not held for trading. The Group does not actively trade in these
investments as the management of the Group minimizes the risk by holding different
investment portfolios.

(27) Capital management

The Group’ s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate, to

continue to provide a return on shareholders, to maintain the interest of other related parties, and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Although the Group’ s life cycle is in a stable growth stage of operation, the industry of the Group is
changeable, and it is deemed as technology intensive industry; hence, a material amount of capital is
needed to sustain its development. The retained surplus must be used to respond to operating growth
and investment needs. At this stage, a residual dividend policy is adopted. The cash dividends
distributed by shareholder dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total distribution.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure semi-annually, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to its shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to settle any liabilities.

There were no changes in the Group’ s approach to capital management during the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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The Group’ s debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period as of December 31, 2023 and
2022 is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Total liabilities $ 5,151,604 4,670,150
Less: cash and cash equivalents and over three-month period

time deposit (3,062,394) (2,302,096)
Net debt $ 2,089,210 2,368,054
Total equity $ 6,887,036 5,869,827
Debt-to-equity ratio 30.34% 40.34%

Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group® s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow in the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

A. For right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6(9).
B. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash changes

Foreign
January 1, Cash exchange December31
2023 flows movement  Acquisition , 2023

Short-term borrowings $ 100,000 319,617 (288) - 419,329
Long-term borrowings (including

current portion) 2,621,715 (756,100) - 79 1,865,694

Lease liabilities (current and

non-current) 41,640 (19,068) - 17,004 39,576

Converctible bonds payable - 758,169 - (95,427) 662,742

$ 2763355 302,618 (288) (78,344) 2,987,341

Non-cash changes December
Foreign
January 1, Cash exchange December
2022 flows movement  Acquisition 31, 2022

Short-term borrowings $ 152,290 (53,487) 1,197 - 100,000
Long-term borrowings (including

current portion) 1,457,023 1,180,870 - (16,178) 2,621,715

Lease liabilities (current and
non-current) 118,759 (27,359) - (49,760) 41,640
$ 1,728,072 1,100,024 1,197 (65,938) 2,763,355
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7. Related-party transactions:

@)

)

Parent company and ultimate controlling company

Walsin Technology Corporation (“Walsin™) obtained a substantial control over the Group; therefore,
became the parent company of the Group. Walsin has issued its consolidated financial statements

available for public use.

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered in

the consolidated financial statements:

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

Inpag Korea Co., Ltd. (Inpagq Korea)
Inpag Europe GmbH
Apaq Technology Co., Ltd. (Apaq)

Phoenix Innovation Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (Phoenix
Innovation)

Walsin Technology Corporation
Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. (Prosperity Dielectrics)
PDC Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (PDC Electronics)

Suzhou Walsin Technology Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Suzhou Walsin)

Dongguan Frontier Electronic Co., Ltd.
Kamaya Electric Co., Ltd. (Kamaya Electric)
Kamaya Electric (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Dongguan Huafai Trading Co., Ltd.

An associate
An associate
The entity’ s chairman is the board

member and CEO of the Company
(note 1)

The Company is a corporate
director of the entity

Parent Company

Subsidiary of Walsin
Subsidiary of Walsin
Subsidiary of Walsin

Subsidiary of Walsin
Subsidiary of Walsin
Subsidiary of Walsin
Subsidiary of Walsin

Dongguan Walsin Technology Electronics Co., Ltd. (Dongguan Subsidiary of Walsin

Walsin)
Frontier Components Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of Walsin

Walsin Passive Component (H.K.) Ltd. (Walsin Passive (H.K.)) Subsidiary of Walsin
Walsin Technology Corporation (HK) Ltd. (Walsin Technology Subsidiary of Walsin

HK)

Prosperity Frontier Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.(Prosperity Subsidiary of Walsin

Frontier Electronics (Shenzhen))
Joyin Co., Ltd. (Joyin) (note 2)
Vvg Inc.

Hannstar Board Corporation
Info-Tek Corporation (Info-Tek)
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Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

PSA Charitable Foundation
Career Technology (Mfg) Co., Ltd.

Other related party of Walsin
Other related party of Walsin

Note 1: The Company sold its entire shares of Apaq in the second quarter of 2023. Besides, the

board member and CEO of the Company (who is the
Company in the third quarter of 2023. Thus, Apaq is
since then.

chairman of Apaq) retired from the
not a related party of the Company

Note 2: On July 1, 2022, the Company sold its entire shares of Joyin to Prosperity Dielectrics Co.,

Ltd. Joyin became an associate of Walsin since then.
Significant transactions with related parties

A. Sales

The amounts of significant sales by the Group to its related parties were as follows:

Associates $
Parent company
Other related parties:

Walshin Passive (H.K.)

Suzhou Walsin

Walsin Technology HK

Dongguan Walsin

Prosperity Dielectrics

Others

2023 2022

109,080 98,508

47,182 50,089

213,016 105,681

89,369 155,360

84,974 35,773

17,492 144,709

17,221 15,718

19,944 28,889

$ 598,278 634,727

The terms and pricing of sales transactions with related parties were not significantly different

from those offered by other customers.

B. Purchases and processing fees

The amounts of significant purchases by the Group from related parties were as follows:

Parent company $
Other related parties:
PDC Electronics
Prosperity Dielectrics
Others

2023 2022
1,250 2,688
42,577 68,754
31,892 40,163
5,342 17,795
$ 81,061 129,400

The terms and pricing of purchase transactions with related parties were not significantly

different from those offered by other vendors.
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The amounts of significant processing fees by the Group to its related parties were as follows:

Other related parties:

Prosperity Dielectrics

Suzhon Walsin

Receivables from Related Parties

2023 2022

$ 758 -
- 695

$ 758 695

December 31, December 31,

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Accounts receivable Suzhou Walsin $ 18,068 64,851
Accounts receivable Walsin Passive (H.K.) 111,220 37,776
Accounts receivable Walsin Technology HK 17,874 32,486
Accounts receivable Parent company 20,328 17,862
Accounts receivable Inpag Europe GmbH 15,806 18,277
Accounts receivable Inpag Korea 13,038 16,298
Accounts receivable Prosperity Dielectrics 4,694 4,611
Accounts receivable Dongguan Walsin 1,667 9,039
Accounts receivable Others 1,895 4,984

$ 204,590 206,184

Payables to related parties

December 31, December 31,

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Accounts payables PDC Electronics $ 15,683 17,634
Accounts payables Prosperity Dielectrics 7,397 12,559
Accounts payables Suzhou Walsin 1,444 8,697
Accounts payables Others 3,085 818
Accounts payables Parent company 254 100

$ 27,863 39,808

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition Price

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Mechanical equipment Others $ - 158
Mechanical equipment Prosperity Frontier

Electronics (Shenzhen) 56,568 -

Mechanical equipment Parent company 210 -

Transportation equipment  Prosperity Dielectrics 1,198 -
$ 57,976 158
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F. Disposal of property, plant and equipment

G. Lease

Disposal price

2023 2022
Apaq $ - 1,317
Suzhou Walsin - 171
$ - 1,488

Gain from disposal

2023 2022
Apaq $ - 215
Suzhou Walsin - 129
$ - 344

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other income Info-Tek $ - 708
Rental expense Others $ 1,314 1,160
Interest expense Info-Tek $ - 619
Kamaya Electric 282 313
Parent company 31 25
$ 313 957

In 2022, the Group terminated the lease contract signed with Info-Tek, the lease liability
decreased by $54,543 and the right-of-use asset decrease by $53,835. The difference of $708
was recognized as gain on lease modification.

December 31,

December 31,

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Right-of-use assets Kamaya Electric $ 18,312 20,625
Parent company 2.712 3,834
21,024 24,459
Lease liability Kamaya Electric 18,583 20,783
Parent company 2,766 3,864
21,349 24,647
Refundable deposits Info-Tek 1,095 1,095
Kamaya Electric 379 379
$ 1474 1474
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H. Other
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other income Parent company $ 2,402 2,554
Suzhou Walsin 1,242 1,209
Others 17 3
Dividend income Apag - 9,553
Phoenix Innovation 1,626 8,504
5,287 21,823
Other expense Associate $ - 324
Parent company 156 6
Apaq - 1,081
Prosperity Frontier

Electronics (Shenzhen) 7,234 -
Others 2,165 2,975
Commission expense Inpag Korea 28,009 19,526
37,564 23,912
Other receivables Parent company $ 709 387

Suzhou Walsin 213 -
Others 17 456
Apaq - 1,382
939 2,225
Other payables Associate $ 9,190 7,752
Parent company 1,141 1,979
Others 1,863 283
Info-Tek - 198
$ 12,194 10,212

I. Disposal of investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group sold its entire of Joyin to the Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd.; please refer to note
6(6).

J.  Business combination

The Group acquired 72.9% of the shares of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. from Joyin, please
refer to note 6(7).

(4) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits 11,644 18,602
Post-employment benefits 170 216
Other benefits 292 490
$ 12,106 19,308
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Pledged assets:

The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

Pledged assets Object 2023 2022

Time deposit (classified as Tariff guarantee

refundable deposits) 19,798 14,677
Time deposit (classified as Guarantee for plant lease

refundable deposits) 9,331 9,331
Land Short-term borrowings 186,866 -
Land and buildings Long-term borrowings 812,217 -

1,028,212 24,008

Significant commitments and contingencies

@)

approximately $59,500 and $264,400, respectively.

)

The contracted and unpaid construction cost of the Group on December 31, 2023 and 2022 were

The Group signed a non-cancellable procurement contract with iPU Semiconductor Co., Ltd. ("iPU")

on December 31, 2021, wherein the Group shall purchase the agreed number of wafers from iPU
from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2023. In addition, the Group provided a production capacity
deposit of $9,823 (US$350,000 thousand) to guarantee the basic production capacity during the

agreement period. The deposit was accounted for as current financial

assets at amortised cost. The

non-interest bearing deposit will be refunded to the Group two weeks after the Group achieves the
stipulated purchase quantity. The deposit was refunded by iPU on January 5, 2024.

Losses due to major disasters: none

Subsequent events: none

Other:

A summary of current-period employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as follows:

For the year ended December 31

2023 2022

e G [T | o | G [ B | o
Employee benefits

Salary 649,075 501,916/ 1,150,991 625,035 511,538/ 1,136,573
Labor and health insurance 66,053 38,916 104,969 65,830 41,996 107,826
Pension 41,039 31,923|72,962(Note) 40,865 31,014 71,879
Others 45,702 18,308 64,010 43,244 18,334 61,578
Depreciation 347,095 79,511 426,606 336,820 73,021 409,841
/Amortization 3,353 16,055 19,408 3,247 18,482 21,729

Note: Includes a pension of $2,556 paid to retired employees in the current year.

192



13. Other disclosures

(1) Information on significant transactions:

The following is the information on significant transactions of the Group required by the

Inpag Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”

A. Loans to other parties:

“Regulations Governing the

Highest
balance Actual | Range of |Purposes|Transaction Collateral
of usage interest .Of fu_nd amount for | Reasons Ind!wdual Maximum
. . . financing - /Allowance| funding loan|,. .
Name of Account |Related | financing | Ending | amount rates business for .Y limit of fund
No. |Name of lender : : for the for bad limits X -
borrower name party | toother | balance |[during the|during the between two|short-term financing
. . : borrower . ; : debt Item Value (note 1)
parties period period (note 2) parties | financing (note 1)
during the
period
0 [The Company [Taiwan Ipaq Receivables-| Yes 750,000 700,000{ 680,000 (1.73%~ 2 Operating NIL 700,000| 1,710,564| 2,736,903
Electronic Co., [related party 2.867%
Ltd.
0 [The Company [Inpagq USA Receivables-{ Yes 47,145 30,735| 21,515[3.00% 2 Operating NIL 30,735 1,710,564| 2,736,903
related party ~4.00%

Note 1: a. According to the financing company’ s financial management clauses, the financing limit of the Company in
aggregate is 40% of net equity. An entity which has business transactions with the Company or related parties:

(1) For companies or entities with short-term financing needs, in which the Company directly holds 50% of the
voting shares, the financing limit is 25% of the Company’ s net equity.

(2) For other companies or entities, and those fund loans approved by the Company’ s Board of Directors, the
financing limit is both 10% of the Company’ s net equity.

b. According to the financing company’ s financial management clauses, for financing between foreign companies,

in which the Company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares, the financing limit for each borrower
and the aggregate financing limit are both 40% of net equity.

Note 2: 1. relate to business relationship.
2. relate to short-term financing.
B. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

Ratio of
Counter-party of Limitation on |Highest balance| Balance of Property | accumulated Parent Subsidiary |Endorsements/|
guarantee and .
endorsement amount of for guarantees [Actual usage| pledged for | amounts of | Maximum company |endorsements/ guarantees to
lguarantees and| guarantees and and amount guarantees |guarantees and| amount for |endorsements/| guarantees | third parties
No. Name of endorsements| endorsements | endorsements | during the and endorsements| guarantees | guarantees to |to third parties| on behalf of
guarantor Relationship| for a specific during as of period  |endorsements|to net worth of] and third parties | on behalf of | companies in
Name with the enterprise the period reporting date (Amount) the latest  |endorsements| on behalf of parent Mainland
Company (Note 1) financial (Note 2) subsidiary company China
statements
0 ([The Inpaq Indirect 1,368,451 230,550 199,778 2.92% 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company  [Technology subsidiary
(China) Co., lof the
Ltd. Company
0 [The Inpaq Indirect 1,368,451 307,400 % 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company  [Technology subsidiary
(Suzhou) Co., |of the
Ltd. Company
0 ([The Taiwan Inpaq [Indirect 1,368,451 900,000 900,000 13.15% 2,736,903 Y N N
Company  [Electronic Co., [subsidiary
Ltd. lof the
Company
0 [The Hunan Frontier |Indirect 1,368,451 184,440 122,940 1.80% 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company  [Electronics Co., [subsidiary
Ltd. lof the
Company

Note 1: The total amount of guarantee provided to any individual entity shall not exceed 20% of Inpaq’ s equity.

Note 2: The total amount of guarantee provided shall not exceed 40% of Inpaq’ s equity.
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C. Securities held as of December 31, 2023 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures):

D.

Relationship Ending balance Highest
Name of Category and name | . . . Percentage off
holder of security with company Account title Shares/Units Carrying value Percenta_tge of Fair value | ownership
(thousands) ownership (%) (%)
The Corporate bonds — NA Financial assets at amortised 10,000 123,823 - % 127,161 - %
Company  [Union Bank of cost—non-current
Switzerland
The Corporate NA Financial assets at amortised 30,000 94,751 - % 94,547 - %
Company  |bonds —Unitedhealth cost —non-current
The IAICP Technology NA Financial assets at fair value 600,000 6,942 8.00% 6,942 8.00%
Company  [Corporation—Stock through other
comprehensive
income —non-current
The Phoenix Innovation The Company [Financial assets at fair value 3,000,000 32,370 9.38% 32,370 9.38%
Company  Venture Capital Co., through other
Ltd.-Stock comprehensive
income —non-current
The PAN WIN NA Financial assets at fair value 100,000 - 5.00% - 5.00%
Company  |Biotechnology through other
Inc.-Stock comprehensive income —
non-current
The Silitech Technology NA Financial assets at fair value 250,000 3,325 5.00% 3,325 5.00%
Company |Corporation through other
comprehensive
income —non-current
The Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 7,500 21,818 - % 21,818 - %
Company  |bonds —Microsoft through other
Corporation comprehensive
income —non-current
The Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 27,500 77,276 - % 77,276 - %
Company  |bonds —Apple Inc. through other
comprehensive
income —non-current
The Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 41,391 - % 41,391 - %
Company  |bonds —Amazon.com, through other
Inc. comprehensive
income —non-current
The Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 43,225 - % 43,225 - %
Company  |bonds —Saudi Arabian through other
Oil Co. comprehensive
income —non-current
Inpag (BVI) (Corporate bonds — NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 45,061 - % 45,061 - %
Bank of America through other
comprehensive
income —non-current
Inpag (BVI) [Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 70,000 215,497 - % 215,497 - %
bonds —Commonwealth through other
Bank of Australia comprehensive
income —non-current
Inpaq (BVI) [Liquid funds — NA Financial assets at fair value 1,600 5,599 - % 5,599 - %
Morgan Stanley through profit or loss —
current
Inpaq (BVI) Japanese stock — NA Financial assets at fair value 3,089 21,058 - % 21,058 - %
GLG Japan Corealpha through profit or loss —
non-current
Inpag (BVI) Japanese NA Financial assets at fair value 21,300 10,303 - % 10,303 - %
stock —Marubeni Corp. through profit or loss —
non-current
Inpaq (BVI) Japanese stock — NA Financial assets at fair value 9,200 10,580 - % 10,580 - %
Mitsui Co. Ltd., through profit or loss —
non-current

Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of TWD 300 million or 20% of
the capital stock: None
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Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD 300 million or 20% of the capital stock:

If the counter-party is a related party, References | Purpose of
Relationship|  disclose the previous transfer information for acquisition
Name of Name of |Transaction|Transaction| Status of |Counter-part| with the Relationship determining | and current | Others
- Date of . -,
company property date amount | payment y Company | Owner with the transfer Amount price condition
Company
The New lAugust 21, 469,819 469,819 [Engtown Non-related | None None None - Bidding | Operation | None
Company [construction (2020 Construction [party
of Zhunan Corporation
Second Plant

Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD 300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None

Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of 100 million or 20% of the capital

stock:
. . Transactions with terms | Notes/Accounts receivable
Transaction details different from others (payable)
Related Nature of Percentage Percentage of
Name of company - . Purchase/ . total Note
party relationship Amount of total Payment T Payment Ending
(Sale) Unit price notes/accounts
purchases/ terms terms balance .
receivable
sales (payable)
'The Company Inpaq Subsidiaries Sales (689,000) (10)% (60 days after - Note 229,295 9%
Technology indirectly hold month end
(China) Co., Ltd. [100% by the
Company
Inpag Technology [The Company  [Parent company Sale (857,656) (13)% (60 days after - Note 212,127 9%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. month end
Inpaq Technology [Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries Sale (328,953) (5)% 60 days after - Note 108,666 4%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. indirectly hold month end
100% by the
Company
Inpaq Technology |Walshin Passive |Affiliated Sales (213,016) (3)% 60 days after - Note 111,220 5%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. [(H.K) company month end
Inpaq Technology [The Company |Parent company|  Sales (531,585) (8)% 60 days after - Note 94,230 4%
(China) Co., Ltd. month end
Inpaq Technology |Inpaq Subsidiaries Sales (297,126) (4)% 60 days after - Note 38,321 2%
(China) Co., Ltd. [Technology indirectly hold month end
(Suzhou) Co., 100% by the
Ltd Company
Hunan Frontier The Company  [Parent company|  Sales (234,209) (4)% 60 days after - Note 59,461 2%
Electronics Co., month end
Ltd.

Note: The Group’ s sales price and credit term for related parties are not significantly different from those of the third

parties.

Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of TWD 100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

Name of Nature of Ending Turnover Overdue Amounts received in|  Allowance
. . . subsequent period
company Counter-party relationship balance rate (%) Amount | Action taken (note) for bad debts
'The Company Inpag Technology [Subsidiaries 229,295 3.17 - NA - -
(China) Co., Ltd.
Inpag Technology [The Company Parent Company 212,127 6.27 - NA 74,685 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
Inpag Technology [Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries 108,666 4.19 - NA 24,103 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. indirectly hold
100% by the
Company
Inpag Technology |Walshin Passive  |Affiliated 111,220 2.86 - NA 29,471 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. |(H.K.) company
'The Company Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries 680,581 - - NA 15,000 -

Note : As of January 31, 2024.

Trading in derivative instruments:Please refer to notes 6(12).
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Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

Intercompany transactions

Percentage of
No. Name of company Name of counter-party | Nature of relationship | Account |Amount (note) Trading terms the consolidated
name net revenue or
total assets
0 [The Company Inpaq Technology (China) [The parent company to |Account 229,295|60 days after month end 2.00%
Co., Ltd. the subsidiary receivables
0 [The Company Inpaq Technology (China) [The parent company to [Sales 689,000(60 days after month end 10.00%
Co., Ltd. the subsidiary
0 [The Company Inpaq Technology The parent company to [Sales 79,651160 days after month end 1.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. the subsidiary
1 |Inpagq Technology 'The Company 'The subsidiary companylAccount 212,127160 days after month end 2.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. to the parent receivables
1 |Inpagq Technology 'The Company The subsidiary company|Sales 857,656(60 days after month end 13.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. to
the parent
1 |Inpagq Technology Taiwan Inpaq The subsidiary company|Sales 328,953/60 days after month end 5.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. to
the subsidiary
1 |Inpagq Technology Inpaqg Trading (Suzhou)  [The subsidiary company|Sales 77,896|60 days after month end 1.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. to
the subsidiary
2 |(Inpaqg Technology (China) [The Company The subsidiary company|Sales 531,585(60 days after month end 8.00%
Co., Ltd. to the parent
2 (Inpaq Technology (China) |Inpagq Technology The subsidiary company|Sales 297,126|60 days after month end 4.00%
Co., Ltd. (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. to the subsidiary
3 |Hunan Frontier Electronics[The Company The subsidiary company|Sales 234,209|60 days after month end 4.00%
Co., Ltd. to the parent

Note: Only those that account for 1% or more of the consolidated total operating income or total assets were disclosed.

Information on investees (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

The following is the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2023 (excluding information on investees in
Mainland China):

Unit: Shares
Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2023 Highest Net income Share of
Name of investor | Name of investee | Location | Main businesses |December 31, | December 31, Shares Percentage Carrying Percentage (_Iosses) prof_lts/losses Note
and products 2023 2022 (thousands) of value of of investee | of investee
ownership ownership
'The Company Inpaq BVI BVI General investing 1,258,296 1,258,296 39,908,842| 100.00%| 3,711,350 100.00% 665,786 672,214 | Subsidiary
'The Company Inpaq Korea Korea Sales 12,864 12,864 76,828 44.77% 10,870 44.77% 7,623 3,413 | Associate
'The Company Inpag USA U.S.A. Sales 15,315 15,315 5,000,000 100.00% (12,965) 100.00% (13,322) (13,322) | Subsidiary
'The Company Inpaq Europe GmbH |Germany (Sales 1,273 1,273 38,000 19.00% 1,642 19.00% (1,243) (236) | Associate
'The Company Canfield Samoa  [Sales 14,823 14,823 600,000/ 100.00% 30,603 100.00% 1,837 1,837 | Subsidiary
[The Company 'Yangtze Energy Taiwan  |Production and 7,000 7,000 311,097 19.89% 2,055 19.89% (7112) (142) | Associate
Technologies, Inc. sales of electronic
components
'The Company Eleceram Technology [Taiwan  [Production and 209,946 209,946 8,747,750 72.90% 196,910 72.90% (13,234) (12,095) | Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. isales of electronic
components
Inpaq BVI Inpag Cayman Cayman |General Investing 1,002,550 1,002,550 32,150,000| 100.00%| 3,121,195 100.00% 648,793 648,793 | Subsidiary
Islands
Inpaq BVI Inpag (HK) Co., Hong General Investing 277,988 277,988| 66,857,629 100.00% 2,560 100.00% (6,701) (6,701) | Subsidiary
Limited Kong
Inpaq Technology [Holoypaq (HK) Co., |Hong General Investing 122,240 122,240 4,000,000( 100.00% /| (226,114) 100.00% 15,267 15,267 | Subsidiary
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. [Limited Kong
Holypaq (HK) Taiwan Inpaq Taiwan  [Production and 122,240 122,240 100.00%| (226,114) 100.00% 15,267 15,267 | Subsidiary
Co., Limited isales of electronic
components

Note 1: The relevant transactions and ending balance were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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Information on investment in mainland China:

A. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:

Accumulated Investment flows Accumulated Net
Main Total Method outflow of outflow of income | Percentage | Highest | Investment Book Accumulated
N . . investment from income | value (Notes [remittance of
ame of businesses amount of investment from Taiwan as of (losses) of percentage (Iosses) 2.3and5) | eamings in
investee and of pa_id-in investment| Taiwan as of | Outflow | Inflow December 31, 2023 . of the | ownership of ] (Notes 2 ’ current
products capital January 1, 2022 (Note 3) investee ownership and 5) period
Inpaq Technology [Production and 360,643 Note 1 360,643 360,643| 632,485 100.00% | 100.00% 632,485| 2,194,602 361,325
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. [sales of electronic
components
Inpag Trading Sales of electronic Note 6 23,179 23,179 -% 100.00%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. |components (Note 6)
Inpag Technology [Production and 894,480 Note 1 894,480 894,480| 15,238| 100.00% | 100.00% 15,238 900,737
(China) Co., Ltd.  [sales of electronic
components
Inpag Trading Sales of electronic 9,463 | Note 4 2,155| 100.00% | 100.00% 2,155 31,112
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. |components
Hunan Frontier Manufacturing 456,560 Note 4 1,984 100.00% | 100.00% 1,984 336,634
Electronics Co., land selling of
Ltd. transformer, coils
land magnetic
components

B. Limitation on investment in Mainland China;

Accumulated Investment in Mainland| Investment Amounts Authorized by Upper Limit on Investment
China as of December 31, 2023 Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 3)
(Notes 6 and 7)
1,278,302 916,977 4,105,354

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:
Note 6:

Note 7:

Investment in companies in Mainland China through the existing companies in the third regions.

The amount was recognized based on the audited financial statements.

The Company investment in Mainland China pursuant to  “Principle of Investment or Technical Cooperation in
Mainland China”  did not exceed the investment amount or percentage limit.

Inpag Trading (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. invested using it own funds; thus, its was not included in the calculation of the
investment limit.

The relevant transactions and ending balance were eliminated in consolidated financial statements.

Inpag Trading has completed its liquidation procedures on various rights and obligations; thus, cancelled its
registration in 2023. However, its cumulative investment of $23,179 still needs to be included in the cumulative
amount of investments from Taiwan to China according to the regulations of the Investment Commission, MOEA.

The cash dividend of $361,325 remitted by Inpag Trading (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. in 2020 was approved by the
Investment Commission MOEA on January 22, 2021 with approval number 10900410860 for reference.

C. Significant transactions:

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the

preparation of consolidated financial statements, were disclosed in

“Information on significant transactions” .

Major shareholders:

Shareholding
Shareholder’ s Name Shares Percentage
Walsin Technology Corporation 51,728,658 34.75%
Taifengshuo Corporation 8,022,759 5.38%

The information of major shareholders in this table is based on the last business day of the end of each quarter by the China
Insurance Company, who calculates that shareholders holding more than 5% of the Company’ s ordinary shares that have

completed unregistered delivery (including treasury shares). As for the share capital recorded in the Company’ s financial report
and the Company’ s actual number of shares delivered without physical registration, there may be differences or differences due
to the bases of the calculation.
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14. Segment information:

@)

General information

The Group has two reportable segments: high frequency component segment and passive component
segment. The high-frequency component segment manufactures various communication components,
which are mainly used in mobile phones, global positioning systems (GPS), wireless communication
networks, and bluetooth modules. The passive components segment manufactures protective
components such as overvoltage, overcurrent, and noise protection, which are mainly used in
consumer electronics and computer peripherals.

The reportable segments are the Group’ s strategic divisions. They offer different products and
services and are managed separately because they require different technology and marketing
strategies.

The Group uses the internal management report that the chief operating decision maker reviews as
the basis to determine resource allocation and make a performance evaluation. The internal
management report includes profit before taxation, but not including any extraordinary activity and
foreign exchange gain or losses because taxation, extraordinary activity, and foreign exchange gain
or losses are managed on a group basis, and hence they are not able to be allocated to each reportable
segment.

2023
High
frequency Passive Reconciliation
component component and
segment segment elimination Total
Revenue

Revenue from external customers $ 3,595,846 3,008,215 - 6,604,061

Intersegment revenues - 14,753 (14,753) -

Total revenue $ 3,595,846 3,022,968 (14,753) 6,604,061
Reportable segment profit $ 416,124 348,713 - 764,837
Share of profit of associates

accounted for using equity method 3,035
Unamortized amount 71,368
Net profit before tax $ 839,240
Segment asset $ 12,024,073
Investments accounted for using the

equity method 14,567
Total assets $ 12,038,640

198



)

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2022
High
frequency Passive Reconciliation
component component and
segment segment elimination Total
Revenue

Revenue from external customers $ 3,541,657 2,745,414 - 6,287,071

Intersegment revenues - 14,679 (14,679) -

Total revenue $ 3,541,657 2,760,093 (14,679) 6,287,071
Reportable segment profit $ 274,456 239,246 - 513,702
Share of profit of associates

accounted for using equity method (17,016)
Unamortized amount 220,815
Net profit before tax $ 717,501
Segment asset $ 10,528,161
Investments accounted for using the

equity method 11,816
Total assets $ 10,539,977

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

A. For information on the revenue from the external customers of the Group in 2023 and 2022,

please refer to note 6(21).

B. Non-current assets

December 31,

December 31,

Geographical information 2023 2022
Taiwan $ 3,076,512 3,047,105
China 1,383,702 1,210,607

$ 4,460,214 4,257,712

Note: Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment

property, intangible assets and other non-current assets.

(3) Major customers

Revenues from a single customer that account for more than 10% of the Group’ s total revenue

are as follows: none.
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Appendix 2

Stock Code:6284

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd.
Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

With Independent Auditors’ Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

The independent auditors’  report and the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements are the English translation of the

Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the

English and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and parent-company-only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the parent-company-only financial statements of Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd.( “the
Company” ), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 the statements of

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the parent-company-only financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the parent-company-only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

Please refer to note 4(14) and note 6(19) for accounting policy and detailed disclosure of revenue,
respectively.
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Description of key audit matter:

The Company’ s major revenue is derived from the sales of goods to its customers. Revenue is recognized
when the control over a product has been transferred to the customer as specified in each individual contract
with customers. The Company recognizes revenue depending on the various sales terms in each individual
contract with customers to ensure its performance obligation has been satisfied by transferring its control over
a product to its customer. Therefore, revenue recognition is one of our key audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit;

In relation to the key audit matter above, our principal audit procedures included understanding and testing
the Company’ s internal controls surrounding the sales process and cash collection transaction process;
selecting samples of sales transactions to assess the adequacy of the Company’ s timing on revenue
recognition; and evaluating the rationale for any identified significant sales fluctuations, incurred within a
certain period before or after the balance sheet date, to recognize when the performance obligation has been
satisfied by transferring control over the goods to a customer in order to determine whether they have been
recorded in a proper period.

2. Valuation of Inventories

Please refer to note 4(7), note 5, and note 6(4) for accounting policies, accounting assumptions and estimation
uncertainty, as well as related disclosure information for inventory, respectively.

Description of key audit matter:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. With the rapid development of technology,
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which may lead to
product obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value.
Consequently, the valuation of inventories has been identified as our key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit;

In relation to the key audit matter above, our key audit procedures include selecting samples to examine their
net realizable values to verify the accuracy of inventory aging; evaluating the reasonableness of the
Company’ s inventory valuation policy and the management’ s assumption used when measuring the
allowance for inventory valuation and obsolescence losses; performing a retrospective review of the
Company’ s historical accuracy of judgments with reference to inventory valuation and compare them with
the current year’ s calculation to evaluate the appropriateness of the estimation and assumption used for
inventory valuation; and evaluating the adequacy of the Company’ s disclosure for inventories.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent-Company-Only
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent-company-only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’
s financial reporting process.

Auditors’  Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent-company-only financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’  report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these parent-company-only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent-company-only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’ s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’  report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent-company-only financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the parent-company-only financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent-company-only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent-company-only financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’  report are Hai-Ning Huang and
Wan-Yuan Yu.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 22, 2024

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent-company-only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent-company-only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’  audit report and the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements are the English translation of
the Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of
the English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent-company-only financial statements, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaqg Technology Co., Ltd.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022
Assets Amount Y% Amount % Liabilities and Equity Amount % Amount %
Current assets: Current liabilities:
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(1)) $ 1,137,307 10 641,970 7 2100 Short-term borrowings (note 6(11)) $ 200,000 2 100,000 1
1136 Current financial assets at amortised cost, net (notes 6(1) and (5)) 210,673 3 449,427 5 2170 Notes and accounts payable 182,563 2 71,961 1
1150 Notes receivable (note 6(3)) 2,524 - 2,467 - 2180 Accounts payable to related parties (note 7) 368,986 3 264,794 3
1170 Accounts receivable, net (note 6(3)) 1,034,477 9 821,968 8 2201 Salary and bonus payable 219,585 2 167,518 2
1180 Accounts receivable due from related parties, net (notes 6(3) and 7) 270,783 2 267,263 3 2213 Payable on machinery and equipment 95,118 1 94,891 1
1210 Other receivables due from related parties (note 7) 732,750 7 712,719 7 2220 Other payables to related parties (notes 6(6) and 7) 58,627 1 46,270 -
1310 Inventories (note 6(4)) 369,700 3 397,570 4 2280 Lease liabilities-current (notes 6(14) and 7) 10,181 - 1,309 -
1479 Other current assets (note 6(10)) 28,859 _ - 35,920 _- 2322 Long-term borrowings, current portion (notes 6(11)) 429,676 4 361,100
3,787,073 __ 34 3,329,304 _ 34 2399 Other current liabilities 180,584 _ 2 166,770 _ 2
Non-current assets: 1,745320 _ 17 1,274,613 _ 14
1517 Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Non-current liabilities:
income (note 6(2)) 226,347 3 409,156 5 2313 Deferred revenue (notes 6(11) and (13)) 31,020 - 31,099 -
1535 Non-current financial assets at amortised cost, net (note 5) 218,574 3 - - 2500 Non-current financial liabilities at fair value through
1551 Investments accounted for using the equity method (note 6(6)) 3,930,304 36 3,318,643 35 profit or loss (note 6(12)) 2,374 - - R
1600 Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(7) and 7) 2,641,427 24 2,406,829 25 2531 Bonds payable (note 6(12)) 662,742 6 - -
1755 Right-of-use assets (notes 6(8), (14) and 7) 17,932 - 10,416 - 2540 Long-term borrowings (note 6(11)) 1,436,018 13 2,260,615 24
1780 Intangible assets (note 6(9)) 28,351 - 25,574 - 2570 Deferred tax liabilities (note 6(16)) 214516 2 216,178 2
1840 Deferred tax assets (note 6(16)) 37,201 - 24,182 - 2580 Lease liabilities—non-current (notes 6(14) and 7) 8,047 - 9,307 -
1920 Refundable deposits (notes 7, 8 and 9) 24,165 - 32,487 - 2640 Net defined benefit liability, non-current (note 6(15)) 16,726 - 22,385 -
1990 Other non-current assets (note 6(10)) 53,768 _ - 84,280 1 2645 Guarantee deposits received 6,122 - 6,122 -
7,178,069 _ 66 6,311,567 _ 66 2,377,565 _ 21 2,545,706 _ 26
Total liabilities 4,122,885 _ 38 3,820,319 _ 40
Equity (note 6(17)):
3100 Ordinary share capital 1,489,803 14 1,401,803 15
3200 Capital surplus 3,244,157 29 2,838,983 29
3300 Retained earnings 2,348,677 21 1,827,412 19
3400 Other equity (240,380) (2) (246,228) (3)
3500 Treasury shares - - (1,418) _ -
Total equity 6,842,257 _ 62 5,820,552 _ 60
Total assets $ 10965142 100 9.640.871 _100 Total liabilities and equity $ 100965142 _100 9,640,871 _100

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements. 205



(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

Inpaqg Technology Co., Ltd.
Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar, Except Earnings Per Share)

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
4000 Net operating revenue (notes 6(19) and 7) $ 3,932,614 100 3,354,478 100
5000 Operating costs (notes 6(4), (14), (15), (20) and 7) 3,228,799 82 2,707,032 81
5900 Gross profit 703,815 18 647,446 19
5910 Unrealized gain from sales (note 7) 14,010 _ - (3,114) _ -
5950 Realized gross profit 717,825 18 644,332 19
6000 Operating expenses (notes 6(14), (15), (20) and 7):
6100 Selling expenses 323,904 8 250,268 7
6200 General and administrative expenses 216,800 6 170,534 5
6300 Research and development expenses 156,494 4 97,562 3
Total operating expenses 697,198 18 518,364 15
6900 Net operating income 20,627 _ - 125,968 4
7000 Non-operating income and expenses:
7100 Interest income (notes 6(21) and 7) 72,604 2 33,841 1
7020 Other gains and losses (notes 6(21) and 7) 29,618 1 34,968 1
7050 Finance costs (notes 6(11), (12), (14), (21) and 7) (43,013) 1) (23,474) 1)
7060 Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method, net 651,669 17 349,731 10
(note 6(6))
7230 Foreign exchange income (note 6(22)) 2,059 _ - 145,046 4
Total non-operating income and expenses 712,937 19 540,112 15
7900 Profit before income tax 733,564 19 666,080 19
7950 Less: income tax expenses (note 6(16)) 18,565 _ - 75,151 2
Net income 714,999 19 590,929 17
8300 Other comprehensive income:
8310 Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311 Gains on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(15)) 2,078 - 5414 -
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income 84,109 2 (112,736) 3)
8326 Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using
equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss - - (338) _ -
Total items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 86,187 2 (107,660) (3)
8360 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements (48,602) 1) 54,393 2
8367 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income 3,344 - (56,035) (2)
8371 Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using
equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss (285) - 3,770 -
8399 Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss (note 6(16)) 9.777) _ - 10,960 _ -
Total items that may be reclassified to subsequently to profit or loss (35,766) 1) (8,832) _ -
8300 Other comprehensive income 50,421 1 (116,492) (3)
Total comprehensive income $ 765,420 20 474,437 14
Earnings per share (New Taiwan Dollars) (note 6(18))
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 5.01 4.22
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 4,98 419

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.

Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)
Total other equity interest

Unrealized
gains (losses)
from financial

Exchange assets
differences measured at

Retained earnings on translation fair value

through
Unappropriate of foreign other

Ordinary Capital Legal Special d retained financial comprehensive Treasury
share capital surplus reserve reserve earnings Total statements income Total shares Total equity
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 1,401,803 2,906,644 172,581 54,455 1,087,366 1,314,402 (191,285) 72,372 (118,913) (1,418) 5,502,518

Net income for the period - - - - 590,929 590,929 - - - - 590,929

Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - 5414 5414 47,203 (169,109) (121,906) - (116,492)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 596,343 596,343 47,203 (169,109) (121,906) - 474,437
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:

Appropriation legal reserve - - 58,402 - (58,402) - - - - - -

Appropriation of special reserve - - - 64,458 (64,458) - - R - R -

Cash dividends on ordinary share - - - - (84,081) (84,081) - - - - (84,081)
Due to donated assets received - ) - - - - - - - - )
Cash dividends from capital surplus - (84,081) - - - - - - - - (84,081)
Disposal of subsidiaries or investments accounted for using equity method

(note 6(6)) - 16,419 - - (117) (117) (5,141) 597 (4,544) - 11,758
Difference between consideration and carrying amount of subsidiaries

acquired or disposed - 3 - - - - - - - - 3
Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - - - - 865 865 - (865) (865) - -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 1,401,803 2,838,983 230,983 118,913 1,477,516 1,827,412 (149,223) (97,005) (246,228) (1,418) 5,820,552

Net income for the period - - - - 714,999 714,999 - - - - 714,999

Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - 2,078 2,078 (39,110) 87,453 48,343 - 50,421
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 717,077 717,077 (39,110) 87,453 48,343 - 765,420
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:

Appropriation legal reserve - - 59,710 - (59,710) - - - - - -

Appropriation of special reserve - - - 127,315 (127,315) - - - - - -

Cash dividends on ordinary share - - - - (238,307) (238,307) - - - - (238,307)
Capital increase by cash 88,000 305,015 - - - - - - - - 393,015
Convertible bonds payable - 94,718 - - - - - - - - 94,718
Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - - - - 42,495 42,495 - (42,495) (42,495) - -
Compensation cost arising from capital increase - 4,378 - - - - - - - - 4,378
Treasury shares transferred to employees - 1,063 - - - - - - - 1,418 2,481
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 1,489,803 3,244,157 290,693 246,228 1,811,756 2,348,677 (188,333) (52,047) (240,380) - 6,842,257

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

2023 2022
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before income tax $ 733,564 666,080
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense 248,012 250,467
Amortization expense 7,337 9,032
Finance cost 43,013 23,474
Interest income (72,604) (33,841)
Dividend income (1,626) (18,057)
Provision for inventory obsolescence and devaluation loss 19,642 10,707
Share of gain of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the
equity method (651,669) (349,731)
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,020) 4,076
Unrealized profit from sales (11,252) (1,785)
Share-based payment transactions 5,444 -
Others (3,180) (14,129)
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (417,903) (119,787)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Notes receivable (57) 4,687
Accounts receivable (212,509) 71,709
Accounts receivable due from related parties (3,520) (72,154)
Other receivables due from related parties (4,559) 30,201
Inventories 8,228 89,827
Other current assets 8,161 27,606
Notes and accounts payable 110,602 (68,578)
Accounts payable to related parties 116,549 (62,945)
Salary and bonus payable 52,067 1,116
Other current liabilities 30,879 (8,501)
Total adjustments (312,062) (106,819)
Cash flows generated from operations 421,502 559,261
Interest received 67,132 30,955
Dividends received 1,626 18,057
Interest paid (43,242) (23,405)
Income taxes paid (37,066) (739)
Net cash flows from operating activities 409,952 584,129

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaqg Technology Co., Ltd.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

2023 2022
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive (2,500) -
income
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other 275,342 2,488
comprehensive income
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost (3,786,170) (1,261,003)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost 3,816,173 974,216
Acquisition of equity method investee - (291,798)
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity method - 317,092
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (402,299) (666,733)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,426 3,567
Increase in refundable deposits (1,501) (12,963)
Increase in other receivables due from related parties (15,471) (242,214)
Acquisition of intangible assets (10,114) (7,642)
Increase in other non-current assets (38,117) (83,018)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (161,231) (1,268,008)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 1,850,000 1,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings (1,750,000) (1,000,000)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 758,169 -
Increase in long-term borrowings 400,000 1,180,870
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,156,100) -
Payment of lease liabilities (11,580) (16,519)
Cash dividends paid (238,307) (168,162)
Capital increase by cash 393,015 -
Treasury shares transferred to employees 1,419 -
Net cash flows from financing activities 246,616 996,189
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 495,337 312,310
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 641,970 329,660
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,137,307 641,970

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Inpaqg Technology Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Company history:

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” ) was established with the
approval of the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 23, 1998, and its registered address is 11 Keyi Street,
Zhunan Town, Miaoli County. The Company’ s shares have been listed for trading at the Taipei Exchange
in R.0.C. since June 29, 2004.

The Company is mainly engaged in the research, development, manufacturing and sales of integrated
protection components, microwave composite miniature antennas and modules, and multilayer microwave
communication components and their modules.

Approval date and procedures of the financial statements:

The parent-company-only financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
February 22, 2024.

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(1) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (the "FSC") which have already been adopted.

The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its parent-company-only financial statements, from January 1, 2023:

@ Amendmentsto IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
@ Amendments to IAS 8  “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The Company has initially adopted the new amendment, which do not have a significant impact on
its parent-company-only financial statements, from May 23, 2023:

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules”
(2) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual
period beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its
parent-company-only financial statements:

@ Amendments to IAS 1  “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

@ Amendments to IAS1  “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”

210



@)

Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

@ Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Finance Arrangements”
@ Amendments to IFRS 16  “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”

The impact of IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB” ) but not
yet endorsed by the FSC

The Company does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be
endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its parent-company-only financial statements:

@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and Its Associate or Joint Venture”

@ IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17  “Insurance Contracts”

@ Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information”

@ Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of Exchangeability”

4.  Summary of material accounting policies:

The material accounting policies presented in the parent-company-only financial statements are
summarized below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied
consistently throughout the periods presented in the parent-company-only financial statements.

@)

2

Statement of compliance

The Company's accompanying parent-company-only financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers (hereinafter referred to as  “the Regulations” ).

Basis of preparation
A. Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the parent-company-only financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis:

(@) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured
at fair value; and

(b) The net defined benefit liabilities are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

B. Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The parent-company-only financial statements are
presented in New Taiwan Dollar (TWD), which is the Company’ s functional currency. Unless
otherwise noted, all financial information presented in TWD has been rounded to the nearest
thousand.
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Foreign currencies

A.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies using the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

(@) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

(b) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; or

(c) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to TWD using the exchange rates at
the reporting date with the exception of shareholders’ equity, which is translated at historical
cost rates, and income and expenses, which are translated to TWD at the average rate for the
period. Exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

A

B
C.
D

It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

A
B.

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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C. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

D. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and checking deposits. Cash equivalents are
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above
definition and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes are classified as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Accounts receivable and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is an account
receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at
fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Accounts
receivable without a significant financing component are initially measured at the transaction price.

A. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost; fair value
through or loss (FVTPL); fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt
investment; or FVOCI — equity investment. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets, in which case, all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.

(@) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL.:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL :

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’ s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses, and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’ s right
to receive payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other
financial assets and refundable deposits), debt investments measured at FVOCI and
contract assets.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL.:

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

214



Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivable are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company ~ s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as

forward-looking information.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of investment grade which is considered to
be BBB- or higher per Standard & Poor’ s, Baa3 or higher per Moody’ s or twA or higher
per Taiwan Ratings.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 60 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due and the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLSs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off either partially or in full to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The Company individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’ s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital surplus or retained
earnings (if the capital surplus is not sufficient to be written down).

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible bonds
denominated in TWD that can be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder,
when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair
value.
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The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is initially recognized at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion at
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit
or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations has been
discharged or cancelled, or has expired. The Company also derecognizes a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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C. Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest
rate exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted-average method and includes expenditure and other costs incurred in bringing them
to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The parent-company-only financial statements include the Company’ s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting
policies with those of the Company, from the date on which significant influence commences until
the date on which significant influence ceases. The Company recognizes any changes of its
proportionate share in the investee within capital surplus when an associate’ s equity changes due to
reasons other than profit and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual
proportionate share.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated Company’ s interests in the associate.

When the Company’ s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate,
it discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

On June 17, 2022, the Company sold its entire shares in Joyin Co., Ltd. ( “ Joyin™ ) to a related
party, Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd., through a resolution approved by the board of directors. In
accordance with the “Accounting for the transfer of shares of associate by subsidiaries within the

group” , the book value method should be analogously applied to the “Accounting for Business
Combinations of Entities Under Common Control” . In addition, the Company chose not to
retrospectively treat Joyin’ s shares as held by Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. from the beginning
and not to restate the comparative financial statements in accordance with the “Accounting for
retrospective restatement of comparative financial statements under common control”
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Investment in subsidiaries

When preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, investment in subsidiaries which are
controlled by the Company is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, net
income, other comprehensive income and equity in the parent-company-only financial statements are
equivalent to those of the profit, other comprehensive income and equity which are attributable to
parent company shareholders in the consolidated financial statements.

The changes in the parent’” s ownership interest in its subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted as equity transactions.

(10) Property, plant and equipment

A. Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less, accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods
are as follows:

(@) Buildings: 4 to 51 years
(b) Machinery and equipment: 1 to 15 years

(c) Other equipment: 1 to 20 years
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Buildings and construction constitute mainly buildings, mechanical and electrical power
equipment, laboratory engineering, related engineering, etc. Each constituent is depreciated
based on its useful life between 50 years and 20 years.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(11) Leases

A.

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus, any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’ s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
(@) fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments);

(b) wvariable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
(d) payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

(@) there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or
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(b) there is a change in the Company’ s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or

(c) thereis a change in the assessment regarding the purchase option; or

(d) there is a change in the assessment on whether the Company will exercise an extension or a
termination option; or

(e) there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(12) Intangible assets
A. Recognition and measurement
Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are
probable and the Company intends to, and has sufficient resources to, complete development and
to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost, less, accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets, including computer software that are acquired by the Company and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
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C. Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other
than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
(@) Computer software: 1~10 years
(b) Others: 3 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’ s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’ s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.
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(14) Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Company’ s main types of revenue are explained below:

A. Sale of goods

The Company involves in research, develop, design, manufacture and sales of integrated
protection components, microwave composite miniature antennas and modules. The Company
recognizes revenue when control of the products has been transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’ s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

The Company often offers volume discounts to its customer’ s. Revenue from these sales is
recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the expected value method, and
revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales of goods are made, which is consistent with the market practice.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

B. Financing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.

(15) Government grants and government assistance

The Company recognizes an unconditional government grant related to the long-term borrowing in
profit or loss as other income when the grant becomes receivable. Other government grants related to
assets are initially recognized as deferred income at fair value if there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant;
they are then recognized in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset. Grants that compensate the Company for expenses or losses incurred are recognized in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses or losses are recognized.
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(16) Business combination

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method. The goodwill
arising from an acquisition is measured as the excess of the consideration transferred (which is
generally measured at fair value) and the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, both
over the identifiable net assets acquired at the acquisition date. If the amount calculated above is a
deficit balance, the Company recognized that amount as a gain on a bargain purchase in profit or loss
immediately after reassessing whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabilities assumed.

All acquisition related transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of debt or
equity instruments.

For each business combination, the Company measures any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’ s proportionate share of the acquiree’ s
identifiable net assets, if the non-controlling interests are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’ s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of non_controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair values, unless
another measurement basis is required by the IFRS Accounting Standards endorsed by the FSC.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete are reported in the Company’ s financial statements. During the measurement period, the
provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date are retrospectively adjusted, or additional
assets or liabilities are recognized to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period will not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

(17) Employee benefits
A. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution plans are expensed as the related
service is provided.

B. Defined benefit plans

The Company’ s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in
retained earnings within equity. The Company determines the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plans are recognized in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in
profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

C. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to employees
is generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and their respective tax bases.
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Deferred taxes are recognized except for the following:

A. Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits (losses) and (ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

B. Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

C. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

A. The Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

B. The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(@) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Earnings per share

The Company discloses the Company’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
such as the convertible bonds and employee remuneration through the issuance of shares.
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(21) Operating segments

The Company has disclosed its operating segment information in the consolidated financial
statements. Hence, this information is not required to be disclosed in these parent-company-only
financial statements.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the parent-company-only financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and
the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. It recognizes any changes
in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting estimates in the
following period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as
follows:

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company uses judgments and
estimates to determine the net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at
the end of the reporting period. It also writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net
realizable value of the inventory is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand within a
specific time horizon. However, due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes
in the net realizable value of inventories. Please refer to note 6(4) for further description of the valuation of
inventories.

The Company’ s accounting policies include measuring financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Company’ s finance department conducts independent verification on fair value by using data sources
that are independent, reliable, and representative of exercise prices. The Company’ s financial department
also periodically adjusts valuation models, conducts back testing, renews input data for valuation models,
and makes all other necessary fair value adjustments to assure the rationality of fair value. The Company
strives to use market observable inputs when measuring assets and liabilities. Different levels of the fair
value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data.

For any transfer within the fair value hierarchy, the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporting
date. Please refer to Note 6(22) for assumptions used in measuring fair value.
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Explanation of significant accounts:

@)

O]

Cash and cash equivalents
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Cash on hand and demand deposits $ 681,814 365,580
Time deposits 455,493 276,390
$ 1,137,307 641,970

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the bank certificate of deposit with original maturity over 3
months amounting to $184,410 and $442,224, which were reclassified to financial assets measured at
amortized cost— current. Please refer to note 6(5).

Please refer to note 6(22) for the exchange rate risk of the financial assets and liabilities of the
Company.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income — non-current

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income:
Corporate bonds — Microsoft Corporation $ 21,818 20,831
Corporate bonds— Apple Inc. 77,276 75,139
Corporate bonds — Amazon.com, Inc. 41,391 39,763
Corporate bonds — Saudi Arabian Qil Co. 43,225 42,053
183,710 177,786
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income:
Stocks in listed domestic companies $ - 198,934
Stocks in unlisted domestic companies 42,637 32,436
42,637 231,370
$ 226,347 409,156

A. Debt investment at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company has assessed that the following securities were held within a business model
whose objective was achieved by both collecting the contractual cash flows and by selling
securities. Therefore, they have been classified as debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
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Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company designated the investments shown above as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that the
Company intends to hold for strategic purposes.

The Company sold the stock of King Polytechnic Engineering Co., Ltd. on September 13, 2022.
The fair value at the time of disposal was $2,488, and the accumulative disposal benefit
amounted to $865. Other interests are transferred to retained earnings.

The Company sold the stock of APAQ Technology Co., Ltd. in second quarter of 2023. The fair
value at the time of disposal was $275,342, and the accumulated disposal benefit amounted to
$42,495. Other interests are transferred to retained earnings.

The Company designated the investments shown above as equity securities as at fair value
through other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments
that the Company intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes. These investments were
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

Please refer to note 6(21) for the dividends income received from the equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022.

(3) Notes and accounts receivables (included related parties)

A. Notes receivable

B.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Notes receivable from operating activities $ 2,524 2,467
Accounts receivables, net
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Accounts receivable $ 1,035,276 822,767
Less: Loss allowance (799) (799)
$ 1,034,477 821,968
Accounts receivable due from related parties:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Accounts receivable due from related parties $ 270,783 267,263
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The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the
use of lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
notes and accounts receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, as well as the incorporated forward-looking information, including
macroeconomic and relevant industry information. The loss allowance provisions in Taiwan

were determined as follows:

Current

1 to 90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due
More than 181 days past due

Current

1 to 90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due
More than 181 days past due

December 31, 2023

Weighted-
Gross carrying average loss Loss allowance
amount rate provision
$ 1,278,269 - -
30,003 1.63% 488
160 100% 160
151 100% 151
$ 1,308,583 799
December 31, 2022
Weighted-
Gross carrying average loss Loss allowance
amount rate provision
$ 1,064,004 - -
28,195 1.78% 501
105 100% 105
193 100% 193
$ 1,092,497 799

The movements in the allowance for notes and accounts receivables were as follows:

Balance at January 1
Amounts written off
Balance at December 31

Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress and semi-finished goods
Finished goods and merchandise

2023 2022
$ 799 5,690
- (4,891)
$ 799 799

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
$ 128,713 134,041
77,472 75,416
163,515 188,113
$ 369,700 397,570
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The details of operating costs were as follows:

2023 2022
Cost of goods sold $ 3,237,919 2,713,435
Provision for inventory obsolescence and devaluation loss 19,642 10,707
Revenue from sales of scrap (28,762) (17,110)
$ 3,228,799 2,707,032

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’ s inventories were not pledged.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost— current and non-current

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Current:
Time deposit (over three-month) $ 184,410 442,224
Others 26,263 7,203
$ 210,673 449,427
Non-current:
Foreign corporate bonds — Union Bank of Switzerland $ 123,823 -
Foreign corporate bonds — Unitedhealth Group Inc. 94,751 -
$ 218,574 -

The Company has assessed that these financial assets are held-to-maturity to collect contractual cash
flows, which consist solely of payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.
Therefore, these investments were classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

In 2023, the Company purchased corporate bonds issued by Union Bank of Switzerland, with a face
value of US$4,000 thousand. The fair value at the time of acquisition was $127,660, with the interest
rate of 5.65% and the effective interest rate of 5.25%~5.83%, and maturing on September 11, 2028.
Besides, the Company purchased corporate bonds issued by Unitedhealth Group Inc., with a face
value of US$3,000 thousand. The fair value at the time of acquisition was $97,131, with the interest
rate of 5.25% and the effective interest rate of 4.52%, and maturing on February 15, 2028.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company did not provide any financial assets measured at
amortized cost as collateral for its loans.

Investments accounted for using the equity method

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Subsidiaries $ 3,925,898 3,328,239
Associates 14,566 11,816
Less: unrealized transaction gain between related companies 10,160 21,412
$ 3,930,304 3,318,643
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On January 3, 2022, the Company increased its investment and acquired a total of 2,672 thousand
shares of Joyin Co., Ltd., and the total transaction price is $40,076. The holding right is reduced to
22.46%.

The Company holds 22.46% of the voting shares of Joyin Co., Ltd., becoming its the single largest
shareholder. Although the remaining 77.54% of the shares held by Joyin Co., Ltd. are not
concentrated among specific shareholders, the Company still cannot obtain a majority of Joyin Co.,
Ltd. director seats, and has not obtained more than half of the voting rights of the shareholders
present at the shareholders’ meeting. Therefore, the Company concluded that the Company has
only significant influence on Joyin Co., Ltd.

On June 17, 2022, the Company disposed its entire 17,519 thousand shares in Joyin Co., Ltd. to
Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Walsin). This was deemed as organizational
restructure in accordance with the IFRS Q&A issued by Accounting Research and Development
Foundation in Taiwan - “Accounting treatment for the transfer of shares of associate by
subsidiaries within the Group” and “Accounting treatment for business combination under
common control” . The difference between the disposal price of $317,092, and the book value of

investments accounted for using the equity method of $16,419 thousand, was recognized as an
addition of the capital surplus.

The Company acquired 72.90% of the shares of Elecram Technology Co., Ltd. from Joyin on July 1,
2022 to gain control of the Company. The total transaction price was $209,946.

A. Subsidiaries
Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2023.
B. Associates

The Company’ s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity method

as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Total assets $ 125,652 93,324
Total liabilities $ 79,844 52,821
2023 2022
Revenue $ 91,978 649,527
Net income (loss) $ 6,158 (49,852)

In 2023 and 2022, the Company’ s share of the net income of associates was as follows:

2023 2022
Subsidiary $ 648,634 366,747
Associates 3,035 (17,016)
Profit from continuing operations $ 651,669 349,731
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Property, plant and equipment

Construction

Buildings Machinery in progress
and and Other and testing
Land construction eguipment facilities equipment Total
Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 236,558 426,504 2,282,748 478,633 781,705 4,206,148
Additions - 69,307 117,458 15,980 199,782 402,527
Disposal and obsolescence - (531) (75,748) (52,381) - (128,660)
Reclassification - 649,691 135,547 8,135 (724,744) 68,629
Balance on December 31, 2023  $ 236,558 1,144971 2,460,005 450,367 256,743 4,548,644
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 236,552 423,015 1,986,685 465,501 411,034 3,522,787
Additions 6 3,489 139,018 18,675 486,227 647,415
Disposal and obsolescence - - (26,057) (12,604) (8,641) (47,302)
Reclassification - - 183,102 7,061 (106.,915) 83,248
Balance on December 31,2022 $ 236,558 426,504 2,282,748 478,633 781,705 4,206,148
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ - 145,551 1,311,275 342,493 - 1,799,319
Depreciation for the year - 23,865 177,662 34,744 - 236,271
Disposal and obsolescence - (531) (75,461) (52,381) - (128,373)
Balance on December 31,2023 $ - 168,885 1,413,476 324,856 - 1,907,217
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ - 131,156 1,157,436 307,209 - 1,595,801
Depreciation for the year - 14,395 179,396 39,694 - 233,485
Disposal and obsolescence - - (25,557) (4,410) - (29,967)
Balance on December 31,2022  $ - 145,551 1,311,275 342,493 - 1,799,319
Carrying amounts:
Balance on December 31,2023  $ 236,558 976,086 1,046,529 125,511 256,743 2,641,427
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 236,552 291,859 829,249 158,292 411,034 1,926,986
Balance on December 31,2022  $ 236,558 280,953 971,473 136,140 781,705 2,406,829

Please refer to note 7 for the Company’ s transaction of property, plant and equipment with related
parties.

The property, plant and equipment of the Company had been pledged as collateral for long-term
borrowings; please refer to note 8.
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The Company leased several assets including land and buildings. Information about leases for which
the Company as a lessee was presented below:

Cost:

Balance at January 1, 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at January 1, 2022
Additions

Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at January 1, 2023
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at January 1, 2022
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2022

Carrying amount:

Balance at December 31, 2023

Balance at January 1, 2022
Balance at December 31, 2022

234

Land Buildings Total

$ 13,586 17,921 31,507
- 35,073 35,073

- (38,620) (38,620)

$ 13,586 14,374 27,960
$ 13,586 82,507 96,093
- 341 341

- (64,927) (64,927)

$ 13,586 17,921 31,507
$ 3,170 17,921 21,091
1,358 10,383 11,741

- (22,804) (22,804)

$ 4,528 5,500 10,028
$ 1,812 13,389 15,201
1,358 15,624 16,982

- (11,092) (11,092)

$ 3,170 17,921 21,091
$ 9,058 8,874 17,932
$ 11,774 69,118 80,892
$ 10,416 - 10,416

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’ s right-of-use assets were not pledged.

Please refer to note 7 for the Company’ s transaction of right-of-use assets with related parties.
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Intangible assets

The cost and amortization of the intangible assets of the Company for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Computer
software and
others
Costs:
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 142,033
Additions 10,114
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 152,147
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 134,391
Additions 7,642
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 142,033
Accumulated amortization:
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 116,459
Amortization for the year 7,337
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 123,796
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 107,427
Amortization for the year 9,032
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 116,459
Carrying value:
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 28,351
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 26,964
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 25,574

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’ s intangible assets were not pledged.
Other current assets and other non-current assets

The other current assets and other non-current assets of the Company were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Prepayments for business facilities $ 53,768 84,280
Tax receivables 13,395 17,767
Net input VAT 9,071 8,558
Prepaid expenses 4,698 8,156
Prepayments to suppliers 427 546
Others 1,268 893
$ 82,627 120,200
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December 31,

December 31,

Other current assets $
Other non-current assets

2023 2022
28,859 35,920
53,768 84,280
$ 82,627 120,200

(11) Short-term and long-term borrowings

A. Short-term borrowings

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Unsecured bank loans $ 200,000 100,000
Unused credit lines $ 2,364,700 2,244,200
Range of interest rate 1.75% 1.63%

B. Long-term borrowings:

Financial December 31, December 31,
Institution Objective Maturity date 2023 2022
Chang Hwa Working capital August, 2027 $ 524,745 573,321
Bank
CTBC Bank Purchase of additional December, 2026 388,044 388,028
equipment
Chang Hwa Purchase of additional April, 2031 347,951 347,928
Bank building
E. Sun Bank Purchase of additional March, 2025 304,954 492,438
equipment
Chang Hwa Working capital July, 2028 300,000 -
Bank
Hua Nan Bank Working capital December, 2025 - 300,000
Mega Bank Working capital September, 2026 - 300,000
Far Eastern Working capital March, 2024 - 220,000
International
Bank
Less: Long-term borrowings, current portion (429,676) (361,100)
1,436,018 2,260,615
Unused credit lines 600,000 900,000
Range of interest rate 1.650%~ 1.075%~
2.000% 1.875%

Relevant information of exposure to liquidity risk and currency risk, please refer to note 6(22).
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C. Government low-interest loan

According to  “Loans for Returning Overseas Taiwanese Businesses” , starting from March
2020, Company has successively obtained project loans from E. Sun Bank, Chang Hwa Bank
and CTBC Bank, respectively. The total loans amounted to $1,833,820. The market interest rates
of the loans were 1.65%, 1.70% and 2.00%, respectively, which were used to recognize and
measure the book value of the loans. The preferential interest rates of the loans were 1.15%,
1.20% and 1.50%, respectively. The difference between the market interest rate and preferential
interest rate was deemed as government subsidies. Please refer to note 6(13) for details.

(12) Convertible bonds payable

The Company issued the third secured convertible corporate bonds on December 14, 2023, and
Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd. served as the guarantor. Information about the convertible bonds
payable are as follows:

December 31,

2023
Convertible bonds payable $ 700,000
Unamortized discounts on convertible bonds payable (37,258)
Carrying amount $ 662,742
Embedded derivative — call and put options, included in financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss $ 2,374
Equity component — conversion options (recorded in capital surplus — share
options) $ 94,718
2023
Embedded derivative instruments — call and put rights, included in financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $ (630)
Interest expenses $ 1,035

The following are the issuance conditions:

A. Issue amount: The total amount of the issue is $700,000 thousand, with a face value of $100
thousand. Issued at 108.68% of face value.

B. Tenor: The bonds were issued for a period of 3 years. The issue date is December 14, 2023, and
the maturity date is December 14, 2026.

C. Coupon rate: 0%.

D. Conversion period: One month after the issue date and 10 days before the maturity date.
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E. Conversion price and adjustments:

The Company used November 24, 2023 as the base date for setting the conversion price. The
base day (exclusive) is the business day before, the three business days before, and the five
business days before the company. Choose one of the simple arithmetic average of the closing
prices of common stocks as the base price, and then multiply the base price by 110% as the
calculation basis, which is the conversion price of the convertible corporate bonds (calculated to
TWD cents, rounded off to the next cent). If there is ex-rights or ex-dividend before the pricing
base date, the closing price that is sampled and used to calculate the conversion price should first
be calculated as the post-ex-right or ex-dividend price; after the conversion price is determined
and before the actual issuance date, if there is ex-right or ex-dividend, it should be adjusted
according to the conversion price adjustment formula. The conversion price at the time of
issuance was TWD92.0 per share.

After the Company converts corporate the bonds except for the exchange of various securities
issued by the Company (or private placement) with common stock conversion rights or stock
options for common shares or the issuance of new shares due to employee bonuses, in the event
that if the number of ordinary shares issued (or privately placed) increases, the company shall
adjust the conversion price according to the formula stipulated in the conversion regulations.

F. The Company’ s right to redeem the above-mentioned converted corporate bonds:

(@) After 3 months of the issue date (March 15,2024), if the closing price of the Company’ s
common shares on the stock exchange exceeds the current conversion price of the
convertible bonds by not less than 30% for thirty consecutive business days, the Company
may redeem the bonds forty days before the maturity date (November 4, 2026). The
Company may notify the bondholders within the next thirty business days, and the bond
will be redeemed from the bondholders in cash according to the face value of the bond.

(b)  After 3 months of the issue date (March 15, 2024), if the balance of outstanding
convertible bonds is less than 10% of the original total issued amount, the Company may
redeem the bonds forty days before the maturity date (November 4, 2026). The Company
may notify the bondholders at any time and redeem the bonds from the bondholders in cash
according to the face value of the bond.

G. Bondholder’ s put right:

The bondholers can sell back the bonds 2 years after the bonds issuance (December 14, 2025). A
written notice is required to be given to the Company’ s stock agency before 40 days of the sell
back date to request to sell back the bonds with the face value of the bonds plus interest
compensation. The aforementioned interest compensation is calculated at 100% of the face value
of the bonds (the return of sell back is 0%). When the Company accepts the sell back request, it
should be redeemed in cash within five business days after the sell back base date.

(13) Long-term deferred revenue

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Long-term deferred revenue - government grants $ 31,020 31,099
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If the Company fails to meet the conditions of the note 6(11) mentioned project loan and the National
Development Fund will cease to subsidize the Company, and the Company shall pay the interest
according to the original agreed interest rate, plus the annual interest rate.

Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current $ 10,181 1,309
Non-current $ 8,047 9,307
For maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(22).
The amounts recognized in profit or loss was as follows:

2023 2022
Interest on lease liabilities $ 432 860
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 5,661 6,193

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows by the Company were as follows:

2023 2022
Total cash outflow for leases $ 17,673 23,572

A. Land and building leases

The Company leases land and buildings for its parking spaces, office space and factories. The
leases of land typically run for a period of 10 years, and of buildings for 2 to 10 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the
end of the contract term.

Some leases contain extension options exercisable by the Company. These leases are negotiated
and monitored by local management, and accordingly, contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the
lessors. In which lessee is not reasonably certain to use an optional extended lease term,
payments associated with the optional period are not included within lease liabilities.

B. Other leases

The Company leases dormitories and vehicles, with lease terms of 1 to 3 years. These leases are
short-term and/or leases of low-value items. The Company has elected not to recognize its
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.
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(15) Employee benefits
A. Defined benefit plans

Reconciliations of the defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value are

as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 58,471 62,862
Fair value of plan assets (41,745) (40,477)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 16,726 22,385

The Company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account with Bank
of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. Plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of
service and average monthly salary for the six months prior to retirement.

(@) Composition of plan assets

The Company allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds are
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of
the funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year
time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Company’ s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to
$41,745 as of December 31, 2023. For information on the utilization of the labor pension
fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website
of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

(b) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations for the Company were

as follows:
2023 2022

Defined benefit obligations at January 1 $ 62,862 67,410
Current service costs and interest cost 857 348
Benefits paid from plan assets (1,023) (2,447)
Benefits paid from provision account (2,450)

Remeasurements gain (1,775) (2,449)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31 $ 58471 62,862
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() Movements of the defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Company were as

follows:
2023 2022

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 40,477 38,059
Contributions made 1,424 1,698
Interest income 564 202
Benefits paid from plan assets (1,023) (2,447)
Remeasurements gain 303 2,965
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 41,745 40477

(d) Expenses recognized in profit or loss
The expenses recognized in profit or loss for the Company were as follows:

2023 2022

Net interest of net liabilities for the defined benefit
obligations $ 293 146

(e) Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Discount rate 1.2504% 1.3636%
Future salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit plans
for the one-year period after the reporting date for 2023 is $1,699.

The weighted-average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 12 years.
(f) Sensitivity analysis

The Company’ s remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 amounted to $20,948 and $22,385, respectively. If the future salary increase
rate rises or falls by 0.25%, net defined benefit liability would have increase by $1,661 and
$1,775 or decrease by $1,607 and $1,715, respectively.

Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’ s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension
Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to the
Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.
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The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance
amounted to $24,439 and $22,088 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

(16) Income taxes
A. Income tax expenses

The components of income tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as

follows:
2023 2022
Current tax expense
Current period $ 23,469 50,983
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (4,904) 4,186
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - 19,982
(4,904) 24,168
Income tax expense $ 18,565 75,151

The amounts of income tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

2023 2022

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements $ (9.777) 10,960

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 was as follows:

2023 2022

Profit before income tax $ 733,564 666,080
Income tax at the Company’ s domestic tax rate 146,713 133,216
Gain on investments accounted for using equity method

and permanent differences (132,604) (81,154)
Tax incentives (9,506) -
Current-year losses for which no deferred tax asset was

recognized - 12,460
Others 13,962 10,629
Total $ 18,565 75,151

B. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The R.O.C. Income Tax Act allows net losses, as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset
taxable income over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes.

242



Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The tax authority decided to exclude a tax losses of $62,302 from the 2019 profit seeking
enterprise income tax return filed by the Company. However, the Company disagreed on this
decision and filed an appeal to the tax authority on September 14, 2022. The appeal was rejected
by the Ministry of Finance on March 23, 2023. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had not
recognized deferred income tax assets for the above tax losses.

(@) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. Also,
management considers it probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Hence, such temporary differences are not recognized under deferred
tax liabilities amounting $271,849 and $137,625, respectively.

(b) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognized in Recognized in
Recognized other Recognized other
Deferred Tax January 1, inprofitor comprehensive December in profitor comprehensive December
Assets 2022 loss income 31, 2022 loss income 31, 2023

Provision for

inventory

devaluation $ 7,686 (1,379) - 9,065 (2,281) - 11,346
Unused tax loss 19,982 19,982 - -
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign

financial statements 20,385 10,960 9,425 - 9,777) 19,202
Unrealized profit or

loss from sales 3,925 (358) - 4,283 2,251 - 2,032
Others 1,444 35 - 1,409 (3,212) - 4,621

$ 53,422 18,280 10,960 24,182 (3,242) (9,777) 37,201
Recognized in Recognized in
Recognized other Recognized other
Deferred Tax January 1, in profit  comprehensive December in profitor comprehensive December
Liabilities 2022 orloss income 31, 2022 loss income 31, 2023

Share of profit of

subsidiaries

accounted for using

equity method $  (210,290) 5,888 - (216,178) (1,662) - (214,516)

C. The Company’ s tax returns have been assessed by the tax authorities through 2019.
(17) Capital and other equity
A. Ordinary shares

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the authorized ordinary shares of the Company amounted to
$3,000,000, included the shares reserved for exercising of employee share options of  $150,000;
The issued ordinary share capital with a par value of $10 per share amounted to $1,489,803 and
$1,401,803 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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On June 30, 2023, the Company’ s Board of Directors approved the issuance of 8,800
thousands ordinary shares for cash, with par value of $10 per share, amounting to $88,000. The
price issued per share was $45, amounting to $396,000 (amount received after deducting the
related issuance cost of $2,985 is $393,015). The Company has received approval from the
Financial Supervisory Commission for this capital increase on August 4, 2023, with September
13, 2023 as the date of capital increase. The relevant statutory registration procedures have since
been completed.

Reconciliation of shares outstanding for 2023 and 2022 was as follows (in thousands of shares):

Ordinary shares

2023 2022
Balance on January 1 140,136 140,136
Add: Issued for cash 8,800 -
Add: Exercise of share options 45 -
Balance of December 31 148,981 140,136

Capital surplus

The balances of capital surplus as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Premium of common stock $ 2,977,270 2,667,877
Treasury shares transferred to employees 136,808 135,745
Premium of corporate bonds converted to common stock 15,722 15,722
Stock options —fair value differences of associates under
equity method 16,570 16,570
Convertible bonds payable 94,718 -
Donation from shareholders 1,917 1,917
Effect of capital increase of associates 1,152 1,152
$ 3,244,157 2,838,983

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed
10% of the total common stock outstanding.
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C. Retained earnings

The Company’ s article of incorporation stipulates that Company’ s net earnings should first
be used to offset the prior years’ deficits, if any, before paying any income taxes. Of the
remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal reserve, and then any remaining profit
together with any undistributed retained earnings shall be distributed according to the
distribution plan proposed by the Board of Directors and submitted to the stockholders’
meeting for approval.

(a)

(b)

Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’
meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and only
the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

Special reserve

The Company chose to apply the exemption under IFRS 1 - “First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards™ at its initial adoption of IFRS Accounting
Standards. The cumulative translations adjustments originally reported under
shareholders” equity were reclassified to retained earnings , amounting to $46,817. The
the net increase in retained earnings due to the first adoption of IFRS 1 on the conversion
date was $9,173. The Company shall allocate the same amount in special reserve in
accordance with the requirements issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission. When
there is any subsequent use, disposal, or reclassification of the relevant assets, the Company
may reverse and proportionately appropriate the earnings distribution originally allocated to
special reserve. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the aforementioned special reserve
both amounted to $9,173.

In accordance with abovementioned ruling, a portion of current-period earnings and
undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as special earnings reserve during
earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified should equal the current-period total
net reduction of other shareholders’  equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed
prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as special earnings reserve (and does not qualify
for earnings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders’  equity
pertaining to prior periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction
of other shareholders’  equity shall qualify for additional distributions.
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(c) Earnings distribution

Earnings distribution for 2022 and 2021 was decided by the resolution adopted, at the
general meeting of shareholders held on June 16, 2023 and June 14, 2022 as follows:

2022 2021
Amount per Total Amount per

Total amount share amount share
Appropriation legal reserve$ 59,710 58,402
Appropriation of special 127,315 64,458
reserve
Cash dividends 238,307 1.70 84,081 0.60

$ 425,332 206,941

In addition, on June 14, 2022, the Company passed the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting to distribute cash dividends of $84,081 to the capital surplus in excess of par value,
at a rate of $0.6 per share. The resolution was passed in accordance with Article 241,
paragraph 1, subparagraph 1 of the Company Act.

The appropriation of earnings distribution is consistent with the resolutions approved by the
Board of Directors.

The related information is available on the Market Observation Post System website.
D. Other equity, net of tax
Unrealized gains

(losses) from
financial assets

Exchange measured at fair
differences on value through
translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income Total
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ (149,223) (97,005) (246,228)
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign financial statements (38,882) - (38,882)

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using equity
method (228) - (228)

Unrealized gains (losses) from financial
assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 87,453 87,453

Disposal of investments in equity
instruments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income - (42,495) (42,495)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ (188,333) (52,047) (240,380)
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Unrealized gains
(losses) from
financial assets

Exchange measured at fair
differences on value through
translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income Total
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (191,285) 72,372 (118,913)
Exchange differences on foreign
operations 47,203 - 47,203

Unrealized gains (losses) from financial
assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income - (169,109) (169,109)

Disposal of investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - (865) (865)
Disposal of subsidiaries or investments

accounted for using equity method (5,141) 597 (4,544)
Balance at December 31, 2022 3 (149,223) (97,005) (246,228)

Treasury stock

The Company implements the treasury stock system, and the reasons for the repurchase were as
follows:

Unit: Thousand shares

2023
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
at during the during the at
Reason January 1 year year December 31
Transferred to employee 45 - 45 -
2022
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
at during the during the at
Reason January 1 year year December 31
Transferred to employee 45 - - 45

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares held by the
Company should not be pledged, and do not hold any shareholder rights before their transfer.

In February 2023, the Company transferred $1,419 treasury shares to employee. The Company
used Black-Scholes option pricing model in measuring the fair value of the share-based payment
at the grant date. The Company recognized compensation cost amounting to $1,066 for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

247



Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

F. Cash capital increase reserved for employee subscription

On June 30, 2023, the Company’ s Board of Directors approved to reserve part of the cash
capital increase shares for employee subscription. The Company used Black-Scholes option
pricing model in measuring the fair value of the share-based payment at the grant date. The
compensation cost arising from cash capital increase is $4,378.

(18) Earnings per share

The details on the calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022
Basic earnings per share:
Net profit for the period attributable to the Company $ 714,999 590,929
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January (in thousands of 140,136 140,136
shares)
Add: Exercise of share options 40 -
Add: Issued for cash 2,652 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands
of shares) 142,828 140,136
Basic earnings per share $ 5.01 4.22
Diluted earnings per share:
Net profit 714,999 590,929
Add: Interest expense on convertible bonds, net of tax 828 -
Net profit for the period attributable to the Company $ 715,827 590,929
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands
of shares) (basic) 142,828 140,136
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Effect of employee share bonus 606 992
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds 375 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands $ 143,809 141,128
of shares) (Diluted)
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.98 4,19
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(19) Revenue from contracts with customers

A. Major products lines and primary geographical markets

2023 2022
High High
frequency Passive frequency Passive
component  component component component
department department Total department department Total
China $ 543,350 1,706,930 2,250,280 263,298 1,404,396 1,667,694
Taiwan 120,009 277,786 397,795 154,083 275,479 429,562
Hong Kong 1,612 394,147 395,759 5 349,345 349,350
Others 337,001 551,779 888,780 236,428 671,444 907,872
$ 1,001,972 2,930,642 3,932,614 653,814 2,700,664 3,354,478

B. Contract balances

For details on notes and accounts receivables, and loss allowance, please refer to note 6(3).

(20) Employee compensation and directors’

remuneration

In accordance with the articles of incorporation the Company should contribute no less than 5% of
the profit as employee remuneration and less than 3% as directors’ remuneration when there is
profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved
to offset the deficit. The amount of remuneration of each director will have to be approved by the
Board of Directors. The recipients of shares and cash may include the employees of the Company’ s

affiliated companies who meet certain conditions.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company estimated its employee
remuneration amounting to $40,754 and $37,004, and directors’ remuneration amounting to
$16,301 and $14,802, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated based on
the net profit before tax, excluding the remuneration to employees and directors of each period,
multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees and directors as specified in the
Company’ s articles. These remunerations were expensed under operating costs or operating
expenses during 2023 and 2022. The numbers of shares to be distributed for 2023 and 2022 were
calculated based on the closing price of the Company’ s ordinary shares on the day before the date
of the board meeting. If there is any change on the actual amount incurred and estimated amount, this
shall be accounted for change in accounting estimates and recognized as profit or loss in the

following year.

The employee and directors’  remuneration for the year 2022 and 2021 were approved by the Board
of Directors on February 23, 2023 and February 22, 2022. For the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, the employee remuneration amounting to $37,004 and $34,982, and directors’

remuneration amounting to $14,802 and $13,993, respectively, both were paid in cash. The
appropriation of remunerations were in agreement with those amounts recognized in the 2022 and
2021 financial statements. The related information is available on the Market Observation Post

System website.
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(21) Non-operating income and expenses

A.

(22) Financial instruments

A

Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits

Interest income from financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Loans to other parties and interest income(Note)

Others

Note: For related party transactions, please refer to note 7.

Other gains and losses

Dividend income (Note)
Sales of raw materials (Note)
Patent income (Note)
Sample mold revenue
Technical service revenue

Government grant
Gain (Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Others

Note: For related party transactions, please refer to note 7.

Finance costs

Interest expenses on borrowings (Note)
Interest expenses bonds
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note)

Note: For related party transactions, please refer to note 7.

Credit risk

(@) Credit risk exposure

2023 2022

$ 55,051 12,741

9,223 7,612

8,270 13,277

60 211

$ 72,604 33,841
2023 2022

$ 1,626 18,057

10,573 10,800

12,237 7,462

2,053 4,099

243 3,478

11 563

1,020 (4,076)

1,855 (5.415)

$ 29,618 34,968
2023 2022

$ 41,546 22,614

1,035 -
432 860
$ 43,013 23,474

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum
amount exposed to credit risk.
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(b) Concentration of credit risk

The Company has a large customer base located in diverse areas and does not significantly
concentrate on transactions with a single customer; therefore, there was no concentration of
credit risk. In order to reduce credit risk, the Company also regularly and continuously
evaluates the financial situation of its customers, but usually does not require customers to
provide any collateral.

(c) Receivables and debt securities
For credit risk exposure of notes and accounts receivables, please refer to note 6(3).

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include time deposits with maturities of more
than three months and investments in bonds, please refer to note 6(5) for details of relevant
investments.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, please refer to note
6(2).

All of these financial assets are considered to have low credit risk, and thus, the impairment
provision recognized during the period was limited to 12-month expected credit losses.
Regarding how the financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk, please refer
to note 4(6).

B. Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments.

Carrying Contractua Within 6 6-12 Over 5
amount | cash flows  months months 1-2years 2-5years years
December 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial

liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 200,000 200,719 200,719 - - - -
Long-term

borrowings

(including current

portion) 1,865,694 1,960,522 214,376 234,777 516,439 872,542 122,388
Notes and accounts

payables (including

related parties) 610,176 610,176 610,176 - - - -
Salary and bonus

payable 219,585 219,585 219,585 - - - -
Payable on machinery

and equipment 95,118 95,118 95,118 - - - -
Convertible bonds

payable 662,742 700,000 - - - 700,000 -
Lease liabilities

(current and

non-current) 18,228 18,842 5,571 4,835 1,546 4,429 2,461
Guarantee deposits

received 6,122 6,122 - - 6,122 - -

$ 3,677,665 3,811,084 1,345,545 239,612 524,107 1,576,971 124,849
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Carrying Contractua Within 6 6-12 Over 5
amount | cash flows  months months  1-2years 2-5years years
December 31, 2022
Non derivative financial
liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 100,000 100,246 100,246 - - - -
Long-term
borrowings
(including current
portion) 2,621,715 2,741,894 127,458 262,526 876,554 1,299,468 175,888

Notes and accounts
payables (including
related parties) 382,648 382,648 382,648 - - - -
Salary and bonus payable 167,518 167,518 167,518 - - - -
Payable on machinery
and equipment 94,891 94,891 94,891 - - - -

Lease liabilities
(current and

non-current) 10,616 11,308 738 738 1,476 4,429 3,927
Guarantee deposits
received 6,122 6,122 - - 6,122 - -

$ 3,383,510 3,504,627 873,499 263,264 884,152 1,303,897 179,815

Except for the early repayment of some long-term borrowings, the Company does not expect the
cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur significantly earlier or at significantly
different amounts.

Foreign currency risk
(@) Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Company’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk were as follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD
Financial assets
Monetary items
usD $ 78,703 30.7350 2,418,937
JPY 62,490 0.2171 13,567
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
usD 14,611 30.7350 449,069
JPY 8,846 0.2171 1,920
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December 31, 2022

Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD
Financial assets
Monetary items
uUsD $ 47,676 30.7100 1,464,123
JPY 14,326 0.2324 3,329
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
usD 9,861 30.7100 302,841
JPY 626 0.2324 145

Sensitivity analysis

The Company’ s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the foreign currency
exchange gains and losses resulted from the translation of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and other receivables (including related parties), financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, short-term borrowings, and accounts payables
(including related parties) which are denominated in foreign currencies. A strengthening
(weakening) of 1% of the TWD against the USD and the JPY as of December 31, 2023 and
2022, would have increased or decreased the net profit after tax by $15,852 thousand and
$9,316 thousand, respectively. The analysis assumed that all other variables remain
constant, and is performed on the same basis for both periods.

Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items

Since the Company has different functional currencies, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed in aggregate amount. For the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, foreign exchange gain (loss) (including realized and
unrealized portions) amounted to $2,059 and $145,046, respectively.

Other market price risk

The sensitivity analyses for the changes in securities price at the reporting date were performed
using the same basis for the profit and loss as illustrated below:

Impact to other comprehensive income:

Prices of securities at the reporting date 2023 2022
Increasing 5% $ 9,054 16,366
Decreasing 5% $ (9,054) (16,366)
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E. Fair value of financial instruments

(@) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is
measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of the Company’ s
financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value hierarchy were as
follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for financial
instruments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the

fair value, and lease liabilities, disclosure of fair value information is not required:

December 31, 2023

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Bond investments $ 183,710 183,710 - - 183,710
Stocks in unlisted domestic
companies 42,637 - - 42,637 42,637
$ 226,347 183,710 - 42,637 226,347
Financial assets measured
at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,137,307 - - - -
Notes and accounts
receivables (including
related parties) 2,040,534 - - - -
Time deposits and others 210,673 - - - -
Foreign bonds 218,574 - - - -
Guarantee deposits received 24,165 - - - -
$ 3,631,253 - - - -
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss
Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss $ 2,374 - 2,374 - 2,374
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December 31, 2023

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
Short-term borrowings $ 200,000 - - - -
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion 1,865,694 - - - -
Notes and accounts
payables (including
related parties) 610,176 - - - -
Salary and bonus payable 219,585 - - - -
Payable on machinery and
equipment 95,118 - - - -
Convertible bonds payable 662,742 - 819,000 - 819,000
Lease liabilities (current
and non-current) 18,228 - - - -
Guarantee deposits received 6,122 - - - -
$ 3,677,665 - 819,000 - 819,000
December 31, 2022
Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Bond investments $ 177,786 177,786 - - 177,786
Stocks in listed domestic
companies 198,934 198,934 - - 198,934
Stocks in unlisted domestic
companies 32,436 - - 32,436 32,436
$ 409,156 376,720 - 32,436 409,156
Financial assets measured
at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 641,970 - - - -
Notes and accounts
receivables (including
related companies) 1,804,417 - - - -
Financial assets measured
at amortized cost- current 449,427 - - - -
Refundable deposits 32,487 - - - -
$ 2928301 - - - -
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December 31, 2022
Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

Short-term borrowings $ 100,000 - - - -

Long-term borrowings
(including current
portion) 2,621,715 - - - -

Notes and accounts
payables (including

related parties) 382,648 - - - -
Salary and bonus payable 167,518 - - - -
Payable on machinery and
equipment 94,891 - - - -
Lease liabilities (current
and non-current) 10,616 - - - -
Guarantee deposits received 6,122 - - - -
$ 3,383,510 - - - -

(b) Valuation techniques for financial instruments not measured at fair value

(©)

The Company estimates its financial instruments not measured at fair value using the
following methods and assumptions:

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

If there is quoted price generated by transactions, the recent transaction price and quoted
price data is used as the basis for fair value measurement. However, if no quoted prices are
available, the discounted cash flows are used to estimate fair values.

Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value
(i) Non-derivative financial instruments

The Group held its foreign listed US dollar corporate bonds and domestic listed
company stocks, which are measured at fair value according to standard provisions
and conditions; the fair value is measured using the quoted prices in an active market.

Except for the above-mentioned financial instruments traded in active markets, the fair
value of other financial instruments is based on the valuation techniques or refer to
quoted price from counterparties. The fair value using valuation techniques refers to
the current fair value of other financial instruments with similar conditions and
characteristics, or using a discounted cash flow method, or other valuation techniques
including a model using observable market data at the reporting date.
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The categories and nature of the fair value for the Company’ s financial instruments
which without an active market, the fair value for equity instruments which do not
have public quoted price is measured based on net asset value of comparable
companies. The main assumptions are based on the market multiples and net value of
assets. The market multiples derived from the net value per share of investees and
quoted price of EV/EBIT' s comparable listed companies. The net asset value
method reflects the overall value of the enterprise by evaluating the total value of
individual assets and individual liabilities covered by the evaluation target. The
estimated amount has adjusted the discounted effect due to the lack of liquidity in
market for equity security.

(ii) Derivative financial instruments

Measurements of fair value of derivative instruments is based on the valuation
techniques generally accepted by market participants such as embedded
derivatives - call rights and put rights are used to evaluate financial instruments using
the binary tree convertible bond evaluation model.

(d) There was no transfer between levels for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.
(e) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Financial assets
at FVOClIl-equity

investments
without an active
market
Opening balance, January 1, 2023 $ 32,436
Addition 2,500
Recognized in other comprehensive income 7,701
Ending balance, December 31, 2023 $ 42,637
Opening balance, January 1, 2022 $ 53,052
Recognized in other comprehensive income (20,616)
Ending balance, December 31, 2022 $ 32,436

() Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Company’ s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value
through other comprehensive income — equity investments.

The Company classified those third level of investment in non-active market equity
instruments with multiple significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable
input values of equity instrument investment without an active market are independent of
each other, hence, there is no correlation.
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Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Inter-relationship between

significant
Valuation Significant unobservable unobservable inputs and
Items technique inputs fair value measurement

Financial assets at fair Market Method
value through other

comprehensive

income equity

investments without

an active market

Net Asset Value
Method

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income equity
investments without
an active market

Price-book ratios
(14.91 and 13.94 at Dec 31,
2023 and Dec 31, 2022,
respectively.)

Discount rate
(22.42% and 25.00% at Dec
31, 2023 and Dec 2022,
respectively.)

Net asset value

Discount rate (9%
and 15% at Dec 31, 2023
and Dec 2022,
respectively.)

The higher the
price-book ratio, the higher
the fair value

The higher the

discount rate, the lower the
fair value

The higher the net
asssets, the higher the fair
value

The higher the
discount rate, the lower the

fair value
(23) Financial risk management
A. Overview
The Company is exposed to the following risks from its financial instrument:
(@)  creditrisk
(b)  liquidity risk
(c)  market risk

The following likewise discusses the Company’ s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing the abovementioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative
effects of these risks exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying
parent-company-only financial statements.

B. Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework. The Company’ s establishment of the risk management policy is to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, through setting appropriate risk limits and
controls, and supervising the compliance of risks and risk limits. Risk management policies and
systems are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and operations of the
management of the Company.

The Company” s financial management department provides services for various business units

and to coordinate access to the domestic and international financial markets operation, and
supervises and manages the financial risks related to the operation of the Company by analyzing
internal risk reports based on risk level and breadth.
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C. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’ s exposure to credit
risk for the bank deposits, fixed income investments, and other financial instruments is measured
and monitored by the Company’ s finance department. The Company only deals with banks,
financial institutions and corporate organizations with good credit rating. The Company expects
its counterparties to meet their obligations; hence, there is no significant credit risk arising from
these counterparties.

The Company established a credit policy to obtain the necessary collateral to mitigate risks
arising from financial loss due to default risk. The Company will transact with corporations
having credit ratings equivalent to investment grade, and such ratings are provided by
independent rating agencies. When it is not possible to obtain such information, the Company
will assess the ratings based on other publicly available financial information and records of
transactions with its major customers. The Company continuously monitors the exposure to
credit risk and counterparty credit ratings, and establish sales limits based on the credit rating for
each of its approved customer. The credit limits for each counterparty are approved and
reviewed annually by the management of the Company.

The Company’ s policy stipulates that only fully owned subsidiaries can be provided with
financial guarantees. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company only provided
endorsement guarantee to its subsidiaries.

D. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’ s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’ s
reputation.

The Company manages sufficient cash and cash equivalents so as to cope with its operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Company’ s management supervises the
banking facilities and ensures compliance with the terms of loan agreements.

E. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, and equity prices, that will affect the Company’ s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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(@) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the
Company’ s entities, the currencies used in these transactions are the TWD, USD, CNY,
EUR and JPY.

Loan interest is priced in the currency of the principal of the loan. Except for the US
dollars, the currency of the loan is the same as the currency of the cash flow generated by
the operation of the Company, which is mainly is the New Taiwan dollar. In this case,
economic hedging is provided without the need to sign derivatives, so hedging accounting
is not adopted.

Regarding other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, when
short-term imbalance occurs, the Company buys or sells foreign currencies at real-time
exchange rates to ensure that the net risk of risk remains at an acceptable level.

(b) Interest rate risk

The short-term and long-term borrowings of the Company are carried at floating interest
rates. Therefore, changes in market interest rates will cause the effective interest rates of
short-term and long-term borrowings to change accordingly, which will cause fluctuations
in future cash flows.

(c) Other market price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk due to the investments in equity securities.
This is a strategic investment and is not held for trading. The Company does not actively
trade in these investments as the management of the Company minimizes the risk by
holding different investment portfolios.

(24) Capital management

The Company’ s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate,
to continue to provide a return on shareholders, to maintain the interest of other related parties, and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Although the Company’ s life cycle is in a stable growth stage of operation, the industry of the
Company is changeable, and it is deemed as technology intensive industry; hence, a material amount
of capital is needed to sustain its development. The retained surplus must be used to respond to
operating growth and investment needs. At this stage, a residual dividend policy is adopted. The cash
dividends distributed by shareholder dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total distribution.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure semiannually, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to its shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to settle any liabilities.

There were no changes in the Company’ s approach to capital management during the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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The Company’ s debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period as of December 31, 2023 and
2022 is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Total liabilities $ 4,122,885 3,820,319
Less: cash and cash equivalents and over three-month period

time deposit (1,321,717) (1,084,194)
Net debt $ 2,801,168 2,736,125
Total equity $ 6,842,257 5,820,552
Debt-to-equity ratio 40.94% 47.01%

Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Company’ s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow in the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

A. For right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6(8).

B. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash
changes
Increase
January 1, (decrease) in  December 31,
2023 Cash flows this period 2023
Short-term borrowings $ 100,000 100,000 - 200,000
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) 2,621,715 (756,100) 79 1,865,694
Lease liabilities (current and
non-current) 10,616 (11,580) 19,192 18,228
Convertible bonds payable - 758,169 (95,427) 662,742
$ 2,732,331 90,489 (76,156) 2,746,664
Non-cash
changes
Increase
January 1, (decrease) in  December 31,
2022 Cash flows this period 2022
Short-term borrowings $ 100,000 - - 100,000
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) 1,457,023 1,180,870 (16,178) 2,621,715
Lease liabilities (current and
non-current) 81,384 (16,519) (54,249) 10,616
3 1,638,407 1,164,351 (70,427) 2,732,331
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7. Related-party transactions:

@)

)

Parent company and ultimate controlling company

Walsin Technology Corporation ( “Walsin” ) obtained a substantial control over the Company;
therefore, became the parent company of the Company. Walsin has issued its consolidated financial

statements available for public use.

Names and relationship with the Company

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered in

the parent-company-only financial statements:

Name of related party

Relationship with the Company

Inpaq (BVI) Ltd. (Inpag BVI)

Inpag (Cayman Islands) Ltd. (Inpaq Cayman)
Canfield Ltd. (Canfield)

Inpag Technology USA, Inc (Inpaq USA)
Inpagq (HK) Co., Limited

Inpag Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd.

Inpaqg Trading (Suzhou) Co., Ltd (Inpaq Trading) (note3)

Inpaqg Trading (Suzhou) Co., Ltd (Inpaq Trading)
Holypag (HK) Co., Limited (Holypaq (HK))

Taiwan Inpag Electronic Co., Ltd. (Taiwan Inpaq)
Hunan Frontier Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hunan Frontier)
Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. (Eleceram)

Inpag Korea Co., Ltd. (Inpag Korea)

Inpaq Europe GmbH

Apag Technology Co., Ltd. (Apaq)

Phoenix Innovation Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (Phoenix
Innovation)

Walsin Technology Corporation (Walsin)

Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd. (Prosperity Dielectrics)
Kamaya Electric Co., Ltd. (Kamaya Electric)

Kamaya Electric (M) Sdn. Bhd.
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Name of related party Relationship with the Company
Vvg Inc. An associate of Walsin
Joyin Co., Ltd. (Joyin) (note 2) An associate of Walsin
Info-Tek Corporation (Info-Tek) Other related party of Walsin
Hannstar Board Corporation Other related party of Walsin
PSA Charitable Foundation Other related party of Walsin
Career Technology MFG. Co., Ltd. Other related party of Walsin

Note 1: The Company sold its entire shares of Apaq in the second quarter of 2023. Besides, the
board member and CEO of the Company (who is the chairman of Apaq) retired from the
Company in the third quarter of 2023. Thus, Apaq is not a related party of the Company
since then.

Note 2: On July 1, 2022, the Company sold its entire shares of Joyin to Prosperity Dielectrics Co.,
Ltd. Joyin became an associate of Walsin since then.

Note 3: On 2023, Inpag Trading completed its liquidation procedures on various rights and
obligations; thus, cancelled its registration in 2023.

(3) Significant transactions with related parties
A. Sales

The amounts of significant sales by the Company to its related parties were as follows:

2023 2022
Associates:
Inpaq Korea $ 61,426 50,430
Others 2,063 4,741
Parent company 41,997 50,089
Subsidiaries:
Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd. 689,000 471,184
Inpaq Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. 79,651 69,741
Other subsidiaries 10 1,564
Others 36,946 42,181
$ 911,093 689,930

The terms and pricing of sales transactions with related parties were not significantly different
from those offered by other customers.

As of December 31, of 2023 and 2022, the unrealized gain or loss from sales were $2,160 and
$16,170, respectively, recognized in investment accounted for using the equity method.
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B. Purchases and processing fee

The amounts of purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows:

2023 2022

Parent company $ 1,250 2,688
Subsidiaries:

Inpag Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. 859,241 505,898

Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd. 552,750 388,707

Hunan Frontier Electronics Co., Ltd. 234,365 336,947

Others 1,190 406

$ 1,648,796 1,234,646

The terms and pricing of purchase transactions with related parties were not significantly
different from those offered by other vendors.

The amounts of processing fees by the Company to its related parties were as follows:

2023 2022
Others $ 398 -
C. Receivables from related parties
December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Accounts receivable Inpaq Technology (China)
Co., Ltd. $ 229,295 205,908
Accounts receivable Parent company 15,880 17,862
Accounts receivable Associates 13,368 16,779
Accounts receivable Inpaq Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. 5,582 17,568
Accounts receivable Subsidiary 10 581
Accounts receivable Others 6,648 8,565
$ 270,783 267,263
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D. Payables to related parties

December 31,

December 31,

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Accounts payable Inpag Technology
(Suzhon) Co., Ltd. $ 213,550 61,299
Accounts payable Inpag Technology
(China) Co., Ltd. 94,230 111,426
Accounts payable Hunan Frontier Electronics
Co., Ltd. 59,461 91,686
Accounts payable Parent company 254 100
Accounts payable Others 1,249 41
$ 368,744 264,552
E. Commission fee
2023 2022
Associate:
Inpag Korea $ 28,009 19,526
Subsidiaries:
Taiwan Inpag Electronic Co., Ltd. 139,772 98,072
Others - (12)
$ 167,781 117,586
December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Taiwan Inpaq Electronic
Notes payable Co., Ltd. $ 242 242
Taiwan Inpaq Electronic
Other payables Co., Ltd. $ 46,636 36,602
Inpag Korea 9,190 7,427
$ 55,826 44,029
F. Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition Price
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Transportation equipment  Prosperity Dielectrics $ 1,198 -
Experiment equipment Inpag Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd 1,491 -
Mechanical equipment Parent company 210 -
$ 2,899 -
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G. Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Disposal Price

2023 2022
Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd. $ 3,169 -
Hunan Frontier Electronics Co., Ltd. 216 -
Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. 12 -
Apaq - 1,317
3,397 1317
Gain from disposal
2023 2022
Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd. $ 3,081 -
Hunan Frontier Electronics Co., Ltd. 216 -
Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. 12 -
Apag - 215
$ 3,309 215

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balances of unrealized gains or losses arising from the
sales of fixed assets amounted to $6,471 and $4,353, respectively, recognized in investment
accounted for using the equity method.

H. Lease
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other income Info-Tek $ - 708
Interest expense Info-Tek $ - 619

In 2022, The Company terminated the lease contract signed with Info-Tek, the lease liability
decreased by $54,543 and the right-of-use asset decreased by $53,835. The difference of $708
was recognized as gain on lease modification.

December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2023 2022

Refundable deposits Info-Tek $ 1,095 1,095
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Other
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other income Eleceram $ - 138
Parent company 161 75
Others - 3
Patents income Inpaq Technology (China) 12,237 7,462
Co., Ltd.
Sale of raw materials Inpaq Technology (China) 96,029 72,534
Co., Ltd.
Subsidiary 1,883 2,719
Dividend income Apaq - 9,553
Phoenix Innovation 1,626 8,504
$ 111,936 100,988
Cost of raw materials Inpag Technology (China)
Co., Ltd. 85,744 62,165
Subsidiary 1,595 2,288
Other expenses Others 2,460 3,780
Subsidiary - 470
Parent company 156 6
$ 89,955 68,709

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the deferred unrealized gains (losses) arising from
purchasing materials were $1,529 and $889, respectively, recognized in investment accounted

for using the equity method.

December 31, December 31,

Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other receivables Inpag Technology (China)
Co., Ltd. $ 29,907 24,214
Other receivables Others - 1,383
Other receivables Subsidiary 464 275
Other receivables Parent company 61 -
$ 30,432 25,872
Other payables Parent company $ 1,141 1,760
Inpag Technology (China)
Other payables Co., Ltd. 331 268
Other payables Others 1,329 213
$ 2,801 2,241
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Guarantee:
The guarantees provided by the Company for its subsidiaries were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Inpag Technology (China) Co., Ltd. $ 199,778 230,325
Hunan Frontier Electronics Co., Ltd. 122,940 184,260
Taiwan Inpag Electronic Co., Ltd. 900,000 737,040
Inpag Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. - 307,100
$ 1,222,718 1,458,725

Loans to related parties

The loans and the interest receivable to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Other receivable Taiwan Inpag electronic Co., $ 680,581 671,484
Ltd.
Other receivable Inpag USA 21,737 15,363
$ 702,318 686,847

The interest income charged by the Company to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2023 2022
Interest income Taiwan Inpag electronic
Co., Ltd. $ 7,935 13,269
Interest income Inpag USA 335 8
$ 8,270 13,277

Disposal of investments accounted for using the equity method

The Company sold its entire shares of Joyin to the Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd., please refer
to note 6(6).

. Business combination

The Company acquired 72.9% of the shares of Eleceram Technology Co., Ltd. from Joyin,
please refer to note 6(6).
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(4) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 11,644 17,678
Post-employment benefits 170 216
Other benefits 292 490
$ 12,106 18,384
8. Pledged assets:
The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
Pledged assets Object 2023 2022
Land and buildings Long-term borrowings $ 812,217 -
Time deposit (classified as Tariff guarantee
refundable deposits) 3,800 3,800
Time deposit (classified as Guarantee for plant lease
refundable deposits) 9,331 9,331
$ 825,348 13,131

9. Significant commitments and contingencies:

(1) The contracted and unpaid construction cost of the Company on December 31, 2023 and 2022 were
approximately $59,500 and $264,400 respectively.

(2) The Company signed a non-cancellable procurement contract with iPU Semiconductor Co., Ltd.
( “iPU” ) on December 31, 2021, wherein the Company shall purchase the agreed number of wafers
from iPU from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2023. In addition, the Company provided a
production capacity deposit of $9,823 (US$350,000) to guarantee the basic production capacity
during the agreement period. The deposit was accounted for as current financial assets at amortised
cost. The non-interest bearing deposit will be refunded to the Company two weeks after the
Company achieves the stipulated purchase quantity. The deposit was refunded by iPU on January 5,
2024.

10. Losses due to major disasters: None.

11. Subsequent events: None.
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12. Other:

A summary of current-period employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as follows:

2023 2022

om0 Gt [ | o | e [P | 1o
Employee benefits

Salary 464,170 335,912 800,082 406,119 233,634 639,753

Labor and health insurance 42,829 19,618 62,447 43,548 12,440 55,988

Pension 13,852 13,436|27,288 (Note) 15,088 7,146 22,234

Remuneration to directors - 17,167 17,167 - 15,728 15,728

Others 32,439 11,322 43,761 26,836 9,582 36,418
Depreciation 228,834 19,178 248,012 230,115 20,352 250,467
Amortization 2,618 4,719 7,337 2,556 6,476 9,032
Note: Includes a pension of $2,556 paid to retired employees in the current year.
Additional information on the number of employees and employee benefits were as follows:

2023 2022

The numbers of employees 980 968
The number of directors who are not holding as a position of employee 7 5
The average of employee benefits $ 959 783
The average of salaries $ 822 644
The average of salary adjustment rate 23.80%

The remuneration to the directors of the Company is appropriated in accordance with the Company’ s
articles of association and other regulations; the articles of association clearly stipulate that if the Company
makes a profit, a minimum of 3% shall be appropriated as directors' remuneration. The reasonableness of
the directors' remuneration is based on the evaluation of the performance of the board of directors, the
overall operating performance of the Company, the future operating needs and development of the industry,
as well as taking into consideration the individual's contribution to the Company's operations, the salary
level within the same peer industry, and the remuneration recommended by the remuneration committee
and approved by the board. The remuneration to managers and employees is based on the Company's
articles of association, as well as the salary and performance appraisal regulations, wherein it stipulates that
if the Company makes a profit, a minimum of 5% of the profit shall be allocated as employee remuneration,
which is subject to personal performance evaluation (such as target achievement rate, professional ethics
and compliance with the regulations), contribution to the Company's overall operations, and the salary level
within the same peer industry. The Company's remuneration payment policy does not cause any major
uncertain future risks.
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(1) Information on significant transactions:

The following is the information on significant transactions of the Company required by the

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”

A. Loans to other parties:

“Regulations Governing the

related party

Highest
balance Collateral
of
financing Actual | Range of |Purposes| Transaction
to other usage interest | of fund | amount for | Reasons Maximum
parties amount rates [financing| business for  |Allowance] Individual | limit of
Name of lender Name of Account |Related |during the | Ending |during the|during the| for the |between two|short-term| for bad funding fund
Number borrower name party | period balance | period period |borrower| parties | financing | debt Item Value | loan limits | financing
(note 2) (note 1) (note 1)
0 [The Company [Taiwan Inpaq |Receivabls-r| Yes 750,000/ 700,000 680,000f 1.73%~ 2 Operating None | 700,000| 1,710,564 2,736,903
Electronic Co., [elated party 2.867%
Ltd.
0 [The Company (Inpag USA Receivables-| Yes 47,145 30,735| 21,515(3%~4% 2 Operating None 30,735| 1,710,564| 2,736,903

Note 1: a. According to the financing company’ s financial management clauses, the financing limit of the Company in
aggregate is 40% of net equity. An entity which has short term financing needs.

(1) For companies or entities with short-term financing needs, in which the Company directly holds 50% of the
voting shares, the financing limit is 25% of the Company’ s net equity.

(2) For other companies or entities, and those fund loans approved by the Company’ s Board of Directors, the
financing limit is both 10% of the Company’ s net equity.

b. According to the financing company’ s financial management clauses, for financing between foreign companies,
in which the Company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares, the financing limit for each borrower
and the aggregate financing limit are both 40% of net equity.

Note 2: 1. relate to business relationship.
2. relate to short-term financing.

B. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

Ratio of
Counter-party of accumulated
guarantee and Limitation on amounts of Parent Subsidiary [Endorsements/
endorsement amount of Highest Balance of Property |guarantees and| Maximum company |endorsements/| guarantees to
guarantees and| balance for guarantees pledged for | endorsements| amount for [endorsements/| guarantees | third parties
endorsements | guarantees and and Actual usage| guarantees [to net worth of| guarantees | guarantees to |to third parties| on behalf of
Relationship| for a specific | endorsements | endorsements | amount and the latest and third parties | on behalf of | companies in
Name of with the enterprise during as of during the |endorsements| financial |endorsements| on behalf of parent Mainland
No. | guarantor Name Company (note 1) the period reporting date period (Amount) statements (note 2) subsidiary company China
0 ([The Inpag Indirect 1,368,451 230,550 199,778 - - 2.92% | 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company [Technology subsidiary
(China) Co., of the
Ltd. Company
0 [The Inpaq Indirect 1,368,451 307,400 % 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company [Technology subsidiary
(Suzhou) Co., [of the
Ltd. Company
0 [The Taiwan Inpaq  |Indirect 1,368,451 900,000 900,000 13.15% 2,736,903 Y N N
Company [Electronic Co., [subsidiary
Ltd. of the
Company
0 [The Hunan Frontier (Indirect 1,368,451 184,440 122,940 1.80% 2,736,903 Y N Y
Company  [Electronics Co., [subsidiary
Ltd. of the
Company

Note 1: The total amount of guarantee provided to any individual entity shall not exceed 20% of Inpaq’ s equity.

Note 2: The total amount of guarantee provided shall not exceed 40% of Inpaq’ s equity.
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C. Securities held as of December 31, 2023 (excluding investment in subsidiaries and associates):

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Category and Ending balance
Name of holder name of Relationship Account Shares/Units . | Percentage of Fair value
security with company title (thousands) | Carvingvalue | o nershin (96)
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at amortised cost 10,000 123,823 - % 127,161
bonds —Union Bank —non-current
of Switzerland
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at amortised cost 30,000 94,751 - % 94,547
bonds —Unitedhealth —non-current
'The Company IAICP Technology NA Financial assets at fair value 600,000 6,942 8.00% 6,942
Corporation—-Stock through other comprehensive
income —non-current
'The Company Phoenix Innovation |[The Company is {Financial assets at fair value 3,000,000 32,370 9.38% 32,370
\Venture Capital Co., through other comprehensive
Ltd.-Stock income —non-current
'The Company PAN WIN NA Financial assets at fair value 100,000 5.00% -
Biotechnology through other comprehensive
Inc.-Stock income —non-current
'The Company Silitech technolpgy NA Financial assets at fair value 250,000 3,325 5.00% 3,325
corporation through other comprehensive
income —non-current
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 7,500 21,818 - % 21,818
bonds —Microsoft through other comprehensive
Corporation income —non-current
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 27,500 77,726 - % 77,726
bonds —Apple Inc. through other comprehensive
income- Non current
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 41,391 - % 41,391
bonds —Amazon.com through other comprehensive
, Inc. income —non-current
'The Company Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 43,225 - % 43,225
bonds —Saudi through other comprehensive
lArabian Oil Co. income —non-current
Inpaq (BVI) Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 15,000 45,061 - % 45,061
bonds-Bank of through other comprehensive
lAmerica income —non-current
Inpag (BVI) Corporate NA Financial assets at fair value 70,000 215,497 - % 215,497
bonds —Commonwea through other comprehensive
Ith Bank of Australia income —non-current
Inpaqg (BVI) Morgan NA Financial assets measured at fair 1,600 5,599 - % 5,599
Stanley - Liquid alue through profit or loss—non
funds current
Inpaq (BVI) GLG Japan NA Financial assets measured at fair 3,089 21,058 - % 21,058
Corealpha-Japanese alue through profit or loss—non
Stock current
Inpaq (BVI) Marubeni NA Financial assets measured at fair 21,300 10,303 - % 10,303
Corp-Japanese Stock alue through profit or loss—non
current
Inpaq (BVI) Mitsui & Co., NA Financial assets measured at fair 9,200 10,580 - % 10,580
Ltd.-Japanese Stock alue through profit or loss—non
current

D.

the capital stock: None.

Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of TWD$300 million or 20% of

E. Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

If the counter-party is a related party,

second plant

disclose the previous transfer information References | Purpose of
Relationship Relationshi for acquisition
Name of | Name of |Transaction|Transaction| Status of |Counter-part| with the p with the | Date of determining| and current
company | property date amount | payment y Company | Owner | Company | transfer | Amount price condition | Others
IThe New August 21, 469,819 469,819 Engtown  |Non-related None None None - Bidding | Operation | None
Company [construction [2020 Construction|party
of Zhunan Corporation

272




Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

F. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.

G. Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of TWD$300 million or 20% of the
capital stock:

Transactions with terms Notes/Accounts receivable
Transaction details different from others (payable)
Percentage of total
Percentage notes/accounts
Name of Nature of of total receivable
company Related party relationship | Purchase/Sale Amount  |purchases/sales| Payment terms | Unit price | Payment terms | Ending balance (payable) Note
[The Company(inpagq Technology [Subsidiaries  [Sales (689,000) (10)% 60 days after - Note 229,295 9%
(China) Co., Ltd. indirectly hold month end
100% by the
Company
'The Company Parent company |Sales (857,656) (13)% 60 days after Note 212,127 9%
month end
Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries  [Sales (328,953) (5)% 60 days after Note 108,666 4%
indirectly hold month end
100% by the
Company
IWalsin Passive |Affiliated Sales (213,016) 3)% 60 days after Note 111,220 5%
(H.K.) company month end
Inpaq 'The company Parent company |Sales (531,585) (8)% 60 days after Note 94,229 4%
Technology month end
(China) Co.,
Ltd.
Inpaq Inpag Technology  [Subsidiaries  [Sales (297,126) (4)% 60 days after Note 38,321 2%
Technology |(Suzhou) Co., Ltd findirectly hold month end
(China) Co., 100% by the
Ltd. Company
Hunan 'The Company Parent company |Sales (234,209) (4)% 60 days after Note 59,461 2%
Frontier month end
Electronics
Co., Ltd.

Note: The Company's sales price and credit term for related parties are not significantly different from those of the third
parties.

H. Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of TWD$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

Name of Nature of Ending Turnover Overdue Amounts received in|  Allowance
company Counter-party relationship balance rate (%) Amount Action taken subsequent period for bad debts
(Note)
'The Company Inpaq Technology [Subsidiaries 229,295 3.17% - NA - -
(China) Co., Ltd.
Inpaq Technology [The Company Parent company 212,127 6.27% - NA 74,685 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
Inpaqg Technology ([Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries 108,666 4.19% - NA 24,103 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. indirectly hold
100% by the
Company
Inpaq Technology |Walsin Passive  |Affiliated 111,220 2.86% - NA 29,471 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. |(H.K.) company
'The Company [Taiwan Inpaq Subsidiaries 680,581 - % - NA 15,000 -

Note: As of January 31, 2024.

Trading in derivative instruments:Please refer to notes 6(12)
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Information on investees (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

The following is the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2023 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

Unit: Shares

Main Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2023 Net income Share of
Name of investor | Name of investee Location businesses and products Shares Percentage of  [Carrying value (losses) profits/losses of
December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022 (thousands) ownership of investee investee Note
IThe Company Inpaq BVI BVI General investing 1,258,296 1,258,296 39,908,842 100.00% 3,711,350 665,786 672,214 Subsidiary
IThe Company Inpaq Korea Korea Sales 12,864 12,864 76,828 44.77% 10,870 7,623 3,413| Associate
IThe Company Inpag USA U.S.A. ISales 15,315 15,315 5,000,000 100.00% (12,965) (13,322) (13,322)| Subsidiary
IThe Company Inpagq Europe GmbH |Germany ISales 1,273 1,273 38,000 19.00% 1,642 (1,243) (236)| Associate
IThe Company ICanfield ISamoa ISales 14,823 14,823 600,000 100.00% 30,603 1,837 1,837| Subsidiary
IThe Company 'Yangtze Energy [Taiwan Production and sales of 7,000 7,000 311,097 19.89% 2,055 (712) (142)| Associate
ITechnologies, Inc. lelectronic components
IThe Company Eleceram Technology|[Taiwan Production and sales of 209,946 209,946 8,747,750 72.90% 196,910 (13,234) (12,095)| Subsidiary
ICo., Ltd. lelectronic components
Inpaq BVI Inpaq Cayman ICayman Islands (General Investing 1,002,550 1,002,550 32,150,000 100.00% 3,121,195 648,793 648,793 Subsidiary
Inpaq BVI Inpaq (HK) Co., Hoang Kong IGeneral Investing 277,988 277,988 66,857,629 100.00% 2,560 (6,701) (6,701)| Subsidiary
Limited
Inpaq Technology [Holypaq (HK) Co., |Hoang Kong IGeneral Investing 122,240 122,240 4,000,000 100.00% (226,114) 15,267 15,267 Subsidiary
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. |Limited
Holypaq (HK) Co., [Taiwan Inpag [Taiwan Production and sales of 122,240 122,240 100.00% (226,114) 15,267 15,267 Subsidiary
Limited lelectronic components
Information on investment in mainland China:
A. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:
Accumulated Accumulated Net
Main Total outflow of Investment flows outflow of income Investment Book Accumulated
businesses amount Method | investment from investment from | (losses) | Percentage income value remittance of
Name of and of paid-in of Taiwan as of Taiwan as of of the of (losses) earnings in
investee products capital investment | January 1, 2023 |Outflow | Inflow |December 31,2023 | investee | ownership (Note 2) current period
(Note 3)
Inpag Technology [Production and 360,643 Note 1 360,643 360,643 632,488 100.00% 632,485 2,194,602 361,325
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. [sales of electronic
components
Inpaq Trading Sales of electronic Note 5 23,179 23,179 -%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. components
Inpaq Technology [Production and 894,480 Note 1 894,480 894,480 15,238 100.00% 15,238 900,737
(China) Co., Ltd. [sales of electronic
components
Inpaq Trading Sales of electronic 9,463| Note 4 2,155| 100.00% 2,155 31,112
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. components
Hunan Frontier Manufacturing and 456,560 Note 4 1,984| 100.00% 1,984 336,634
Electronics Co.,  [selling of
Ltd. transformer, coils
land magnetic
components

B. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China

Investment Amounts Authorized by

Upper Limit on Investment

as of December 31, 2023 Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 3)
(Notes 5 and 6)
1,278,302 916,977 4,105,354

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:

Investment in companies in Mainland China through the existing companies in the third regions.
The amount was recognized based on the audited financial statements.

The Company investment in Mainland China pursuant to

in Mainland China”

Note 4:

investment limit.

Note 5:

did not exceed the investment amount or percentage limit.

“Principle of Investment or Technical Cooperation

Inpaq Trading (Suzhou) Co., Ltd invested using its own funds; thus, it was not included in the calculation of the

Inpaq Trading has completed its liquidation procedures on various rights and obligations; thus, cancelled its

registration in 2023. However, its cumulative investment of $23,179 still needs to be included in the cumulative
amount of investments from Taiwan to China according to the regulations of the Investment Commission, MOEA.

Note 6:

Commission, MOEA on January 22, 2021, with approval number 10900410860 for reference.
Significant transactions:

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China were disclosed in
significant transactions”
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(4) Major shareholders:

Shareholding
Shareholder’ s Name Shares Percentage
Walsin Technology Corporation 51,728,658 34.75%
Taifengshuo Corporation 8,022,759 5.38%

The information of major shareholders in this table is based on the last business day of the end of
each quarter by the China Insurance Company, who calculates that shareholders holding more than
5% of the Company’ s ordinary shares that have completed unregistered delivery (including treasury
shares). As for the share capital recorded in the Company’ s financial report and the Company’ s

actual number of shares delivered without physical registration, there may be differences or
differences due to the bases of the calculation.

14. Segment information:

Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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Statement of cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023

Expressed in :

(1) thousands of New Taiwan Dollars;
or

(2) Foreign Currencies Dollars

Item Descriptions Amount
Cash Cash on hand $ 154
Petty cash 110
Bank deposits ~ Check deposits 6
Demand deposits 381,430
Foreign currency deposits (USD: 8,426,317.29 ; EUR: 780,266.11 ; 300,114

JPY: 62,489,653.00 : HKD: 54,658.44 ;
CNY: 184,871.01)

Foreign currency fixed deposits (USD: 14,820,000) 455,493
Total $ 1,137,307

Note: Foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:
USD exchange rates: 30.7350
EUR exchange rates: 34.0252
JPY exchange rates: 0.2171
HKD exchange rates: 3.9340
CNY exchange rates: 4.3327
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of notes and accounts receivable
December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Name of customer Amount

Client A $ 98,424
Client B 75,735
ClientC 54,248
Client D 54,157
Other (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the account balance) 755,236

1,037,800
Less: loss allowance (799)
Total $ 1,037,001

Note: 1. All accounts receivable are generated from operating activities.

2. Accounts receivable from related parties are not included above; please refer to note 7 for relevant
information.
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Statement of inventories
December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Amount
Net realizable
Item Cost value Note

Raw materials $ 142,873 For the net realizable value of
Less: loss allowance (14,160) inventories, please refer to

Subtotal 128,713 129,805 note 4(7) for relevant
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 100,490 information.
Less: loss allowance (23,018)

Subtotal 77,472 134,802
Finished goods and merchandises 184,972
Less: loss allowance (21,457)

Subtotal 163,515 215,713

$ 369,700 480,320

Statement of financial assets measured at amortized
cost — current and non-current

Please refer to note 6(5) for further information on  “financial assets measured at amortized cost — current and
non-current” .

Statement of other current assets

Please refer to note 6(10) for further information on  “other current
assets” .
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.

Statement of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
Income — non-current

December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Provision of
pledge
Beginning balance Increase Decrease Ending balance Accumulated or
Financial assets Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Other (Note) Shares Amount Fair Value impairment guarantee
APAQ Technology Co., 4,776,329 $ 198,934 - - (4,776,329) (275,342) 76,408 - - - -
Ltd. — Stock
Phoenix Innovation Venture 3,000,000 26,160 - - - - 6,210 3,000,000 32,370 - NA
Capital Co., Ltd. — Stock
PAN WIN Biotechnology 100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 - - NA
Inc. — Stock
AICP Technology 600,000 6,276 - - - - 666 600,000 6,942 - NA
Corporation — Stock
Hannstar Board Corporation - - 250,000 2,500 - - 825 250,000 3,325 - NA
Corporate bonds — Apple 27,500 75,139 - - - - 2,137 27,500 77,276 - NA
Inc.
Corporate 15,000 39,763 - - - - 1,628 15,000 41,391 - NA
bonds —~Amazon.com,
Inc.
Corporate bonds — 7,500 20,831 - - - - 987 7,500 21,818 - NA
Microsoft Corporation
Corporate bonds — Saudi 15,000 42,053 - - - - 1,172 15,000 43,225 - NA
Arabian Oil Co.
$ 409,156 2.500 (275,342) 90,033 226,347 -

Note: It" s includes unrealized valuation gains and losses and foreign currency valuations.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

Statement of changes in investments accounted for using the equity method

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and in thousands of shares)

Net change of

unrealized
gains (losses)
from Market value or equity
Beginning balance Increase Decrease Invest Cumulative transactions Ending balance (Note 1) net worth
translation Other between % of
Name of investee Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount income/loss _adjustment adjustments affiliates Shares Amount ownership _ Unit price Total
Subsidiaries:
Inpaq (BV1) Ltd. 39,909 $ 3,090,263 - - - - 672,214 (48,754) (2,373) (Note2) - 39,909 3,711,350 100.00 % - 3,711,350
Inpaq Technology USA 5,000 204 - - - - (13,322) 153 - - 5,000 (12,965) 100.00 % - (12,965)
Inc.
Canfield Ltd. 600 28,768 - - - - 1,836 ()] - - 600 30,603 100.00 % - 30,603
Eleceram Technology 8,748 209,004 - - - - (12,094) - - - 8,748 196,910 72.90 % - 196,910
Co., Ltd.
Associates:
Inpaq Korea Co., Ltd. 77 7,797 - - - - 3,413 (341) - - 77 10,869 4477 % - 10,869
Inpaq Europe GmbH 38 1,822 - - - - (236) 56 - - 38 1,642 19.00 % - 1,642
Yangtze Energy
Technologies, Inc. 311 2,197 - - - - (142) - - - 311 2,055 19.89 % - 2,055
3,340,055 - - 651,669 (48,887) (2,373) - 3,940,464 3,940,464
Less: Unrealized gains (losses)
from transactions between
affiliates 21,412 - - - - - (11,252) 10,160 -

$ 3318643 - - 651,669 (48,887) (2,373) 11,252 3,930,304 — 3940464

Note 1: All of the above investments were not pledged as collateral.

Note
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.

Statement of changes in property, plant and
equipment

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Please refer to note 6(7) for further information on  “property, plant and equipment”™ .

Statement of changes in right-of-use assets

Please refer to note 6(8) for further information on  “right-of-use assets” .

Statement of changes in deferred tax assets

December 31, 2023

Please refer to note 6(16) for further information on  “deferred tax assets” .
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Statement of other non-current assets

December 31, 2023

Please refer to note 6(10) for further information on  “non-current assets” .

Statement of short-term borrowings

Please refer to note 6(11) for further information on  “short-term borrowings”

Statement of long-term borrowings

Please refer to note 6(11) for further information on  “long-term borrowings”™ .

Statement of convertible bonds payable

Please refer to note 6(12) for further information on  “convertible bonds payable” .
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of accounts payable
December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Vendor name Amount
Everstar Technology Inc. $ 16,006
Jung Shing Wire Industrial Co., Ltd. 14,533
Jiin Tech Industrial Co., Ltd 12,042
Chao Cheng International Teks Co., Ltd. 9,939
Others (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the amount balance) 130,043
Total $ 182,563
Note 1: All notes and accounts payable were generated from operating activities.
Note 2: Accounts payable from related parties are not included above; please refer to note 7 for relevant

information.
Statement of other current liabilities
Item Amount

Income tax payable $ 37,285
Accrued expense 45,980
Commissions payable 12,727
Accrued expense-other 20,584
Insurance payable 12,521
Others (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the amount balance) 51,487
Total $ 180,584
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of lease liabilities

December 31, 2023

Please refer to note 6(14) for further information on  “lease liabilities” .

Statement of changes in deferred tax liabilities

Please refer to note 6(16) for further information on  “deferred tax liabilities” .

Statement of operating revenue
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Quantity Amount
Passive component 14,902,543thousand  $ 2,930,642
High frequency component 200,908thousand 1,001,972
Total $ 3,932,614
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Statement of operating costs
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount

Raw material used:
Raw material, beginning of year $ 138,338
Add: Raw material purchased 549,133
Less: Raw material, end of year (142,873)
Sales in the period (19)
Scrapped (921)
Transferred to expenses and others (93,137)
Direct raw material used 450,521
Direct labor 416,026
Manufacturing expenses 676,472
Manufacturing costs 1,543,019
Add: Work in progress and semi-finished products, beginning of year 99,371
Semi-finished products purchased 51,205
Less:Work in progress and semi-finished products end of year (100,490)
Semi-finished products sold (43,165)
Scrapped (2,364)
Transferred to expenses (2,595)
Cost of finished goods 1,544,981
Add: finished goods, beginning of year 111,872
Less: Finished goods, end of year (119,364)
Disposal of finished goods (3,001)
Cost of finished goods 1,534,488
Sales of raw material 19
Sales of semi-finished products 43,165
Cost of production and sales 1,577,672
Merchandise, beginning of year 95,219
Add: Merchandise purchased 1,633,025
Less: Goods, end of year (65,608)
Scrapped (1,950)
Transferred to expenses (439)
Cost of sales on merchandise 1,660,247
Provisions for inventory obsolescence and devaluation loss 19,642
Income from sales of scrap and wastes (28,762)
Total cost of sales $ 3,228,799
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of selling expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item

Commission expense

Payroll expense

Import and export expense

Others (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the amount balance)
Total

Statement of general and administrative expenses

ltem

Payroll expense

Miscellaneous expense

Service fees

Others (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the amount balance)
Total
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Amount

$

213,190
48,897
29,272
32,545

$

323,904

Amount

$

133,664
27,817
11,420
43,899

$

216,800




Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of research and development expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Payroll expense $ 88,146
Depreciation expense 12,588
Insurance expense 8,258
Others (individual amount not exceeding 5% of the amount balance) 47,502
Total $ 156,494

Statement of interest income

Please refer to note 6(21) for further information on ~ “interest income™ .

Statement of other gains and losses

Please refer to note 6(21) for further information on  “other gains and losses” .
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Inpag Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of finance cost

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Please refer to note 6(21) for further information on  “finance cost” .

Statement of current-period employee be
depreciation, and amortization by function

Please refer to note 12 for further information on  “current-period employee benefits, depreciation, and
amortization by function” .
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Appendix 3

Statement

The Company's annual related-party report for 2023 (January 1, 2023 through December 31,
2023) is prepared in accordance with the "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises.” The information disclosed in the report is not significantly inconsistent with the
relevant information disclosed in the footnotes of the financial report for the aforementioned

period.

Hereby Declare

INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Pei-Cheng Chen

February 22, 2024
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Auditor's Review Opinion on the Affiliation Report

To INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.:
INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter "Company") has prepared the related-party report

for the fiscal year 2023 in accordance with the "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises” (hereinafter "Guidelines™). The auditor compared the financial information for the
aforementioned period to the information disclosed in the financial report footnotes. Conforming
to the Guidelines, a review opinion has been issued.

According to the auditor's opinion, the information disclosed in INPAQ Technology Co.,
Ltd.'s Affiliation Report for the fiscal year 2023 is not materially inconsistent with the
information disclosed in the financial report footnotes for the same period, and no violations of
the Guidelines have been identified.

Sincerely,

INPAQ Technology Co., Ltd.

KPMG Taiwan
CPA Hai-Ning Huang

Wan-Yuan Yu
February 22, 2024
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1 - Regarding the relationship between the subordinate company and the controlling company

Unit: shares
Any directors, supervisors or
Details of the company’s shareholding and managers appointed to the
Name of the
pledges subordinate company by the
controlling Reasons for the control
controlling company
company
Shareholding Pledge
Shareholding Title Name
ratio shareholding
Walsin To gain substantive control 51,728,658 34.75% 0 Chairman Pei-Cheng Chen
Technology Corp. Director Yu-Heng Chiao
Director Ming-Tsan Tseng
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Description of business transactions

The transactions between the Company and the controlling company, Walsin Technology Corp., are as follows:

(1) Purchase and sale transactions:

Unit: NT$ thousands

Transaction terms

and conditions

Ordinary transaction

Accounts/notes

Overdue Accounts

Transactions with the controlling company C(‘)’:}':P()}ﬂﬁg terms and conditions receivable (payable) Receivable Remarks
Reasons
Ratio to o for Provi
Purchase total Gros_s Unit . N deviation Ratio to total Handlin | sions
profit . Credit |Unit price . . accounts/notes
(sales) |Amount| purchase price . Credit period Balance . Amount g for
. on period (NT$) receivable

transactions (sales) sales (NT$) (payable) method | bad

transactions pay debt

Sales 47,182 0.71 Note 1 |Note 1| Crediton | Note 1 |[CreditonO to 20,328 0.83 None | None |None
90 days 150 days

Purchase 1,250 0.04 Note 1 |Note 1| Crediton | Note 1 |[CreditonO to (254) (0.02) None | None |None
90 days 120 days

Note 1: Based on market price
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(2) Property transactions: None

(3) Financing: None

(4) Asset leasing:

Unit: NT$ thousands

_ Leasin Comparison|  Total
Transaction | Name and location of the NG| Collection with leasing | Collection/ .
biect leased Lease Nature of price . . Other special
Type (rent 0n) . . (payment) | ordinary |price forthe| payment . )
period the lease | calculation . stipulations
or lease) thod method leasing current status
Name Location Metho price levels |  period
-Right-of-use
Asset:
Asof [NT$2,712
December |thousand
N Sopand Equivalent 31,2023, |-Lease
Plant and j . [2022/6/1~ |Capital Reference |Monthly  |to ordinary the Liabilities:
Lease . Rd., Yangmei . . NT$1,129 :
office . 2026/5/31 |lease market price|payment leasing outstanding [NT$2,766
Dist., Taoyuan .
. price levels balance of |thousand
City
payable rent|-Interest
is NT$0. |Expenses:
NT$31
thousand
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(5) Other significant business transactions:

Unit: NT$ thousands

Transactions with the controlling company

Subject

Amount

Account receivable
(payment) of related parties

for unsettled accounts

Comparison of terms and
conditions between general
transactions and the controlling

companies

Other revenue

Other expenses

2,402

156

709
(1,141)

No major difference

Endorsements and guarantees: None.
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